(

)

29

100

4.9571
)

24 1

27 6 26

26 1 1 26 12 31

(Agricultural Bank of China Limited)

(Liu shiyu, chairman, Executive Director)

100005
(No. 69, Jianguomen Nei Avenue

Dongcheng District, Beijing 100005, PRC)

2 7
(03)6888-1000
2 7
(03)6888-1107
1 15.96 2015 5 29
)
1 20.17 (
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2014 8 14
CAS GAAP 2006 2 15
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CSRC

Commission
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Ministry of Finance

People®s Bank of China

National Council for Social
Security Fund
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2010 4 21 2010 4 26 CBRC
2010 9 2 2010 10 13 CBRC
2012 10 29 2012 12 31 CBRC 2014 6 23
2014 8 14 CBRC
@
(b)
7 17
3

11/496



10

EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

)

12/496



)

)

)

)

13/496

EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

33



)

)

)

14/496

EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn



)

)

EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

©

15/496



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

(D

12
20

15

©

16/496



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

10 30

90

Q)
) ) 2

@

17/496



73

18/496

EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn




EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

ooooooo
(h)
2
1 6
2
3 2
3 1
10
(1)
2
2
2 6 60
120
aj
45
20
20
5

19/496



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

)

SFO

Q)

10 2 4

(m

Q)

20/496



~ ~ ~ ~
N N~

10

CC

©)

10

50

21/496

50

EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn




®)
2
12
@
@

20

12

22/496

EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn



©)

2 1

30
30

(©)

12

10 60
30
45

Q)

23/496

EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

30

10

24/496



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

1 2014 3 25

25/496



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

26/496



10

EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

SAFE

2008

SAFE /

271496



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

28/496



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

oOoOooodn
20
20
1993 045
2011 348
10
10
10 1
10
2009 124
2 10 20
3
20
2008 11 6
2008 897
2008
10
«
20
MOF
20
2008 1 1

10

29/496



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

1984 6 26 10
10

€))
@
®

1988 10 1

16.5
15

0.1 0.2
5.00

10

30/496



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

31/496



wEEL
(i : BRARR
8000 (0
SROoR000 14,5200
11044, 52

. vemsm ol

A e
e — — -~ =
000,000 — = = =
o] -

U ol ol i W e
FORIHE & U T2 I8

(Wil BEARRY
A0

B0 -

0,000 -

o
=) e
Mk x0T
o0 B — — B -
T =
10
&
e —
Bty tHiw [ WA I ]
B s
(%)
2F -
i
@0

RmAA iEeAa  UREAR GRNRRY iR ees

32/496

EDINETOOOO
O0O00000000000(Ee24593)

Oooooooa

A R < PR R = A
(H{l: BRARD

mACy D e

mw peaw

i BOW quw mOw B

FRBRICHT 35155
(94}

T




EDINETOOOO

O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

OooooOodd
IFRS
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
10,337,406 11,677,577 13,244,342 14,562,102 15,974,152
(208,505,479)  (235,536,728) (267,138,378) (293,717,597) (322,198,646)
4,956,741 5,639,928 6,433,399 7,224,713 8,098,067
(99,977,466)  (113,757,348) (129,761,658) (145,722,461) (163,338,011)
3,595,440 3,989,570 4,427,989 4,728,857 5,147,410
(72,520,025)  (80,469,627)  (89,312,538)  (95,381,046) (103,823,260)
141,123 102,545 107,601 92,823 157,349
(2,846,451)  (2,068,333)  (2,170,312)  (1,872,240)  (3,173,729)
1,144,473 1,430,520 1,707,323 2,093,305 2,396,639
(23,084,020)  (28,853,588)  (34,436,705)  (42,221,962)  (48,340,209)
75,705 117,293 190,486 309,728 396,669
(1,526,970)  (2,365,800)  (3,842,103)  (6,247,214)  (8,000,814)
168,733 229,842 279,988 322,191 358,071
(3,403,345)  (4,635,913)  (5,647,358)  (6,498,592)  (7,222,292)
4,788,008 5,410,086 6,153,411 6,902,522 7,739,996
(96,574,121)  (109,121,435) (124,114,300) (139,223,869) (156,115,719)
2,527,431 2,628,052 2,856,148 3,220,098 3,575,630
(50,978,283)  (53,007,809)  (57,608,505)  (64,949,377)  (72,120,457)
2,082,332 2,487,082 2,613,111 2,603,802 2,743,065
(42,000,636)  (50,164,444)  (52,706,449)  (52,518,686)  (55,327,621)
173,268 344,557 485,613 706,333 979,867
(3,494,816)  (6,949,715)  (9,794,814)  (14,246,737)  (19,763,917)
525,331 529,440 814,620 737,052 509,418
(10,595,926)  (10,678,805)  (16,430,885)  (14,866,339)  (10,274,961)
9,795,170 11,027,789 12,492,988 13,717,565 14,941,533
(197,568,579)  (222,430,504) (251,983,568) (276,683,286) (301,370,721)
8,887,905 9,622,026 10,862,935 11,811,411 12,533,397
(179,269,044)  (194,076,264) (219,105,399) (238,236,160) (252,798,617)
3,532,975 3,643,562 3,980,483 4,311,407 4,437,283
(71,260,106)  (73,490,646)  (80,286,342)  (86,961,079)  (89,499,998)
5,065,195 5,626,077 6,421,876 6,923,647 7,422,318
(102,164,983)  (113,477,973) (129,529,239) (139,649,960) (149,708,154)
289,735 352,387 460,576 576,357 673,796
(5.843,955)  (7,107,646)  (9,289,818)  (11,625,121)  (13,590,465)
582,952 724,236 934,073 903,717 1,056,064
(11,758,142)  (14,607,840)  (18,840,252)  (18,227,972)  (21,300,811)
37,467 92,079 7,631 26,787 131,021
(755,709)  (1,857,233) (153,917) (540,294)  (2,642,694)
62,344 119,390 192,639 266,261 325,167
(1,257,478)  (2,408,096)  (3,885,529)  (5,370,484)  (6,558,618)
542,071 649,601 749,815 843,108 1,031,066
(10,933,572)  (13,102,452)  (15,123,769)  (17,005,488)  (20,796,601)
() 624,124 763,010 910,048 1,074,967 1,391,559
(12,588,581)  (15,389,912)  (18,355,668) (21,682,084)  (28,067,745)
Tierl(CET1L) ® N/A N/A N/A 838,473 986,206
(N/A) (N/A) (N/A)  (16,912,000)  (19,891,775)
Tierl ® N/A N/A N/A 1 39,946
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(N/A) (N/A) (N/A) (20) (805,711)
Tier2 ® N/A N/A N/A 236,493 365,407
(N/A) (N/A) (N/A)  (4,770,064)  (7,370,259)
5,383,694 6,388,375 7,216,178 9,065,631 10,852,619
(108,589,108)  (128,853,524) (145,550,310) (182,853,777) (218,897,325)
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
292,253 379,756 424,964 465,771 524,126
(5.894,743)  (7.659,679)  (8,571,524)  (9,394,601)  (10,571,621)
242,152 307,199 341,879 376,202 429,891
(4,884,206)  (6,196,204)  (6,895,699)  (7,587,994)  (8,670,901)
46,128 68,750 74,844 83,171 80,123
(930,402)  (1,386,688)  (1,509,603)  (1,677,559)  (1,616,081)
128,107 157,330 182,802 198,607 223,898
(2,583,918)  (3,173,346)  (3.687,116)  (4,005,903)  (4,516,023)
43,412 64,225 54,235 52,990 67,971
(875,620)  (1,295,418)  (1,093,920)  (1,068,808)  (1,370,975)
120,734 158,201 187,927 214,174 232,257
(2,435,205)  (3,190,914)  (3,790,488)  (4,319,800)  (4,684,624)
94,907 121,956 145,131 166,211 179,510
(1,914,274)  (2,459,853)  (2,927,292)  (3,352,476)  (3,620,717)
94,873 121,927 145,094 166,315 179,461
(1,913,588)  (2.,459,268)  (2,926,546)  (3,354,574)  (3,619,728)
(89,878) 223,004 319,058 32,879 34,615
((1,812,839))  (4,497,991)  (6,435,400) (663,169) (698,185)
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2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
@ 0.99 1.11 1.16 1.20 1.18
® 22.49 20.46 20.74 20.89 19.57
@ 2.57 2.85 2.81 2.79 2.92
® 2.50 2.73 2.67 2.65 2.76
o ® 1.76 1.91 2.01 1.83 1.65
15.78 18.10 17.61 17.86 15.29
™ 38.59 35.89 36.76 36.30 34.56
1
1 ® 0.33 0.38 0.45 0.51 0.55
(6.66) (7.66) (9.08) (10.29) (11.09)
1 ® 0.33 0.38 0.45 0.51 0.55
(6.66) (7.66) (9.08) (10.29) (11.09)
1
(0.28) 0.69 0.98 0.10 0.11
((5.65)) (13.92) (19.77) (2.02) .22
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
® 2.03 1.55 1.33 1.22 1.54
® 168.05 263.10 326.14 367.04 286.53
a0 3.40 4.08 4.35 4.46 4.42
Tierl(CET1) o N/A N/A N/A 9.25 9.09
Tierl (€)) N/A N/A N/A 9.25 9.46
o 11.59 11.94 12.61 11.86 12.82
O 52.08 54.71 54.48 62.25 67.94
5.25 5.56 5.67 5.80 6.46
1
1 1.67 2.00 2.31 2.60 3.05
(33.68) (40.34) (46.59) (52.44) (61.52)
(1) 2014 12 31 2013 12 31
2012 12 31 2011 12 31 2010 12 31
2014 12 31
Tier2 IRB
150
Tier2 95 Tier2
9.52
@
(3) CSRC 9 -
2010
(O]
®)
(6) CBRC
(7) CAS CAS
®)
©
(10)
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2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
(O] 25 38.36 40.18 44.75 43 .57 44 .02
25 127.03 154.66 161.78 114.95 72.49
@
75 55.77 58.61 59.22 61.17 64.61
® 10 3.18 2.80 3.59 3.33 5.23
10
O 18.45 16.31 15.76 13.22 14.43
© 3.10 2.26 2.49 2.53 3.60
4.15 2.61 4.65 4.36 4.99
24.34 14.82 21.79 37.24 42.53
5.26 5.41 4.96 8.62 10.10
(1) CBRC
() 2014 64.75 2014 12
31 CBRC 57.40
(©)
) 10
(5) CBRC
2.48 3.77 2.27 3.71
50.02 76.04 45.79 74.83 49.60
3.82 3.95 3.04 3.92
60.97 63.04 48 .52 62.56
)
1951 1970
2009 1
2010 7
1
IT
2014
15,974,152 8,098,067 12,533,397
12.82 2014 179,510
2014 3
353 3,515
19,702
23,612 8
9 5 14
2014
500 47 1,000 Tierl
9 A
Al P-1
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43

2014 12 31 MOF 40.28 39.21
2014 12 31
/
CA 588,790,000 100.00
ABC
® 4,113,392,449 100.00
® 3,000,000,000 100.00
UK 100,000,000 100.00
200,000,001 51.67
19,600,000 51.02
® 31,000,000 50.00
29,400,000 51.02
20,000,000 51.00
210,000,000 51.00
100,000,000 51.00
® 2,032,653,061 51.00
@ 20,000,000 100.00
@ 1,400,000,000 100.00
(1) 2014 12 31 ABC
1,200 1,000
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0) 3 2

(3) 2012 12 31 51
1,381 2014 2013 12 31

(4 2014 12 31

2014 12 31
23
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2014 493,583 24,088
14,603 6,656 584

2014 12 31

8,048 1.6

65,324 13.2

53,473 10.8

67,240 13.6

107,167 21.7

54,209 11.0

130,882 26.5

486,343 98.5

6,656 1.3

584 0.1

493,583 100.0

HBITORE RS DFER AR

HITOHER | DE IR AR

@ EEE 4303
® L% 40.90%

BE+EELT
WPV 32,000

@ ®F I .808
14 0.10%

@ FImEr] 24,308 @ eI 1500
® . ZoTREr 3.90% B ik Y 34,70%4
@ BimErY 5.00% F i &.80%
WEHY 3.90% (3 FL—=F ¢ T8 0.00%

ARFEEEMY 22 .00%4

2014 12 31
30 101,400 20.5
31 40 83,59 16.9
41 50 222,363 45.1
51 86,226 17.5
493,583 100.0
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2014 0.1 3.3
50 225 7.5 2.9 7.1
2014
12.6 CRB
4.1
GDP 2014 7.4 0.3
15.7 12 6.1 3.9 1.1
1.7
1GDP
2014
CPI 2 PPI 1.9 2014
13.22
2014
2014 M2 12.2
16.5
2015 2014 3.3 3.5
2015
2015 GDP
GDP
GDP
2015
CP1 2014 PPI

2015
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( )
2013 12 31 2014 12 31
2,504,043 2,631,103
397,678 572,805
308,655 407,062
321,811 413,167
8,186 7,195
737,052 509,418
6,902,522 7,739,996
778,944 922,017
1,523,815 1,710,950
592,090 522,117
103,024 128,188
14,177,820 15,564,018
1,481,945 1,582,725
15,659,765 17,146,743
2013 12 31 2014 12 31

(@) (@)
3,512,888 48.6 3,939,049 48.7
793,120 11.0 974,469 12.0
1,296,613 17.9 1,388,288 17.1
1,622,092 22.5 1,796,261 22.2
7,224,713 100.0 8,098,067 100.0
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2013 12 31 2014 12 31
(@) (@)
90 34,893 0.5 73,139 0.9
91 360 21,910 0.3 56,457 0.7
361 3 23,814 0.3 22,821 0.3
3 19,807 0.3 14,203 0.2
100,424 1.4 166,620 2.1
2013 12 31 2014 12 31
(@) )
10,376 0.1 26,403 0.3
10 )
A 72,848 0.90
B 19,980 0.25
C 19,960 0.24
D 14,516 0.18
E 14,396 0.18
F 13,535 0.17
G 12,116 0.15
H 11,713 0.14
I 11,265 0.14
J 10,521 0.13
200,850 2.48
2014 10

5.23 1443
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5
2013 12 31 2014 12 31
Q) )
6,860,589 94.96 7,661,924 94.62
276,343 3.82 311,173 3.84
87,781 1.22 124,970 1.54
25,388 0.36 35,052 0.43
52,162 0.72 75,669 0.93
10,231 0.14 14,249 0.18
7,224,713 100.00 8,098,067 100.00
2014 37,189 124,970
0.32 1.54
34,830 311,173 3.84
0.02
)
)
)
)
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2013 12 31 2014 12 31
71,462 81.4 1.51 103,072 82.5 2.00
48,368 55.1 2.26 78,579 62.9 3.57
23,004 26.3 0.89 24,493 19.6 0.83
24 — 0.03 — — _
15,425 17.6 0.74 21,052 16.8 0.88
3,787 4.4 0.29 4,980 4.0 0.32
2,258 2.6 1.16 3,866 3.1 1.73
1,418 1.6 0.70 2,048 1.6 1.00
3,251 3.7 1.27 4,461 3.6 1.70
4,502 5.1 3.07 5,421 4.3 3.51
209 0.2  13.94 276 0.2 20.25
870 1.0 0.28 846 0.7 0.21
87,781  100.0 1.22 124,970  100.0 1.54
2014 31,610 103,072
0.49 2.00
5,627 21,052 0.14 0.88
2013 12 31 2014 12 31
3 _ _ 7 _ _
19,373 22.1 1.09 26,242 21.0 1.37
12,407 14.1 1.22 16,790 13.4 1.51
16,603 19.0 1.33 26,727 21.4 1.93
14,075 16.0 1.57 18,656 14.9 1.83
4,927 5.6 1.78 5,368 4.3 1.71
19,523 2.2 1.23 30,332 24.3 1.68
870 1.0 0.28 848 0.7 0.21
87,781  100.0 1.22 124,970  100.0 1.54
2014 10,809
10,124 6,869
2013 12 31 2014 12 31
39,316 55.0 2.86 51,360 49.8 3.69
4,548 6.4 0.94 2,324 2.3 0.44
3,521 4.9 0.66 5,580 5.4 0.96
3,586 5.0 0.59 2,734 2.6 0.36
12,305 17.2 2.36 31,460 30.5 5.93
836 1.2 0.43 586 0.6 0.28
1,055 1.5 0.53 1,705 1.7 0.82
267 0.4 0.13 2,046 2.0 0.80
1,370 1.9 0.41 604 0.6 0.15
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- - - 207 0.2 0.37
IT 194 0.3 0.79 145 0.1 0.86
4,464 6.2 2.20 4,321 4.2 1.96
71,462 100.0 1.51 103,072 100.0 2.00
2014 (€)) @) (©)) 3
19,155 12,044 2,059 (€D)
@ 2
2,224 852
( )
2014 1 1 50,127 272,064 322,191
48,603 16,460 65,063
- 58,579 59,031 117,610
- (9,976) (42,571) (52,547)
(25,772) (3,450) (29,222)
- 921 220 1,141
- (688) (314) (1,002)
- 7 (©)] (100)
2014 12 31 73,094 284,977 358,071
©
2014 IMA
VaR IMA
IMA IMA
VaR
VaR 1 250

99
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VaR
( )
2013 2014
81 46 91 17 73 69 98 50
1 161 80 161 12 32 92 247 31
31 17 51 2 36 21 36 2
VaR 211 113 211 36 88 135 289 57
(€] VaR
2014 VaR VaR
2014 VaR 2014 VaR
2014
2014

2014
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2014 1
198,961 85,120
1 3 1 1
1 3 12 5 5
2013 12 31 (2,291,861) 548,216 1,459,564 (284,081) (143,786) 1,200,426 (101,365)
2014 12 31 (2,304,785) 472,000 1,747,665 (85,120) (195,491) 1,237,959 (105,693)
) 48
2013 12 31 2014 12 31
100 (11,922) (19,330) (11,600) (23,485)
100 11,922 19,330 11,600 23,485
2014 12 31 100
11,600 23,485
2014
221 0.36 2014
11,385 9,519
2013 12 31 2014 12 31
(20,225) (3,317) (12,301) (2,010)
31,602 5,183 (45,944) (7,509)
11,377 1,866 (58,245) (9,519)
) 48
2013 12 31 2014 12 31
+1 (188) (106)
-1 188 106
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+1 (93) 13
-1 93 13
1 106
@
CBRC
PBOC
2014 PBOC
SLO PSL
MLF
1 3
1 3 12 5
2013 12 31 18,629  (7,089,235) 355,050 (193,973) 631,324 1,333,003 3,210,614 2,405,782 671,194
2014 12 31 31,199 (7,219,512) 93,530 (268,594) 643,121 1,356,724 3,653,251 2,561,936 851,655
QD) 48
5 442,637
Q)
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2014

AMA
100

2014
ABC
Lecture on Laws

2014

10

2014 ( ANL )
ANL ANL ANL
ALM
ANL ANL
ANL ANL
ANL
ANL

®

2014

@

2014
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®

2014

48

1 PBOC CBRC
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@
®@
2014 179,510 13,299 8.0
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2013 2014
376,202 429,891 53,689 14.3
83,171 80,123 (3,048) @G.7)
6,398 14,112 7,714 120.6
465,771 524,126 58,355 12.5
198,607 223,898 25,291 12.7
52,990 67,971 14,981 28.3
214,174 232,257 18,083 8.4
47,963 52,747 4,784 10.0
166,211 179,510 13,299 8.0
166,315 179,461 13,146 7.9
(104) 49 153 -
2014
429,891 53,689 82.0
39,044 14,645
2013 2014
6,910,717 414,270 5.99 7,768,137 470,829 6.06
® 2,907,104 108,609 3.74 3,129,864 125,161 4.00
2,421,297 93,377 3.86 2,674,907 110,961 4.15
@ 485,807 15,232 3.14 454,957 14,200 3.12
2,362,857 37,517 1.59 2,508,561 40,018 1.60
® 1,283,012 52,988 4.13 1,290,817 63,281 4.90
13,463,690 613,384 4.56 14,697,379 699,289 4.76
@ (302,266) (342,809)
@ 686,625 864,443
13,848,049 15,219,013
11,170,828 194,903 1.74 11,997,284 221,706 1.85
©) 997,433 33,784 3.39 1,185,258 36,510 3.08
® 221,108 8,495 3.84 321,079 11,182 3.48
12,389,369 237,182 1.91 13,503,621 269,398 2.00
@ 727,613 902,096
13,116,982 14,405,717
376,202 429,891
2.65 2.76
2.79 2.92
@
) MOF
©)
)
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®)
®
51,968 4,591 56,559
8,908 7,644 16,552
2,324 177 2,501
383 9,910 10,293
63,583 22,322 85,905
15,273 11,530 26,803
5,786 (3,060) 2,726
3,482 (795) 2,687
24,541 7,675 32,216
39,042 14,647 53,689
2014 2.92 2.76
13 11
)
)
)
2014 699,289 85,905
1,233,689
20
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56,559 13.7 470,829
857,420 7
2013 2014
4,604,132 286,472 6.22 5,001,898 314,983 6.30
2,112,307 127,588 6.04 2,213,212 135,746 6.13
2,491,825 158,884 6.38 2,788,686 179,237 6.43
128,605 7,077 5.50 100,021 5,786 5.78
1,920,670 114,210 5.95 2,281,146 138,398 6.07
257,310 6,511 2.53 385,072 11,662 3.03
6,910,717 414,270 5.99 7,768,137 470,829 6.06
28,511 10.0 314,983
397,766 8
1,291 18.2 5,786
28,584 28
24,188 21.2 138,398
360,476 12
5,151 79.1
11,662 127,762
50
2 2014
16,552 125,161
222,760 26
2,501 40,018
145,704
10,293 63,281
77 7,805
32,216 269,398

1,114,252 9

59/496



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

oOoOooodn
26,803 221,706
826,456 11
2013 2014
1,398,060 48,211 3.45 1,783,471 60,780 3.41
3,025,141 22,511 0.74 2,922,036 21,084 0.72
4,423,201 70,722 1.60 4,705,507 81,864 1.74
3,441,837 112,388 3.27 3,822,982 127,366 3.33
3,305,790 11,793 0.36 3,468,795 12,476 0.36
6,747,627 124,181 1.84 7,291,777 139,842 1.92
11,170,828 194,903 1.74 11,997,284 221,706 1.85
2,726 36,510
187,825
31
2,687 11,182
99,971 36
2014 3,048 3.7
80,123 2.57

15.29
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2013 2014
22,760 21,123 (1,637) (7.2)
16,371 11,031 (5,340) (32.6)
21,651 22,945 1,294 6.0
15,929 19,279 3,350 21.0
6,564 7,379 815 12.4
2,687 2,807 120 4.5
3,338 3,114 (224) (6.7)
397 205 (192) (48.4)
89,697 87,883 (1,814) .0)
6,526 7,760 1,234 18.9
83,171 80,123 (3,048) GB.7)
1,637 7.2 21,123
5,340 32.6 11,031
1,294 6.0 22,945
3,350 21.0 19,279
815
120 2,807
224 6.7 3,114
2014 7,714
1,908
2,144 1,505
685 335
5,337 10,364
2013 2014
2,360 1,908
(639) 1,505
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(350) 335
5,027 10,364
6,398 14,112
2014 25,291 223,898
1.74 34.56
6,740 6.4 111,469
3,445 7.5 49,195
1,867 10.7 19,328
3,235 483.6 3,904
8,087 997.2 8,898
2013 2014
104,729 111,469 6,740 6.4
45,750 49,195 3,445 7.5
27,226 28,880 1,654 6.1
17,461 19,328 1,867 10.7
669 3,904 3,235 483.6
811 8,898 8,087 997.2
1,961 2,224 263 13.4
198,607 223,898 25,291 12.7
2014 14,981 67,971
12,937 65,063
2014 4,784 10.0 52,747
2014
22.71
2013 2014
253,092 54.3 280,701 53.6
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180,223 38.7 189,876 36.2
27,916 6.0 45,686 8.7
4,540 1.0 7,863 1.5
465,771 100.0 524,126 100.0
2013 2014
44,365 9.5 58,530 11.2
97,953 21.0 102,013 19.4
61,545 13.2 69,685 13.3
74,729 16.0 82,726 15.8
61,720 13.3 68,023 13.0
102,332 22.0 112,468 21.4
16,555 3.6 19,219 3.7
6,572 1.4 11,462 2.2
465,771 100.0 524,126 100.0
43
2013 2014
186,085 40.0 198,078 37.8
279,686 60.0 326,048 62.2
465,771 100.0 524,126 100.0
®)
2014 12 31 1,412,050 9.7 15,974,152
837,474 12.1
355,532 11.0 139,263
5.3
273,534 38.7
227,634
30.9
2013 12 31 2014 12 31
7,224,713 - 8,098,067 -
322,191 - 358,071 -
6,902,522 47.4 7,739,996 48.4
3,220,098 22.1 3,575,630 22.4
2,603,802 17.9 2,743,065 17.2
706,333 4.8 979,867 6.1
737,052 5.1 509,418 3.2
392,295 2.7 426,176 2.7
14,562,102 100.0 15,974,152 100.0
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2014 12 31 8,098,067 873,354
12.1
2013 12 31 2014 12 31
6,914,985 95.7 7,701,398 95.1
4,728,857 65.4 5,147,410 63.6
92,823 1.3 157,349 1.9
2,093,305 29.0 2,396,639 29.6
309,728 4.3 396,669 4.9
7,224,713 100.0 8,098,067 100.0
418,553 8.9 5,147,410
303,334 14.5 2,396,639
64,526 69.5 157,349

86,941 28.1 396,669
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2013 12 31 2014 12 31

2,141,372 45.3 2,203,208 42.8
2,587,485 54.7 2,944,202 57.2
4,728,857 100.0 5,147,410 100.0

61,836 2.9

356,717 13.8 2.5
57.2
2013 12 31 2014 12 31
1,373,317 29.1 1,391,090 27.0
485,990 10.3 528,725 10.3
@ 531,271 11.2 581,072 11.3
611,311 12.9 756,578 14.7
522,078 11.0 530,896 10.3
196,043 4.2 207,977 4.0
197,242 4.2 207,823 4.0
212,467 4.5 255,099 5.0
337,061 7.1 395,085 7.7
34,588 0.7 55,881 1.1
IT
24,583 0.5 16,785 0.3
@ 202,906 4.3 220,399 .
4,728,857 100.0 5,147,410 100.0
@
@
2014 12 31 5
5 73.6

0.9
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2013 12 31 2014 12 31
1,292,007 61.7 1,550,673 64.7
202,808 9.7 204,044 8.5
255,808 12.2 263,085 11.0
194,330 9.3 222,865 9.3
146,853 7.0 154,609 6.4
1,499 0.1 1,363 0.1
2,003,305 100.0 2,396,639 100.0
2014 12 31 258,666 20.0 1,550,673

1,236 0.6 204,044
7,277 2.8 263,085
28,535 14.7 ) 222,865
7,756 5.3 154,609

2013 12 31 2014 12 31
115,137 1.6 147,721 1.8
1,780,275 24.7 1,918,523 23.7
1,012,994 14.0 1,110,104 13.7
1,251,196 17.3 1,382,065 17.1
893,855 12.4 1,019,212 12.6
277,263 3.8 314,039 3.9
1,584,265 21.9 1,809,734 22.3
309,728 4.3 396,669 4.9
7,224,713 100.0 8,098,067 100.0

2014
3,142,985
38.8 0.7
0.6

2014 12 31 355,532

11.0 3,575,630
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2013 12 31 2014 12 31
2,533,100 78.7 2,859,170 80.0
455,354 14.1 371,614 10.4
1,888 0.1 4,000 0.1
@ 229,756 7.1 340,846 9.5
3,220,098 100.0 3,575,630 100.0
@
2014 12 31 326,070
2013 12 31 2014 12 31
652,247 25.8 693,588 24.3
PBOC 36,563 1.4 20,625 0.7
1,237,664 48.9 1,364,811 47.7
120,131 4.7 255,140 8.9
96,904 3.8 125,381 4.4
389,591 15.4 399,625 14.0
2,533,100 100.0 2,859,170 100.0
4.2
2013 12 31 2014 12 31
1 - 1 -
3 119,402 4.7 152,080 5.3
3 12 398,339 15.7 386,888 13.5
1 5 1,242,866 49.1 1,471,887 51.5
5 772,492 30.5 848,314 29.7
2,533,100 100.0 2,859,170 100.0
2014
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2013 12 31 2014 12 31
2,464,914 97.3 2,787,707 97.5
56,108 2.2 55,055 1.9
12,078 0.5 16,408 0.6
2,533,100 100.0 2,859,170 100.0
2013 12 31 2014 12 31
@ 322,882 10.0 414,660 11.6
781,311 24.3 927,903 26.0
1,523,815 47.3 1,710,950 47.8
592,090 18.4 522,117 14.6
3,220,098 100.0 3,575,630 100.0
(€D
2014 12 31 1,619,951
1,364,811
255,140
2014 12 31
()}
2014 18,490 5.44 2019 4 8 -
2014 13,620 5.61 2021 4 8 -
2014 12,150 5.67 2024 4 8 -
2013 11,230 3.98 2016 7 18 -
2013 10,230 3.89 2016 1 10 -
2014 10,170 5.75 2019 1 14 -
2013 10,000 5.85 2016 2 10 -
2013 10,000 5.87 2017 8 12 -
2011 10,000 3.48 2017 12 23 -
2011 10,000 3.81 2017 12 23 -
(€]
2014 12 31 1,223,968 8.9 14,941,533
721,986 6.1
152,347 16.9 104,234
389.1
58,906 22.1 Tier2
2013 12 31 2014 12 31
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11,811,411 86.1 12,533,397 83.9
903,717 6.6 1,056,064 7.0
26,787 0.2 131,021 0.9
266,261 2.0 325,167 2.2
) 306,259 2.2 372,493 2.5
403,130 2.9 523,391 3.5
13,717,565 100.0 14,941,533 100.0
(€]
2014 12 31 721,986 6.1 12,533,397
125,876 2.9
498,671 7.2 2.3
52.3
2013 12 31 2014 12 31
11,746,042 99.4 12,458,606 99.4
4,311,407 36.5 4,437,283 35.4
1,301,010 11.0 1,430,020 11.4
3,010,397 25.5 3,007,263 24.0
6,923,647 58.6 7,422,318 59.2
3,486,252 29.5 3,876,021 30.9
3,437,395 29.1 3,546,297 28.3
) 510,988 4.3 599,005 4.8
65,369 0.6 74,791 0.6
11,811,411 100.0 12,533,397 100.0
(€]
2013 12 31 2014 12 31
50,851 0.4 77,854 0.6
2,653,839 22.5 2,763,374 22.0
1,596,288 13.5 1,687,296 13.5
2,118,519 17.9 2,231,660 17.8
1,956,615 16.6 2,098,964 16.7
613,571 5.2 659,561 5.3
2,756,359 23.3 2,939,897 23.5
65,369 0.6 74,791 0.6
11,811,411 100.0 12,533,397 100.0
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2013 12 31 2014 12 31
6,993,059 59.2 7,046,736 56.2
3 1,576,831 13.3 1,710,174 13.6
3 12 2,159,729 18.3 2,363,672 18.9
1 5 1,081,790 9.2 1,412,631 11.3
5 2 - 184 -
11,811,411 100.0 12,533,397 100.0
2014 12 31 1,032,619 324,794
39,944 98,773 3,118
78,594 156,707 329,989
1 3.05
2013 12 31 2014 12 31
324,794 38.4 324,794 31.4
- - 39,944 3.9
98,773 11.7 98,773 9.5
(22,772) Q.7 3,118 0.3
60,632 7.2 78,594 7.6
139,204 16.5 156,707 15.2
243,482 28.8 329,989 32.0
(1,005) 0.1) (853) 0.1)
1,429 0.2 1,553 0.2
844,537 100.0 1,032,619 100.0
2013 12 31 2014 12 31
470,269 31.7 441,058 27.9
404,852 27.4 418,937 26.4
191,073 12.9 241,171 15.2
196,069 13.2 227,337 14.4
219,682 14.8 254,222 16.1
1,481,945 100.0 1,582,725 100.0
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©
IFRS CAS
IFRS CAS
2013 2014
12 31 « @Y 12 31
/C ) )
322,882 522 - - 414,660
781,070 - 4,261 37 927,619
8,186 (991) - - 7,195
19,185 463 - - 20,188
1,131,323 (6) 4,261 37 1,369,662
(313,894) 1,867 (379,733)
@

@
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(10,000 (10,000 (@]
) )
20,757,641 - - 16.7 20,757,641 - -
146,250,000 11,250 3. 11,250 3.8 146,250,000 5,062,500 -
0TC  Cleaning
Hong Kong
Limited 16,641,660 0.01 2. 0.01 2.1 16,641,660 - -
100,290,007 10,000 10. 10,000 10.0 112,038,459 10,770,644 -
390,000,000 39,000 19. 39,000 19.5 335,215,854 (54,784,146) -
30,018,276 - 490 1.1 31,292,675 2,719,342 1,274,399
@
@
209,218,657 171,515,044  3,118,540,575.28 164,893,825.94
@
@
2014
2014 3.45 75.5
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2014
2014 12 31
4,437,283 125,876
2.9
2014
12 31 5,304,759
483,079 10.0
2014 12 31
431,021 36,057
AA- 0.29 2014
73.5
2014 CFO
2014
2014
2014 974,920
161,619 19.9 7.8
2014 205 98
15,428.8 1
88,582 2013 21,938 115
- 150
29,348
181,300
115,869
2014 3,811
5 1
2014

4.2217 6.0 502.75

73/496



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

ooooood
29.9 325.0
124.3
2014 342.0 34.6
179.71 24.6 2014
CFO
2014
4
4

2014 126,330

902,140 15.5 42,450
48.4
2014
262 279,315
39,315 150 168,345
112 110,970
2
10,125
®)
2014
2014

2014 456 22 VIP

741496
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90.4
0.36
27.25
0.492 103.8
249 219
2014 12 31 2,396,639
303,334
2014
2014 12
31 7,422,318 498,671
2014 725 88
4 1 Ic 281
144
51.3836
866 994,392
23.3
2013 12 31 2014 12 31
63,653.19 72,467.64 13.85
3,970.98 4,651.06 17.13
2013 2014
55,180.60 66,929.37 21.29
7,981.28 9,868.54 23.65
2014 30
57,000 640,000
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©
2014 PBOC
SLO MLF
11 1
25 40
2014 11,717,565
9,485,734 2,231,831
2014 12 31 3,575,630
355,532
2014
2014
2
2014
2014
2014 12 31
11,679
@
2014 12 31 825,365 2013
41.4 2014
1,500

2014
2013 2013
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21 2014

2014 12 31
332,132 2013 24.8

2014

2014
12 31 672,983
2014

2014 4,964,042 38.43
1,926,833
12.87 1 2014
3,114

2014

2014
263,336 26.51

2014

2014 456,591
101.53
83,531

2014
2014 1

1

1 2014 372,827
38,428

771496



EDINETOO OO
0000000000000(E24593)
0oooood
2014

15

2014
2 10,125

2014
IT

2014 391,830
116,210 42.2

2014 14 4
18,050 10 22,520

O)

2014

2014

Weibo WeChat

2014 643 131 25.6
55,692 24.9
89.6 1

@

2014

5,193 2014
135 98
3.19 77 2.078
87.54

78/496



105,000
54.63

2014

2014

SMS

2014

3.0743

72

2014

NFC

69.31

112,098

95,599
SIM
WeChat
2014
254.19
259
12.81
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23,870
423
87.11
111
5.49
12,787
48,061
8.19

13.7



2014

46.3161

2014

®

2014

85,370

51.67

2014 12 31
2014

ABC
ABC

ABC

1,629

57.0

2014

43.6

2008 3

61

2014

13

47.0

2009 11
4.113
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15

2014

200

533
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2014
11,108
520
10
441
ABC
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2014 12 31 ABC
10,826 4,962 2014 377
2010 9 3 100
CBRC
2014 12 31 37,025 4,096
2014 160
2,033 51
2014 12 31 49,608 1,800
31.61
CA
CA 588.79 100
UK
UK 100
UK
2014 12 31 UK
1,105 4.8383
20
2014 12 31
1,400
2014 12 31 CBRC
2008 8 31
50 2014 12 31
232 122 167 49
7.7090
2008 8
19.60 51.02 2014 12 31
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32 2.0183
51
275 138
7.8148
51.02
232 136
4.1554
51
506 369
10.0380
51
469 284
7.7491
@ T
6

15020000 IT

194 123

2010 3
2014 12 31
171

2010 5
2014 12 31
185

2012 6
2014 12 31
272

2012 6
2014 12 31
352

2014 10

PBOC

228
297
99.9
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15 58,425 53,864
16 356,235 269,018
17 7,195 8,186
18 509,418 737,052
19 7,739,996 6,902,522
20 927,903 781,311
21 1,710,950 1,523,815
22 522,117 592,090
1
24 154,950 150,859
23 1,381 1,381
25 78,640 74,075
26 163,822 138,608
15,974,152 14,562,102
27 80,121 104
28 831,141 729,354
29 224,923 174,363
30 25,211 20,805
31 347,282 285,454
17 7,240 7,635
32 131,021 26,787
33 12,533,397 11,811,411
34 325,167 266,261
25 43 8
35 435,987 395,383
14,941,533 13,717,565
36 324,794 324,794

37 39,944

38 98,773 98,773
39 3,118 (22,772)
40 78,594 60,632
41 156,707 139,204
329,989 243,482
(853) (1,005)
1,031,066 843,108
1,553 1,429
1,032,619 844,537
15,974,152 14,562,102
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12 31

2014 2013
12 55,327,621 52,518,686
13 11,553,477 8,021,165
407,192 386,961
14 8,210,441 6,225,571
15 1,178,432 1,086,437
16 7,185,260 5,426,093
17 145,123 165,112
18 10,274,961 14,866,339
19 156,115,719 139,223,869
20 18,715,804 15,759,043
21 34,509,862 30,735,349
22 10,531,100 11,942,455
20
24 3,125,342 3,042,826
23 27,855 27,855
25 1,586,169 1,494,093
26 3,304,290 2,795,723
322,198,646 293,717,597
27 1,616,041 2,098
28 16,764,114 14,711,070
29 4,536,697 3,516,902
30 508,506 419,637
31 7,004,678 5,757,607
17 146,031 153,998
32 2,642,694 540,294
33 252,798,617 238,236,160
34 6,558,618 5,370,484
25 867 161
35 8,793,858 7,974,875
301,370,721 276,683,286
36 6,551,095 6,551,095

37 805,670

38 1,992,251 1,992,251
39 62,890 (459,311)
40 1,585,241 1,222,947
41 3,160,780 2,807,745
6,655,878 4,911,032
(17,205) (20,271)
20,796,601 17,005,488
31,324 28,823
20,827,925 17,034,311
322,198,646 293,717,597
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2014 12 31
12 31

2014 2013
12 2,742,797 2,603,625
13 562,792 389,938
20,188 19,185
14 412,825 310,967
15 58,425 53,497
16 355,763 267,994
17 6,950 8,176
18 509,412 736,742
19 7,700,348 6,866,183
20 917,381 776,715
21 1,703,508 1,517,998
22 511,174 585,459
23 10,564 8,248
24 152,374 149,001
25 78,368 73,938
26 148,290 126,684
15,891,159 14,494,350
27 80,030 30
28 834,765 732,194
29 197,803 145,924
30 25,211 20,805
31 347,286 285,454
17 7,072 7,633
32 126,950 24,670
33 12,530,169 11,808,163
34 323,336 266,261
35 389,088 361,104
14,861,710 13,652,238
36 324,794 324,794

37 39,944

38 98,574 98,574
39 3,043 (22,750)
40 78,445 60,542
41 156,145 138,751
329,133 242,980
(629) (779)
1,029,449 842,112
15,891,159 14,494,350
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12 31
2014 2013

12 55,322,215 52,515,116
13 11,351,515 7,865,049
407,192 386,961
14 8,326,680 6,272,204
15 1,178,432 1,079,034
16 7,175,740 5,405,439
17 140,182 164,910
18 10,274,840 14,860,086
19 155,316,019 138,490,911
20 18,503,575 15,666,342
21 34,359,756 30,618,020
22 10,310,380 11,808,708
23 213,076 166,362
24 3,073,384 3,005,350
25 1,580,683 1,491,329
26 2,991,009 2,555,216
320,524,677 292,351,040
27 1,614,205 605
28 16,837,210 14,768,353
29 3,989,687 2,943,287
30 508,506 419,637
31 7,004,759 5,757,607
17 142,642 153,958
32 2,560,582 497,594
33 252,733,509 238,170,648
34 6,521,687 5,370,484
35 7,847,905 7,283,468
299,760,691 275,365,640
36 6,551,095 6,551,095

37 805,670
38 1,988,238 1,988,238
39 61,377 (458,868)
40 1,582,236 1,221,132
41 3,149,445 2,798,608
6,638,613 4,900,907
(12,687) (15,712)
20,763,986 16,985,399
320,524,677 292,351,040
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2014 12 31
2014 1 1 324,794 98,773  (22,772) 60,632 139,204 243,482  (1,005) 843,108 1,429 844,537
179,461 179,461 49 179,510
25,890 152 26,042 75 26,117
25,890 179,461 152 205,503 124 205,627
39,944 39,944 39,944
40 17,962 (17,962)
1 17,503  (17,503)
10 (57,489) (57,489) (57,489)
2014 12 31
324,794 39,944 98,773 3,118 78,504 156,707 329,989 (853) 1,031,066 1,553 1,032,619
2013 1 1 324,794 98,773 (901) 43,996 75,349 208,488 (684) 749,815 1,539 751,354
166,315 166,315 (104) 166,211
(21,871) (321)  (22,192) @ (22,19)
« ¥ (21,871) 166,315 (321) 144,123 (108) 144,015
40 16,636 (16,636)
M 63,855  (63,855)
10 (50,830) (50, 830) (50, 830)
@ @
2013 12 31
324,794 98,773  (22,772) 60,632 139,204 243,482  (1,005) 843,108 1,429 844,537
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11 6,551,095 1,992,251 (459,311) 1,222,947 2,807,745 (20,271) 17,005,488 28,823 17,034,311
3,619,728 988 3,620,717
522,201 525,267 1,513 526,780
522,201 4,144,996 2,501 4,147,497
805,670 805,670 805,670
40 362,294
41
10 (1,159,553) (1,159,553)
12 3l 4 551,005 805,670 1,992,251 62,890 1,585,241 (17,205) 20,796,601 31,324 20,827,925
11 6,551,095 1,992,251  (18,173) 887,399 (13,796) 15,123,769 31,042 15,154,810
3,354,574 (2,098) 3,352,476
(441,138) (447,613)  (8l)  (447,693)
(
y (441,138) (6,475) 2,906,961 (2,178) 2,904,783
40 335,548
4 1,287,955 (1,287,955)
10 (1,025,241) (1,025,241)
(40) (40)
1231 4 551,005 1,992,251 (450,311) 1,222,947 4,911,032 (20,271) 17,005,488 28,823 17,034,311
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2014 12 31
12 31
2014 2013

232,257 214,174
2,713 2,342
16,615 15,119
67,971 52,990
(123,053) (106,831)
(1,002) (693)
10,179 8,493
« ) (335) 350
(309)
®)
(393) (656)
1,107 5,037
206,059 190,011
(335,229) (187,328)
(48,818) (44,823)
/C ) 122,146 (40,995)
(887,572) (795,948)
80,017 38
50,560 24,642
823,773 893,478
(121,778) (180, 820)
214,283 228,648
103,441 86,903
(68,826) (54,024)
34,615 32,879
/ 629,129 634,630
112,781 99,120
1 416
2,819 765
(859, 158) (891,097)
(25,997) (28,170)
(140, 425) (184,336)

40,000

(38)
271,873 118,771
(58) (15)
(213,359) (45,153)
(10,107) (7,707)
(57,489) (50, 830)
(2
30,822 15,064
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(74,988) (136,393)
813,799 952,936
(570) (2,744)
42 738,241 813,799
548,718 494,213
(229,793) (199,880)
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12 31
2014 2013
4,684,624 4,319,890
54,721 47,238
335,125 304,950
1,370,975 1,068,808
(2,481,979) (2,154,781)
(20,210) (13,978)
205,310 171,304
(6,757) 7,060
(6,233)
(101)
(7,927) (13,232)
22,328 101,596
4,156,210 3,832,522
(6,761,569) (3,778,406)
(984,659) (904,080)
/C ) 2,463,685 (826,869)
(17,902,327)  (16,054,271)
1,613,943 766
1,019,795 497,029
16,615,501 18,021,451
(2,456,262) (3,647,139)
4,322,088 4,611,830
2,086,405 1,752,834
(1,388,220) (1,089,664)
698,185 663,169
12,689,532 12,800,487
2,274,793 1,999,250
20 8,391
56,859 15,430
(17,329,217)  (17,973,426)
(524,359) (568,189)
(2,832,372) (3,718,057)
806,800
(766)
5,483,678 2,395,611
(1,170) (303)
(4,303,451) (910,736)
(203,858) (155, 450)
(1,159,553) (1,025,241)
(40)
621,680 303,841
(1,512,508) (2,751,047)
16,414,326 19,220,719
(11,497) (55,346)
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42 14,890,321 16,414,326
11,067,642 9,968,276
(4,634,925) (4,031,580)
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2014 12 31
( )
( ) ( PBOC )
1979 2 23 ( )
( ) 2009 1 15
PBOC 2010 7 15 2010 7 16
(China Banking Regulatory Commission CBRC )
BO002H111000001 100000000005472
69  (No. 69,

Jianguomen Nei Avenue, Dongcheng District, Beijing, the PRC)

( )

( 1ASB ) ( IFRS
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1.1

2014

2014 12 31

@
)
®
*

®

IFRS 10 IFRS 12 IAS 27
IAS 32
IAS 36
IAS 39

IFRIC 21

(1) IFRS 10 IFRS 12 IAS 27

(2) 1AS 32

IAS 32

(3) IAS 36

@ I1AS 39

39

(5) IFRIC 21

IAS 37
)
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1.2 2014
IFRS
(1) 1AS 19 (2011 ) 2014 7 1
(2 IFRS IFRS 2010 2012 2014 7 1
(3) IFRS IFRS 2011 2013 2014 7 1
(4) IFRS 14 2016 1 1
(5) IFRS 11 2016 1 1
(6) 1AS 16 IAS 38 2016 1 1
@ 1AS 27 2016 1 1
(8) IFRS 10 IAS 28 2016 1 1
(9) 1AS 16 1AS 41 2016 1 1
(10) IFRS IFRS 2012 2014 2016 1 1
(11) IFRS 15 2017 1 1
(12) IFRS 9 2018 1 1
(1) IAS 19 (2011 )
IAS 19 (2011 )
(2) IFRS IFRS 2010 2012
IFRS 2010 2012 IFRS
2014 7 1 IFRS IFRS 2 IFRS
3 IFRS 8 IFRS 13 IAS 24
IAS 16 IAS 38
(3) IFRS IFRS 2011 2013
IFRS 2011 2013 IFRS
2014 7 1 IFRS IFRS 1
IFRS 3 IFRS 13 IAS 40
(4) IFRS 14
IASB IFRS 14 (
) IFRS 14 IFRS
IFRS 1 IFRS
IFRS

(5) IFRS 11
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IFRS 11
(6) 1AS 16 IAS 38
1AS 16
1AS 38
(7) 1AS 27
IASB IAS 27
(8) IFRS 10 IAS 28
IFRS 10
1AS 28
(9 IAS 16 IAS 41
( )
1AS 41 IAS 16
IAS 41
(10) 1FRS IFRS 2012 2014
IFRS 2012 2014 IFRS
IFRS 5
IFRS 7 IAS 19 1AS

34
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(11) IFRS 15
IFRS 15 5
IFRS 15
(12)IFRS 9
IFRS 9 2014 7 IAS 39
IFRS 9
3 ( ( ocl
) )
ocl
IAS 39
IFRS 9
IFRS
9
2
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(
10
11
)
(
)
50 3% 1.94% 19.40%
11 3% 8.82% 32.33%
8 3 12.13% 19.40%
18
12

161/496



13

14

15

162/496

18

EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn



16

17

18.

19

20

163/496

20

EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn



21

22

23

46

20

12

8.1

164/496

EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

165/496



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

)

166/496



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

12 31
2014 2013
470,829 414,270
326,541 292,774
138,500 114,272
5,788 7,224
66,152 53,633
40,018 37,517
35,257 32,277
27,981 28,693
22,784 16,657
21,644 20,921
12,516 7,638
1,923 1,431
185 347
699,289 613,384

(221,706) (194,903)

(26,681) (23,657)
(10,179) (8.493)
(7,318) 9.732)
(2,511) (395)
(1,003) )
(269,398) (237,182)
429,891 376,202
99,507 88,105
25,654 20,504
1,002 693
12 31

2014 2013
22,945 21,651
21,123 22,760
19,279 15,929
11,031 16,371
7,379 6,564
3,114 3,338
2,807 2,687
205 397
87,883 89,607
3.127) (2,536)
(2,283) (1,918)
(1,766) (1,350)
(584) (722)
(7,760) (6,526)
80,123 83,171
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3
( 12 31
2014 2013
/( 1,179 972)
[6h) 667 1,561
115 1,557
)4 (53) 214
1,908 2,360
@
4 C )
( 12 31
2014 2013
/( 1,507 (401)
/( 12 (215)
(14) (23)
1,505 (639)
5
( 12 31
2014 2013
3,684 711
2,915 312
1,969 1,442
416 304
336 377
1,044 1,881
10,364 5,027
6
( 12 31
2014 2013
) 111,469 104,729
() 49,195 45,750
©) 28,880 27,226
19,328 17,461
3,904 669
8,898 811
2,224 1,961
223,898 198,607
1
( 12 31
2014 2013
66,780 63,758
8,186 7,213
4,454 3,837
3,848 3,302
278 249
328 286
2,977 2,827
12,825 12,138
95,222 89,773
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14,636 13,102
1,611 1,854
111,469 104,729
132 2013 123
5%
2014 1 10  MOF
[2014]5
19 2013 11 1 2015 12 31
3%
% 7%

3% 5%
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) 2014 12 31
() 179 14 193
() 999 73 1,072
() 908 69 977
410 410
440 440
350 350
360 360
360 360
)
)
)
)
CH)C)
960 72 1,032
)
() 30 30
() 30 30
() 30 30
)
280 280
908 69 977
908 69 977
908 69 977
() 908 69 977
() 679 33 712
() 802 61 863
() 605 46 651
(xi)
(xii)
xiii)
(xiv) 30 30
2,320 8,764 644 11,728
2014 12 11
2014 7 31
2014 6 23 2014
2014 12 2
2014 3 27 2014 3 27
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2014 8 31
2014 9 9
Xi 2014 7 28
X 2014 8 5
X 2014 4 24 2014
X 2014 12 2
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) 2013 12 31

1,070 64 1,134

() 1,002 57 1,059
() 876 54 930
() 876 54 930
410 410

440 440

350 350

360 360

() 295 295

A AAAA
N S\ S\

947 56 1,003
)

) 30 30
) 30 30
C )() 17 17
C )() 17 17
280 280
876 54 930
876 54 930
876 54 930
820 53 873
) 12 12
() 12 12
2,253 8,219 500 10,972

2013 3 8

2013
2013 5 7
2013 5 7
2014 12 31 2013 12 31
5
5 2014
2013 12 31 5
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( ) 12 31
2014 2013
7,435 7,889
7,682 6,342
867 542
15,984 14,773
5
12 31
2014 2013
2,500,000 3,000,000 1
3,000,001 3,500,000 3 1
3,500,001 4,000,000 1 1
5
( ) 12 31
2014 2013
65,063 52,126
1,181 200
861 141
279 379
27 14
€D
37) (129)
597 293
67,971 52,990
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( )
( 25 )
2014 2013 12 31
( )
(25%)
1
10
( )
2013
2012
2014 12 31
1 2013
2014 6 23
2013 (
2 2012
2013 6 18
) 2012 1

2013 12 31
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12 31
2014 2013
65,291 57,503
386 305
222 61
65,899 57,869
(13,152) (9,906)
52,747 47,963
25%
12 31
2014 2013
232,257 214,174
58,064 53,544
[€)) (7,083) (6,652)
1,770 1,077
(4) (6)
52,747 47,963
12 31
2014 2013
[€h) 57,489
@ 50,830
57,489 50,830
0.182 59,113
GAAP
) 2013 1 0.177 57,489
GAAP 2012 (

50,830
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31
12
( )
( )
1 pBOC
2014 12 31 2013
57 2013 3 7
31 18%
2
3
13
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12 31
2014 2013
) 179,461 166,315
)
) 179,461 166,315
324,794 324,794
) 0.55 0.51
37
1
2014 12 31
2014 12
1
12 31
2014 2013
111,962 99,759
@ 2,409,181 2,279,918
©) 49,253 100,519
®3) 172,669 123,606
2,743,065 2,603,802
12 31
2014 2013
111,914 99,737
@ 2,408,994 2,279,774
0 49,220 100,508
®) 172,669 123,606
2,742,797 2,603,625
[2013]
PBOC 18% 2013 12
20% 2013 12 31 20%
5% 2013 12 31 5%
PBOC
PBOC
PBOC
12 31
2014 2013

543,394
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2,021 1,713
27,390 35,203
572,805 397,678
12 31
( ) 2014 2013
534,046 353,117
2,020 1,713
26,726 35,108
562,792 389,938
2014 12 31
1,833 2013 12 31 1,205
14
12 31
( ) 2014 2013
124,060 81,436
267,358 223,566
17,400 4,228
408,818 309,230
B} (1,756) (575)
407,062 308, 655
12 31
( ) 2014 2013
124,060 81,436
270,408 223,866
20,113 6,240
414,581 311,542
- (1,756) (575)
412,825 310,967
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12 31
2014 2013
3,545 4,979
23,445 24,073
1,112 474
12,708 12,486
40,810 42,012
48
17,615 11,804
58,425 53,864
@ 40,632 42,060
17,793 11,804
58,425 53,864
12 31
2014 2013
3,545 4,979
23,445 24,073
1,112 474
12,708 12,167
40,810 41,693
17,615 11,804
58,425 53,497
@ 40,632 41,693
17,793 11,804
58,425 53,497

177/496



16

17

EDINETOOOO

O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

12 31
2014 2013
11,235 8,721
25,278 25,983
2,899 11,021
6,681 12,282
46,093 58,007
@) 248,794 171,280
) 59,876 38,710
1,472 1,021
356,235 269,018
816 183
0 31,963 43,255
323,456 225,580
356,235 269,018
12 31
2014 2013
11,235 8,721
25,278 25,983
2,899 11,021
6,681 12,282
46,093 58,007
@ 248,794 171,277
@ 60,876 38,710
355,763 267,994
181 183
0} 31,963 43,255
323,619 224,556
355,763 267,994

45
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2014 2013 12 31
) 2014 12 31
/
340,045 3,078 (2,241)
481,198 2,476 (3,675)
6,785 192 (251)
33,112 72 (79)
5,818 (6.246)
166,002 795 (936)
12,732 561 (58)
55 21
7,195 (7,240)
) 2013 12 31
/
256,278 1,624 (2.,786)
365,555 3,886 (2,215)
17,966 372 (678)
11,864 33 (15)
5,915 (5,694)
165,722 1,637 (1,940)
7,201 634
1,494 (¢D)
8,186 (7.,635)
) 2014 12 31
/
333,559 2,998 (2,225)
474,327 2,332 (3,523)
6,785 192 (251)
33,112 72 (79)
5,594 (6,078)
166,002 795 (936)
12,732 561 (598)
6,950 (7,072)
) 2013 12 31
/
256,081 1,624 (2,784)
357,624 3,876 (2,215)
17,966 372 (678)
11,864 33 (15)
5,905 (5,692)
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2013 12 31
11,380

EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

OoOoOoOoOodno
165,722 1,637 (1,940)
7,201 634
1,494 (¢D)
8,176 (7.633)
2013 1 1
2014 12 31
49
2014 12 31
12,576 12,298
11,326 49
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EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

12 31
2014 2013
209,160 402,454
300,258 332,921
1,677
509,418 737,052
12 31
2014 2013
209,154 402,144
300,258 332,921
1,677
509,412 736,742
46
12 31
2014 2013
5,516,854 5,031,088
180,229 97,993
5,697,083 5,129,081
2,400,984 2,095,632
8,098,067 7,224,713
(73,094) (50,127)
(284,977) (272,064)
(358,071) (322,191)
7,739,996 6,902,522
12 31
2014 2013
5,476,778 4,994,468
180,226 97,991
5,657,004 5,092,459
2,399,975 2,094,948
8,056,979 7,187,407
(72,578) (50,050)
(284,053) (271,174)
(356,631) (321,224)
7,700,348 6,866,183

oOoOooodn



2014 12 31

2013 12 31

2014 12 31

2013 12 31

EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

OOoOooOodd
0]
()
103,907 124,970 8,098,067 1.54
(73,094) (87,685)  (358,071)
30,813 37,285 7,739,996
72,355 87,781 7,224,713 1.22
(50,127) (60,567)  (322,191)
22,228 27,214 6,902,522
(3]
(W)
103,200 124,252 8,056,979 1.54
(72,578) (87,165)  (356,631)
30,622 37,087 7,700,348
71,648 87,073 7,187,407 1.21
(50,050) (60,490)  (321,224)
21,598 26,583 6,866,183
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( ) 2014 12 31

2014 1 1 50,127 272,064 322,191

58,579 59,031 117,610

(9,976) (42,571) (52,547)

48,603 16,460 65,063

(25,772) (3.450) (29,222)

921 220 1,141

(688) (314) (1,002)

on (€) (100)

2014 12 31 73,094 284,977 358,071
( ) 2013 12 31

2013 1 1 52,242 227,746 279,988

16,390 73,442 89,832

(10,785) (26,921) (37,706)

5,605 46,521 52,126

(7,842) (1,942) (9,784)

600 220 820

(454) (239) (693)

4) (242) (266)

2013 12 31 50,127 272,064 322,191
( ) 2014 12 31

2014 1 1 50,050 271,174 321,224

58,140 58,817 116,957

(9,976) (42,390) (52,366)

48,164 16,427 64,501

(25,772) (3.450) (29,222)

921 220 1,141

(688) (314) (1,002)

©n (O] (101)

2014 12 31 72,578 284,053 356,631
( ) 2013 12 31

2013 1 1 52,242 227,339 279,581

16,313 72,927 89,240

(10,785) (26,734) (37,519)

5,528 46,193 51,721

(7,842) (1,942) (9,784)

600 65 665

(454) (239) (693)

4) (242) (266)

2013 12 31 50,050 271,174 321,224
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1
2
3 2014 12 31

2013 12 31

45

241
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OooooOodd
12 31
2014 2013
147,513 149,808
449,232 409,382
138,698 52,030
186,574 167,724
922,017 778,944
[0 3,358 088
2,528 819
(€Y) 560
927,903 781,311
19,163 14,442
() 892,466 749,029
10,388 16,033
79
4,307 1,141
?) 1,500 666
927,903 781,311
12 31
2014 2013
147,342 149,584
448,190 409,382
138,421 50,751
182,857 166,494
916,810 776,211
571 504
917,381 776,715
19,096 14,430
® 887,326 745,763
10,388 16,018
287
®3) 284 504
917,381 776,715

284



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

12 31
2014 2013
548,330 519,265
936,274 808,838
67,878 29,688
159,349 166,623
1,711,831 1,524,414
(881) (599)
1,710,950 1,523,815
1,381 715
@ 1,700,044 1,521,141
9,525 1,959
1,710,950 1,523,815
12 31
2014 2013
548,330 519,265
934,063 808,838
65,853 27,012
156,143 163,482
1,704,389 1,518,597
(881) (599)
1,703,508 1,517,998
1,381 715
@ 1,692,991 1,515,324
9,136 1,959
1,703,508 1,517,998
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22
12 31
( ) 2014 2013
MOF (€H) 278,314 362,054
) 93,300 93,300
56,141 66,485
45,334 27,124
35,020 31,018
3,590 6,037
®3) 11,621 6,414
523,320 592,432
(478) (44
(725) (298)
(1,203) (342)
522,117 592,090
12 31
( ) 2014 2013
MOF (€H) 278,314 362,054
) 93,300 93,300
56,141 66,485
46,295 27,124
34,277 31,018
3,462 5,820
646
512,435 585,801
(463) (44)
(798) (298)
(1,261) (342)
511,174 585,459
1 MoF [2008] 138 MOF 2008 1 1
15 1 3. 3%
2 1998 MOF 933
2028 2008 12 1 2.25%
3 45
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ooooogd
23
( ) 12 31
2014 2013
11,223 8,907
(659) (659)
10,564 8,248
2014 12 31
/ %) (()
1988 11 1 588,790,000 100.00 100.00
ABC (i) 2009 11 11 4,113,392,449 100.00 100.00
(i) 2010 9 29 3,000,000,000 100.00 100.00
) 2011 11 29 100,000,000 100.00 100.00
2008 3 18 200,000,001 51.67 51.67
2008 8 12 19,600,000 51.02 51.02
( ) 2008 8 12 31,000,000 50.00 66.67
2010 5 25 29,400,000 51.02 51.02
2010 3 30 20,000,000 51.00 51.00
2012 4 20 210,000,000 51.00 51.00
2012 5 24 100,000,000 51.00 51.00
( ) 2005 12 19 2,032,653,061 51.00 51.00
( ) ( )2014 11 26 20,000,000 100.00 100.00
( ) ( ) 2014 12 23 1,400,000,000 100.00 100.00
2014 12 31
( 2014 12 31 ABC
1,200 1,000
( 3 2
( 2012 12 31 51%
2012 12 31 1,381 2014 2013 12 31
( 2014 12 31 ( ) ( )
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24
( )

2014 1 1 124,294 55,314 4,746 28,682 213,036
1,526 7,703 604 13,263 23,096

17,569 491 (18,060)
(594) (7.460) (536) (8,590)
2014 12 31 142,795 56,048 4,814 23,885 227,542
2014 1 1 (31,529)  (27,400) (2,947) (61,876)
(7.574) (8,723) (318) (16,615)
370 5,335 512 6,217
2014 12 31 (38,733)  (30,788) (2,753) (72,274)
2014 1 1 (288) (10) ) @) (301)
(20) ™ @n
9 1 10
2014 12 31 (299) 9) [©) 8) (318)
2014 12 31 103,763 25,251 2,059 23,877 154,950
2014 1 1 92,477 27,904 1,797 28,681 150,859

( )

2013 1 1 112,618 48,476 4,030 26,375 191,499
2,001 8,472 964 13,503 24,940

10,196 1,000 (11,196)
(521) (2.,634) (248) (3,403)
2013 12 31 124,294 55,314 4,746 28,682 213,036
2013 1 1 (24,688)  (22,141) (2,873) (49,702)
(7,011) (7,795) (313) (15,119)
170 2,536 239 2,945
2013 12 31 (31,529)  (27,400) (2,947) (61,876)
2013 1 1 (293) (10) ®) @ (307)
19) 14)
19 1 20
2013 12 31 (288) (10) [©) &) (301)
2013 12 31 92,477 27,904 1,797 28,681 150,859
2013 1 1 87,637 26,325 1,154 26,374 141,490
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( )

2014 1 1 122,927 55,115 4,722 28,193 210,957
1,412 7,532 601 12,691 22,236

17,568 491 (18,059)
(538) (7.,417) (518) (8,473)
2014 12 31 141,369 55,721 4,805 22,825 224,720
2014 1 1 (31,421)  (27,302) (2,932) (61,655)
(7.530) (8,702) (316) (16,548)
349 5,330 496 6,175
2014 12 31 (38,602)  (30,674) (2,752) (72,028)
2014 1 1 (288) (10) ) @) (301)
(20) ™ @n
9 1 10
2014 12 31 (299) ) [©) (8) (318)
2014 12 31 102,468 25,038 2,051 22,817 152,374
2014 1 1 91,218 27,803 1,788 28,192 149,001

( )

2013 1 1 112,171 48,283 4,006 25,477 189,937
1,970 8,453 963 13,013 24,399

9,297 1,000 (10,297)
(511) (2,621) (247) (3.379)
2013 12 31 122,927 55,115 4,722 28,193 210,957
2013 1 1 (24,618)  (22,054) (2,862) (49,534)
(6,970) (7,778) (309) (15,057)
167 2,530 239 2,936
2013 12 31 (31,421)  (27,302) (2,932) (61,655)
2013 1 1 (293) (10) ®) @ (307)
19) 14)
19 1 20
2013 12 31 (288) (10) [©) &) (301)
2013 12 31 91,218 27,803 1,788 28,192 149,001
2013 1 1 87,260 26,219 1,141 25,476 140,096

2014 12 31
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) 12 31
2014 2013
G0 ) 117 83
G0 ) 4,869 4,451
(10 50 ) 89,601 79,003
(10 ) 9,176 8,940
103,646 92,394
103,763 92,477
) 12 31
2014 2013
G0 ) 82 83
G0 ) 4,869 4,451
(10 50 ) 88,341 77,744
(10 ) 9,176 8,940
102,386 91,135
102,468 91,218
) 12 31
2014 2013
78,640 74,075
(43) ®)
78,597 74,067
) 12 31
2014 2013
78,368 73,938
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2014

2013

2013

2014

2014

2013

2013

12 31

12 31

/(

/(

/(

EDINETOOOO

O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

OooooOodd

56,137 6,165 2,589 1,181 8,011 (16) 74,067
11,377 83 (354) 2,295 (289) 40 13,152
(8,622) (8,622)

67,514 6,248 2,235 3,476 (900) 24 78,507
46,289 6,388 2,944 879 437 (3) 56,934
9,848 (223)  (355) 302 347 (13) 9,906
7,227 7,227

56,137 6,165 2,589 1,181 8,011 (16) 74,067
56,024 6,157 2,589 1,181 8,000 (13) 73,938
11,234 80 (354) 2,295 (288) 38 13,005
(8,575) (8,575)

67,258 6,237 2,235 3,476 (863) 25 78,368
46,287 6,380 2,944 879 444 56,934
9,737 (223)  (355) 302 347 (13) 9,795
7,209 7,209

56,024 6,157 2,589 1,181 8,000 (13) 73,938

2014 12 31 2013 12 31
/ / / /
) (G ) (G

270,124 67,514 224,604 56,137

10,404 2,601 42,899 10,725

24,992 6,248 24,661 6,165

8,938 2,235 10,356 2,589

13,902 3,476 4,723 1,181

228 57 40 9

328,588 82,131 307,283 76,806
(14,006) (3,501) (10,857) .714)

(140) (33) @157) (25)

(14,146) (3,534) (11,014) (2,739)

314,442 78,597 296,269 74,067
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EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

2014 12 31 2013 12 31
/ / / /
) ) C )
269,100 67,258 224,152 56,024
10,404 2,601 42,831 10,708
24,948 6,237 24,627 6,157
8,938 2,235 10,356 2,589
13,902 3,476 4,723 1,181
208 52 22 4
327,500 81,859 306,711 76,663
(13,855) (3,464) (10,831) (2,708)
(109) @n (106) an
(13,964) (3,491) (10,937) (2,725)
313,536 78,368 295,774 73,938
12 31
2014 2013
97,948 75,022
() 23,524 23,857
) 16,708 18,656
13,532 9,346
3,649 3,480
2,846 3,312
2,593 2,627
487 873
2,535 1,435
163,822 138,608
12 31
2014 2013
97,411 74,607
) 23,074 23,838
®) 15,924 17,210
3,640 3,470
2,916 2,905
2,400 2,426
487 873
2,438 1,355
148,290 126,684

192/496
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OoOoOoOoOodno
1
( ) 12 31
2014 2013
G0 ) 1,458 1,023
G0 ) 394 367
(10 50 ) 21,624 22,402
(10 ) 48 65
22,066 22,834
23,524 23,857
( ) 12 31
2014 2013
G0 ) 1,027 1,023
G0 ) 394 367
(10 50 ) 21,605 22,383
(10 ) 48 65
22,047 22,815
23,074 23,838
2014 12 31
2
27
2014 12 31 PBOC 80,000
2013 12 31
28
( ) 12 31
2014 2013

148,043 172,322
666,905 547,711
13,045 8,153
3,148 1,168
831,141 729,354
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( ) 12 31
2014 2013
148,304 173,459
670,267 549,413
13,046 8,154
3,148 1,168
834,765 732,194
29
( ) 12 31
2014 2013
62,537 64,511
162,386 109,852
224,923 174,363
( ) 12 31
2014 2013
40,191 38,135
157,612 107,789
197,803 145,924
30
31
12 31
( ) 2014 2013
347,282 285,454
12 31
( ) 2014 2013
347,286 285,454
2014 12 31
8,558 2013 12 31 6,104
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33

12 31
2014 2013
131,021 26,391
37
359
131,021 26,787
12 31
2014 2013
126,950 24,633
37
126,950 24,670
46 —
12 31
2014 2013
3,012,527 3,014,858
3,546,541 3,437,661
1,485,274 1,345,988
3,882,102 3,490,197
@ 299,437 247,656
307,516 275,051
12,533,397 11,811,411
12 31
2014 2013
3,012,745 3,014,816
3,546,432 3,437,536
1,485,168 1,346,016
3,881,683 3,489,914
@ 296,625 244,830
307,516 275,051
12,530,169 11,808,163
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1
12 31
( 2014 2013
118,330 89,842
63,630 45,625
50,423 30,305
21,567 29,918
45,487 51,966
299,437 247,656
12 31
( 2014 2013
118,330 89,842
63,630 45,625
50,423 30,305
21,567 29,918
42,675 49,140
296,625 244,830
34
12 31
( 2014 2013
) 191,994 156,300
@ 113,388 106,991
®3) 11,800
(O] 7,985 2,970
325,167 266,261
12 31
( 2014 2013
) 190,163 156,300
@ 113,388 106,991
€)) 11,800
® 7,985 2,970
323,336 266,261
2014 2013 12 31
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1
12 31
( ) 2014 2013
2026 6 5.3% () 50,000 50,000
2027 12 4.99% () 50,000 50,000
2024 8 5.8% Tier2 () 30,000
2024 5 4.0% () 25,000 25,000
2015 11 3.2% () 1,000 1,000
2019 5 3.3% () 20,000
2019 5 () 5,000
() 36,125 5,404
192,125 156,404
(131) (104)
191,994 156,300
12 31
( ) 2014 2013
2026 6 5.3% () 50,000 50,000
2027 12 4.99% () 50,000 50,000
2024 8 5.8% Tier2 () 30,000
2024 5 4.0% () 25,000 25,000
2015 11 3.2% () 1,000 1,000
2019 5 3.3% () 20,000
2019 5 () 5,000
() 34,289 5,404
190,289 156,404
(126) (104)
190,163 156,300
2011 6 5.3% 1 15 2021 6 7
2021 6 7 5.3%
2012 12 4.99% 1 15 2022 12 20
2022 12 20
4.99%
2014 8 Tier2 5. 8% 1 10
2019 8 17
2019 8 18 5.8% Tier2 Tier2
Tier2 CBRC Tier2
2009 5 4.0% 1 15 2019 5 20
2019 5 20 7.0%
2012 11 3.2% 2 3
2009 5 3.3% 1 10
2014 5 20
2009 5 10 PBOC 1
60 1
2014 5 20
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( ) 2014 12 31
%)
2015 1 2018 12 0.21-2.875 18,774
2015 2 2019 8 2.70-3.80 11,683
2015 7 2015 8 0.85-1.00 1,743
2015 4 2017 3 3 LIBOR 0.88 -1.35 1,626
2015 8 2015 9 0.99-1.12 895
2015 5 2015 8 1.35-1.49 600
2015 8 2015 11 0.50-0.70 431
2015 1 - 373
36,125
( ) 2014 12 31
(%)
2015 1 2018 12 0.85-2.875 16,938
2015 2 2019 8 2.70-3.80 11,683
2015 7 2015 8 0.85-1.00 1,743
2015 4 2017 3 3 LIBOR 0.88 -1.35 1,626
2015 8 2015 9 0.99-1.12 895
2015 5 2015 8 1.35-1.49 600
2015 8 2015 11 0.50-0.70 431
2015 1 - 373
34,289
( ) 2013 12 31
(%)
2018 12 2.875 3,040
2014 6 2018 12 2.40-3.60 2,364
5,404
2014 12 31
2014 12 31
7 1 0.19%
0.93%
2014 12 31
€ 9 1) 4,000 3,000
1,000 2013 12 31
@ ) 3,000
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35
12 31
( 2014 2013
192,876 163,328
46,433 51,365
42,789 30,864
41,338 44,263
@ 40,511 45,573
13,902 4,723
7,535 7,492
MOF @ 3,275 1,539
1,616 1,871
45,712 44,365
435,987 395,383
12 31
( 2014 2013
192,688 163,221
46,431 51,346
41,187 44,132
@ 40,163 45,220
13,902 4,723
7,553 7,492
MOF 0) 3,275 1,539
1,616 1,871
42,273 41,560
389,088 361,104
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12 31
) 2014 2013
() 30,952 34,514
() 621 703
() 8,938 10,356
40,511 45,573
12 31
) 2014 2013
() 30,604 34,161
() 621 703
() 8,938 10,356
40,163 45,220
) 2014
11 12 31
©) 24,973 66,780 (67,525) 24,228
©) 245 8,186 (8,248) 183
@) 181 4,454 (4,457) 178
149 3,848 (3,843) 154
16 278 (282) 12
16 328 (332) 12
2,726 2,977 (2,520) 3,183
6,389 12,825 (16,034) 3,180
34,514 95,222 (98,784) 30,952
) 2013
11 12 31
@) 25,704 63,758 (64,489) 24,973
©) 301 7,213 (7.269) 245
@) 190 3,837 (3,846) 181
157 3,302 (3,310) 149
15 249 (248) 16
18 286 (288) 16
2,304 2,827 (2,405) 2,726
5,745 12,138 (11,494) 6,389
34,244 89,773 (89,503) 34,514
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) 2014
11 12 31
@) 24,627 65,927 (66,666) 23,888
) 244 8,148 (8,209) 183
@) 181 4,425 (4,428) 178
149 3,821 (3,816) 154
16 277 (281) 12
16 327 (331) 12
2,726 2,954 (2,499) 3,181
6,383 12,731 (15,940) 3,174
34,161 94,185 (97,742) 30,604
) 2013
11 12 31
@) 25,553 62,969 (63,895) 24,627
@) 299 7,183 (7,238) 244
@) 190 3,814 (3,823) 181
157 3,281 (3,289) 149
15 248 47) 16
18 285 (287) 16
2,298 2,823 (2,395) 2,726
5,739 12,045 (11,401) 6,383
34,079 88,834 (88,752) 34,161
) 2014
11 12 31
629 10,695 (10,783) 541
65 804 (803) 66
9 3,137 (3,132) 14
703 14,636 (14,718) 621
) 2013
11 12 31
624 9,491 (9, 486) 629
63 730 (728) 65
989 2,881 (3,861) 9
1,676 13,102 (14,075) 703
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2014
11 12 31
629 10,632 (10,720) 541
65 803 (802) 66
9 3,137 (3,132) 14
703 14,572 (14,654) 621
2013
11 12 31
624 9,444 (9,439) 629
63 730 (728) 65
972 2,881 (3,844) 9
1,659 13,055 (14,011) 703
2014
11 12 31
10,356 1,611 (3,029) 8,938
2013
11 12 31
11,777 1,854 (3,275) 10,356
12 31
2014 2013
3.41% 4.38%
8.00% 8.00%
8.00% 8.00%
60 60
55 55
2000 2003
[2008] 138
MOF
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36
2014 2013
( ) 12 31
( )
A 1 1 294,055 294,055
H 1 1 30,739 30,739
324,794 324,794
A H
2014 12 31 1 1 A 9,892 H O 2013 12 31 A
9,892 H O
37
( ) ) ( )
5
6%
100 400 40,000
5
800 1 100
2014 11 400 2014 12 31 (
) 39,944
5 6%( 1 ) 5 5
2.29%
Tier2
( [2012]56 ()
1 2.43
A )

CBRC
Tierl
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39

2014 1 1

2014 12 31

2013 1 1

2013 12 31

2014 1 1

2014 12 31

2013 1 1

2013 12 31

40

10%

25%

41

MOF

2010

17,894

GAAP

2015 3 24
2013
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oOoOooodn

2014

(30,313) 7,541 (22,772)
34,722 (8,657) 26,065
(233) 58 (175)
4,176 (1,058) 3,118

2013
(1,224) 323 (901)
(29,440) 7,306 (22,134)
351 (88) 263
(30,313) 7,541 (22,772)

2014
(30,282) 7,532 (22,750)
34,360 (8,573) 25,787
8 0 6
4,086 (1,043) 3,043

2013
(1,221) 323 (898)
(29,492) 7,317 (22,175)
431 (108) 323
(30,282) 7,532 (22,750)

10%
50%
GAAP
16,578
[2012] 20 2012 7 1
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1.5%
2014 12 31
17,503 2013 63,855 17,394 2013 63,570
2013 12 31 17,330 2013
63,482 2014 6 23

42

3
12 31

( ) 2014 2013
111,962 99,759
76,525 101,697
68,355 76,223
197,151 146,383
284,248 389,737
738,241 813,799

43
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(
)
2014 12 31
195,050 120,056 79,418 87,736 67,622 113,607 20,717 15,083 699,289
(17,947)  (59,107)  (33,242)  (50,234)  (39,903)  (46,172) (14,182)  (8,611) (269,398)
Y ( (134,867) 24,333 11,247 33,126 29,229 27,096 9,455 381
42,236 85,282 57,423 70,628 56,948 94,531 15,990 6,853 429,891
12,679 17,100 12,959 12,321 11,849 16,651 3,350 974 87,883
(517) (1,542) (1,468) (1,146) (1,269) (1,427) (346) (45) (7,760)
12,162 15,558 11,491 11,175 10,580 15,224 3,004 929 80,123
/C ) 3,196 133 104 77 93 256 83 (2,034) 1,908
/
D) 1,383 22 54 01 @ 44) 1,505
'Y 12) 347 335
Y ( (435) 1,018 613 755 402 2,458 142 5,411 10,364
58,530 102,013 69,685 82,726 68,023 112,468 19,219 11,462 524,126
(11,598)  (39,131)  (28,276)  (35,222)  (35,454)  (52,093) (15,371)  (6,753) (223,898)
(2,569)  (18,152)  (10,182)  (16,826) (7,285)  (12,872) 464 (549) (67,971)
44,363 44,730 31,227 30,678 25,284 47,503 4,312 4,160 232,257
(52,747)
179,510
(1,639) (3,171) (2,289) (2,921) (3,374) (4,362)  (1,428) (144) (19,328)
1,610 3,333 2,961 3,943 3,967 7,051 1,617 1,378 25,860
2014 12 31
4,211,552 3,147,375 1,928,364 2,629,880 2,276,362 3,152,220 743,602 590,362 (2,784,205) 15,895,512
78,640
15,974,152
® 10,481 36,833 18,919 29,870 29,437 42,106 12,531 8,766 188,943

(3,254,625) (3,143,950) (1,923,067) (2,627,471) (2,267,258) (3,145,053) (745,298) (577,635) 2,784,205 (14,900,152)
(41,381)
(14,941,533)

32,555 457,653 211,896 345,025 172,803 263,993 60,369 38,431 1,582,725
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(
)
2013 12 31
175,921 107,759 67,730 76,239 58,502 99,305 17,545 10,383 613,384
(17,657)  (51,665)  (30,477)  (43,229)  (35,706)  (40,339) (12,352)  (5,757) (237,182)
Y ( (121,899) 21,851 11,332 28,818 26,494 25,072 8,311 21
36,365 77,945 48,585 61,828 49,290 84,038 13,504 4,647 376,202
9,644 19,396 13,443 13,062 12,705 17,342 3,126 979 89,697
(410) (1,096) (1,151) (968) (1,233) (1,325) (332) 1) (6.,526)
9,234 18,300 12,292 12,094 11,472 16,017 2,794 968 83,171
/C ) 1,618 786 185 129 149 368 125 (1,000) 2,360
(

)/ (382) ©17) (123) 40 0) 45 (639)
'Y (434) 84 (350)
Y ( (2,036) 1,139 606 638 809 1,011 132 1,828 5,027

44,365 97,953 61,545 74,729 61,720 102,332 16,555 6,572 465,771
(7,649)  (36,650)  (24,707)  (30,442)  (33,423)  (48,046) (14,481)  (3,209) (198,607)
(1,370)  (18,545) (7,442) (5,930) (6,000) (8,328)  (4,990) (385) (52,990)
/
) ( 35,346 42,758 29,396 38,357 22,297 45,958 (2.,916) 2,978 214,174
(47,963)
166,211
(1,412) (3,071) (2,011) (2,605) (3,051) (3,892)  (1,291) (128) (17,461)
1,990 3,521 3,002 4,244 4,780 7,372 2,107 639 27,745
2013 12 31
3,753,134 2,952,862 1,781,197 2,504,764 2,070,925 2,892,185 656,673 411,586 (2,535,299) 14,488,027
1 1
74,075
14,562,102
(1) 10,569 57,238 18,270 29,286 29,414 40,097 12,556 8,087 185,517
(3,010,413) (2,937,132) (1,770,841) (2,490,676) (2,059,375) (2,876,763) (660,204) (403,189) 2,535,299 (13,673,294)
(44,271)
(13,717,565)
37,739 434,829 221,253 330,680 161,443 204,160 50,915 40,926 1,481,945
1
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( )
2014 12 31
351,644 138,133 205,715 3,797 699,289
(93,897)  (152,025)  (21,908) (1,568)  (269,398)
)/ (22,285) 166,724  (144,439)
235,462 152,832 39,368 2,229 429,891
45,921 40,857 23 1,082 87,883
(2,478) (5,240) 0 (40) (7,760)
43,443 35,617 21 1,042 80,123
1,818 90 1,908
/C ) 1,524 (19) 1,505
« Y () 343 335
1,796 1,427 2,963 4,178 10,364
280,701 189,876 45,686 7,863 524,126
(100,065)  (97,354)  (20,086) (6,393)  (223,898)
(56,215) (9,491) (1,850) (415)  (67,971)
124,421 83,031 23,750 1,055 232,257
(52,747)
179,510
(4,139)  (11,223) (3,885) (81)  (19,328)
5,555 15,065 5,214 26 25,860
2014 12 31
5,571,140 2,826,973 7,388,768 108,631 15,895,512
78,640
15,974,152

(5.,558,920) (7,929,911) (1,315,632)

(95,689) (14,900,152)
(41,381)

(14,941,533)

1,252,331

330,394

1,582,725

209/496
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( )
2013 12 31
307,360 114,527 188,071 3,426 613,384
(85,716)  (126,896)  (23,076) (1,494)  (237,182)
( )/ (17,217) 156,155  (138,938)
204,427 143,786 26,057 1,932 376,202
48,934 39,686 1 1,076 89,697
(1,959) (4,558) @ ©)) (6,526)
46,975 35,128 1,068 83,171
2,353 7 2,360
« ) (668) 29 (639)
« ) (431) 81 (350)
1,690 1,309 605 1,423 5,027
253,092 180,223 27,916 4,540 465,771
(88,401)  (90,876)  (16,174) (3,156)  (198,607)
(23,305)  (28,719) (559) 407)  (52,990)
141,386 60,628 11,183 977 214,174
(47,963)
166,211
(3,920)  (10,089) (3.375) @7 (17,461)
6,251 16,087 5,381 26 27,745
2013 12 31

5,061,143 2,404,

907 6,937,843

84,134 14,488,027

1 1
74,075

14,562,102

(5,206,616) (7,444,

267)  (948,506)

(73,905) (13,673,294)

(44,271)

(13,717,565)

1,181,880 300,

065

1,481,945
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(
2014 12 31
166,526 532,763 699,289
(93,707)  (175,691) (269,398)
/( ) 94,083 (94,083)
166,902 262,989 429,891
31,348 56,535 87,883
(3,152) (4,608) (7,760)
28,196 51,927 80,123
222 1,686 1,908
39 1,466 1,505
335 335
2,719 7,645 10, 364
198,078 326,048 524,126
(93,018)  (130,880) (223,898)
(28,240)  (39,731) (67,971)
76,820 155,437 232,257
(52,747)
179,510
(8,865)  (10,463) (19,328)
8,210 17,650 25,860
2014 12 31

5,841,613 10,136,691

(82,792) 15,895,512
78,640

15,974,152

(5,509,147) (9,473,797)

82,792 (14,900,152)
(41,381)

(14,941,533)

323,296

1,259,429

1,582,725
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(
2013 12 31
144,389 468,995 613,384
(82,146)  (155,036) (237,182)
/( ) 92,253 (92,253)
154,496 221,706 376,202
31,833 57,864 89,697
(2,618) (3,908) (6,526)
29,215 53,956 83,171
357 2,003 2,360
(137) (502) (639)
(350) (350)
2,154 2,873 5,027
186,085 279,686 465,771
(84,944)  (113,663) (198,607)
(23,895)  (29,095) (52,990)
77,246 136,928 214,174
(47,963)
166,211
(7,933) (9,528) (17,461)
9,660 18,085 27,745
2013 12 31
5,477,335 9,076,193 (65,501) 14,488,027
1 1
74,075
14,562,102

(5,191,798) (8,546,997)

65,501 (13,673,294)
(44,271)

(13,717,565)

286,409

1,195,536

1,481,945
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44

2014

MOF

MOF

MOF
MOF

2014

MOF
12 31 MOF
)
( 22)
( 35)
)
MOF
MOF
12 31

(MOF

)

39.21%

214/496
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2013 12 31 39.21%
MOF
12 31
2014 2013
734,578 729,892
278,314 362,054
9,366 9,017
26 33
3,275 1,539
10,613 11,292
10 10
105 112
12 31
2014 2013
38,623 38,152
(82) (85)
7,430 8,297
12 31
2014 2013
% B
1.85 - 9.00 1.77 - 9.00
0.01 — 3.25 0.01 - 3.25
46
40.28% 2013 12 31 40.28%
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12 31
2014 2013
11,244 11,130
134 134
3,829 10,960
158
12 31
2014 2013
429 429
Qm (352)
12 31
2014 2013
% %

3.14 — 4.20 3.14 - 4.20
0.72 - 3.30 0.39 - 3.30
12 31

2014 2013

769,490 686,833
40,060 21,059
92,797 31,926
451 623
39,363 88,706
4,219 385
30,342 45,561
44,965 26,362
465 457
110,300 11,859
1,000 200

200

300

O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

oOoOooodn
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2014 2013 12 31
12 31
2014 2013
11.73 10.97
2013 12 31
12 31
2014 2013
8,050 8,050
15 15
500
12 31
2014 2013
490 490
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12 31
2014 2013
% %
5.75 - 6.20 5.75 - 6.20
45.
@
( WP )
( WP ) WP
WP
WP
WP
WP
WP
2014 12 31 WP WP
672,983 2013 12 31 412,190 WP
2014 WP 5,070
2013 12 31 4,752 499 2013 12 31 478
( WP
WP
2014 2014 12 31 19,788
3.72 81,300 2013 2013 12 31
30,453 ( 2.9 ) 80,282
2014 12 31 2013 12 31
WP
2014 2013 12 31 WP
WP WP
WP 2014 2013
WP WP WP
@
WP WP
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2014 12 31
( )
248,794 248,794
59,876 59,876
i 10,613 10,613
5,054 5,054
3,358 3,358
48 40 88
308,670 8,460 40 10,613 327,783
2013 12 31
( )
171,280 171,280
38,710 38,710
i 560 5,908 6,468
1,918 1,918
088 088
87 45 132
209,990 3,553 45 5,908 219,496
(1) WMP
©)
WMP WMP
WmP WmP / WnP
2014 2013 12 31
WMP
46.
2014 12 31
1,316 2013
12 31 962 35

12 31
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OOoOooOodd
2014 2013 2014 2013
5,302 6,404 4,772 6,404
3,656 1,261 3,656 1,261
8,958 7,665 8,428 7,665
2014 12 31
306 1,306 2013 12 31
12 31
)
2014 2013 2014 2013
— 1 15,664 35,858 15,664 35,858
— 1 425,394 434,411 425,394 434,411
441,058 470,269 441,058 470,269
418,937 404,852 418,937 404,852
254,222 219,682 254,222 219,682
241,171 191,073 243,007 191,073
227,337 196,069 227,337 196,069
1,582,725 1,481,945 1,584,561 1,481,945
CBRC (2013 1 1 )
2014 12 31
49
) 2014 12 31
800,383 786,732
2013 12 31
728,028 727,438 49
12 31
( )
2014 2013 2014 2013
4,206 3,575 3,729 3,536
2 3,153 3,039 3,009 3,016
3 2,525 2,550 2,512 2,537
5 3,193 2,527 3,193 2,527
1,969 3,204 1,969 3,204

219/496



4,667

2014 12 31
(2013 12 31

32

12 31
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O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

OOoOooOodd
15,046 14,895 14,502 14,820
4,743
(2013 :4,169 4,106 6
12 31
2014 2013 2014 2013
61
35,502
- 33,154 )
12 31
2014 2013 2014 2013
1,901 63
11,511 9,131
17,829 22,572
4,171 1,388
35,502 33,154
12 31
2014 2013 2014 2013
131,828 27,011 127,757 25,248
38 38
600
131,828 27,649 127,757 25,286
2014 12 31
131,021 (2013 12 31 26,787
126,950 2013 12 31 24,670
12
47
2014 12 31 102,364 2013
5,637
18

2014 12 31
220/496
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3,055 (2013 12 31 - 1,744 )
2014 12 31
(2013 12 31 : )
MOF
2014 12 31 44,879
2013 12 31 37,913 1 5
MOF
47
2014 12 31
9,157 2013 12 31 3,548 46
2014 12 31 10,125 2013 12 31
2014 12 31
967 2013 12 31

967
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48

48.1
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CBRC

) 12 31

2014 2013 2014 2013
2,631,103 2,504,043 2,630,883 2,503,888

572,805 397,678 562,792 389,938

407,062 308,655 412,825 310,967

58,404 53,814 58,404 53,495
354,763 267,997 355,763 267,994
7,195 8,186 6,950 8,176

223/496
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509,418 737,052 509,412 736,742
7,739,996 6,902,522 7,700,348 6,866,183
922,017 778,944 916,810 776,211
1,710,950 1,523,815 1,703,508 1,517,998
522,117 592,090 511,174 585,459
128,188 103,024 113,335 91,817
15,564,018 14,177,820 15,482,204 14,108,868
1,582,725 1,481,945 1,584,561 1,481,945

17,146,743 15,659,765 17,066,765 15,590,813
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12 31
2014 2013
Q) )
147,614 2.6 115,027 2.2
1,312,497 23.0 1,225,018 23.9
669,532 11.8 622,736 12.1
1,036,523 18.2 958,418 18.7
684,153 12.0 605,634 11.8
1,236,514 21.7 1,101,790 21.5
217,926 3.8 193,057 3.8
392,324 6.9 307,401 6.0
5,697,083  100.0 5,129,081 100.0
107 110

606,026 25.2 555,257 26.5
440,572 18.3 390,258 18.6
345,542 144 292,778 14.0
335,059 14.0 288,221 13.8
573,220 23.9 482,475 23.0
96,113 4.0 84,206 4.0
4,345 0.2 2,327 0.1
2,400,984  100.0 2,095,632 100.0

8,098,067 7,224,713
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12 31
2014 2013
Q) Q)
147,614 2.6 115,027 2.3
1,312,497 23.2 1,225,018 24.1
669,532 11.8 622,736 12.2
1,036,523 18.3 958,418 18.8
684,153 12.1 605,634 11.9
1,236,514 21.9 1,101,790 21.6
217,926 3.9 193,057 3.8
352,245 6.2 270,779 5.3
5,657,004  100.0 5,092,459  100.0
107 110

606,026 25.3 555,257 26.5
440,572 18.3 390,258 18.6
345,542 14._4 292,778 14.0
335,059 14.0 288,221 13.8
573,220 23.9 482,475 23.0
96,113 4.0 84,206 4.0
3,336 0.1 1,643 0.1
2,399,975 100.0 2,094,948 100.0

8,056,979 7,187,407
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12 31
2014 2013
) )
1,459,857  25.6 1,430,267  28.0
779,230  13.7 624,609  12.2
629,609  11.1 593,434  11.6
587,916  10.3 547,722 10.7
551,929 9.7 493,262 9.6
399,910 7.0 338,820 6.6
261,932 4.6 222,436 4.3
218,286 3.8 134,595 2.6
212,961 3.7 201,631 3.9
209,769 3.7 197,140 3.8
385,684 6.8 345,075 6.7
5,607,083 100.0 5,129,081  100.0
1,550,702  64.6 1,292,038  61.6
266,913  11.1 256,245  12.2
204,102 8.5 204,448 9.8
222,865 9.3 194,330 9.3
156,402 6.5 148,571 7.1
2,400,984 100.0 2,095,632  100.0
8,098,067 7,224,713
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12 31
2014 2013
(%) (%)
1,444,830  25.5 1,412,900  27.9
768,661  13.6 622,302  12.2
624,704  11.0 591,085  11.6
587,246  10.4 547,002  10.7
551,378 9.7 489,456 9.6
399,233 7.1 338,064 6.6
260,736 4.6 220,388 4.3
218,286 3.9 134,595 2.6
211,799 3.7 198,609 3.9
208,044 3.7 196,255 3.9
382,087 6.8 341,803 6.7
5,657,004 100.0 5,092,459  100.0
1,550,701  64.6 1,292,033  61.6
266,393  11.1 255,808  12.2
204,044 8.5 204,425 9.8
222,865 9.3 194,330 9.3
155,972 6.5 148,352 7.1
2,399,975 100.0 2,094,948  100.0
8,056,979 7,187,407

228/496
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2014 12 31
1
1 5 5
794,488 295,993 705,780 1,796,261
785,858 285,079 317,351 1,388,288
1,164,594 668,884 2,105,571 3,939,049
476,414 52,629 445,426 974,469

3,221,354 1,302,585 3,574,128 8,098,067

2013 12 31
1
1 5 5
763,479 301,703 556,910 1,622,092
769,611 231,430 295,572 1,296,613
1,131,696 661,376 1,719,816 3,512,888
366,943 41,668 384,509 793,120

3,031,729 1,236,177 2,956,807 7,224,713

2014 12 31
1
1 5 5
793,465 291,450 698,277 1,783,192
781,915 266,598 314,546 1,363,059
1,164,101 667,969 2,105,512 3,937,582
475,428 52,292 445,426 973,146

3,214,909 1,278,309 3,563,761 8,056,979

2013 12 31
1
1 5 5
761,773 301,104 556,890 1,619,767
768,979 230,030 295,550 1,294,559
1,131,364 629,023 1,719,798 3,480,185
366,742 41,646 384,508 792,896

3,028,858 1,201,803 2,956,746 7,187,407
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2014 12 31
91 361
90 360 3 3
9,442 4,744 616 371 15,173
19,103 14,380 7,639 4,559 45,681
40,740 32,292 13,845 7,585 94,462
3,854 5,041 721 1,688 11,304

73,139 56,457 22,821 14,203 166,620

2013 12 31
91 361
90 360 3 3
5,211 4,379 1,282 442 11,314
8,075 6,078 7,005 6,913 28,071
20,067 10,324 14,201 10,174 54,766
1,540 1,129 1,326 2,278 6,273

34,893 21,910 23,814 19,807 100,424

2014 12 31
91 361
90 360 3 3
9,421 4,744 616 371 15,152
17,195 13,641 6,932 4,559 42,327
40,737 32,284 13,845 7,585 94,451
3,632 4,486 721 1,688 10,527

70,985 55,155 22,114 14,203 162,457

2013 12 31
91 361
90 360 3 3
5,211 4,379 1,282 442 11,314
7,442 6,005 7,005 6,913 27,365
20,067 10,324 14,201 10,174 54,766
1,540 1,129 1,326 2,278 6,273

34,260 21,837 23,814 19,807 99,718
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12 31
2014 2013
() 7,923,816 7,112,117
() 49,281 24,815
() 124,970 87,781
8,098,067 7,224,713
(358,071) (322,191)
7,739,996 6,902,522
12 31
2014 2013
() 7,886,891 7,075,519
() 45,836 24,815
() 124,252 87,073
8,056,979 7,187,407
(356,631) (321,224)
7,700,348 6,866,183
2014 12 31
5,303,893 265,154 5,569,047
2,352,828 1,941 2,354,769
7,656,721 267,095 7,923,816
2013 12 31
4,800,374 252,101 5,052,475
2,057,357 2,285 2,059,642
6,857,731 254,386 7,112,117
2014 12 31
5,268,590 264,528 5,533,118
2,351,839 1,934 2,353,773
7,620,429 266,462 7,886,891
2013 12 31
4,766,252 250,325 5,016,577
2,056,659 2,283 2,058,942
6,822,911 252,608 7,075,519
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EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

oOoOooodn

2014 12 31
31 61 91
30 60 90 360
15,280 3,978 3,575 1,290 24,123 23,606
15,662 5,440 4,053 3 25,158 33,285
30,942 9,418 7,628 1,293 49,281 56,891
2014 12 31
31 61 91
30 60 90 360
14,063 3,978 2,645 20,686 22,764
15,658 5,440 4,052 25,150 33,285
29,721 9,418 6,607 45,836 56,049
2013 12 31
31 61 91
30 60 90 360
4,017 187 30 4,234 4,303
14,070 4,033 2,478 20,581 24,986
18,087 4,220 2,508 24,815 29,289
2014 12 31
103,907 (73,094) 30,813
21,063 (14,591) 6,472
124,970 (87,685) 37,285
2013 12 31
72,355 (50,127) 22,228
15,426 (10,440) 4,986
87,781 (60,567) 27,214
2014 12 31
103,200 (72,578) 30,622
21,052 (14,587) 6,465
124,252 (87.165) 37,087
2013 12 31
71,648 (50,050) 21,598
15,425 (10,440) 4,985
87,073 (60,490) 26,583
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12 31
2014 2013
103,907 72,355
1.28% 1.00%
14,697 9,237
12 31
2014 2013
103,200 71,648
1.28% 1.00%
14,697 9,237
12 31
2014 2013
Q) (@)
7 3
26,242 21.0 19,373 22.1
16,790 13.4 12,407 14.1
26,727 21.4 16,603 19.0
18,656 14.9 14,075 16.0
30,332 24.3 19,523 22.2
5,368 4.3 4,927 5.6
848 0.7 870 1.0
124,970  100.0 87,781 100.0
12 31
2014 2013
Q) Q)
7 3
26,242 21.1 19,373 22.2
16,790 13.5 12,407 14.2
26,727 21.5 16,603 19.1
18,656 15.0 14,075 16.2
30,332 24.5 19,523 22.4
5,368 4.3 4,927 5.7
130 0.1 162 0.2
124,252  100.0 87,073 100.0
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2014 12 31
10,376

7
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OooooOodd
26,403 2013 12 31
12 31
2014 2013
@ 2,233,960 2,116,801
0) 1,101 45
2,235,151 2,116,846
(478) (44)
(1,606) (897)
(2,084) (941)
2,233,067 2,115,905
12 31
2014 2013
@ 2,216,133 2,104,353
0) 691 45
2,216,824 2,104,398
(463) (44)
(1,679) (897)
(2,142) (941)
2,214,682 2,103,457




EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

Ogoooood
1

( ) 2014 12 31
- 14,780 147,513 548,330 710,623
- 48,723 449,183 936,274 56,141 1,490,321
- 4,011 137,730 67,878 45,334 254,953
- 19,389 186,574 159,349 34,475 399,787
93,300 93,300
MOF 278,314 278,314
3,590 3,590
248,794 248,794
59,876 10,975 70,851
395,573 921,000 1,711,831 522,129 3,550,533

( ) 2013 12 31
- 13,700 149,808 519,265 682,773
- 50,056 409,322 808,838 66,485 1,334,701
- 11,495 48,702 29,688 27,124 117,009
- 24,768 167,724 166,623 30,973 390,088
93,300 93,300
MOF 362,054 362,054
6,037 6,037
171,280 171,280
38,710 6,414 45,124
310,009 775,556 1,524,414 592,387 3,202,366
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O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

Ogoooood
( ) 2014 12 31
- 14,780 147,342 548,330 710,452
- 48,723 448,141 934,063 56,141 1,487,068
- 4,011 137,453 65,853 46,295 253,612
- 19,389 182,857 156,143 34,232 392,621
93,300 93,300
MOF 278,314 278,314
3,462 3,462
248,794 248,794
60,876 60,876
396,573 915,793 1,704,389 511,744 3,528,499
( ) 2013 12 31
- 13,700 149,584 519,265 682,549
- 50,056 409,322 808,838 66,485 1,334,701
- 11,495 47,423 27,012 27,124 113,054
- 24,449 166,494 163,482 30,973 385,398
93,300 93,300
MOF 362,054 362,054
5,820 5,820
171,277 171,277
38,710 38,710
309,687 772,823 1,518,597 585,756 3,186,863
2
( ) 2014 12 31
545 545
646 646
(478) (478)
713 713
( ) 2014 12 31
45 45
646 646
(463) (463)
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O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

OJooooodg
228 228
( ) 2013 12 31
45 45
(44) (44)
1 1
2014 12 31
1,017 2013 12 31 3,388
2014 12 31 295 2013 12 31 331
3
( ) 2014 12 31
() AAA AA A A
- 694,230 10,297 809 5,287 710,623
- 1,372,558 110,807 3,044 3,783 1,490,192
- 170,221 48,639 15,686 13,636 6,958 255,140
- () 51,096 289,920 11,875 42,033 4,701 399,625
93,300 93,300
MOF 278,314 278,314
3,590 3,590
() 248,794 248,794
() 71,079 71,079

2,983,182 459,663 31,414 64,739 11,659 3,550,657

( ) 2013 12 31

() AAA AA A A
- 680,349 637 1,707 80 682,773
- 1,251,211 79,857 3,057 443 1,334,568
- 24,284 49,902 31,531 9,340 5,074 120,131
- () 23,452 230,604 118,313 11,935 5,287 389,591
93,300 93,300
MOF 362,054 362,054
6,037 6,037
() 171,280 171,280
) 45,124 45,124

2,657,091 361,000 154,608 21,798 10,361 3,204,858

( ) 2014 12 31
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O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

OooooOodd
() AAA AA A
- 694,230 10,297 638 5,287 710,452
- 1,370,416 109,698 3,044 3,783 1,486,941
- 171,110 47,836 14,265 13,621 6,895 253,727
- () 50,316 284,025 10,896 42,033 4,701 391,971
93,300 93,300
MOF 278,314 278,314
3,462 3,462
() 248,794 248,794
() 61,104 61,104
2,971,046 451,856 28,843 64,724 11,596 3,528,065
( ) 2013 12 31
() AAA AA A
_ 680,349 413 1,707 80 682,549
_ 1,251,211 79,857 3,057 443 1,334,568
- 22,813 49,105 29,908 9,321 5,029 116,176
- () 23,079 227,386 117,227 11,922 5,287 384,901
93,300 93,300
MOF 362,054 362,054
5,820 5,820
() 171,277 171,277
() 38,710 38,710
2,648,613 356,761 151,899 21,766 10,316 3,189,355
MOF
31,704 2013 12 31 66,938
3
50
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48.2
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EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

Ooooooog
2014 12 31
3
1 1 12 1
3 5 5

161,215 27,272 2,554,578 2,743,065
42,452 37,201 130,547 360,405 2,200 572,805
193,149 38,487 136,584 38,842 407,062
21 4,628 8,816 23,580 16,446 4,934 58,425
32,860 63,158 173,300 67,672 17,773 1,472 356,235
924 1,419 3,358 1,264 230 7,195
355,523 106,487 47,408 509,418
29,656 426,767 742,945 2,326,006 1,673,235 2,541,387 7,739,996
14,821 42,862 175,149 492,102 197,083 5,886 927,903
8,571 62,181 167,984 860,252 611,962 1,710,950
1 88 2,388 25,085 88,789 405,766 522,117
1,542 14,184 26,099 42,044 44,055 219 45 128,188
31,199 217,960 1,127,815 1,241,334 3,482,914 3,241,021 3,779,180 2,561,936 15,683,359
(30) (80,011) (80) (80,121)
(284,412)  (16,656)  (52,011) (189,971) (288,091) (831,141)
(95,431)  (72,370) (53,337)  (2,667)  (1,118) (224,923)
(10,085)  (6,074)  (6,789)  (2,263) (25,211)
(155,596)  (85,497)  (80,022)  (26,131) (36) (347,282)
(1,846)  (1,150)  (2,867)  (1,013) (364) (7,240)
(113,805)  (14,229)  (2.,987) (131,021)
(7,046,736) (604,561) (1,105,613) (2,363,672) (1,412,631) (184) (12,533,397)
(21,203)  (37,911) (85,934)  (80,168) (99,951) (325,167)
(96,209)  (19,113) (54,347) (58,660) (73,596) (24,276) (326,201)

(7.437,472) (1,034,285) (1,509,928) (2,839,793) (1,884,297) (125,929)

(14,831,704)

31,199

(7.219,512) 93,530

(268,594) 643,121 1,356,724 3,653,251

2,561,936 851,655
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oOoOooodn
2013 12 31
3
1 1 12 1
5 5

200,278 1,178 2,402,346 2,603,802
48,464 49,142 55,092 145,639 99,341 397,678
162,547 19,083 87,668 39,357 308,655
2 4,554 3,805 24,003 17,702 3,750 48 53,864
56,835 61,947 93,573 55,611 31 1,021 269,018
780 949 2,105 3,897 455 8,186
439,889 119,212 177,951 737,052
17,843 408,485 710,851 2,165,795 1,474,567 2,124,981 6,902,522
16,579 29,761 114,846 437,173 180,585 2,367 781,311
6,179 31,417 203,297 719,537 563,385 1,523,815
1 113 10,635 1,775 44,367 55,104 480,095 592,090
785 15,666 22,433 30,725 33,155 203 57 103,024

18,629 264,523

1,179,236 1,064,617

3,092,399 2,902,492 3,353,339 2,405,782 14,281,017

(30) 74) (104)
(252,802)  (32,408)  (13,820)  (43,910) (386,414) (729,354)
(69,464)  (65,740)  (37,427)  (1,732) (174,363)

(9.598)  (4,209)  (2,525)  (4,473) (20,805)
(110,696)  (94,884)  (58,302)  (21,538) (34) (285,454)

912)  (1,713)  (2,291)  (2,064) (655) (7,635)

(22,225)  (1,714)  (2.489) (359) (26,787)

(6,993,059)  (566,840) (1,009,991) (2,159,729) (1,081,790) ©) (11,811,411)
(3,261)  (26,195) (94,704)  (16,961) (125,140) (266,261)

(98,269)  (14,171) (42,008) (57,676) (58,631) (16,894) (287,649)
(7.,353,758)  (824,186) (1,258,590) (2,461,075) (1,569,489) (142,725) (13,609,823)
18,629 (7,089,235) 355,050 (193,973) 631,324 1,333,003 3,210,614 2,405,782 671,194
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EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

oOoOooodn
2014 12 31
3
1 1 12 1
3 5 5

161,134 27,272 2,554,391 2,742,797
41,363 34,714 129,869 356,846 562,792
197,856 38,332 138,022 38,615 412,825
21 4,628 8,816 23,580 16,446 4,934 58,425
32,860 64,158 173,300 67,672 17,773 355,763
919 1,389 3,180 1,232 230 6,950
355,517 106,487 47,408 509,412
28,187 424,910 739,782 2,314,910 1,655,179 2,537,380 7,700,348
14,821 42,862 174,930 491,112 193,085 571 917,381
8,571 62,181 167,915 857,989 606,852 1,703,508
1 88 2,388 24,974 85,717 398,006 511,174
1,542 13,514 25,635 28,848 43,541 210 45 113,335
29,730 216,120 1,127,703 1,225,112 3,468,606 3,214,172 3,758,305 2,554,962 15,594,710

B0

(286,636)  (16,656)
(92,584)

(10,085)  (6,074)
(155, 600)

(1,843)

(110,891)

(80,000)

(52,011) (190,
(65,191) (39,

6.789) (2,

(85,497) (80,
1,139) (2,
13,072) (2,

671) (288,791)
903) (125)
263)

022) (26,131)
740) (986)

987)

(7,047,374)  (604,087) (1,105,479) (2,362,977) (1,410, 250)

(21,203)
(90,529)  (18,727)

(37,911) (85,
(40,274) (56,

934)  (78,337)
770)  (73,386)

(36)
(364)

@
(99,951)
(164)

(80,030)
(834,765)
(197,803)

(25,211)
(347,286)

(7,072)
(126,950)
(12,530,169)

(323,336)
(279,850)

(7,434,654) (1,027,665) (1,487,363) (2,824,267) (1,878,006) (100,517)

(14,752,472)

29,730

(7,218,534) 100,

038

(262,251) 644,339 1,336,166 3,657,788

2,554,962 842,238
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oOoOooodn
2013 12 31
3
1 1 12 1
3 5 5

200,245 1,178 2,402,202 2,603,625
47,016 48,318 55,092 145,611 93,901 389,938
165,906 19,087 87,516 38,458 310,967
2 4,553 3,805 24,003 17,384 3,750 53,497
56,834 61,947 93,573 55,609 31 267,994
770 949 2,105 3,897 455 8,176
439,579 119,212 177,951 736,742
17,782 407,765 708,516 2,156,961 1,451,535 2,123,624 6,866,183
16,479 29,509 114,375 435,732 180,116 504 776,715
6,179 31,417 203,297 717,817 559,288 1,517,998
1 113 10,135 1,775 38,370 54,970 480,095 585,459
785 15,181 21,532 21,355 32,705 203 56 91,817

18,568 262,557 1,179,228 1,052,664 3,076,467 2,869,506 3,347,415 2,402,706 14,209,111

(30) (30)
(254,118)  (32,408)  (13,820)  (44,130) (387,718) (732,194)
(67,231)  (59,639)  (19,054) (145,924)

(9.598)  (4,209)  (2,525)  (4,473) (20,805)
(110,696)  (94,884)  (58,302)  (21,538) (34) (285,454)

912)  (1,711)  (2,291)  (2,064) (655) (7,633)

(20,467)  (1,714)  (2.489) (24,670)

(6,992,996) (566,747) (1,009,957) (2,156,715) (1,081,746) ©) (11,808,163)
(3,261)  (26,195) (94,704)  (16,961) (125,140) (266,261)

(94,794)  (13,211) (32,118)  (56,293) (57,738) (58) (254,212)
(7,351,536) (819,142) (1,242,563) (2,438,451) (1,567,765) (125,889) (13,545,346)

18,568 (7,088,979) 360,086 (189,899) 638,016 1,301,741 3,221,526 2,402,706 663,765
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EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

Ooooooog
2014 12 31
3
1 1 12 1
5 5

161,215 27,272 1,214 2,554,578 2,744,279
42,452 38,239 136,039 375,953 2,405 595,088
193,395 41,169 143,735 39,889 418,188
21 4,969 9,157 25,016 18,631 5,382 63,176
33,893 65,871 183,564 79,102 21,326 1,472 385,228
358,139 108,674 48,451 515,264
91,690 496,444 853,270 2,695,148 2,570,241 3,875,869 10,582,662
17,235 48,402 211,037 572,898 233,973 5,886 1,089,431
13,085 75,141 217,912 1,058,738 765,378 2,130,254
45 88 50 3,744 31,868 111,405 429,642 576,842
13,993 1,530 13,198 1,512 7 30,240
91,735 217,769 1,184,251 1,355,879 3,934,196 4,453,309 5,331,577 2,561,936 19,130,652
(30) (80,711) (80) (80,821)
(284,415)  (17,993)  (60,647) (197,047) (324,822) (884,924)
(96,160)  (73,017)  (54,152)  (2,940)  (1,251) (227,520)
(10,085)  (6,100)  (6,816)  (2.279) (25,280)
(157,088)  (87,454)  (83,150)  (28,104) 44) (355, 840)
(114,138)  (14,354)  (2,997) (131,489)
(7,050,998)  (620,383) (1,142,823) (2,461,528) (1,628,319) (184) (12,904, 235)
(21,271)  (38,484)  (95,599) (113,036) (115,305) (383,695)
(91,631) (871)  (14,125)  (2,070) (352)  (24,276) (133,325)
(7,437,159) (1,034,004) (1,518,431) (2,898,902) (2,097,573)  (141,060) (15,127,129)

91,735 (7,219,390)

150,247

(162,552) 1,035,294 2,355,736 5,190,517 2,561,936

4,003,523
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O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

oOoOooodn
2013 12 31
3
1 1 12 1
3 5 5

200,278 1,178 1,153 2,402,346 2,604,955
48,496 50,276 56,664 155,291 102,998 413,725
164,128 20,528 91,973 41,194 317,823
2 4,730 3,927 25,471 19,989 4,208 48 58,375
57,269 63,174 97,889 59,294 53 1,021 278,700
442,670 122,239 183,822 748,731
64,722 466,646 804,865 2,487,474 2,245,244 3,232,695 9,301,646
19,240 34,582 138,445 513,619 213,689 2,367 921,942
8,564 42,404 248,001 878,663 685,041 1,862,673
45 113 10,974 2,109 51,609 74,562 505,591 645,003
15,331 1,944 9,371 1,348 8 28,002

64,767 264,220 1,227,619 1,161,016 3,481,323 3,935,563 4,641,285 2,405,782 17,181,575

(30) 74) (104)
(252,893)  (33,610) (20,668)  (50,639) (433,243) (791,053)
(69,890)  (66,373)  (38,244)  (1,770) (176,277)

(9,598)  (4,226)  (2,540)  (4,503) (20,867)
(111,814)  (96,388)  (60,587)  (22,723) (45) (291,557)

(22,237)  (1,736)  (2.,498) (439) (26,910)

(6,996,955)  (578,178) (1,040,462) (2,256,545) (1,246,341) ) (12,118,483)
(3,304)  (26,700) (102,947)  (42,022) (144,077) (319,050)

(94,256)  (1,052)  (9.784)  (1.411) (925)  (16,893) (124,321)
(7.353,732)  (824,311) (1,264,651) (2,517,448) (1,747,463) (161,017) (13,868,622)

64,767 (7,089,512) 403,308  (103,635) 963,875 2,188,100 4,480,268 2,405,782 3,312,953
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EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

oOoOooodn
2014 12 31
3
1 1 12 1
3 5 5

161,134 27,272 1,214 2,554,391 2,744,011
41,364 35,751 135,286 372,139 584,540
198,113 41,038 145,233 39,677 424,061
21 4,969 9,157 25,016 18,631 5,382 63,176
33,893 66,888 183,564 79,102 21,326 384,773
358,133 108,674 48,451 515,258
89,563 494,360 849,622 2,682,514 2,549,344 3,871,153 10,536,556
17,220 48,387 210,569 570,892 228,322 571 1,075,961
13,059 75,102 217,516 1,055,040 758,929 2,119,646
45 88 50 3,744 31,757 108,351 421,882 565,917
13,340 1,060 7 1,510 7 15,924

89,608 215,947 1,183,880 1,339,119 3,918,269 4,421,037 5,307,001 2,554,962 19,029,823

(30) (80,700) (80,730)
(286,639)  (17,993)  (60,661) (197,786) (325,596) (888,675)
(93,274)  (65,547)  (40,311) (130) (199,262)

(10,085)  (6,100)  (6,816)  (2,279) (25,280)
(157,092)  (87,454)  (83,150)  (28,104) “4) (355,844)

(111,212)  (13,183)  (2,997) (127,392)

(7,051,636) (619,909) (1,142,689) (2,460,833) (1,625,937) 0) (12,901,006)
(21,271)  (38,484)  (95,595) (111,192) (115,305) (381,847)

(86,148) (481) (45) (185) (139) (164) (87,162)
(7,434,538) (1,027,332) (1,495,579) (2,883,136) (2,091,098)  (115,515) (15,047,198)

89,608 (7,218,591) 156,548  (156,460) 1,035,133 2,329,939 5,191,486 2,554,962 3,982,625
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EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

oOoOooodn
2013 12 31
3
1 1 12 1
3 5 5

200,245 1,178 1,153 2,402,202 2,604,778
47,042 49,451 56,627 155,038 97,083 405,241
167,541 20,530 91,814 40,277 320,162
2 4,730 3,927 25,471 19,664 4,208 58,002
57,269 63,174 97,889 59,291 53 277,676
442,360 122,239 183,822 748,421
64,627 465,783 802,052 2,476,937 2,218,946 3,231,188 9,259,533
19,137 34,327 137,947 512,140 213,208 504 917,263
8,564 42,404 248,001 876,899 680,844 1,856,712
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1,582 55 1,637
634 634
7,829 347 8,176
6,420 769,595 196 776,211
263 263
6,683 769,595 196 776,474
6,683 888,928 210,530 1,106,141
(20,805) (20,805)

(285,454)  (285,454)

(5,121) G71)  (5,692)
(1,820) (120)  (1,940)

@ @
(6,941) (692)  (7.633)

(27,746) (286,146) (313,892)
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2014 12 31

2013 1 1

2013 12 31
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2014
211,011 347 225 (285, 454) (692)
367,322 21 1,325

(3,084,325)
(285,313) an (110) 3,036,734 36
16,486 (128) 2 (14,237) 360
(&)
309,506 223 1,440 (347,282) (296)
(787) (128) 439 360
2013
127,094 796 5,741 (155,071) (1,856)
433,011
(1,201,295)
(357,601) (48) (5,536) 1,080,965 232
8,507 (401) 22 (10,053) 932
@
211,011 347 225 (285,454) (692)
647 (401) (693) 932
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)
2014 12 31
209,987 347 196 (285,454) (692)
367,902
(3,084,329)
(284,689) Qan (80) 3,036,734 36
C )
16,470 (128) 1 (14,237) 360
(&)
309,670 202 115 (347,286) (296)
/
)/
(787) (128) 439 360
)
2013 12 31
126,310 796 5,468 (155,071) (1,856)
432,777
(1,201,295)
(357,577) (48) (5,291) 1,080,965 232
C )
8,477 (401) 22 (10,053) 932
3
209,987 347 196 (285,454) (692)
/
C )
647 (401) (693) 932
3
/(
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51.
51.1
2015 3 24 2014 12 31
17,894
18,721
2014 12 31 2014 12 31 1 0.182
59,113 ( 10 )
2014 12 31 2
51.2
2015 3 18 400
5 5.5% 5 5 2.24%

37

52.
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Consolidated Income Statement

Fof this year ended 31 Decenber 7004
{amounts in millions of Penminbe, unleds otheradse stated]

Hotes Year ended 31 December

v 2014 2013
Interest incorme 1 800,285 513,384
Interest expanse 1 (269, 358} (237,182)
Met interest income 1 425,891 376,202
Fee and commision income 2 87.83% 85,697
Fee and commBsion Expence 2 {7,760} {6.526)
Met fee and commission income 2 E0123 83,171
Met trading gain 3 1.908 2,360
Met gainflass) on financral mstrumenis designated
at fair value thraugh profit or loss 4 1.505 1639)
Met gaind{loss) on investment securities 335 {350)
Crither operating income 5 10,364 5.027
Operating income 524,126 465,771
QOperating expenses & [223,898) (198,607)
Impairment losses on assets 2 &7.971) {=2.990)
Profit before tax 232,257 213,174
Incorme 1ax expense g (52,747} (47.963)
Profit for the year 179.510 166,211
Attributable to:
Equity halders of the Bank 179,461 166,315
Mon-controlling interesis 49 {104)
179.510 166,211
Earnings per share attnbutable to the equity holders of
the Bank (expressed in RME yuan per share)
— Basie and diluted 11 .55 051

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consaldated financial staterments
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 December 2014
CAmoumts in milbons of Renminkd, unless othersise Rated)

Year ended 31 December

2014 2013
Profit for the year 179.510 166,211
Other comprehensive incomalexpenses)
[tems that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Fair value changes on available-for-sale financial assets 34,587 (29, 102)
Incame tag impact for fair value changes on
available-for-sake financial assets (£.622) 7:.227
Fareign currency translaton differences 152 (321}
Other comprehensive incomeiexpenses), net of tax 26.117 [22,196)
Total comprehensive income for the year 205,627 144,015
Tetal comprehensive moome attnbutable to
Equity holders of the Bank 205503 144,123
MNan-contrelling interests 124 [108)
205,627 144,015

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consclidated financial statements
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

A1 31 Degember 2014
{amiounts in milions of Renminbe, undess otheraase stated]

Motes Az at 31 December
v 2014 2013
Aszzets
Cash and balances with central banks 12 2,743,065 2,603, 802
Depasits with banks and other financial institutions 13 572,805 397.678
Precious metals 20,188 19,185
Placernents with and loans to banks and
other financial institutions 14 407,062 308,655
Financial assets held for trading 15 58,425 53,864
Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss 16 L 269018
Derwvatve financial assels 17 7.195 8138
Financ@l assets held under resale agreements 12 505,418 737,052
Loans and advances 1o customers 1) T, 739.956 6,902,522
Awvailable-lor-sale financial assets 20 927,803 781,311
Held-ta-maturity investments 21 1710950 1,523,815
[ebt instruments classified as receivables 22 522 117 5a2,080
Investrents in associates and joint ventures = 1
Property and equipmeant 24 154,950 150,859
Gocdwill 23 1,381 1.381
Deterred tax assels 25 T&540 74,075
Other assets 26 163,822 138 608
Total assets 15,974,152 14,562,102
Liabilities
Borrowings from central bank 27 80,121 104
Deposits from banks and: other financial institutions 28 231,141 720,354
Placements from banks and other financal institut:ons 29 224,523 174,363
Financial iabiities held for trading 30 257211 20,805
Financial habilities designated at fair value through profit or loss: 31 347,282 285,454
Dervatve Tinancial labdites 17 7.240 7.635
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements 32 131,021 26,787
Bue to customens 33 12,533,397 11,811,411
Dbt secufites ssued 24 325,167 266,261
Deferred tax liabilities 25 43 g
Other hiakulities 35 435 987 395,383
Total liabilities 14,541,533 13,717,565
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A 31 Dacemiber 2014
LAmounts in milkons of Renminkd, urdess dtheraise Hated)

Hotes Az at 31 December
v 2014 2013

Equity

Crdinany shares 35 324,754 324,754

Preference shares il 35,944 —

Capntal resemve 38 98,773 Q8,773

Investrment revaluation reserve 38 3118 {22,772}

Surplus reserve 40 78,504 B0.632

General reserve 41 156,707 139,204

Retzined earnings F25.989 243,452

Faresgn currency translation reserve (853) {1.005)
Equity aftributable toequity holders of the Bank 1,031,088 843,108
Man-controlling nterests 1,553 1,429
Total equity 1,032,619 844,537
Total equity and liabilities 15,974,152 14,562,102

The accompanying rotes fesm an integral part of these consolidated financal statements

Approved and authornzed for ssue by the Board of Directors on 24 March 2015

Executae Director
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Statement of Financial Position

A1 31 December 2074
{Amounts in mileons of Renminbl, unless otharwise slated)

Motes As at 31 December
v 2014 2013
Assets

Cash-and balances with central banks 12 2,742,797 2,603,625
Depaosgits with banks and ether financial institutions 13 562,792 380,938
Prectous metaks 20,1838 19,185

Placernents with and kans to banks and
other financial institutions 14 412,825 10967
Financeal assets hekd for trading 15 58425 53,497
Financial assets designated at fair value through profitor loss 16 355,763 267,994
Dernvatwe inancial assets 17 6,950 2178
Finan<m@l assets held under resale agreements 18 S 412 736,742
Loans and advances o Customers 19 T 700,348 6,866,183
Available-for-salke financial assets 20 o17.381 T76, 715
Held-te-maturity ifvestments 21 1,703,508 1,517,908
Debt mstrements classified as receivables 22 Si1.174 585,459
Investrment i subsidaries. 23 10,564 8,248
Praperty and equipment 24 152.374 149,001
Deferred tax assels 25 75,368 73,938
Dther assels 26 148,250 126,584
“Total assets 15,891,158 14,484,350

Liabilities
Borrowmgs from central bank 27 20,030 30
Deposits from banks and other financal mstitutions 28 £34,765 732,194
Placermenis from banks and other financal mstitutions 29 157,803 145924
Financial kabilitses held for trading 30 25,211 20,805
Financial kabslities designated at fair value through profit or less. 31 347,286 285,454
Dervatece fnancial labidites 17 T.072 7.633
Financial assels sold under repurchase agreements 32 126,950 24,670
Due to customers 33 12,530, 169 11,808,163
Dbt securites ssued 34 323,336 266,261
Other liabilites 35 2E0 088 361,104
“Total liabilities 14,861,710 13,652,238
182 @ o A
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AT 31 December 2014
(Bmounts in miflons of Rerminkt, urless othersasa sased)

MNotes As at 31 December

1 2014 2013

Equity
Ordinarny shares 36 324,704 324,754
Preference shares 37 39,944 —
Capital reserve 38 98574 G8.574
Investment revaluaben resenve 3 3043 (22,750)
Surplus resenve 40 T8, 445 50,542
General reserve at 156, 145 138,751
Retained sarmings 329,133 242,980
Fareign currency anslation resenve (B29) (7 79)
Total equity 1,029,449 842,112
Total equity and liabilities 15,891,152 14,434,350

The accompanying notes form an integral parl of these conzolidated financial staterments

Approved and authonzed for ssue by the Board of Directors an 24 March 2015

Executne Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2014
Lamiounts in milkors of Renminby, unless otharsise Slated)
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The accompanying notes form an integral part of these conselidated financal statements
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Foe the year ended 31 December 2014
{(Arnants in milons of Rereninkd, unless othensze gated)

Year ended 31 December

2014 2013
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax 232257 214,174
Adjustrrents for
Amortizaton of intangible assets and other assets 22713 2,342
Depreciation of property and egquipment 164515 15,119
Impairment bosses on assets 67.5971 520900
Interest income arsing from investrment securities {123.053) {105,831)
Interast income graing from impaired loans and advances o customers £1,002) (&93)
Interest expense on debt securitses 1ssued 10173 8,463
Met (gain}loss on investment secunties (235) 350
Met gain on disposal of investrment in assoc@tes and joint ventures —_ (302
Eividend income arsing from investment securilies — {5}
Met gain on dispesal of property, equipment and other assets {393) (656}
Met foreign exchange loss 1,107 5037
205050 160,011
Met change in operating assets and operating liabilities:
Met increase in balances with central banks, deposits with banks and
cther financial instiutions {335,229) (187,328}
Met increase in placements with and loans to banks and
other financal institutions (45 814 (44.823)
Met decreasefincrease) in inancial assels held under resale agreements 122146 {30,995)
Met increase in keans and advances o customers {887,572 (795.948)
Met ncrease i bod raweings from central bank 20,017 38
Met increase in placements from banks and other financial institutions 50,560 24,642
Met increase in due to customers and depesits from banks and
other financal nstitutions 823,773 203,478
Increase in other aperating assets {121,778) (120,.820)
Increase in other operating labdities 214,283 228,648
Cash from operations 103,441 86,503
Incame tax paid (68.826) (54,024)
MET CASH FROM OFERATING ACTIVITIES 34,615 32,879
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Consclidated Staterment of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 December 2014
{Amounts in mileons of Renmnbl, unless otharwise slated)

Motes As at 31 December
1\ 2014 2013

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Cash recemed from disposaliredemption of imvestment securities 529,129 534,630
Cash recedred from inlerest income arising from

investment securities 112,781 9% 120
Cash recemed from disposal of investrment in assocates and

joint ventures 1 416
Cash recened from disposal of property, equipment and

cther assels 2,819 765
Cash pad for purchase of investment secunties {859, 158) (£91,097)
Cash pad for purchase of property, equipment and other assets {25,997} (28170}
MET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITES (140,425} {184,335)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Centribution feom preference shareholders 40,000 -
Cazh payments for transaction cost of preference shares ssued {38} —
Cash recesed from debt securnties ssued 271,873 18,771
Cash payments for transaction cost of debt securities ssued {58) (15)
Repayments.of debl securities isswed (2 13,358) {45,153}
Cash payments for inlerest on debt securites issued {10,107} {7,707}
Dvidends recognized as dstnbution {57485} {S0.830)
Dwidends pad to non-contreling interests — 2]
MET CASH FROM FINAMCING ACTIVITIES 30,822 15,064
MET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS {74,988} (136,393)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 1 JANUARY 813,794 552,935
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHAMNGES O CASH AND

CASH EQUIVALEMTS {5700 {2,744)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 42 738241 813,799
MNET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIITIES INCLUDE
Interest recened 548,718 484,213
Interest paid (229,793) | 195,520)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Foe the year ended 31 December 2014
{(Arnants in milons of Rereninkd, unless othensze gated)

GEMERAL INFORMATION

Agricultural Bank of China Limited (the "Bank™) I3 the successar entity to the Agricultural Bank of China
{the “Fredecessor Entity”) which was a wholly state-owned commercial bank approved for setup by the
People's Bank of China (the "PBOCT) and founded on 23 February 1979 in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC"} On 15 lanuary 2009, the Bank was established after the completion of the financial
restructuring of the Predecessor Entity. The Bank's establishment was authorized by the PROC . The Bank
was listed on the Shanghal Stock Exchange and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 15 July
2000 and 16 July 2010, respectively

The Bank operates under financal services certificate Mo BOO02HT 11000001 ssued by the China Banking
Regulatory Commission (the “CBRC "), and busness license Mo 10000000000547 2 ssued by the Siate
Administration of Industry and Commerce of the PRC The regstered office of the Bank 15 located at
MNo.£9 Jianguornen Mei Avenve, Dongcheng Districl, Beipng, the PRC

The principal activities of the Bank and it subsidianes (collectarely, the “Group”) inclede Renminkbi
{"RME™} and foreign currency deposits, loans, clearing and settlement services, assels custody services,
fund management financial leasing services, insurance services and other services as approved by
relevant regulators, and the provision of related services by its overseas establshments as approved by the
respective bocal regulators.

The head office and domestic branches of the Bank and its subsidiaries operating in the Mamland China
are referred to as "Domestic Operations”. Branches and subsidiaries registered and operating outside of
the Mainland China are referred 1o as "Overseas Operations”

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1 Basis of preparation

Statement of complance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Internabonal Financial
Reporting Standards ("IFRST), a3 ssued by the International Accounting Standards Board (I&567)
in addition, the consobdaled financial statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Govemning the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the
Predecessor Heng Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap 32) for this financial year and the comparative
period.

Bazis of preparation

The consclidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basws except for
certain fimancial instrurments which are meassured at fair value, as explained in the accounting policies
set out below. Histoncal cost is generally based en the fair value of consideration gven in exchange
for assets and that is recened (or in some crcumstances the amount expected to be pad) with
respect to bakilites.

The preparation of financial staterments in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain eritical
accounting estimates It ako requires management to exercse i judgment in the process of
applying the Group's accounting policies The ‘ameas involving a higher degree of judgment or
complexity, of areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statemvents are disclosed in MNote (Il
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Mates to the Consolidated Financal Statements
For the yasr ended 31 December 2014
LAmounts in mileons of Renminbi, unless otharwize Hated)

I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

1.1 Standards and amendments effective in 2014 and adapted by the Group

The following standards have been adopted by the Group for the first time during the financial
year ended 31 December 2014

(1)  Amendments to IFRS 10, Investrrent Entities
IFRS 12 and 145 27
(2} Amendments to 145 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and Financal Liabilites
(3} Amendments to IAS 36 Imnpairment of Assets — Recoverable Amount Disclosures
for Non-Financal Assets
(4) Amendments Lo |AS 39 Financial instrurments. Recognitsen and

Measurement-Movation of Denvatrves and
Continuation of Hedge Accounting
(S) IFRIC 21 Levies

{1} Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27: Investment Entities

The amendments give an-exemption o an "investment entity”, as defined by specific
characteristics According to the amendments, many investment funds and similar entities
will be exempt from consohdating mast of their subsidianes. Instead, these subsidiaries
will be measured at fair value through profit or loss

{2} Amendments to 1AS 32 Offserting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

These amendments relate to the applcaton guidance in 1AS 32 — Financial Instruments
Presentation. and clarify that the rght of set-off must net be contingent on a future
event It must also be legally enforceabls for all counterparties in the normal course of
business, as well as in the event of default, msolvency or bankrupley. The amend ments
alsa consider settiement mechanisms

{2} Amendrents to JAS 36 lmpairment of Assets — Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets

These amendments address the disclosure of information about the recoverable amount
of impaired assets if that amount is based on fair valye less costs of disposal
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Mates ta the Consalidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2014
(Bmounts inmdions of Rereninks, urdes: othersise sated)

I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

1.1 Standards and amendments effective in 2014 and adapted by the Group
{Continued)

) Amendments to A5 390 Financal  [Rstruments. Recognition.  and
NMeasurement — Novation of Dematives and Continuation of Hedge
Accounting
These amendments consider legislative changes to “over-the-counter’ dervatives and the
establishment of central counterparties. Under 1AS 39, novation of derwatves to central
counterpartes would result in discontinuance of hedge accounting These amendments
provide relief from discontinuing hedge accounting when novation of a hedging
mstrument to a cen!ral coun F.E‘I'FIEI’I.:ll' meats SFI'EEIbed crena

(5) IFRIC 21 Levies

This 15 an mterpretation of 145 37 — Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets, establishes criteria for the recognition of a liability, arsing when an entity ingurs
a present obbgation a5 a resull of a past event (known 3s an obligating event). The
interpretation clanfies that the obligating event that gives rnse to-a kabilty to pay a vy 1o
a gavernment for undertaking a specific activity is the actual performance of the actaity
specified in the relevant legstation that triggers the payment of the fewy

The adoption of these new standands and amendments does not have a significant impact
on the aperating resulis, comprehensive income, or financial position of the Group
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Mates to the Consolidated Financal Statements
For the yasr ended 31 December 2014
LAmounts in mileons of Renminbi, unless otharwize Hated)

Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contnued)
1 Basis of preparation (Contnued)

1.2 Standards and amendments that are not yet effective and have not
been adopted before their effective dates by the Group in 2014

The Group has not 2dopted the followng new and revised IFRSS that have been issued but are
not yet effective

Effective for annual

pericds beginning
on or after
(1} Amendment tola5 19 Employee Benefits — To Mans that 1 July 2014
{as revised in 2011) Require Employees of Third Parfies
to Contebute Towards the
Cost of Benefits
{2} Amendments to IFRS: Annual Improvements to IFRS 2010 — 1 July 2014
2012 Cyde
(3} Amendments tolFRSs  Annuzl Improvements to [ERSs 2011 — 1 by 2014
2013 Cyde
{4} IFRS 14 Fegulatony Deferral Account 1 January 2016
{5y  Amendments to IFRS 11 Acquisttion of Interests in 1 January 2016
Jourit Opesations
6} Amendments tolAS 16 Clafication of Acceptable Methods of 1 January 2016
and 145 38 Deprecation and Amort izati on
7} Amendments to IAS 27 Eguity Method in Separate Financial 1 January 2016
Statements
8} Amendments to IFRS 10 On the Sale or Contnbution of Assels 1 January 26
and [AS 28 beteveen An Investor and ks Assocate
of Joint Venture
9} Amendments tolAS 16 Agnoulture: bearer plants 1 January 2016
and A5 41
{10} Amendments Lo IFRSs Annual improvements 1o 1 Jaruary 2016
IFRSs 2012 — 2014 cycle
{11) RS 15 Eevenaus from Contracts wath Customers 1 January 2017
(12} WFR59 Firancia nstruments 1 January 2018
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Mates to the Consalidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2014
(Bmounts inmdions of Rereninks, urdes: othersise sated)

I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

1.2 Standards and amendments that are not yet effective and have not
been adopted before their effective dates by the Group in 2014
(Coentinued)

{1} Amendment to 145 12 (as revised in 20711} Employee Benefits — To Flans
that Reguire Employpees or Third Farties to Cortribute Towards the Cost of
Bernefits
The amendment to 185 19 (a5 revised in 2011} — Employee Benefits will affect the
defined benefit plans whese employees or third parbies are required to bear some of
the cost of the plan The amendment clanfies the accounting by entities with plans
that require contributions finked only to service in each period. Entities with plans that
require contributions that vary with service persod will be required to recognize the
benefit of those contributions over employess’ working lves The Group anticipates
that the adoption ‘of the amendment wall not have a ssgnificant impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements:

{2 Amendments to IFR3s: Annual improvements to IFRSs 2010 — 2012 Cycle

The annual improvemen s 1o IFRSs 2010 — 2012 Cycle include a number of amendments
1o vanious IFRSs. The amendments are effective for annual perieds beginning on or after
1 July 2004, Amendments to IFRSs include the amendmants 1o [FRS 2 — Shane-Based
Fayment, the amendments to IFRS 3 — Business Combinations, the amendments to
IFRS & — Operatng Segments, the amendments 1o IFRS 13 — Fair Value Measurement,
the amendments to 145 24 — Related Party Disclosures. the amendments to lAS 16 —
Property, Flant and Equipment, and the amendments 1o 185 38 — Intangible Assets The
Group anticipates that the adoption of the amendments will not have 2 sgnificant impact
on the Group's consohidated financial statements

{2} Amendments to IFRS:: Annual mprovemests 1o IFRSs 2011 — 2012 Cycle

The annual improvements o IFRSs 2011 — 2013 Cycle include a number of amendments
to various IFRSs The amendments are effectwe for annual perods beginning on or
after 1 July 2014 Amendments 1o FR3s include the amendments ta IFRS 1 — First-time
Adoption of Internatianal Financial Reporting Standards, the amendments to IFR: 3 —
Business Combinations, the amendments to [FRS 13 — Farr Value Measurement and the
amendments to 1A% 40 — Investment Property. The Group anticipates that the adoption
of the amendments will not have a signficant impact on the Group’s conscldated
financial staternents
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Mates to the Consolidated Financal Statements
For the yasr ended 31 December 2014
LAmounts in mileons of Renminbi, unless otharwize Hated)

I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

1.2 Standards and amendments that are not yet effective and have not
been adopted before their effective dates by the Group in 2014
(Continued)

{d) IFRS 14° Regulatory Deferral Account

The 5B has ssued FRS 14 — Regulatory Deferral Accounts, an interim standard on
the accounting for certain balances that arise from rate-requlated actwities (" regulatony
deferral accounts™) IFRS 14 is only applicable to entities that apply IFRS 1 — First-time
Adoption of htemabtional Financeal Reporting Standards -as first-time. adopters of IFRS.
It permits such entites, on adoption of IFRS, 1o continue to apply their previcus GAAFP
accounting pokcies for the recognition, measurement, impairment and de-recognition
of regulatory deferral accounts The Group anticipates that the adopbion of ths new
standard will not have a sgnificant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements

{5} Amendments to [FRS 11 Acguisition of Interests in foint Coperations

The amendments to IFES 11 — loint Arrangements provide specific guidance ‘on
accounting for the scqueitton of an anterest in a pnt operation that 5 3 business
The amendments require ‘an investor to apply the principles of business combination
accounting when It acquires an Inlerest in a joint operation that constitutes 3 business.
The Group anticipates that the adoption of the amendments will not have a significant
impacl on the Group’s consalidated financial statements.

{6} Amendments to lA%S 16 and IAS 38 Clanfication of Acceptable Adethods of
Depreciation and Amortization

The amendments to 145 16 — Property, Plant and Equipment, clarify that depreciation of
an tem of property, plant and equipment based on revenue generated by using the assel
i niat appropriate The amendments to LAS 38 — Intangible Assets, establish a rebuttable
presumption that amorization of an intangible asset based on revenue generated by
using the asset i inappropriate. The presumption may only be rebutted m certain limited
crcumstances The Group anticipates that the adoption of these amendments will not
have a significant impact on the Group’s consobidated financial statements
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Mates to the Consalidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2014
(Bmounts inmdions of Rereninks, urdes: othersise sated)

I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

1.2 Standards and amendments that are not yet effective and have not
been adopted before their effective dates by the Group in 2014
(Coentinued)

{7) Amendments to IAS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial Staternents

The IASE has amended |AS 27 — Separate Financial Statements. The amendment allows
entities to use equity method to account for investments in subsidianes, joint ventures
and associates in their separate financial statements. The Group anticipates that the
adoption of this new amendment will not have a sanificant impact on the Group's
consolidated financial statements.

{8 Amendments to IFRS 10 and [45 28 On the Sale or Contribution of Assets
beptaeern An investor and s Associate or Joint Yenture

These amendments address an inconsistency between the requirements m IFRS 10 —
Consolidated Financial Statements and those in 185 285 — Invesiment in Assoiates
and Joint Ventures in the sale and contribution of assels between an investar and s
assocale or joint venture A full gain or kss s recognized when 3 transaction invohes a
business A partial gain ar loss is recognzed when a transaction involves assets that do
not constitute a business, even if those assets are in a subsidary. The Group anticipates
thal the adoption of these amendments will not have a significant impact on the Group's
consolidated financial statements

% Amendments to 1AS 16 and 145 41 on Agricufture: Bearer Plants

The amendmenis change the reparting for bearer plants, such as grape vines, rubber
trees and oil palms. Bearer plants should be accounted for in the same way as property,
plant and equipment because their aperation is similar o that of manufacturing The
amendments include them in the scope of 145 16 rather than 1AS 41 The produce on
bearer plants will remain i the scope of 1AS 41 The Group anticipates that the adoption
of these amendments will not have a significant impact on the Group's consclidaled
financial staternents

{10 Amendments to IFRSs: Annual improvements to IFRSs 2012-2014 cycle

The Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012 — 2014 Cycle include a number af amendments
to various IFRSs, including. the amendments IFRS 5 — Non-current Assets Held for Sale
and Discontinued Operations regarding methods of disposal, the amendments to IFRS
¥ — Financial Instruments Disclosures regarding senvicing contracts, the amendments
1o 1AS 19 — Employes Benefits regarding dscount rates, the amendments to 1AS 34
Interim Financial Reporting regarding disclosure of information The Group anticipates
that the adoption of these amendments will ot have a significant impact on the Group's
consolidated financial statements.
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Mates to the Consolidated Financal Statements
For the yasr ended 31 December 2014
LAmounts in mileons of Renminbi, unless otharwize Hated)

I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contnued)
1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

1.2 Standards and amendments that are not yet effective and have not
been adopted before their effective dates by the Group in 2014

(Continued)

{11)IFRS 15 Rewenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensve framework for determining when to recognize
revenue and how much revenue to recognee through a S-step approach The core
principle s that @ company should recognize revenue 1o depict the transfer of promised
goods ar savices to the customer in an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the company expects 1o be entitted in exchange for those goods or services It moves
away from 3 revenue recognition model based on an ‘earnings processes’ to an ‘asset-
lizbility' approach based on transfer of contral IFRS 15 provides specific guidance on
capitalization of contract cost and license arrangements. It also includes a cohesive set of
disciosure requirements about the nature, amount. tming and uncertainty of revenue and
cash flows arising frem the entity's contracts with customers. The Group-is in the process
of assessing the impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements from this new
standand

(1.2) IFRS 9. Financial Instrurments

The camplete version of IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments was ssoed in July 2014 It replaces
the guidance in &S 39 — Financal Instruments; Recognition and Measurement that
relates 1o the classification and measurement of financial instruments IFRS 9 retains but
simplifies the mued measurement model and establishes three primary measuremant
categones far financial assets amortized cost. far value through other comprehensive
incame ("OCIT) and fair value through profit or loss: The bass of classification depends
on 'the entity’s business model and the contractual cash flow charactenstcs of the
financial 3sset Investments in equity instruments are requined to be measured at fair value
through- profit or loss with the irrevocabls option at inception to present changes i fair
value in which case the accumulated fair value changes in OCI will not be recycled 1o the
profit or loss in the future. There B now a new expected credil losses model that replaces
the incurred loss impairment model used in WS 39 For financial liabilities there were no
changes to classification and measurement, except for the recognition of changes in cown
ciedit sk in other comprehensve ncame for kabilties dessgnated at fair valee thraugh
profit or loss. IFRS @ relaxes the requirements for hedge effectiveness by replacing the
bright ine hedge effectiveness tests. [t requires an economic relationship between the
hedged item and hedging mstrument and for the ‘hedged ratie’ to be the same as the
one managerment actually use for nsk management purposes The Group is in the process
of assessing the impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements from this new
standard
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Mates to the Consalidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Bmounts inmdions of Rereninks, urdes: othersise sated)

I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2 Consolidation

Baziz of consolidation

Thie consolidsied financial statements include the financal statements of the Bank and the
subsidiaries as well as structured entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when
the Group s exposed to, or has rights to. varable returns from iis invelvement wath the entity and
has the ability 1o affect those returns through its power ever the entity

income and expense of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated income statement from the date of acquisition or up 1o the date an which control
Ceases, respedtively

Adjustments are made 1o the financial statements of subsidianes, where appiopaiate, 1o consttently
reflect the accounting policies of the Group

AR intra-Group transactons, balances, and income and expense are ehminated on consclidation

Hon-controlling interests of consolidated subsidiaries are presented separately from the controlliing
party’s equity therein

The carping amount of non-controlling interests i the amount of those interests at initial
recognition plas the non-controlling interests” share of subsequent changes in equity. Further, total
comprehensve ncome of a subsdary 5 attributed, based on the proporton of their respectve
hoklings, to the equity holders of the Bank and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in
the non-contredling interests having a deficit balance

In the Bank's statement of financial position, its investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost, less
impairment losses, if any

Annual Report 2014 195

292/496



EDINETOOOO
O0O00000000000(Ee24593)
Oooooooa

Mates to the Consolidated Financal Statements
For the yesr ended 31 December 2014
LAmounts in mileons of Renminbi, unless otharwize Hated)

Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contnued)
2 Consolidation (Continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for wsing the acguisition method The consideration
transferred i 2 business combination is measured at fair value, which 15 caloulated as the sum of the
acquisition date fair value of the assets transferned by the Group, llabilities incurred or assumed by
the Group, and any equity interests issued By the Group Acquesition related cosis are recognized in
the consolidated income statement as incurred

At the acquisibion date, srrespective of non-contralling interests, the identifiable assets acquired
and labihties and contingent liabilities assumed are recognized at their fair values, except that
deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or labilities refated 1o employee benefit arrangements
are recognized and measuied m accordance with 185 12 — Income Taxes and 145 19 — Employes
Benefits, respec tively.

Goodwill 15 measured as the excess of the difference between i} the consideration: transferred,
the fair value of any non-contrelling interests in the acquires, and the fair value of the Group's
previously held equity nterest in the acquiree (if any) and (i} the ret fair value of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilives and contingent iabilities incurred or assumed

Mon-contrelling nterests that represent ownership interests in the acquires, and entitle therr holders
to a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the event of liguidation are accounted for at
either fair value or the noa-contralling wterests’ praporticnate share in the recogaeed amounts of
the acquires’s dentifiable net asseis. The choice of measurement basis & made on a transaction-by-
transaction basis

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition bess the fair value of the Group’s share
of the net identifiable assets of acquired subsidiares and assocites at the date of acguisition.

Goodwill on acquisiions of subsidiaries s presented separately in the consolidated statement of
financial positicn Goodwall on acquisition of associates is included m investment in associates

Far the purposes of impaimvent testing, goodwill s allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating
units (“CGU") or groups of CGUs that i expected 10 benefit from the synergies of the business

combination

A CGU & the smallest ddeatufiable group of assets thatl generates cash mflews that are laigely
ndependent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of asets
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Mates to the Consalidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2014
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I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2  Consolidation (Contnued)

Goodwill (Continuesd)

A CGLU 1o which goodwill has been allecated s tested for mpairment annually or move Trequently
when there is indication that the unit may be impaired With respect o goodwill arising during a
reporsng pericd, the CGU o which goodwill has been allocated is-tested for impaiment before
the end of that reporting pericd If the recoverable amount of the CGU, which is the higher ef fair
vahre less costs 1o sell and value in use, 5 less than its carrying amount, the defiat, reflecting an
impairment less, i allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
CGU and then to the other assels of the CGU on a pro-rata basis, based on the carrying amount
of each asset in the CGU. Any goodwil mpairment koss 5 recognized directly in the conscldated
ncome statement An impairment loss recognized for goodwall i not reversed i subsequent
pefiods

3 Interest income and expense

interest income and expense for all interest-earning financial assets and interest-bearing financial
liabilities are recognized wathin Interast Income and Interest Expense, respectively, m the
consohdated income statement using the effectve mnterest method

The effective interest methed is 2 methed of calculating the amorized cost of a financial asset or
fiabilty and of allccatng the nterest income or expense aver the perod, The effectve interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipis or payments throwgh the expected
life-of the financal instrurent or, where appropriate, a shorter period, 1o the net carrying amount
on initial recognition. When calculating the effective interest rate. the Group estimates cash flows
conssdering all contractual terms of the financal instrument, but does not consider future. credit
losses The calculation includes all fees and interest paid or receved that are an integral part of the
effectve intenest rate, tansaction costs, and all other premiums of discounts.

Irterest incomse on an wnpaired financal asset or a group of impaied similar financal assets &
recognzed using the orginal interest rate which was used to discount the future cash flows for the
purpose of measuring the impairment loss.

4  Fee and commission income

The Group earns fee and commission income from a dwerse mnge of services it provides 1o s
customners. For those services that are provided over a specified penod of time, fee and commission
noome & accrued over that perod as the sennces are provided. For other services, fee and
commissian Income are recognzed at the Ume the services are completed
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Mates to the Consolidated Financal Statements
For the yesr ended 31 December 2014
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contnued)

5 Foreign currency transactions

The functional currency of the Domestic Operations is KMB The presentation currency of the Group
and the Bank & RME.

In preparang the financal statements of each indiidual Group entity, UARSACLOAS Wi CUTPERCRS
other than the functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) aré recorded in the respectve
functonal currency (e the currency of the primary economic environment o which the entity
aperates) at the rates of exchange prevaling at the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporing period, monetary iteme denominated in foregn currencess are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date Mon-monetary tems carred at fair value that are denominated in foregn
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailking at the date when the fair value was determined
Mon-manetary items that are measured at historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated

Exchange differences ansing on the settlement of monetary items, and on the retranslation of
monetany tems, are fecognized i the consolidated income statement i the penod in which they
arse, except for the following

() exchange differences ansing on a monetary item that forms part of the Bank's net investment
in Overseas Operations,

{ii} changes in the far value of monetary assets denominated in foreign currency classified as
available for sale are analyzed between transiation differences resulting from changes in the
amortzed cost of the monetary assets and other changes in the carryng amount Translation
differences related to changes in the amortized cost are recognized in the consolidated ingome
statement, and other changas in the cafrying amount are recognized n other comprehensive
INCome

Exchange differences ansing on the retranslation of non-monetary ems carmed at fair value are
incheded in the consolidated income statement for the period except for exchange differences areing
on the retranslation of non-monetany items in respect of which gains and losses are recognzed
directly in other comprehensive mgome, in which cases. the exchange differences are also recognized
directly in ather comprehensive income

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements, the assets and liabilities of
the Group's Cwerseas Operations are franstated nto the presentation currency of the Group at
the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the reparting pencd, and their income and expenses
are translated at exchange rates at the date of the tranzactions, or 2 rate that approximates the
exchange rates of the date of the transaction Exchange differences ansing, o any, are recogneed
in otfer comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the heading of Foreign Currency
Translation Reserve and Mon-controling Interests, as appropriate. The accumulated foresgn currency
transkation reserve related to Overseas Operations will be reclassified from equity 1o the consolidated
income statement an disposal of all or part of the Overseas Oparatons
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuad)

6 Taxation
Income tax expence represents the sum of the tax currently payvable and deferred tax

Current tax

The tax currenily payable s based on taxable profit for the year Taxable profit differs from profit as
reported in the consokdated incame statement because it excludes iterns of income ar expense that
are taable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable ar deductible. The Group's
liability for current tax s caloulated using tax rates that have been.enacted or substantwely enacted
by the end of the reporting pericd

Doferrod tax

Deferred tax = recognaed on temporary differences between the carrying amounis of assets
and lizhilities in the consclidated financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in
the computation of taxable profit Deferred Tax Liabilives are generally recognized for all taxable
ternporary differences. Deferred Tax Assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilized Deferred tax assets and Babilities are not
recognized for temporary difference related 1o goodwill or the initial recogniteon (ether than in a
business combination) of ather assets and kabalities in a transaction that affects neither taxable profit
nar accounting profit

Deferred Tax Liabilites are recognized for taxable temporary differences assocated with invesiments
in subsidiares, associates and joint ventures, except where the Group s able to control the reversal
of the ternporary difference and it is probable that the temporany différence wall rot reverse in the
foreseeable future Deferred tax assets arsing from deductible temparary differences associated with
such investments and inlerests are only recognized to the extent that it iz probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utdize the benefits of the temporary differences and they
are expected to reverse m the foresesable future

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets s reviewed at the end of each reporting pencd and
reduced 1o the extent that it is no lenger probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available 1o
allows all gr part of the asset to be utilzed

Deferred tax assets and habilities are meawired at the tax rates that are expected fo apply in the

pericd in which the Eabality is seitled or the asset realized, based on tax rate {and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantvely enacted by the end of the reporting period
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuatd)
6 Taxation (Contmued)

Deferred tax (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax habilities and asseis reflects the tax corsequences thatl would
follow fram the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting periad, to recaver
or seitle the carrying amount of Hs assets and lHabilites. Cureent and deferred tax s recognezed in
the consoldated income statement, except when it relates o items that are recognged in other
comprehensive moome of deectly in equity, in which case the current and deferred tax s ako
recognzed in other comprehensie income or directly in equity, respectively

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there i 8 legally enfarceable right 1o set off current
tan assets against current tax liabifities, when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authornty and the Greup intends to settle s current tax aszets and labaities on a net base.

7  Employes benefits

Ernpleyes benefits are all forms of consideration gwen and other relevant expenditures incurred by
the Group in exchange for services rendered by employvess or for termination of the employment
contracts. These benefits include short-term employee benefits, post-employment benefits and early
retirement benedits

Short-term employee benefits

In the reparting perod inwhich an employee has rendered services, the Group recognizes the short-
term employee benafits: payable for those services as a liability with a corresponding ncrease in
the expenses in the consolidated mcome statement Short-term employes benefits include salaries,
bonuses, allowance and subsidies, staff welfare, medical insurance, employment injury insurance,
maternity insurance. housing funds a3 well 3z labor union fees and staff education expenses.

Post-employment benefits

The Groups post-employment benefits are primanly the payments for basic pensions and
une mployment insurance related 1o government mandated social welfare programs, as well as the
annuity scheme establshed All these post-employment benefits are defined contnbution plans,
under which, the Group makes fixed contributions into.a separate fund and will have no legal or
constructive obligation to make further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets o
pay all employes beneliis relating to employes servces in the current and: prier pariods.
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I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
7 Employee benefits (Continued)

Post-employment benefits (Contnued)

Contributions: to the basic pensions and unemplayment insurance plan are recognized in the
consolidated income staterment far the period in which the related payment cbligation & incurred

The employees of the Bank’s head office and domestic branches (*Domestic Institutions™ ) participate
inoan annuity scherme established by the Bank (the "Annuity Scheme”) The Bank pays annuity
contributions. with reference to employees’ salaries, and such contributions are expensed in the
consolidated income statement when incurred The Bank has no further obligation of the Annuity
Scherne does not have sufficient assets for the paymient of any retirement benefits to employees
funded by the Annuity Scheme

Early retirement benefits

Early retirernent benefits have been paid o those employees who accept voluntary retrement before
the narmal retirement date, a5 approved by management The related benefit payments are made
from the date of early retirement to the normal retirement date

The accountng treatment of the Group's early retirement berefits 5 in accordance with termination
benefits as determined in A5 19 The hability is recognzed tor the early retirement benefit payments
from the date of early retirerment to the normal retirement date when the criteria for recognition
a5 termination benefit is mel with 3 corresponding charge in the consolidated incoms statement
Differences ansing from changes in assumptions and estimates of the present value of the habilives
are recognized in the conselidated income statement when incurred

8 Financial instruments

Financial assets and liabaities are recegnized in the consolidated statement of financal position and
classified into one of the categories presented below. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assels are recognized and derecognized on a trade date basis Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases orsales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame established
by regulaticn or conventon in the market place

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value Transaction costs that are
directly atinbutable to the scquision of Bsue of financial assets and labiktes (other than financial
assets or financial liabikties at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted frem the
fair value of the financial assets or liabiites, respectively, on initial recegnition. Transaction <osts
directly attnbutable to the acquisition of financal assets or liabilibes at fair value through profiter
loss are recagnied immediately in the consolbdated income statement
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Notas to the Consolidated Financial Statemants

Fof this year ended 31 Decenber 7004
{amounts in millions of Penminbe, unleds otheradse stated]

Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Centinuad)
8 Financial instruments (Continued}

8.1 Financial sssets
The Growp's financal assels are classified o four categories — financial assets at fair value
thraugh profit or loss (*FVTPL™), held-to-matunty investments, available-for-sale financiat
assels and, loans and recewables: The classification depends on the nature and. purpose of the
financial assets and & determined at the timie of initial recogmition

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financal assats at FYTPL have two subcategories — financial assets held for trading and those
designated at FVTPL on initial recognition

A financial assel s classified as held for trading of
# i1 has been acquired pancipally for the purpose of 2als in the near future, oF

s it forms part of an identified portfelio of financial instruments that the Group manages
fogether and has a recent actual pattern of shart-term profit-taking, or

+ it 15 a dervatve instrument that s not designated and effective as a hedging instrument

A financial asset other than a financ@al asset held for trading may be designated at FUTPL upon
mital recognition if

» such desgnation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement of recognition
inconsistency that would othenwese anse, of

»  the financial asset forms part of a group of financial assets or financial iabilities or both,
which iz managed and its performance s evaluated on a fair value basis. in accordance
with the Group’s documented rsk management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is pravided internally on that basis, or

= it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded dermatves. and 1A% 39
— Financial Instrurments Recogniteon and Measurement permits the entire combined
tontract {asset or lability) to be designated at FVTPL

Financeal assets at FYTPL are stated at far value, with changes in fair value ansing Trom re-

measurement recognized directly in the consclidaied income statemant in the pencd in which
they arse
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I SUMMARY OF SIGMNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
8 Financial instruments (Continued)
&.1 Financial assets (Contnued)

Held-to-maturity invesiments

Held-to-rmaturity investments are non-dervative financial assets, quoted in an active market,
with ficed or determinable payments and fixed matunties that the Group has the positive
intention and ability to hold to maturity Subszequent to initial recognition. held-to-maturity
investments are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, bess any
impatrment losses

Loans and receivables

Loans and recewvables are non-derivative financial assets with foied or determinable payments
that are mot quoted in‘an active market Sobsequent to inibal recognition, koans and recenables
are carried 2t amortized cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment losses

Fingncial assets chassiied as lpans and recenables primarily include deposits with central banks,
deposits with banks and other financial insttutions, placements with and loans to banks and
other financial institutions, financal assets held under resale agreemsents, loans and advances
1o customers, and specified debt securitses

Avaifable-for-zale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial azzets are non-dervatves that are either designated as such or are
not chassified as financial assets at FVTPL, loans and recewables or held-to-matunty investments

Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value at the end of the reporting pericd
Changes in fair value are recogneed i other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
mvestment revaluation reserve, untl the financial asset s disposed of or & determined to be
inparred, at which bme, the cumuebstive gain o loss previously accumulated in the investmant
revaluation reserve is reclassified to the consolidated income statement

Equity investrnents classified as available-for-sale that do not have a quoted price i an actve
market and whase fair value cannot be relably determined are measured at cost, less any
mipairment losses, at the end of each reporting pencd

Interest income related to financial assets classified as availlable-for-sale debt instruments s
cakulated using the effectve interest methed and recorded as an. element of Interest Income
in the consolidated income statement Daidends on available-forsale equity instruments are
receanzed i the consolidated income siatement when the Group’s right to recewe such
payments & establhed
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuad)
8 Financial instruments (Continued)
&1 Financial assets (Contnued)

fmpairment of financial assers

Financial assets, ather than those classified as FYTPL, are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of each reporting persod  Financial assets are wnpaired when there & objectve
evidence that as 3 resull of one or more events that eceurred after initial recognition, the
estimated future cash flows of the financal assets have been adversely affected

A significant or prolonged decline in the faw value: of an equily investment classifed as
available-for-sale below 1S cost is considered 1o be ohpective evidence of impairment

Far-all other financial assets, the objecive evidence of imparment could mchide
+  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or chligor,
+  abreach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest of principal payments,

s  the lender, for econemic or legal reasons relating to the borrowed's financl difficulty,
grantmg 1o the borrower a concession that the lender would not otherwse consider;

+ it becomes probable that the borower will enter bankruptcy or other financial
recrganizalion;

* the disappearance of an aciwe market for that financial asset because of financial
difficulties: or

*  observable data Indicating that there & a measurable decrease in the estimated future
cash flows frem a portfole of financial assets, although the decrease cannot yet be
attributed to indwidual financial assets in the partfalio

— adverse changes in the payment status of borrewers in the portfolic; and

— national or local econamic conditions that correlate with defaulis on the assets in
the portfolio

The Group first assesses whether obwective endence of wpairment exasts ndividually foe
financial assets that are individually significant and individually or collectvely for financial
assets that are not indvidually significant. If the Group determines that no obpective evidence
of impairment exsts for an indwidually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not,
it includes the asset m-a group of financial assets with similar credit rsk characteristics and
collectively assesses them for impairment Financial assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment foss is or continues to be recognized are not included
i eallectve assessmnt of impairment
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I SUMMARY OF SIGMNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
8 Financial instruments (Continued)
&.1 Financial assets (Contnued)

Impairment of financial assets carried ar amortized cost

Far financial assets carred at amortezed cost. an impairment loss 5 recognized in the
consofidated income statement when there is objective evidence that the assets are impaired
The mpairment loss & measured as the difference betwesn the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) decounted at the financial asset’s onginal effeclive mterest rate. For financial
assets with vanable inderest rate, the descount rate far measunng any impairment loss 15 the
current effectve interest rate determived under the contract

The calculation of present value of the esumated future cash flows of a collatenzed financial
asset reflects the cash flows that are expected to result from foreclosure, less the cost of
cbtaining and seling the collateral

The carrying amount of an impaired financial 3sset & reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognized m the
consolidated income statement. When a financial asset is considered uncollecuble, it wintten
off against the allowance account Subsequent recoveres of amounts previously wiitten off are
credited to the consclidated income statement

i, m-a subsequent penced, the amount of the imparment less decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively tean event occurning after the impakrment was recognized, such as an
improvement in-the debtor's credit rating, the previcusly recognized imparment loss & reversed
through the consolidated income statement to the extent that the carying amount of the asset
at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortzed cost would have
been had the impairment not been recognized

Impairment of financial assets classified as available-for-sale

For avadable-for-sale equity instruments, a significant or prolonged decline in fair value below
cost is consdered to be objective evidence of impairment In determining whether a decline
in fair value has been significant or prolonged, the Group considers if the fair value of an
avallable-for-sale equity instrument as at the balance sheet date 5 lower than S0% (including
S0%) of its initial cost of mvestment or lower than its imtial cost of investment for more than
one year {including one year) together with other relevant considerations

When a dechine i the Bir value of 2 financial asset classified as avadabde-for-<ale has been
recognized dieclly in other comprehensve income and accumulated in the investment
revaluation reserve; and there is objective evidence that asset is impaired, the curmulative bosses
previously recogneed in other comprehensive income are reclassified 1o the conscldated
mcome staterment in the period in which the impairment takes place
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuad)
8 Financial instruments (Continued)
&1 Financial assets (Contnued)

impairment of financial assets classified as available-for-sale (Continued)

An impairment Bss onoan equity investment classified a5 avalable-for-sale, and carred at
fair value, & not reversed through the consolidated income statement in subsequent perods.
Any increase in far value subsequent o mpairment loss is recognized directly in other
comprehensive income and accumubated ; the investment revaluation resenve. An impairment
loss on an equity investment classified as availbble-for-sale equity investment, and carried at
cost, 15 ol revessed. An ympairment bss on a debt investment classified as availlable-for-sale
i subsequently reversed through the consohidated income statement if an increase in the fair
value of the mvestrment can be objectively related to an event cocurning after the recogmition of
ihe imparment loss

8.2 Financial lfabilities
Financial hiabibties and equity instruments ssued by the Group are classified as either financial
labilitees of a5 equity 1 accordance wath the substance of the contractual arrangements
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument in WS 39 and 1AS 32,
respeEclively

The Group's financial habilites are generally classified into financial Labihties a1 FVTPL and
other financial liabilities, carried at amonized cost

Financial habilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial labdites at FYTPL have two subcategores, including financial habilities held for
trading and those designated at FYTPL on imitial recognitian

A financial leabality 5 classifed 35 held for tading of it s acquired of incurred poncipally for the
purpase of-selling or repurchasing it in the near term or if it is part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that are managed tegether and for which there = evidence of a recent
actual pattemn of short-term profit-taking. Dervatives are also categorized as held for trading
unless they are designated and effective as hedging instruments

The critera for a financal lability designated at FYTPL 15 the same as those for a financal asset
designated at FVTPL

Financal habsltties at FVTFL are stated at fair value, with changes in fair value ansing on re-

measurement recognzed directly in the consolidated income statement ih the pencd in which
they arse.
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continusd)
8 Financial instruments (Continued)
&.2 Financial Habilities (Conunued)

Orher financial labilities
Other financial liabilibes are measured at amarteed cost, using the effective interest method

8.3 Equity instruments

An equity insrument s any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the
Group after deducting all of its liabélties

A fimancial instrurment 15 an equity Instrument i1, and only If, both conditions (i) and i) below
are met

(i} The financal instrument includes no contractual obligation to delwer cash or ancfther
financial azset to another entity, of to exchange financial assels or financial habilites with
another entity under conditions that are petentially unfavorable 1o the Group; and

(i If the financial mstrument will of may be seltled in the Group's own equity instruments,
it is a non-derivative instrument that includes no cantractzal oblgations for the Group o
delver a vaniable number of its own equity instruments; or a dervative that will be settled
only by the Group echanging: a fived amount of cash or another financial assel for a
fixed number of its own equity Instruments

Equity instruments ssusd by the Group are recorded at the fair value of procesds recened, net
of direct issuance expenzes

8.4 Derivative financial instruments

Derrvatives are initially recognieed at fas value al the date a dersative contiact is enterad inlo
and are subsequently re-measured at their fair value at the end of the reporting pericd. The
resulting gain of loss & recegnied in the consolidated income statement

Dermatives embedded in non-demvative host contracts are treated as separate dervatives when
thewr charactenstics and risks are not clearly and closely related to those of the host contracts
and the host contracts are not measured at fair value with changes in fair value recegrized in
the consolidated income statement These embedded dervatives are separately accounted for
at FyTFL
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuad)
8 Financial instruments (Continued)

&5 Determination of fair value

Fair value is the price that would be recewed to sell an asset or pard to transier a liability inan
crderly transaction in the principal (or meost advantageous) market at the measurement date
under cursent markel conditons {i & an exit price) regardiess of whether that price & directly
chzevable or estimated using another valuation technique

Far fingncial instruments traded in active markets, the determination of far values of financial
assets and financal lakilities 15 based on quoted market prices This includes listed equity
‘secunties and quoted debl instruments on major exchanges

A financial matrument 15 regarded as quoted in an active market i quated prices are readily and
regubarly available from an echange, industry group. pricing senvice of regulatory agency, and
these prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length
basis If the above critena are not mel the markei is regarded as being inactive Indkations
that a market is inactive are when there = a wide bid-offer spread or sgnificant increase in the
bid-cffer spread or there are few recent transactions

Far financial instruments not traded in active markets, fair wvalue s determined using
appropriate valuation techmiques. Valuation technaques include the use of recent transactcon
prices. discounted cash flow znalysis, option pricing models and others commaonly used
by market particpants, These valvabion techriques mclude the wse of observable andfor
unobserable inputs

8.6 De-recognition

The Group derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights 1o the cash flows
from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset o another entity. If the Group nether wansfers nor retains
substantally all the nsks and rewards of ewnership and continues to contrel the transferred
assel, the Group continues 1o recognee the asset to the extent of its continuing involement
and recogn2es an asseciated liabilty f the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of awnership of 'a transferred financial assel the Group continues to recognize the financial
asset and also recognizes a colfateralzed barrowing Tor the proceeds recened

On de-recognition of a financial asset in its entrety, the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the conswembon recened and recevable and, where applicable,
the cumulative gain or kss that had been recognized in other comprehensive income and
accumukated in equity 15 recognized in the consolidated income staternent

Financial habdibes are derecognized when the related cbligation is discharged, is cancelled or

expires. The difference between the carrying amaunt of the financial liability derecognized and
the consideration paid and payable s recognized in the consolidated income statement

208 () HEAEMS

305/496



EDINETOOOO
O0O00000000000(Ee24593)
Oooooooa

Mates 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2014
Lot in milBons of Rerminkd, unless otheraize Rated)

Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continusd)
8 Financial instruments (Continued)

8.7 Offsetting financial azsets and financial liabilities

Fimanciai-assets and liabilites are offset and the nel amount presented in the consoldated
statement of financial position when both of the followng conditions are satisfied. (i) the
Group has a legal nght te set off the recogneed amounts and the legal nght s currently
enforceable; and (i) the Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or 19 realze the financial
asset and setthe the financial kabedlity simultanecusly. The begally enforceable right must not be
contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in
the event of defaultl, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Group or the counterparty

8.8 Repurchase agreements and agreements to resell

Financial assets wansferred as collateral in connection with standard repurchase agreements,
involving fixed repurchase dates and prices, are not derecognized They continue to be
recorded as Investments Classified as Held-to-Matunty Investments, Available-for-sale financial
assets, Debt Instruments Classified ‘as recewables or Loans and advances to customers as
appeopriate. The corresponding lability 15 included in Financial Assets Sold under Repurchase
Agreements The items which are not derecognized are disclosed in Note |V 46 Contingent
Liabvilitszs and Coemmitmeants — Collateral

Consideration paid for financeal assets held under agreements (o resell are recorded as Financial
assets held under resale agreements

The difference between purchase and sale price is recognized as nterest expense of iNCOME in
the consolidated income statement aver the term of the agreements wsing the effective interest
method.

9 Insurance contracts

Insurance contract classification

insurance contracts are those contracts under which the Group has accepted significant insurance
risk. relative to an insured event or occurrence The Group issues primardy bie insurance confracts,
which insure evenls aszociated with mortality over a long duration. The Group also issues non-life
insurance contracts, which cower short-term casealty and health insurance rsk When necessary,
the Group enters nto rensurance contracts to transfer insurance nsks to reinsurer. A sgnificant
insurance rsk test s performed at inception af the msurance contracts

Some insurance contracts contain both an insurance component and 2 deposit companent. The
Group unbundles those components, i the insuance component and the depesit component are
separately measurable The unbundled insurance component is accounted for according 1o IFRS 4 —
insurance Contracts and the unbundled deposit component is-accounted for as a financial liabslity
under investment contract Habilites.
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuad)
9 Insurance contracts (Continued)

Insurance income recognition

Prermiurs: from long-term Iife insurance contracls are recognized as revenue when due from
policyhoiders. Premiums refated to short-term non-life insurance contracts are recognized when
recenved at the incepbon of the pelicy. as uneamed insurance- premaums 0 the consoldated
statement of financial position, and are amortzed on a straight-line basis into the consohdated
income statement over the term of the policy

When the Group has transferred insurance rsk through reinsurance contracts, the Group calkulates
the amount of premium ceded and the remsurers' share of expenses and recognzes them through
the consolidated income statement in accordance with the terms of the reinsurance contracts

Insurance contract Nabilities

Insurapce contract |abdities are measured based on a reasonable estimate of the amount of
payments that the Group will be required to make to fulfill its obligatsons under the insurance
contracts, which representz the difference between expected future cash outflows and inflows
related to such contracts. A reasonable estmate of expected future net cash fiows = determined
based on nformation currently avaidable as at the end of the reporting perod The Group has
considered the impact of tme value in the labibity caloulation for leng-term bife insurance.

The Group performs liability adequacy tests based on information currently available, as at the
reparting date Additonal insurance contract liabilives will b recorded of any deficiency easts

10 Precious metals
Precicus metals comprise gobd, silver and other precious metals

Precicus mefals that are not related to the Group’s trading actvites are initally measured at
acquisition cost and subsequently measured at the lower of cost and net realzable value Precous
metals that are related 1o the Group's trading activities are nitrally recognized at fair value, with
changes in fair value arising from re-measurermen! recognized directly in the consoldated income
statement in the period in which they arise
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continusd)

11 Property and equipment

Property and equipment including buildings held for use in the supply of senvices, or for
adminisiratae purpose (other than constriction in progress) are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost less subsegquent accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
kasses, if any. When the costs atinbuotable to the land uie rghts cannot be reliably measured and
separated from that of the building at inception. the costs are included in the cost of buildings and
recorded in Property and Equipment

Depreciation & recognized as a component of Operating Expenses in the consolidated income
statement 5o as 1o recognize the consumption of the economic value of property and equipment
[other than construction in progress), bess their estimated residual values, over thesr esumated useful
Ives, using the straight-line method The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
rates are reviewed at the end of each reporting peried, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis

The useful lives, estimated residual value rates and annual depreciation rates of each class of
property and eguipment are as follows:

Annual

Estimated residual Depredation

Classes Useful lives  Value rates rates
Bulldings €50 yeals EF R - T T LT

Electronic equipment furniture and ficures 3=11 years I%  EAZ%-3233%

Moter vehicles 54 years 3% 12 13%-1040%

Froperties n the course of construction for supply of services or administrative purposes are carned
at cost, as construction in progress, less any impairment loss. Construction in progress is reclassified
1o the approprate categery of property and equipment when completed and ready for intended use
Depreciation of thess assets, on the same basis as other property and eguipment, commences when
the assets are ready for then intended yoe

An tem of property and equipment s derecogneed upon disposal or when no fulure economic
benefits are expected 1o arse from s continued use Any gain or loss ansing on the disposal or
retirernent of an itern of property and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
procesds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognzed in Other Operating Income in the
conselidated income statement The accounting poboes of mpairment of property and equipment
are included in Note Il 18 Impairment of Tangible and Intangible Assets Gther Than Goodwill
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Centinued:

12 Land use rights

Land use rights are classified in other assett and amortized over a stramght-line basis over their
authorzed useful lives

13 Foreclosed assets

Foreclosed assets are mitially recogrized ab faw value and subsequently messured at the lower of
their camying amaount and fair value, less costs to sell, at the end of each reporting pericd, When the
fair value, less cests to sell, 5 lower than a foreclosed assel's carrying amount. an impairment los s
recognzed in the consodidated income statement

Any gain or boss arsing on the deposal of the foreclosed asset is included in the conselidated income
staternent in the persad inwhich the item i disposed.

A foreclosed asset used by the Group is transferred to property and equipment at its net camying
amount

14 Investment property
Investrnent property & property held to earm rental income or for capital appreciation, or both

Investment property & inibally measured at its acquisition: cost. Subsequent expendiures incurred
for the investment property are included m the cost of the investment property if it is probable that
economic benefits associated with the asset will flow to the Group and the subsequent expenditures
can be measured reliably. Other subsequent expenditures are recognized in the consolidated income
staternent in the persad inowhich they are incurred

Investment properties are measured usng the cost model Depreciaton and amortization &
recognzed the same way as property and equipment and land use nghts.

At the end of the reporting pencd, the Group reviews the carrying amounis of its investment
properties 1o determine whether there i any indication that the assets have suffered an impairment
boss Ifany such indication exists, the recoverable amount (the higher of far value less costs 1o sell
and value in use) of the property is estimated in order 1o determing the exient of the impairment
koss, if any. if the recoverable amount of a property 15 estimated to be less than 18 carnying amount,
the carrying amount of the property = reduced to its recoverable amount An impairment loss
& recognied in the consclidated income statement The accountng policies of impairment of
investment property are included in Note 1| 18 Impairment of Tangible and Intangible Assets Other
Than Goodwill

Whete an imparment ks subsequently ievesses, the carmying amount of the investment property =
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount. to the extent that the increased carmying
amount dees not exceed the carrying amount had no impairment loss been recognized A reversal of
animpairment loss 5 recognized in the consolidated income statement

When an investment property s seld, transferred, retired or damaged. the Group recognizes the

amount of any proceeds on disposal, net of the carmying amount and related expenses. in the
consohdated income statement
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

15 Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases

The Group as lessor

When the Group fs the lessor in 3@ finance lease, an amount representing the minimum leass
payment recenvables and unguaranteed ressdual value, net of initial direct costs, all discounted at the
implicit lease rate (the "net lease investment”) is recorded in the consolidated statement of financial
position as Loans and advances to customers The difference batween the net lease invastment and
the undscounted amaount is recorded as unearned fingnce income, amortizing over the term of the
lease using the effective interest method and recognized i the consolidated income statement

When the Group & the lessor in an operating lease, the assets subject to) the operating lease
continue to be recognized as the Groups property and equipment Rental income from operating
leases 15 recoqnized as Other Operating Income in the consolidated income staterment on a steaight-
lire basis over the termn of the related lease

The Group as lessee

When the Group is a lesses under finance keases, the leased assets are capitalzed initally at the fair
value of the asset o, if lower, the present value of the minimum kease payments. The corresponding
liakility to the lessor s ingluded in Other Liabilities: Finance charges are charged over the termn of the
lease wsing the effectve interest method and recognized in the consolidated income statement. The
depreciation policy for depreciable leased assets |5 consistent with that for depreciable assets that
are owened

When the Group s the lesses in an operating lease, operating lease payments are recoghized a5 an
expense and charged to Operating Expensas in the consolidated income statement on a straight-
line bass over the lease term. Contingent rentals ansing under operating leases are recognized as
expenses In the peniods in which they are incured. In the event that lease incentives are receved
1o enter inlo operating keases, such incentives are considared in determining the amount to be
recognized over the lease term

16 Cash and cash eguivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are short-term and haghly liquid assets, which are readily convertible
inta known amounts of cash and subpect to an insignificant rek of changes in value: Cash and cash
equivalents include Cash and assets with onginal matunty of three months or less under Balances
with Central Banks, Deposits with Banks and Other Financial Institutions, Placaments with and Loans
to Banks and Other Financial Institutions and Financial Assets Held under Resale Agreements
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Centinued)

17 Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated
amortzation and any accumulated impairment loss. Amartization for mtangible assets with finite
useful fves is recognized on a straight-line basis over ther estimated useful lives which generally
range from 5 Lo 20 years

Intangible assets with indefine useful Ives are nol amortzed, but are subject to annual impairment
assessment

Gains of losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference
between the net deposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the
CDHSDh-dH'L‘EI:E income statement

18 Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill

A the end of each reporting penod, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and
intangible assets to determine whether thefe is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment boss If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset 15 estmated in
order to detemnine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. The recoverable amount is the higher of
the asiat's far value less costs to sell and vabize in use

if. the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carying amount, the camying
amount of the asset = reduced to s recoverable amounl An inpaiiment loss s recogized i the
coensehdated income statement.

Where an smpaiement boss subsequently reverses, the camying amount of the asset s increased to
the revised estimate af s recoverable amount, o the extent that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the camying amount had no imparment loss been recognized. A reversal of an
impaierment koss is recognized in the consolidated income staterment

19 Dividend distribution

Dwvidend distributron 1o the Bank’s ordinary sharehicdders is recognized as a kability in the Group's
and the Bank's financal statements in the penod in which the dividends are approved by the
shareholders” annual general mesting of the Bank

As authoreed by the shareholders' annual general meeting, the Board of Directors has the sole
digeretion o dechire and detnbute dwedends on preference shares Preference share didend
distnbution is recognized as a liability i the Group’s and the Bank’s financial statements in the
penicd in which the dividends are approved by the Board of Directors of the Bank
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

20 Provision

Provseons are recognized when the Group has a present obbgation as a result of a past event, and
itis probable that the Group will be required to setthe thal abligation and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligatian

Frovisions are measured at the best estimate of the consideration required fo settle the present
chbligation at the end of the reporting persod, taking into actount the reks and uncertaintes
sumounding the obhigation Where a provision 5 measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carying amount 15 the present value of those cash flows,

21 Fiduciary activities

The Group acts as & custodman, tustee and i other fiduciary capacibes 1o safequard assets for
customers i accordance with custody agreements between the Group and secunibes investment
funds, social security funds, insurance companies, trust companies, qualified foreign nstitutional
investors, annuity schemes and other mstitubions and indwviduals The Group receves fees in return
far its services prowvided under the custody agreemenis and does not have any infersst in the
economic fisks and rewards related to assets under custody, Therefore, assets under custody are not
recognized in the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position

The Group conducis entrusted lending arrangements for it customers. Under the terms. of
entrusted loan arrangements, the Group grants loans o borrowers, 25 an intermediary, according
1o the instrucbion of s custamers who are the leadars providing the entrusted leans. The Group s
respansible for the arrangement and coliection of the entrusted koans and receives a commission
for the senvices rendered As the Group does not assume the economic risks and rewards of the
entrusted loans and the funding for the corresponding entrusted funds, they are not recogneed as
asses and labdites of the Group

22 Financial guarantee contracts

A financizl guaraniee contract 5 a contract that requires the msuer to make specfied payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because 3 specified debtor fails to make payment when due,
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument

Firancial guarantees are initially recognoed at fair value on the date the guarantee was given
Subszequent to initial recognition, the Group's labilities under such guarantees are measured at the
higher of the intial amount, less amorizabon of guaraniee fees recogneed in accordance with
the revenue recogniton policy, and the best estimale of the expendituie required 1o settle the
guarantee. These estimates are determined bacsed on experience of similar transactions, historical
fosses and supplemented by the udgment of management Any increase in the lability relating to
guarantees is taken o the consolidated mcome staterment
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Motes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statemeants
For the yesr ended 31 December 2014
Lamoumts i milions of Renminbs, undess otheredse stated]

Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Centinued:

23 Contingent liabilities

A contingent fliabikty 5 a possible abligation that arizes from past events and whose ecistence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly wathin the control af the Group It can also be a present abligation arising from past events
that is net recognized because it & not probable that an outfiow of economic resources will be
required or the amount of abligation cannot be measured reliably

A contingent kability 15 not recognized. but disclosed. unless: the possibility of an outflow  of
rescurces embodymg economic Benefits is probable The Group's contingent labdlites are disclosed
in Mote IV 46 Contngent Liabilities and Comrmitments

A provision 15 recagnized when i meets the cnteria as sel forth in Mote 120 Provison,

I CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

In the apphcation of the Group's accounting polickes, which are described in Note I, management is
required to make judgments, estimates and assumplions that affect the camying amounts of assets and
liabilities The estimates and related assumptions are based on hetoncal experience and other relevant
faciers including an the basis of reasonable expectations for future events

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing bass. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period inwhich the estimate is mevised 1f the revision affects only that
pericd of in the pericd of the reveion and future pencds if the revision affects both current and futune
perieds

The fallpwing are the cnitical judgments and key estimatés that the management has made in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting palicies and that have a sygrficant sk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounis of assels and liabibties within the next twelve months

1 Impairment losses on loans and advances to customers

The Group reviews its loan portfalio to assess impairment on 3 periodic basis during  the year.
In determining whether an impairment koss should be recegnized in the consolidated income
statement. the Group makes estimates and jedgments as to whether there = any abservable data
indizating that there is ohectve evidence of impairment and the extent, if any, towhich it will have
a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows related 1o individually significant loans or
poak of loans wath similar risk charactenstics, as descrnibed in Nete | 51 knpairment of Financial
Ascets Carried at Amodtized Cost

Sigmificant jedgments are made o the determmation of whether abpctve evidence of mpaiiment
exisis in indwidually significant loans or pools of smaller-balance loans with similar risk
characteristics Among other things, objectve evidence of impairment includes deteraration in
the financial condition of specific borrowers (o specific pook of borrowers) afiecting their ability
i meet ther kban payment oblgations, as well as increasing industry secior owver-capacity of
obsalescance, or deterioraton in natienal or regienal econamic conditions that are correfated to
ingreasing loan defaults These judgments are made both during management’s regular assessments
of loan quality and when ather circumstances indicate the possibility that obectve evidence of
impairment rmay exisi
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For the yesr ended 31 December 2014
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Il CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

1  Impairment losses on loans and advances to customers (Continued)

Where it & determined that objective evidence of impairment exists, significant judgments and
estimates are made in estimating the adverse impact on future cash flows related 1o individually
sugnificant impaied [sans The methodokigy and assumptions used for estinating bath the amount
and timing of future cash flows are reviewed regularly to reduce any differences between loss
estimates and actual loss expenence; Factors affectung these estimates mclude the availabilty and
granulanty of information related to spectfic borrowers and the clarty of the comelation between
qualtatwe factors, such as industry sector performance of changes in regional economic condiions
and lcan defaults of related borrowers

When the decreass may not have been identified individually or the indevidual loan = not significant.
management uses estimates based on historical koss experence on a collective basis on loans with
similar credit nisk characteristics to assess the impairment loss. Significant pdgments are also applied
1o the calculabon of collectvely asteszed imparrment Crtical factors affecting these judgments
include modeling assumptions (eq., loss emergence period and loss gven default) and levels of
conelation between quahtatve factors and loan defaull The Group considers the impact of the
changes and uncertainty in the macre-economic environment. in which the Group operates when
assessing the methodology and assumptions wsed far loss estmation, as well as management's
capability in managing kean portfolo, and makes adjustments where appropriate

2  Fair value of financial instruments

The Group uses valuation technigues to eshmate the fair value of financial instruments which are
net quoted in an active market These valuation technigues include the wse of recent fransaction
prices of the same or similar instruments, decounted cash flow analysis and opticn pricng models
Te the extenl practcal market obsenable inputs and data. such as interest rate ymld curves,
fareign currency rates and implied option wolatilities, are used when estimating fair value through
a valuaton technique Where market observable inputs are not available, they are estimated using
assumptions that are calibrated as closely as possible to market observable data However, areas
such as the credit risk of the Group and the counterparty, volatibtes and correlations require
management to make estimates. Changes m assumptions about these factors could affect the
estimated far value of financial instruments.

With respect to PRC government obligations related to large-scale  palicy directed  financing
tranzactions, fair value & determined wsing the stated terms of ‘the related instrument and with
reference 1o termes determined by the PRC government in simedar transactions engaged in of directed
by the PRC government. In this regard, there are no odher relevant market prices or yields reflecting
arm’s bength transactions of a comparable size and tener.
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Il CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOLUNTING
POLICIES (Cantinued)

32 Held-to-maturity investments

The Group classifies non-dervative financial assets. quoted in an active market with fieed or
determinable payments and foeed maturities that the Graup’s management has the pesitive inten ton
and ability 1o hold t& matonty 35 hebd-to-matunty investments. In assessing the Group's intention
and ability to hold such inwestments to maturity, management primanly considers the business
pufpase for acquirmg & security, as well as the Group’s iquidity needs. This & a significant judgrment
because if the Group failks to hold these investments to maturity, other than for specific and limited
circumstances (e g, sale of an insignificant amount close 1o maturity), it will be required 1o reclassify
the entire portfolo of held-to-maturity investments as available-for-sale financal assets and be
precluded from classifying investments as held-to-matunty investrments for bwo years

4  Impairment of other financial assets

For -held-to-raaturity  imvestments and  financial instruments  classified a5 receivables, the
determination of whether such an investment is impaired requires sgnificant judgrent Obpectve
evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets & impaired mcludes a breach of contract,
such as a default or delinguency in snterest or principal payments or the dsappearance of an actve
market for that financial asset because of significant financial difficulty of the ssuer, et In making
such judgment, the impact of chisctive evidence of impairment on expected future cash flows of the
investment 5 aken into account

Foi available-for-sale nvestments, the deterrmnation of whether such an dvestment 15 impaged
requires significant judgment In making ths judgment, the Group considers the duration and extent
e which the fair value of an investment is bess than its cost or whether other objective evidence of
impairment exists based on the financial health of and near-term business oullock for the investee,
including factors such as industry and sector performance, credil ratngs, delinquency rates and
counterparty risk

5 Taxes

There are certain transactions and activities, occurring. during the ordinary course of business, for
which the ultimate tax effect is uncertain The Group has made estimates for items of uncertainty
ant appheation of new tax legislation taking into-account existing tax legistation and past practice
Where the final 13 outcome of these matters s different from the amounis that ware initially
estimated, based on management’s assessment of the appropriate tax treatment, such differences
will affect the current mcome tax andfor deferred income tax dunng the perod in which the tx
treatrment 15 finalzed
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Il CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

&6 Employee early retirement benefits obligations

The Group recognizes liabilites in connection wath early retiement benefits for employess in
Domestic Instifulions wsing the projected wnit credit actuarial cost method based on various
assumptions, including the discount rate, average medical expenses growth rate, pension benefit
growth rate for early retirements and other factors The present value of the (ability is determined
through discounting the estimated future cash cutflows using interest rates of RME treasury bords
which have terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related hakility. Any difference arising
from the actual resull or changes in assumptsans may affect the amount of expense recognized in
the consohdated income statement in the period during which such changes take place and the
cormesponding liability recognized in the consoldated statement of financial positon

7  Control over structured entity

Where the Group acts a5 asset manager of struclured entities, the Growp makes judgment on
whether it 15 the principal or an agent to assess whether the Group controls the struciured entstss
and should consolidate them When performing this assessment, the Group considers several faclors
including, amaong other things, the scope of its decision-making authonty over the structured
entities, the rights held by other parties, the remuneration to which it 5 entided in accordance with
the related agreements for the aszsets management services. the Group's exposure to varability
of returns from other interests that it holds in the structured enties. The Group perfarms re-
assessment perodally
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 NET INTEREST INCOME

Year ended 31 December

2014 2013
Inferest incone
Loans and advances 10 customers 470 825 414,270
Including: Corparate laans and advances 326,541 292,774
Persanal koans and advances 138,500 114,272
Discounted bills 5783 7.224
Held-to-maturily investments 86,152 53633
Balances with central banks 40,018 37,517
Available-for-sale financial assets 35.257 32,277
Financial assets held under resale agreements 27,581 28,693
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions 22,784 16,657
Debt insteuments classified as recenables 21,644 20,921
Flacemenis waith and icans 1o banks and
ather financial institutions 12,516 7.638
Financial assets held for trading 1523 1,431
Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or koss 185 347
Subtotal 650,280 513,384
Interest expense
Due 10 customers (221,706} {194,903}
Deposits from banks and other financeal institutions (26,681 23,657)
Debt securnties 1ssued (10, 175) (8,4532)
Flacemnents from banks and other financial institubions (7.318) (9.732)
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements {2,511) {395)
Borrowings from central bank {1,003} (2}
Subiotal (269,398) (237,183)
MNet interest income 429 891 376,202
Interest income on listed investments 99,507 88,105
Interest income on unlisted investments and
other debt mstruments 25,654 20,504
Interest income accrued on impaired financial assets
{inchyded within interest income) 1,002 693
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For the yesr ended 31 Decemnber 2014
Camounts in milkons of Rerminkd, unless othersise Sated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2 NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

Year ended 31 December

2014 2013
Fee and commisson income
Agency services 22,945 21.651
Setthement and cleaning sefvices 21,123 22,760
Bank card 19,279 15,929
Consultaricy and adwisory services 11,031 16,371
Electronic banking services 7.379 6,564
Custodian and other fiduciary 2114 3,338
Credit commitment 2,807 2,687
Others 205 £l 0
Subtotal 87,883 89,657
Fee and commisson @ pense
Bank card (3,127} (2,535}
Setternent and clearing services {2,283} {1,518}
Ekectronic banking senvices {1.765) {1,350}
Others {534} {722)
Subtotal {7,760} 158,526)
Het fee and commission income 80,123 £3.171

3 NET TRADING GAIN

Year ended 31 December

2014 2013
Met gain/loss) on held-for-trading debt securitees 1,179 {572)
Met gain on precious metalks {1 LT 1,561
Met gain on foreign exchange rate dervatves 115 1.557
Met {lossgam on interest rate dervatves (53} 214
Total 1,908 2,360

(n Nef gain on precipers metals consists of net gadn on grecous methks and precous mstk relsted denative produats

4 MNET GAINALOSS) ON FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DESIGNATED AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Year ended 31 December

2014 2013

Met gainfdloss) on principal guarantesd wealth
management products 1.507 (401}
Mel gainfiloss) on debt secunties 12 (215}
Others 114} 23
“Total 1,505 (639)
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

5 OTHER OPERATING INCOME
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Year ended 31 December

2014 2013

Insurance premium 3,684 1
Met gain on fu:'en;n exchange 2.915 32
Government grant 1,969 1,442
Gain on deposal of property and equipment 416 304
Fental income 336 ar7
Others 1.044 1,881
“Total 10,364 5,027

& OPERATING EXPENSES

Year ended 31 December

2014 2013
Staff costs (1 111,469 104,729
General operating and administralive expenses {2} 44,195 45,750
Business 1ax and surcharges [3) 28,880 27,226
Deprecation and amortization 19,328 17,461
Inzurance benefits and claims 3,904 o]
Prowision for guarantees and commitments 8.8048 811
Others 2,224 1.961
Total 223,898 198,607

{1) Staff costs

Year ended 31 December

2014 2013

Short-term employes benefits
Salares, bonuses, allowance and subsidies 56,780 53,758
Hausing funds £, 186 7,213
Secial insurance 4,454 3,637
Including: Medical insurance 3,843 3202
Ernployment injury insurance 278 249
hdatemity insurance 328 285
Labar umion fees and stalf education expenses 29T 2,827
Others 12.825 12,138
Subtotal 95,222 88,773
Defined contribution benefits 14,636 13,102
Early retirement benefit 1.611 1854

“Total 111,469 104,729
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Mates 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2014
Lot in milBons of Rerminkd, unless otheraize Rated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

6 OPERATING EXPENSES (Continued)

{2) Included in genesal opsrating and ad ministrative expenses is aud for's remuneration of RME132
milkon for the year (2013, RMB123 millicn)

{3) Bumness tax for the Groups: Domesti Operations i genefally caleulated a5 5% of taxable
income, which was declared and paid with the local tax department by Demestic Operations

In accordance with the "Cicular regasding the Business Taxes Preferential Palicies en
Agriculture-related Loans Granted by the County Area Banking Division of Agricultural Bank of
China Lirited” (Cai Shur [2014] Mo 5), jointly ssued by the MOF and the State Admnstration
of Taxation on 10 January 2014, business tax of the Group’s county-level sub-branches in the
19 provinces for the pilot program would be levied at 3% on interest income from agnculture-
related boans from 1 Movember 2013 to 31 December 2015

Addrtionally, ¢ty constiuction and mamtanance ta s calculated a5 19%-7% of business tax for
the Group's Domestic Operations

Educaton surcharge 15 calculated as 3%-5% of business tax for the Group's Domestc
Operations
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
{amiounts in millions of Renminbe, undess otheraase stated]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

7 EMOLUMEMNTS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS, SENIOR MANAGEMEMNTS AND
THE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

{1} Details of the Directors’, Supervisors' and Senior managements’
emoluments are as follows (in thousands of RMBE):

Year ended 31 December 2014
Batic
salaries,
allowrance Contribution
and benefits o pension

ftem Fees n kind schemes Bomus Total
Exeoufing D actons
Lins Shiyu i - 179 14 — 193
Ihiang Yun iy - 459 73 - 1072
Lows Wenbong il - 908 £9 - 817
Independent Mo
Exeoutive Direciors
Anthory W Tingyuk: 410 — - - 410
Qiu Dorg 440 = - — 440
Fredarick Ma 5ihang 350 = - = 350
Wern Tiejun 260 - — —_ 360
Framies Yuen Tin=fan 360 iz = = 360

Non-Executive Derectons

Shen Bnge ik — = - = =
Cheng Femgdhian i} — = — —= .
Xian Shusheng tiil — — — - —
Zhao Chao i} - - - - -
Zhou ke fiv) — — — — —
SLgrvsoes
Chi Yirigpen = 260 72 = 1031
Wanig Mingchun il - - - — -
Jia Meangeen i} 0 - - - k]
Thenq Xn il ] - - - a0
Mia Zengyu v} 0 - - - 0
i Tai ki) - - - - -
D Geryou 80 — — — 180
Sericr Managaments
Ca Huadandg — B &9 = 977
Gong Chao - 908 69 - 577
Wang Wl - B &9 - 917
Li Zhargang [} - HE L] - 977
T Gacening {wi} - 679 33 - Filld
Exaoufive Derectors resignad
liang Chaoliang {i} - 802 ] - B3
G Haods il — G5 46 51
Non-eaoutive Dirkciors resigried
Li olin fih — - —
Lin Damao (=i} —_ - —
SUDSTWEOAS rasigned
Lins Hong [k} - — = — —
Zhand hanzhang alll 3 - s — =i
Total 0 8,764 644 — 11,728
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IV  NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

7 EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENTS AND
THE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (Continued)

{1) Details of the Directors’, Supervisors® and Senior managements®
emoluments are ax follows {(in thousands of RMB) (Conunued):
0 L Shew was lected Chaimman of the Boand of Directors effective 11 Dec 2004,

[} Zhang Yun and Low Wenlong are e the Senice Mdanagement of the Growp and ther smolsmants disefosed
hove incid'e thote for fermces rendered by them a5 the Seruor Managerment

o Thete Non-Siedutors Drectars of the Bank dad nol recenes any fess fiom the Groop. Thér amaluménds were banne
by the maor Equty Holders of the Bank

(vl Zhou ke was sleced Nop-Exsoutive Dhirecior sffectve 37 July 2004

ol Wang Mmgohin war sleded Sharsholder Representatie Supenizor sffectss 33 June 2074 Wang Sagoun dd
Aot receser any amalyments for bz padLime poaition a5 shaveholier representative sugendzor from the Bank i
el S

M) For Employes Represendatie Supenasors of the Bank the amounts et forth abowe only induded fees for ther
ERCCET BT SUDSrTON

fwiil  Mar Tarl was slected Supendeor rspresanting amplayess af the Sank sffectoe 2 December 2004 & the Empfoyes
Representatnnes Mesting

(i L Zhengang corsed to be Secretany (o the Soand of Orrectors effective 27 March 2004, Zha Gaoming was elected
Secratany fo the Board of Directors affedtiies 27 March 2074

ik Kamg Chaokang ceased to be Chaiman of the Board of Directovs sffective 31 August 2014

) Gue Meods ceased o be Exscutive Dunector sifectne 9 Septamber 2004 in b tenure be was ska the Senor
Management of the Group and his emofument disdased sbove indude that for servce rendered by im a5 the
Soror AARnREg T

(e} L vefin ceased fo be Non-Fxscubive Diredor sffecive 268 ady 2074

e} Lin Damao ceased 1o be Mon-Executn Direclor effecine 5 August 2014

fef) Ly Hong cossed to be Iharesholder Representiive Supervsor effective 24 Apnf 2014, Lig Hong did nod recene
any emoluments for his part-biime poation &5 Shareholder Seprecentaiive Supendcor from the Band: in 2014

(thi Ihang kanshong cered o be Employes Reprecentativs Supermior effective 2 Decamber 2014
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

7 EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENTS AND
THE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (Continued)

(1) Details of the Directors’, Supervisors’® and Senior managements®
emoluments are as follows (in thousands of RMB) (Contnued):

Year ended 31 December 2013
Basic salanies,
allowance Contribution
and benefits  to pansien

Item Fees in kind schemes Bonus Total
Execufiwe Dectors
liang Chaoliarg - 1,070 [ - 1,124
Thang Yun i - 1,002 57 - 1,059
Gug Handa i) - 876 1) - 930
Lou Wenfong {1} - 876 54 430
Independent Non-Expoutive
Diractors
Anthaorry W Teng-yulk 410 - - - 410
Ciu Dorg &0 - - - 440
Fresdarick hia Si-hang 350 - - - 350
Wen Tigun 360 - — - 360
Framcis usen Tin<lan i) 35 — — — 155
Non-Exacutive Diredions
Shen Bang {n) — — — — -
Lin Craman iy - - — — -
Cheng Fengchan {iliy — - — — —
Livelin fiiny - = = = =
M Shusheng fii} .- - — - -
Thao Chaa fiiny = = = = =
Supreevieoes
Che Wingdn - a4y 54 1,003
Lin Hong () - — — -
Jia Xiangsen ) i) - — — £}
Zheng Xin ) 30 - = = i
Zhang Fanzong [wii) 17 - - - 17
Xz T omagyu fuiha) 17 - - — 17
Daai Geryou T80 - - - 280
Seniod Managements
Cai Huamang - &T6 54 %30
Goneg CThao - 476 54 q30
Wang W - 476 54 - Q30
Ll Zherpang - 820 53 B73
Supenyvisor resigned
Wang Yurul (i} 12 - - - 12
Yan Chongwen fal) 12 = — — 12
Total 2,253 B.21% 500 - 10,572
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IV  NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

7 EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENTS AND
THE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (Continued)

{1) Details of the Directors’, Supervisors® and Senior managements®
emoluments are ax follows {(in thousands of RMB) (Conunued):
0 Zhang Yum Guo Haods and Lot Wenlong were alio the Senior Managament of the Group and therr emoluments
daclored above raciude thote for sendoes randensd by tham 5 the Semer Management
i) France Yuer Tan-fan was slected independent Non-Executirs Dirscror sffedctive 8 Mavch 2043

o Thete Non-Siedutors Drectars of the Bank dad nol recenes any fess fiom the Groop. Thér s énds were baone
by the maar equty holders of the Bani

el L Homg did pod receree any smolumends for bl pavt-tme postion a1 Shaveholder Reaprecendsiive Superasor from
{his Banie e 2013

fid  For Employes Represendative Suppnazors of (he Bank the smounds st forth above oaly oduded fees for thalr
SBOVICES 35 STpOrVHOr

M) Thapg fanchong aod My Jongw were efected as Supenanors representang empdoyees of the Sank effective 7 May
2013 at the Employes fepresantslives Mesting.

fwil  WWamg Yurwy snd Yan Changwoen cascad to be Fmployes Bepresand sive Supenasar sffEctnm 7 May 2613

Az of the announcement date of these consolidated financml statements, the above
compensaton package for the Direclors, Supervears and Semor Management for the years
ended 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013 have not been finalized Managernient of
the Group believes that difference between the final emoluments and that disclosed above wall
nol have sgrificant impact on the consoldated financal statements of the Group. The firal
compensatioh will be disclosed in a separate announcement when determined
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

7 EMOLUMEMNTS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS, SENIOR MANAGEMEMNTS AND
THE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (Contmued)

{2) Five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group

() OfF the five indnaduals with the highest emaluments, none of them are directars or
superviscrs whose emoluments are disclosed above The emoluments of the five
wdvediaak whese emoluments were the highest in the Group for the year ended 31
[Crecember 2014 and 2013 were as follows (in thousands of RME)

Year ended 31 December

2014 2013

Basic salaries and allowance 7.435 7.8839
Discretionary bonuses 1582 6,342
Contribution 1o pensien schemes and other 857 542
“Total 15,984 14,773

(i} The number of these fwe individuals whose emoluments fell within the following bands
are a5 folows

Year ended 31 December

2014 2013
RMEZ,. 500,000 io RMBEZ, 000,000 yuan 1 3
RMEI, 000,001 1o RMEI, S00,000 yuan 3
FibE 3,500,001 1o RMEd, 000,000 yuan 1 1

During the current and prior year, no emclument was pad by the Group fto any of
the Diectors, Supervizors, Senior Managements or the five highest paid individuals
{including directors and employees) as an inducement o join or upon joining the Group
of a5 a compenzation for loss of office Mone of the Directors of Supeivisers waived any
emolsments dunng the current and prior year

8 IMPAIRMEMNT LOSSES ON ASSETS

Year ended 31 December

2014 2013
Leans and advances o customers 55,063 52,126
Flacemends with and loans to banks and
other financial institutions 1.181 200
Debt instruments classified as recenables 261 141
Held-to-ratunty investments 279 379
Froperty and equipment 27 4
Deposits with banks and other financial insttutions — (34}
Ayailable-for-sale financial assets {37} {129}
Other assets Sa7 2583
Taotal 67,971 52,990
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Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the yesr ended 31 December 2014
Camounts in milkons of Rerminkd, unless othersise Sated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
2 INCOME TAX EXPEMNSE

Year ended 31 December

2014 2013
Cureent income tax
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax 655,201 57,503
— Hong Kong Prafits Tax 386 305
— Ofther jursdictions 222 61
Subtotal 65,800 57805
Deferred tax (Mote IV 25} {13,152} {9, 5005)
Total 52,747 47,963

PRC Enterprise Income Tax & calculated at 25% of the estimated taxable profit for both years, and
ako includes supplementary PRC tax on Overseas Operations as determmed in accordance with the
relevant PRC income tax rules and regulations. Taxation arsing i other jurnsdictions {including Hong
Kong) 15 calculated at the rates prevailing in the relevant ursdictions. Pre-tax deduction iters of
enterprese income 1ax are gaverned by the relevant regulations of the PRC

The tax charges for the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013 can be reconciled to the profit per
the consalidatad income statement as follows:

Year ended 31 December

2014 2013

Profit before tax 232,251 214,174
Tax calculated at applicable PRC statutory

tax rate of 25% 58064 53,544
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose 1 (7.083) (6.852)
Tax effect of iters such as expenses not

deductible for tax purpose 1,770 1.077
Effect of different tax rates in other jnsdictions i) {6}
Income tax expense 52,747 47,963

(1 Nenstanble come pamaaly inchrdes exenst income from PRC irsasy bonds
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Motes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statemenis
For the yesr ended 31 December 2014
{amoumts in milions of Penminbs, unleds otheneise stated]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
10 DIVIDENDS

Year ended 31 December

2014 2013

Dindends on ordinary shares declared and pasd
Cash dividend related o 2013 1) ST.489 -
Cash dividend related 1o 2012 {2} —_ 50,830
57,489 50,830

A final dividend of RMBO 182 per ordinary share in respect of the year ended 31 December 2014
totalling RMBSS.113 milkion has been proposed by the directors and is subject to approval by the
ordinary shareholders in the annual general meeting

(1) Evsirbotion of Gnal dividend for 2013
A cash dioddlend of RAMBES 177 per share rolsted fo JO73, amouating o BMBEST 489 malion o (otal was appeoved
after the peguired apavopnatend for the slatotony furplus peerve and the genem mdane foe 2013 &3 detarmved in
Scrovdance with the relevant Fooounting rots and frmanssl reguliion: applicabde fo PRC snlepviss (the "PRC G449,
af the arnus general mesting held on 23 ke 2014,
The above dhvidend wad recognined a5 distmbestion and detobured dunng the wear anded 31 Decamber 2014

@ Dainbotion of Snal dhadend for 2072
A cach dividend of RMBED 1565 par chars mefated to 2012 amounting 1o RMBSDEZ0 mdlien m totkl was appioved.
after the required apporopnistions for the shatotory sivplus reserve and the genend reserve for 2012 as deteravined in
accerdance with the FRC GAAR of the annue! gemersl meeting feld on 18 June 2013

The above dhvidend was recognized a5 distrbution and detabured dunng the pear ended 31 December 2013

11 EARNINGS PER SHARE

Year ended 31 December

2014 2013
Earmings.
Frofit for the year atirnibutable to equity holders of the Bank 179,461 166,315
Less: profit for the year attnbutable to
prefedence sharehalders of the Bank — —
Profit for the year atiributable to ardinary sharehclders
of the Bank 175,461 166,315
Mumber of shares
Wemhted average number af ordinary shares in issue (mallian} 324,704 324,794
Basic and diluted earnings per share (RME yuan) 055 051

The Bank issued non-cumulative preference shares during the year ended 31 December 204 4 under
the terms and conditions as detailed in MNote IV 37 Preference Shares. For the purpose of calculating
basic earnings par share, dividends on non-cumulative preference shares declared in respect of the
pericd shoukd be deduected from the amounts attnbutable to ordinary shareholders of the Bank The
Bank has not declared any dwidend on preference shares for the year ended 31 Decernber 2014

230 @ hER R

327/496



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn
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For the yesr ended 31 December 2014
Camounts in milkons of Rerminkd, unless othersise Sated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued})
11 EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)

The conversion feature of prefersnce shares is considerad to fall within contingently kssuable
erdinary shares. The tniggering events of conversion did nol occur as at 31 December 2014 and the
conversion feature of preference shares has no effect on the basic-and diluted earnings per share
aleulation

12 CASH AND BALANCES WITH CENTRAL BANKS

Group
As at 31 December
2014 20132
Cash 111,562 98,759
Mandatory reserve deposits with central banks i1} 2.409,181 2. 279918
Surplus resenve deposits with central banks 2} 49,253 100,519
Other deposits with central banks 3} 172,665 123,606
Total 2,743,065 2,603,802
Bank
As at 31 December
2014 2013
Cash 111914 99,737
Mandatory resenve deposits with central banlks {1} 2408,5954 2,279,774
Surplys resence depasits with central-banks ¥4 49,220 100,508
Other deposits with central banks (3} 172,669 123,606
Tatal 2,742,797 2,603,625

(i The Group pleces mandatony rserve dépasits weth the PEOC and ovemoss regoistony bodves. These indud'e AME resérve
oispasits andl fonsgn curency recenve deponits, These mandaton: reserve doposits are nod sviniabde for the Group’s daly
C RO,

Ag gt 31 December 20014, for Dovestic Opevations of the Bank which mest the reguirements of "Nodice on. Diferental
Mandatory Recarve Depesits for the Sannonyg Banting Opetans of Agrculiursl Bank of Ching Limited far 2077 issued
by the People’s Bank of China® {Yinbanfs [2015] Mo 57) and effective 7 March 2013 AMB maodMovy reterne dépanis
with the PROC were based on 16% of quaiifed AMA depasits (37 December 2013 18%), wive for the ramaining
Deenertic ODperabions of the Bank, AMB mandstoyy resene deposis wre based on 209 of qualified RME deports
3T Decamnber 2013 20%) Foregn aurendy mandatony ressrve denoots were bated on 5% 371 Decernber 2013
%) of quafifisd foregn curmency daposis from customers Mandatory resene denodts placed by the Bank's Overean
Cparaiions were deremmined bated on regpective averfass requiatony requirements The foregn curmency resenve degonts
Dlaced sath the PEOC are non-ipterest bearing

2} Surples reserve depodits are deposits mantaned with the PBOC in sdoiton o the mandstory reseres deposits and maindy
for the purpase of Cleamng

3} Caher degopits with cerdral barks pramandy represent sl depomits placed weth the PBOC that are nof anfabie for uze
i the Group's diily cosrslions, of which fcal deposile sre aon-nteres! bapnmsg
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{macimts imomillions of RPenminbs, undess otheredse stated]
IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

13 DEPOSITS WITH BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Group
As at 31 December
2014 2013
Deposits with
Demestic banks 543,394 360,762
Other domestic financial institutions 2.021 1.713
Owverseas banks 27,350 35,203
Total 572,805 397,678
Bank
Az at 31 December
2014 2013
Deposits wath
Domestic banks 534,046 353,117
Other domestic financal institubons 2,020 1.713
Owerseas banks 26,726 35,108
“Total 562,792 389,938

As at 31 Decernber 20014, the camying amount of deposits with banks and other financial institutions
which have been pledged as security was BME 1,533 million {31 December 2013; RME 1,205 million)
These depeosits were mainly security deposits pladged with exchanges
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For the yesr ended 31 Decemnber 2014
Camounts in milkons of Rerminkd, unless othersise Sated)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

14 PLACEMEMNTS WITH AND LOANS TO BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL
INSTITUTIONS

Group
As at 31 December
2014 2013
Placements with and lbans 1o
Demestic banks 124,060 81,436
Other domestic financial mstitutions 267,358 223,566
Dwerseas banks 17,400 4,228
Gross amount 408,818 200,230
Afbowance for impairment losses — collectvely assessed {1,755} (575)
Placements with and loans to banks and
other finandial institutions 407,062 308,655
Bank
Az at 31 December
2014 2013
Placements with and kans w0
Domestic banks 124,060 81,436
Other domestic financial institutions 270,408 223,566
Owerseas banks 20,113 6,240
Gross amount 414,581 311,542
Allowance for impairment losses — collectvely assessed {1.755) (575}
“Placements with and leans 1o banks and
other financial institutions 412,825 310,967
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cc

15 FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD FOR TRADING
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Group
As at 31 December
2014 2013
Debt securnities issued by
GCOvRIRMEents 3.545 4,979
Public sector and guasi-governments 23,445 24073
Financial institutiens 1112 474
Corporates 12,708 12,485
Subtotal 40,810 42,012
Equity instruments —_ 48
Precious metal contracts 17,615 11.804
Total 58,425 53,864
Analyzed as
Listed outskde Hong Fong {1} 40,632 42,060
Unlisted 17,753 11,504
“Total 58,425 53,864
Bank
As at 31 December
2014 2013
Debt securities issued by
Governments 3,545 4,975
Public sector and quasi-governments 23,445 24,073
Financal instiutions 1.112 a7d
Corporates 12,708 12,167
Zubtotal 40310 41,653
Precious metal contracts 17.615 11,804
Taotal 38,425 53497
Analyzed as
Listed outside Hong Keng {1 40,532 41,693
Unilestad 17,753 11,804
Total 58,425 53,497

i Casbf secrribies traded an the Ching Downhesens ing er-bank Sond AMavbe! sre nckaded i "Lished o inds Hong Kang ™
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For the year ended 31 December 2014

Camounts in milkons of Rerminkd, unless othersise Sated)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

16 FINAMNCIAL ASSETS DESIGNATED AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Group
As at 31 December
2014 2013
Diebt securities rsued by
GOvernmednts 11,235 8.7
Fublic sector and quasi-governments 25,278 25,983
Financeal mstitutions 2,895 11,021
Corporates 6,681 12,282
Subtotal 46,093 58007
Interests in trust products 1} 748,754 171,280
Other debt instruments {1} 505G 38.710
Equity instruments 1.472 1.021
Total 356,235 268,018
Analyzed as
Listed in Hong Kong 416 143
Listed outside Hong keong 2} 31,963 43,255
Unlsted F23.455 225,580
“Total 356,235 269,018
Bank
As at 31 December
2014 2013
Debt secunties isued by
Governments 11235 8721
Fublic sector and quas-governments 25278 25,983
Financal mstitutions 2,854 11.021
Corporates 5,681 12.282
Subtotal 46,063 58,007
Interests i trust producis {1} FA8. 7o 1r:275r
Other debt instruments {1} 60876 38710
Total 355,763 267,994
Analyzed as
Listed in Horg Kong 181 183
Listed outssde Hang Kong ) 31,963 43,255
Unlisted F£3.619 224,556
“Total 355,763 267,994

(1) Undering acsees of the rust producs and ofher debt insiruments held by the Group madoly indude credt assets
depogits with domemic banks and other domestic fnanoal insttutions andl ofebit secunties, whech have been diclored o

Note i 45 Stroctured Enbies

(i} ] Dt secumbves tradied oo the China Domsstic Inter-bank Band Madost are indded i L sted owtode Hang Eong ™
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Motes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statemeants
For the yesr ended 31 December 2014
Lamoumts i milions of Renminbs, undess otheredse stated]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

17 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The Group primarily enters into foreign exchange rate, interest rate and precious metal dervative
contracts related o trading, asset and hiability management, and customer inibated transactions

The centractuabinotional amounts and fair valees of the denvative financial mstruments entered nie
by the Group are et cut m the followmng tables. The contractualimotional amounts of dervative
financial instruments provide 3 basis for comparson with fair values of instruments recognized
on the consolidated statement of financial pesition but de not necessandy indicate the amounts
of future cash fiows involved or the current fair values of the instruments and, therefore, do not
ndicate the Group’s exposure to credit or market reks The far value of derivatwe instruments
becorre favorable {assets) or unfavorable {liabilities) a5 a result of fluctuations in market interest
rates, fareign exchange rates or precious metal prices relative to their terms The aggregate fair
walues of dervatve financial assets and lmabiites can fluctuate significantly

Cortain iinancial asets and hrancial kabdites of the Group ame subpect 1o enforceable master netbng
drrangemeants or similar agreements The agreement between the Group and the counterparty
generally allows for net setflement of the refevant financial assets and financral labilities when
both elect to setile on a net basis In the absence of such an election. financzl assets and financial
liabilities will be settled on a gross basis Howeser, each party to the master netting arrangements
o simikar agreements will have the option to setthe all such amounts on a net basis in the event of
default of the other party As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the amount of the financial assets
and financial liabdities subject to enforceable master netting arrangements or similar agreements
are not material o the Group The Group ded not elect 1o settle these financal assets and financial
liabilities on a net basis. The Group does not hold any other financial instruments, other than
dervatives, that are subpct to master netting arrangements or similar agréeements.
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For the yesr ended 31 Decemnber 2014
Camounts in milkons of Rerminkd, unless othersise Sated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

17 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Contnued)

Group
31 December 2014
Contractual/
notional Fair value
amount Assets Liabilities
Exchange rate derwatves
Cureency fonwands 340,045 3078 [2.241)
Currency swaps 481,198 2476 {3.675)
Cross-currency interest rate swaps 6,785 192 (251)
Currency options 33,112 72 (79}
Subtotal 5818 {5, 246)
Interest rate dernvatives
Interest rate swaps 166,002 795 {336)
Precious metal confi@cts 12,732 el {28}
Cithers 58 21 _
Total derivative finandal assets and
liabilities 71.195 (7.240)

31 December 2013

Contractual/
national Fair value
amount Assets Liabilities
Exchange rate dermatives
Currency forwands 256,278 1624 {2.786)
Currency swaps 365,555 3.888 12,215}
Cross-currancy Interest rate swaps 17,0656 372 (678)
Currency opticns 11,864 33 (15}
Subtotal 5915 {5504}
Interest rate dernvatves
Interest rate swaps 185,722 1.637 {1.940)
Precious metal contracts 7.201 634 —
Cithers 1,494 — {1}
“Total derivatives financial assets and
liabilities 8,186 (7.635)
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
{amiounts in millions of Renminbe, undess otheraase stated]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
17 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Continued)

Bank
31 December 2014
Contractual/
notional Fair value
amount Assets Liahilities
Exchange rate dernvatives
Currency forwards 333,550 2,508 {2225}
Currency swaps 474,327 a3y {3.523)
Cross-currency infefest rate swaps 6,785 192 {251)
Currency options 33,112 72 {79)
Subtetal 5.594 (G607 8)
Interest rate derivatives
Interest rate swaps 166,002 795 {936}
Precious metal conftracts 12,732 55 [S5)
Total derivative financial assets and
liabilities 6,950 {7,072}

31 December 2013

Contractual/
notional Fair value
amount Assets Liabilities
Exchange rate dervatives
Currency forwands 286,081 1,624 (2,724}
CUTrency swaps 357624 3,876 (2,215)
Cross-currency inlerest rate swaps | 7966 3rd {&78)
Cufrency options 11.864 a3 {15}
Subtotal 5.505 (5.552)
Interest rate derivatives
Inte rest rabe swaps 165,722 1.637 (19409
Frecicus metal contracts 7.2 634 —
Others 1,454 - (1)
Total derivatives finandial assets and
liabilities 8176 {7.633)
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For the yesr ended 31 December 2014
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
17 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Continued)

Credit risk welghted amount for dervatve transaction counterparbes represents the counterparty
credil rsk associated with dervative transactions and 15 calculated in accordance with the “Capatal
Bules for Commercial Banks (Provisional)™ sssued by the CBRC which was effectve | lanuary
2012 and & dependent on, among other factors, creditworthmess of the customers and matonty
characteristics of each type of contract As at 31 December 2014, the credit risk weighted amount
for derivatess transaclion counterparty was measured under the Internal Ratings — Based approach
s disclosed i Note IV 49 Capital Management

As at 31 December 2014
Group Bank
Credit risk wesghted amount for counterparty 12,576 12,258

As at 31 December 2013, credit risk wesghted amount for derivatve Uransacten counterparty of
the Group and the Bank were RMET1,220 mailkicn and RMB11.226 million, respectively, which was
meazured under the Weighted approach as disclosed in Mote IV 49 Capital Management

18 FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD UNDER RESALE AGREEMENTS

Group
As at 31 December
2014 2013
Analyzed by collateral ype
Dabt securties 205, 160 402,454
Bills 300258 33292
Loans and others — 1677
Total 509418 737.052
Bank
As at 31 December
2014 2013
Analyzed by collateral type:
Debt securties 209.154 402,144
Bills 300,258 332,921
Loans and others _— 1677
Total 08,412 736,742

The coliateral recenved in connection with the purchase of financial assets under resake agreement &
disclosed in Mote IV 45 Contingent Liabilitees and Commitments — Collateral
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (C

19 LOANS ANMD ADVAMCES TO CUSTOMERS

Analysis of loans and advances to customers

entinued)
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Group
As at 31 December
2014 2013

Corporate loans and adwances

Leans and advances 5,516,854 5031088

Discounted bills 180,229 97,993

Subtotal 5,607,083 5,120,081
Personal ivans and advances 2,400,554 2,085,632
Gross leans and advances 8,088,067 7224,713
Allowance for imparment losses

Individually assassed (73.004) =0,127)

Collectively assessed (284,977) (27 2,064)

Total allowance for impairment fosses (358,07 1) (322.191)
Leans and advances to customers, net 7,735,956 6.902,522

Bank
As at 31 December
2014 2013

Corporate lpans and advances

Leans and advances 5476774 4,994 468

Discounted bills 180,226 97.991

Subiotai 5657, 004 5.092, 4509
Personal loans and advances 2,259,975 2,094,948
Gross lpans and advances B,05697% TA87 407
Allowance for imparment losses

Indreidually assessed (72.578) {50,080

Collectively assessed {284,053) (271,174)

Total allowance for impaiement losses {356,631} (321,224)
Leans and advances to customers, net T.700.348 5,866,183
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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19 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (Continued)

Analysis of loans and advances to customers by collective and individual assessments

Group
Identified
im paired
Loans and  Identified impaised loans and advances (2) gross lans
advances and advances
fou which For which For which asa %of
e allowance the allowance the allowance total gross
istollectively s collectively i individually loans and
assessed 1) assesed assessed Subtofl Total advances
31 Degombner 2004
Gross boans: and advanies 1073097 21,063 103,907 124,570 2,098,067 1.54
Advev e for impament losss (270,345} (24,54%1) (73,084) (A7 555 (352,071)
Loans and advances ko
customers, net 10021 hAT2 30,813 31285 7,739,998
31 December 2013
Gross boans: and advances 7,136,532 15,406 12,355 ime Tir T3 122
Abwarde Tof mpament logses (261,624} (o440 50,17 (BO5ET) 322,191
Loans and advances to
cusomens, net 875,308 4,586 12,228 Frpall &, 02,522
Bank
Identified
impaired
Loanzand  identified impaived loans and advances (2} gross loans
advances and advances
for which For which For which asa % of
the afiowance the allowance the allowance totl gross
iscollettively B colleetively i individually lesns aned
asessed (1) assessed wmsessed Subiotal Total advanes
31 Decomber 20084
Gross loave and advanees 1832721 21,052 103,200 12250 RIBEIT 154
Allwance for impamment logse {59,468 {§4.557) (F2578) (B7,165)  [S6631)
Loans and advances to
cuztomers, net 7663261 6465 3062 ITOET 1,700,345
31 Decemiber 513
(e hoares and advances 10000330 1545 71648 BT 003 LBTADT 121
Alkrwanice for impairment kosses {260,734) {10440 E0050) {60440 (321,224)
Loans and advances to
Lustomers, nat £,839,600 4,985 21,598 6583 GBERIED
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s 13 the Consolidated Financial Statemeants
Fof the year ended 31 December 2003
{amoumts in milions of Penminbs, unleds otheneise stated]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
19 LOANS AND ADVAMNCES TO CUSTOMERS (Continued)
Analysis of leans and advances to customers by collective and indwidual assessments (Continued)

(1} Leans and sdvances for which allewance i collectively aspesed consit of loars and sdvances wivch have pot boen
specy il idenndied a0 impasred

@ foanoiied impaired loans and sovanoes endude foans fov which abjecve svadlence of Mpament S aad wish have

Bevany irentien a5 bearing inparment fosrss, wivch ave measived entfer indhvdually [Conporate lnsns Snd bdvanoe) of
offectively doevsonal doang and advances]

Mavements of the allowance for impairment ksses on loans and advances to custormers

Group
Year ended 31 December 2014
Individually  Collectively
assessed assessed
allowance allowance Total
1 January 2014 50,127 272,054 322199
Impairment allowance on loans charged E8.579 20031 117.610
Reversal of impalrment allowance {2,976) (42,571} (52.547)
het additions 48,603 16,450 65063
Writesoffs and tansfer out {25,722} {3.450) 28,222}
Recovery of lbans and
advances written off in previcus years S92 220 1,141
Unwinding of discount on allowance (B35} (314} [1.002)
Exchange difference {57} {3 {100}
31 December 2014 73,094 284,977 358,071
Year ended 31 December 2013
Individually  Collectively
assessed assessed
allowance allowanoe Total
1 January 2013 52,242 221,746 270,988
impairment allowance on loans charged 16,320 73,442 89,832
Reversal of impairment allowance {10,785} (25.921) (37,705)
Met additions 5605 46,521 52,126
Write-offs and transfer out (7.842) (1.942) (9, 784)
Recovery of koans and
advances written off in previous years &0 220 820
Unwinding of decount on allwance (454} {235 {503)
Exchange difference (24) (242) 12645)
31 December 2013 50,127 272,064 322,191
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ythe Consolidated Financial Statements

For the yesr ended 31 Decemnber 2014
Camounts in milkons of Rerminkd, unless othersise Sated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
19 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (Continued)

Movements of the allewance for impairment kosses on loans and advances to cusiomers (Contmued)

Bank
Year ended 31 December 2014
Individuaily  Collectively
assessed assessed
allewance allewance Total
I Jarwary 2014 50,050 271,174 321,224
Impairment allowance on loans charged B8 140 58517 116,857
Reversal of impairment allowance {3,576} {42,390} {52,365)
Met additions 48 164 165,427 4,551
Write-offs and transfer gut (25772} (3.450) [29.222)
Recovery of koans and
advances wiitten off in previous years o211 220 1,141
Unwinding of discount on allowance (&8} 1314) {1.002)
Exchange difference S7} (4] (101}
31 December 2014 72,578 284,053 356,631
Yoar ended 31 December 2013
Individually  Collectively
assessed assessed
allowvance allowance Total
1 lanuary 2013 52,242 227,339 279,581
Impairment allowance on leans charged 16,313 12,927 89,240
Reversal of impairment allowance (10,785} {26.734) 137.515)
Met additions 5.528 46,193 21,74
Write-offs and transfer out (r.842) {1.947) {9.784)
Recovery of loans and
advances wntten off in prewious years 600 &5 £65
Unwinding ef discount an allewance {454} (239) (593}
Exchange difference {24} (242) {266}
31 December 2013 50,050 21117 311,224
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Moies 1o the Conzolidaled Financic

For the year ended 31 December 2008
{amiounts in millions of Renminbe, undess otheraase stated]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
20 AVAILABLE-FOR-S5ALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

Group
As at 31 December
2014 2013
Debt secuntes isued by
Governments 147,513 145,808
Public sector and guasi-governments &40 332 400387
Financial institutions 138,658 52,030
Corporates 186,574 167,724
Subioial 922.017 778,944
Fund investments {1 3.358 GAE
Equity instruments 2,528 519
_Others (1) = S50
Total 927,903 781,311
Analyzed as
Db securithes
Listed in Hong Kong 19,163 14,442
Listed outskde Hong Kong {2) B92. 466 745,029
Unhsted 10,388 16,033
Equity instruments. fund investments and others
Listed in Hong Kong 79 —
Listed outside Hong Kong 4,307 ;141
Unlisted (3} _1.500 GG
Taotal 827,903 781,311
Bank
As at 31 December
2014 2013
Debt secuntes issued by
Governments 147,342 149,584
Public sector and quask-governments 448, 150 400,382
Financal institutions 138,421 50,751
Corporates 182,857 166,454
Subtotal 916310 T76.211
Equity nstruments 571 504
Total 917,381 176,715
Anabzed as
Debl securitrs
Listed in Homg Kong 19,096 14,430
Listed guiside Hong Kong (2) 387,326 745,763
Unbisted 10,358 16,018
Equaty mnstruments
Listed outside Hong Kong 287 —
Unbsted {3} 284 504
Total 917,381 776,715

2] ?! Group’s avadabledorsaie fund ietmants and other investmentt have bean dizclosed (v Note IV 45 Sty
it ies

2] Debt gecunteer traded on the Chna Demestic infer-bank Bond Manket are included iy "Licted awmzde Horg Kong”™

Q) As s 21 December 2074, pnlsted sgudy instruments of the Grouwp and the Bank smointed to RWEZEY milion ware
it red B Cofl Bachure ey five value @anal be isliaby reasivesd (3] Derambar 2003 AMB24 T kel
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 the Consolidated Financial Statement

For the yesr ended 31 Decemnber 2014
Camounts in milkons of Rerminkd, unless othersise Sated)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
21 HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS

Group
As at 31 December
2014 2013
Diebt securities rsued by
Governments 548,230 519,265
Fublic sector and quasi-governments 936,274 808,838
Financeal mstitutions 67,878 29,588
Corporates 159,349 186,623
Gross amount 1711831 1.524.414
Allowance for impairment losses-collectively assessed 1B81) (559)
Held-to-maturity investrments, net 1,710,950 1,523,815
Analyzed as
Listed in Hong Kong 1.381 s
Listed outside Hong ¥ong (n 1,700,044 1,521,141
Unlisted 9525 1,959
Total 1,710,950 1,523,815
Bank
Az at 31 December
2014 2013
Debt securities wsued by
Governments 548,330 510265
Public sector and quasi-governments 934,063 B0B. 838
Financal mstilutions 65,853 2r.012
Corporates 156,143 163,482
Gross amount 1,704,389 1.518.597
Aliowance for impairment losses-callectnvely assessed (281) (559)
Held-to-maturity investrments, net 1,703,508 1,517,993
Analyzed as
Listed in Hong Kong 1.381 5
Listed outside Hong Kong (1) 1,682,991 1.515,324
Unlsted 9,136 1,950
“Total 1,703,508 1,517,398

{n Dbt sacumbaes traded on the Ching Domestic [nfar-bant: Band Madat sre indinled i Leted owtsides Hang Eong™
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MNotes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2008
{amoumts in milions of Penminbs, unleds otheneise stated]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
22 DEBT INSTRUMENTS CLASSIFIED AS RECEIVAELES

Group
As at 31 December
2014 2013
Dabt instruments
Recenable from the MOF {1} 278,314 362,054
Special government bond (2} 93,300 93,300
Public sector and quaskgovernment bonds 6,141 65,435
Financizl institution bonds 45,334 27,124
Corporate bonds 35,020 31,018
Certificate treasury bonds and savings treasury bonds 3,550 6,037
Others (3} 11,621 B,414
Gress amaunt, unlsled 523,320 592,432
Allowance for imparment lasses
Individually assessed (478) [44)
Collectively assessed 1725} {258)
Total allowance for impairment losses {1,203) {342)
Debt instruments dassified as receivables, net 522117 592,090
Bank
As at 31 December
2014 2013
Dabt instruments:
Recevable from the MOF (1) 278,314 362,054
special government bond (2) 53,300 93,300
Public sector and quasi-government bonds 6,141 56,445
Fmancial institution bonds 46,205 27,124
Corporate bonds 34,277 31,018
Certificate treasury bonds and savings treasury bonds 3,462 5,820
Others 65465 —
Gross amoun L unlisted 512,435 SE5, 801
Allowance Tor impairment losses
Indl'.'hfrual."_ul assessed (4E3) (44}
Collectively assessed {794} {298)
Tolal allowance for impairment losses {1.261) {342}
Debt instruments dassified as receivables, net 511,174 585459

iy Furuart to the “Nofice on Relsar lzues Concarning the Daposal of Mon-perfonming Ascets of Ageiultural Bank of
Ching® (Cadin [2008] Mo, 136} inued by the Aimstry of Ainance (the “AMGF7) recevable frome the MOF i5 1o be petitfed
aryraply over a tentative peniod of 15 years sarting frovn 1 Jaany 2008 & an interest rate of 3.5% pey anrum

L Speoaf governmant bond refes 1o the ponannfeabie bond imaed By e MOF i 1958 0 the AQgragare oo
armount of RMBESF, 3 bllion [0 (ke Predecessor Entity fov capes replenghment. The bomdl will mative in 2008 sod Bass
interest af @ fored rale of 2 25% per annum, starting from | December 2008

fel] Other gebt instrumaents dassifed &5 recerdables fave been disdased i Node W 45 Stroctuved Enfities
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Mates 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the yesr ended 31 Decernber 2014
LAmounts in milkons of Renminkd, urdess otheraise Bated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
23 INVESTMEMT IN SUBSIDIARIES

Bank
As at 31 December
2014 2013
Imeestrment cost 11:223 8907
Allawance for impairment lesses (B55) (659)
Investments in subsidiaries 10,564 8,248

The follewaing are the principal subsidiarees of the Bank as at 31 December 2014

Tate of Thace of Teeatage ol Pemeatige ol

Wodporstion]  meopomtiod Aodzedl  epuity mberest  vobing ghts
Hare o e ity catablebmeat  wtabliment  paidia aginl %) (%) Iriscipal activities
T T Agrvulatal Tave T Poeerries T Fhorg B, TR P L0, PN [ T esinen hodeg
Lo, bid
Kb emalional {10 oo 09 Hong Beoo FRC HODL 113350449 100m WO Inesimen hoideg
Hekdmg: Lirmied
REC Fruncial g (o, M () FoSeplember 2080 Smegha RC RMEZC0L00000 1000 00 Frncil ke
A dtuea] Bk ol 15 Howerrbes 1001 Lo, IS0AM00K000 10000 uifi] Banking
China [} L Ui ienykoen
ABCCA had Ehech 008 Shanchan IR0 RMENIROEENH Ui S1A7  Fund munagemen
Manspemeet (i, 14
A Herpen Rutal Back 10 hugel M08 leperMonged,  RMBIGA00000 5100 s farkrg
Limited Lisbity Conmpany fLld
BB Wb Haechian M Wb Wb IR RMENO000 w00 T Barking
Fuad Bark Limited
Lizhity Crrpany
BB o Pl Bk My 20 AshnRC  RWEEANEN AT SHig Barking
Limied Lnbeley Cormpacy
AR Areo Rl Bk HMawch 00 Pae R RMEXO00000 5100 L Bankieng
Limied Labslty Compay
81, Thesar Vorghaney Wl 0] Pung RC AARHO000000 $110 S0 Burkieg
Fusal Bark Limded
Lisbty Cormpuny
A Yiamen Tongas MM 2l Fagn WD MO0 L] Al Harking
Feseat Bark Limied]
Linbdity Cormpany
AEC e boummce Co L (8 10ecember 05 Begng RO RMELOR! ES3061 100 o) Lie rsunme
sgultial Bk ol B hvember 4 Lesebong BV 000000 10000 m Barkig
Ch [Lpersbeoung) Lisibed [
spcuitugal Bank ol {5 23 Dacerber J0M Wooopw R RUBLA0LOG000 10000 mm Harkig
o [Micscie] Limd
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Motes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statemenis
For the yesr ended 31 Decemnber 2014
{amoumts in milions of Penminbs, unleds otheneise stated]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

23 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Dunng the year ended 31 Decembar 2014, other than subsidraries newly established, thers were no
changes in the proportion of equity interest or voling rights the Bank hebd In its subsidiaries

@ Dunng the year anded 37 Decermber 2004, the Bank contrbuted addivonsd reguiered capral te ABC intemations!
Hoddings Lirered and ABC Finanoal Lariing Co., Lnd of WED T, 200 million and AMBT 000 millfan, respectivsly

G Twe of the thres direcrars on the bosed of ABC huabs' Manchuzn Ruesl Bank Limwrad Liabuky Company were aoponted
Er the Bank. The Bank canduded that & has effective controf over this entity and e induded it in it consolidation
eope

g Om 3 December 2012 the Sank acquired 5156 of the mwed share capvtal of Jahe Life insance Co, Lid, and renamed’
it 83 ABC Life bnsuvancs Co . Lid,| and the Group recagnined goodwil of RMBI, 381 mdborn a5 & re=olt of thd scgustion
Far the years ended 31 December 2014 snd 2013, there wat no objecrve sadfence poted for any gocodwall impairerent

il Dumog the year ended 27 Decenber 2014, the Bank establohed Agncutuval Bmi of Ching (Tuxembourg) Limvled sha
Agricutury Bank of Cheing: (Woscow) Limded as ats wiholy-owned submdiie

248 @ hER R

345/496



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

Motes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the yesr ended 31 December 2014
Camounts in milkons of Rerminkd, unless othersise Sated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
24 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Group
Elecranic
equipment,
furniture and Mator Censtruction

Buildings fixtures vehicles  in progress Total
Coed
| Jarwary 1014 124,292 55314 4,746 18,662 213,036
Addtions 1526 03 G 13,263 213006
Traraters 17,565 a3 = {18,060 =
Dasposals {534) {7 4600 {536) = (85900
31 December 2014 147,795 56,045 FIET] 73,885 777,547
Accumidiated deprecaton
1 Janwary 2014 31,5250 {E7.A00) {2,947} - {51,876
Charge for the year (7.574) 8723} {F18) - {16,615)
Elirminated on deposss 370 5335 512 - 21T
31 Dacembe 2014 3%.733) [B0.764) Z.i53) - [72.274)
Allioweanice 1or empaimment losses
I Jareary 2014 (285 (12} 2} {1} {301)
Imparment boss 20} - - {7 [P
Blirreratiad o desposas ] I - _— 10
31 Dacember 2014 99 ] [F] [ ETH
Canying walue
3 December 2014 103,763 25,351 2,059 380 154,950
T Janary 2018 SEATT 77,904 ] 28,681 150,859
Ciosl
1 Jarwary 2013 112618 AR 476 4,03 6,375 181.45%
Adckimors 2001 BAT2 S04 13,503 145340
Trarsfers 10,196 1000 - 11,1%5) -
Dusposals 52} (2.624) (245} = 13.403)
31 Detember 2013 124,254 55314 &, 46 18,682 213036
Acournulated deprecahion
| Jaruary 2013 {24 685) {22,141} (2873} = 859, 702)
Charge for the year o) (7,795) {313) - {15115
Ebminated on digpotals 170 1.536 238 - 25845
31 December 2013 [ETEFED] {37 A00 {2,547) = [61,876)
Allowance foe mpairment losses
| Rrwasy 2013 [293) (10} {3 {1y (307
Impament loss {14) - - - {14y
Ebminated on depotals 19 - 1 - il
31 Detember 2013 [288) 1] 2 1 [EDTH]
Camytreg walue
31 December 2013 $2477 27,904 1,797 28,681 150,859
| Jarvay 2013 B7.637 26,325 1154 26,374 141 450
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Motes 1o the Lonsolldated Finahc tatemear

Fof this year ended 31 Decenber 7004
{amounts in millions of Penminbe, unleds otheradse stated]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
24 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Bank
Electronic
equipment,
fumniture and Metor  Construction

Buildings fixtures vehicles  in progress Total
Cost
1 laniary 2014 132,907 55115 4,753 28,182 210957
Adiditions. 1,482 1.532 (] 12 651 13236
Transfurs 17,568 491 — {18,059} L
Disposals {538) [LA1T) {518) = 8.A473)
31 Detember 2014 HEE] 55,71 AED 24,885 2e8,20
Acoumulated depreaaton
1 Jarnusy 2014 (31421) 7302} {2,932} = {6 1.655)
Charge for the year (7,530 (&0 {316} — (i 6,548)
Elminated on deposss 329 5.330 ] - E175
N 126,602) 120,674) [FREH] - F2028]
Alowance for imparment losses
1 Januzy 2014 (2E4) {10 {2} (i @301}
impairment los 130 —_ — {7 {27
Elimingted on deposals El [ - -—_ 10
1 Detember 2014 [259) E] [F] ] [ETH
Cairying vakie
31 December 2014 102468 25,038 2051 2EANT 152,374
1 January 2014 31,218 17803 1,788 28192 145,001
Lot
1 larmaary 2013 12,17 a8, 183 i D0 25477 159,937
Addibors 1,970 #453 = ] 12012 14,299
Transters ey 1,000 — {10357} -
Dispasals (561 (2621 {247} - (3,375}
31 December 2013 12290 55115 472 FIAEE 210,857
Acoumulated depracation
1 January 2013 {24,618) {22, 054) (2.862) = (49,534}
Charga for the year {6970 (7.778) {205) - {15.057)
Eliminated on disposals 167 2,530 1 - 2,836
31 Deembey 2013 {31,421) [37.302) (2.532) — [61.655)
Alowance for imparment fosses
1 ey 2013 (253 {109 (1] i) 1307}
impErment logs (14} - - s (14)
Eliminated on deposals 19 - | — 0
31 Deteenbar 2013 [258) (10} 2} (1] [ETH]
Camandg wiue
3 December 2013 91,218 27803 1788 8,192 149,001
1 January 2013 27,260 16,215 1,141 25476 140,096
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hlotes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the yesr ended 31 December 2014
Camounts in milkons of Rerminkd, unless othersise Sated)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
24 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

According 1o the relevant laws and regulations, subsequent to the Bank's transformation into a
point stock company, the legal title of propertes previously held by the Predecessor Entity are to
be transferred to the Bank As at 31 December 2014, the registration tramsfer process cf certain
properties has not been completed. Management bebieves that the incomplete regatration tansier
process does not affect the nights of the Bank as the legal succeszar to those assets

The carmying amounts of buldings located on land with the f-:ullowln-;; remaining lease terms are as

fallows
Group
As at 31 December
2014 2013
Held in Hong kKong
on long-tenm kease {over 50 years) 11 &3
Held oufside Hong Kong
on leng-term kease (over S0 years) 4, 868 4,451
on medium-term lease {10-50 years) 29601 79,003
on shert-term lease (less than 10 years) S.ATE £.940
Subfotal 103,845 02,304
Total 103,763 92477
Bank
As at 31 December
2014 2013
Held in Hong Kong
on leng-term lease (over S0 years) a2 83
Held outskde Hong Kong
on leng-tenm kease (over 50 years) 4,868 4,451
on medium-term lease (10-50 years) 88341 T7. 744
on short-term lease {less than 10 years) 9,176 £.840
Subtotal 102,385 91,135
Total 102,468 91,218
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
{amiounts in millions of Renminbe, undess otheraase stated]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

25 DEFERRED TAXATION
For the purpose of pressntation in the consaldated statement of financial position, certain defered
tax assets and labiities have been offset when there 15 a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal
autherity, The followmng 15 the analsis of the deferred tax balances

Group
As at 31 December
2014 2013
Deferred tax assets 78,640 74,075
Deferred tax labalities (43} {8}
Met 78,597 74,067
Bank
As at 31 December
2014 2013
78,368 73,938

Dejerred tax assels
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yENe _DnSofa3ied rinancial s13iemment

For the yesr ended 31 Decemnber 2014
Camounts in milkons of Rerminkd, unless othersise Sated)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
25 DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

{1} The following are the movements and mapr deferred tax assets and labdities recognized

Group
Allowance Accued Fair valuz
for but not Early changes of
impalment  paid stalf  retirement financial
lassas cost  benefits  Prowision instruments Orthers Total
1 Janupary 2004 56137 6,165 1589 1,181 2011 (1] 74,067
Crefetidhange) 1o
the conaida ted
ecome statament 1.3mn a3 354} L1565 289 a0 13,152
Charge ko olher
el
ImCom — — — 862 = B.A2)

31 December 2014 G5 m% FFE] 376 [500) A 78e0T

Allowance  Acerued Fair value
for but not Early changes of
impaiment  paid sl retinement finsneial
losses cost benefits  Prowision instruments Cithers Tatal
1 Fanuary 2003 FIT) [ P #149 CE}] [E] 56,934
Crafil{tharge) to
thd concoiad st
income stalament 5848 R223) [355) 0z 347 {13} 5,506
Crandil to odhed
omgrehen
Inome — - - = 1421 — 11T
31 Decernbar 2013 56137 5165 1,569 118 BOH {Tlﬁl 14,067
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for the yes ended 31 December 2014
{Amounts in mileons of Renmnbl, unless otharwise slated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

254 ()

(Continued)

25 DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

{1} The following are the movements and major deferred tax assels and labilities recognized

EDINETOOOO

O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

Bank
Allowance Fair value
far Earfy changes of
impairment  paid staff rebirement finanaal
loases benefits  Provision instruments Others Total
1 lanuary 2014 56,024 7,580 1,181 8,000 {13} 73938
Craditfcharg=) bo the
Enoe Slahemnent 11,234 1354) 215 (288 38 13,1006
Charge to other
comprehensing
WA - — — B.5T5) — (B575)
31 Decenber 2014 67,158 255 3AT (%3] T
Alleawance Falr valug
for Early changes of
impairment  paid stall  retirement finandal
loases benefits  Frowision instruments Others Total
1 fanuany 2013 46137 2,944 a1 444 - [T
Credit{charge) b the
Moo statement %737 (55 30 7 {13} 9,795
Crésdil b other
connprehenshg
HOme — - - T.20% — 1.300%
1 December 2013 56,024 2,589 1181 R 000 (13} 73938
oo [ A o 801 17
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the Consalidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2014
{(Arnants in milons of Rereninkd, unless othensze gated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued]

25 DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

(2) Deferred income tax assets{liabulities) and related temporary differences. before offsetling
qualifying amounts, are attributable to the following items:

Group
____31 December 2014 31 December 2013
Deductiblel Deductible’

{taxable) Deferred {taxable) Deferred
temporary tax assets/ temporary tax assets/
difference  (liabilities)  difference  (liabilities)

Deferred tax assets
Allawance for imparment losses 270124 E7.514 224,604 56,137
Fair value changes of financial

Instruments 10,404 2801 42 809 10,725
Accrued but not paid staff cost 24,952 G248 24,661 6,165
Eatly retirement benefits 8838 £.235 10,356 2,580
Prawisian 13,502 2476 4. 723 1,181
Cithers 228 o7 40 9
subtotal 328,588 [ HES] 307 283 16 806
Deferred tax Tabilitie:
Fair value changes of financial

instruments {14,006) (3.501) (10,857 (2:714)
Othears (140) (33} {157} {25}
Subtotal (14,1486} {3,534 {11.014) §2.739)
Met 314,442 78,597 206,269 74,067

Bank
31 December 2014 31 December 2013
Deductiblel “Deductible!

(taxable) Deferred {taxable) Deferred
temporary tax assets/ temporary tax assets/
difference  (liahbilities) difference (liabilities)

Deferred tax assets
Allwance for impasment loses 268,100 67,258 224 152 6,024
Fair value changes of financial

instruments 10,404 2601 42831 10,708
Accrued but not paid staff cost 24,2948 2,237 24527 8,157
Early retirement benefits £933 2235 10,356 2.589
Provisian 13,002 3476 4,723 1.181
Others 208 o2 22 4
Subtotal 527500 §1850° 30611 76,663
Deferred tax liabilities
Fair value changes of financial

INSIrUMments {13,855} {3,464) {10,831) {2.708)
Others (105} 27) {106) {17}
Subtotal (13,564} (3481} 110.937) [2.125)
Met 313,536 78368 285,774 73,938
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
{amiounts in millions of Renminbe, undess otheraase stated]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
26 OTHER ASSETS

Group
As at 31 December

2014 2013
Interest recenvable 97,9438 TE022
Land use nghts (1) 23,524 23,857
Accounts recewable and temporary payments (2} 16,708 18,656
Premiums recervable and reinsurance assets 13,532 9,346
Leng-term deferred sxpenses 3,645 3,480
investment property 2,846 3312
intangible assets 2,593 2,627
Foreclosed assets 4a7 873
Others 2o 1.435
Taotal 163,822 138,608

Bank
As at 31 December

2014 2013
Interest recewable a7.411 74,607
Land use nghts (1) 23.074 23,838
Accounts recewable and temporary payments (2) 15,924 17,210
Leng-term deferred expenses 3,640 3,470
Investroent property 2.916 2.905
intangible assets 2,400 2425
Foreclosed: assels 45T 873
Others 2,438 1,355
Total 148,290 126,684
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the yesr ended 31 December 2014
Camounts in milkons of Rerminkd, unless othersise Sated)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
26 OTHER ASSETS (Continued)

(1) Land use rights

The carrying amount of land use rghis {including leasehold land m Hong Kong) analyzed by the
remaming terms of the leases

Group
Az at 31 December
2014 2013
Held in Hang Kong
on long-term lease (over 50 years) 1,458 1,023
Held gutside Hong Kong
on keng-term lease (over S0 years) 304 367
on med ium-term lease (10-50 years) 21624 22402
on short-term lease {less than 10 years) 48 E5
Subtotal 22,085 22834
Total 23,524 23,857
Bank
As at 31 December
2014 2013
Held in Hong Kong
on long-term lease lover S0 years) 1.027 1.023
Held cutside Hong Kong
on long-term lease (aver 50 years) 354 ELT
on medium-term lease {10-50 years) 21,605 22,383
on short-term lease {less than 10 years) 48 &5
Subtotal 22,047 22,815
“Total 23,074 23,838

According 1o the relevant laws and regulations, subsequent to the Bank's transformabion into
a jomt stock company, land use rights previously held by the Predecessor Entity are to be
transferred o the Bank As at 31 December 2014, the registration transfer process of certain
fand use reghts has not been completed Management believes that the meomplete registration
transfer process does not affect the nghts of the Bank as the legal successor 1o those land use

nghts

{2) Accounts receivable and temporary payments primanly inclede items in the process of clearing
and settlement

27 BORROWINGS FROM CENTRAL BANK

As-at 31 December 2014, borrowings fram central bank manly inclede Medium-term Lending
Facilitres from PEOLC amounting to RMB20, 000 million {31 December 2013: Nane)
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

28 DEPOSITS FROM BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Group
As at 31 December
2014 2013
Deposits from
Deamestic banks 145,043 172,322
Other domestic financial institutions 666,905 47,711
Owerseas banks 13,045 8,153
Other overseas inancial institutions 3,148 1,168
“Total 831,141 729,354
Bank
As at 31 December
2014 2013
Deposits from
Domestic banks 148,304 173,459
Other domestic financial institutons o267 549,413
Owerseas banks 13,045 8,154
Other overseas hinancial institutions 3,148 1,168
Total 834,765 732,194

29 PLACEMENTS FROM BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Group
As at 31 December
2014 2013
Placements from
Demestic banks and ather financal institubions 62,537 64,511
Owerseas banks and other financial institutbons 162,386 109,852
Total 224,923 174,363
Bank
As at 31 December
2014 2013
Flacements from
Domestic banks and other financial institutions 40,191 38,135
Owerseas banks and other financial institulions 157.612 107,780
Total 197,803 145,924
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Mates 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the yesr ended 31 December 2014
Camounts in milkons of Rerminkd, unless othersise Sated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

30 FINAMCIAL LIABILITIES HELD FOR TRADING

a1

The financial liabalities held for trading are liabilities related to precious metal contracts

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES DESIGMATED AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR

LOSS
Group
As at 31 December
2014 2013
Principal guaranteed wealth management products 347,282 285,454
Bank
As at 31 December
2014 2013
Frincipal guaranteed wealth management products 347,285 285,454

The Group designates wealth management products with pnincipal guarantesd by the Group as
financial Fabilities at fair value through profitor loss The cormesponding investments are designated
as financeal assets at far value through profit or loss: As at 31 December 2014, the far value of
these preducts issued by the Group and the Bank were lower than the contractual ameount payable
to the hobders of these products upon maturity by RMBE,558 million (31 December 2043 RMBS, 104
mmillign}

For the current and prior year, them were no ssynificant changes in the fair value of the Group and
the Bank’s financial liabilities designated at far value through prefit or loss that were attributable to
the changes in the Group and the Bank's own credit nsk
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For the year ended 21 December 2014
{emoumts inomilions of Penminbs, unless otheredse stated])

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

32 FINANCIAL ASSETS 50LD UNDER REFURCHASE AGREEMENTS

Group
As at 31 December
2014 2013
Analyzed by type of collateral
Dbt securises 131,021 26,391
Eills — 37
Loans - 355
Total 131,021 26,787
Bank
As at 31 December
2014 2013
Analyzed by type of collateral
Debit securites 126,950 24,633
Bills — 37
Total 126,950 24,670

The collateral pledged under repurchase agreement & disclesed in Mote W 46 Cantingent Linkbilites
and Commitments — Collateral
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For the year ended 31 Decerniber 2014
amourts in milbons of Renminkd, urdess otheraise Rated)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
33 DUE TO CUSTOMERS
Group
As at 31 December
2014 2013
Demand deposits
Corpotsle cuslomers 3,012,527 F.014,858
Individual customers 3.546.541 3,437,661
Time deposits
Corporate customers 1.485.274 1,345,988
Indmidual customers 3882102 3,490,157
Pledged deposts {13 299,437 247 656
Others 307.516 275,051
Total 12,533,397 11,811,411
Bank
As at 31 December
2014 2013
Demand deposits
Corporate customers 3,012,745 3,014,816
Indhvidual customirs 3,546,432 3.437.536
Time depaosits
Corporate customers 1,485,168 1,245,016
Individual customers 3.2871.683 3,480,514
Pledged deposts {1} 296,625 244,830
Others 7516 275,051
“Total 12,530,169 11,808,163

(1) Analyzed by the activity to which the deposits are related:

Group
Az at 31 December

2014 2013
Bank acceptance 118.330 29,842
Guarantee and letters of guaranies £3.630 45,625
Trade finance 50,423 30,305
Letters of credit 21,567 29,918
Oithers 45,487 51.966
Total 299,437 247,656
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
{amoumts inomillions of Renmin b, unless othanwse stated]

IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
33 DUE TO CUSTOMERS (Continued)

(1) Analyzed by the activity to which the deposits are related: (Continued)

Bank
As at 31 December

014 2013
Bank acceplance 118,330 85,842
Guaraniee and letiers of guaraniee 63,630 45,625
Trade finance 50,423 30,308
Letters of credit 21,567 29,918
Others 42,675 49,140
Total 296,625 244,830

34 DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED

Group
As at 31 December
2014 2013
Bonds ssued (1 191,594 156,300
Certificates of depaosit ssued (2 113.2838 106,991
Commercial papers issued (3} 111,800 -
Interbank certificates of deposit ssued (4) 7.885 2,570
Total 325,167 266,261
Bank
Az at 31 December
2014 2013
Bonds issyed (1) 190, 163 156,300
Certificates of deposit isdued {2} 113.338 106,991
Commercial papers issued (3} 11.800 —_
Interbank certificates of deposit ssued {4} 7.885 2,970
Total 373,336 266,261

As at 31 Decernber 2014 and 2013, there was no default related to any debt securnties ssued
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Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the yesr ended 31 December 2014
Camounts in milkons of Rerminkd, unless othersise Sated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
34 DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED (Contnued)

(1) The carrving value of the Group's bonds issued are as follows:

Group
As at 31 December
2014 2013

5 3% subordinated fived rate bonds

matunng in June 2026 ) 50,000 50,000
4 89% subordinated fixed rate bonds

matunng In December 2027 {1} 50,000 50,000
5 8% Teer-two capital fixed rate bonds

matunmg in August 2024 (i} 30,000 —
4 0% subordinated fxed rate bonds

maturing n May 2024 () 25,000 25,000
3 2% foeed rate RME bonds

maturing in Movernber 2015 v} 1,000 1,000
3.3% subondinated fixed rate bonds

maturmg in May 2015 fwi} = 20,000
Subordinated floating rate bonds

matursg in May 2019 {wii} —_ 5000
hedium term notes issued {wile} 36,125 5404
Total nomanal value 192,125 156,404
Less: Unamortred issuance cost and discouris (131} (1o}
Carrying value 191,934 156,300

Bank
As at 31 December
2014 2013

5. 3% subordinated fixed rate bonds

matunmg In June 2026 {n 50,1000 0,000
499% subardinated fixed rate bonds

matunng i December 2027 i} S0,000 20,000
5 &% Teer-two capital fied mate bonds

maturing in August 2024 {ii} 300,000 —
4 0% subordinated fixed rate bonds

matunmg in hMay 2024 e} 25,000 25,000
3.2% fixed rate RME bonds

maturmg m Movemnber 2015 v} 1,000 1000
3.3% subordinated fixed rate bonds

maturing in hMay 2019 {wi) — 20,000
Subordmated floating rate bonds

maturdg in May 2019 {wit} — 5000
Medium term notes ssued (v} 34,289 5,404
Total nomanal value 190,285 156,404
Less: Unamortized issuance cost and discounts {125} {104}
Carrying value 190,163 156,300
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Motes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statemeants
For the yesr ended 31 December 2014
Lamoumts i milions of Renminbs, undess otheredse stated]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
34 DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED (Cantinued)

{7} The carrying value of the Group's bonds issued are as follews: (Continued )}

Pursuant to the approval by relevant requiatory authornites, the bonds ssued by the Group ane
setout as below:

@ The subordinsned ficed mate bomdd o m dume 2007 have 3 tenor of 15 peas with & ficed coupon ate of
5.5%, payabde anovaly. The Bark has an opnion to redeern ol of the bamvds ot faos valve on 7 funs 2621, i the
Bard did not exenciie this option, the coupon rate of the bonds would remann &l 53% per anoum fram 7 lune
202 o

(4} The subordinated foed @re bonds isued in December 2017 kave & tanor of 15 yeavs with a fued coupon mate of
o 55%, payable sorcally. The Sank has an epbon to redsen oY of the bonds at face value on 20 December 2022,
if the Bank detf ot exerare the codiowt Hhee coupan mate of the Bondt would remain ot 4999 per aneurn from 20
Decwmbar 2027 anwards

(). The Tier-rwo capitsd bonds imred in August 2018 have  Penor of 10 poars, with 2 ficed coupan rie of 5 8%
payabie annually, The Bank has an option fo redesm pavt ov o of the bonds af face value on 17 Avgust 2013
if specified medemption condébions a5 stpcisted @ the offenng documents were mel subject to regqufaton
-apprenal. if the Bank dhd not exercge the gpbion. the coupon ree af the bonds would remain &t 5 8% per annum
from 14 August 2015 onards. The Tiertwo captal bands have the wete-down ferture of 3 Trar-tn cagitp!
fnstrument, wivch aslows: the Bank 1o wrte down the entive paptps of the bands when regulatary taggemng
vmnts az shipulated in the offering docinments oocur and Ay sccumulited cinpard indens=t would became nol
payahie These Tisr-two capital Bands are qualiied as Tiertwo Capitsl instmaments @1 sooondnace with the J8RC
FegLATEmAnts

fad  The subardinated ficed rate bondt moued an May 2009 have 3 tancr of 15 year, with & fured covpon sate of
o 0%, papable sanvally. The Bank has an eption to redesr 2 of the Bonds ar face value an 20 May 2019 W the
Bard: would pot sarcma this aphon, the coupon reie of the honds vl incrass 1o 7.0% per arnum frivn 20 May'
2015 erards

() The AME bonds sxued in Hong Kong in November 2012 have a tenor of 3 pears: with & fixed coupon @te 3 2%,
payahie semw-annuady.

fm}l  The subordinared fieed e bands amred in May 2009 had & tenor of 10 pears, with 8 foeed coupon rte of 7 79,
payable annually. The Bank had an cption and had evercred the apdeon (o redeem alf of the bonds ar face value
on 20 May 2014,

(v} The subordinated floating mte bonds swed in Adey 2005 had » tenor of [0 years. The coupon rate was based
on the PAOC areqwar fired dopond rafe on fhe issue date and resed annually plus 60 baos podnts. bdenest was
payabie annuatly. The Bank had ap option and had exerosed the opdon o redesm aff of the honds at face waiue
o 20 May 2014,
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For the year ended 31 Decernber 2014
wamounts inomilbons of Rerminki, unless sthersise Sated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
34 DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED (Contnued)

(1) The carryving value of the Group's bonds issued are as follows: (Continued)

Pursuant to the approval by relevant regulatory authorities, the bonds ssued by the Group are
set out as below: (Coantinued)

fwrid  The medicm tanm Acted (TN ware miusd by the Oyerieas Opamatond of the Groue o0 are maedured
wmortired cost The detas of medinm evm poles reued were b5 folonws

Group
4
Marurity dates Coupon rates Cutstanding
%) balance
Frsed gane USD MTHs January 2015 10
December 2018 021-2.87% 18,774
Froed rate RMAB MTHE Februany 2015 bo
Augua 309 2.70-3 B0 11,683
Fied rate CHF AT Juby 2015 10
Augait A5 D E5-100 1,743
Flosting rate USD WTH: Apnl 2015 1o F-month LSH LEOR
arch 2007 P OEE 10 1.35 1.E36
Fiied rate EUR MTHZ Mugura 2015 1o
September 2015 fas=112 25
Froed rate HED MTHs May 2015 10
Augadh 2005 135-1.45 B0
Fixed ra1e Y MTHE Augus 2015t
Movember 2015 050-0.70 a3
ZTero coupon EUR MTH Lanuary 2018 - ERE
Tatal ECT
Bank
4
Maturity dates Coupan rates Dutatanding
ranging from it balance
Fooed rate USD bATH: Janpang X015 1o
December 2018 0852 875 18938
Fed rate B MTMNL Febraang 20015 8
BAugud X019 2 T0=3.20 11683
Fined sa1e OHF MTHE hily 2015 to
August FOE5 DE5-1.00 1742
Floating rate LED MTHS ARl 1015 to F-menih U0 LEOR
March 20T plus DB8-135 1,626
Fizaed rane EUR MTNs Augua 2015 1o
Ceptember 2015 Ba%-112 235
Ficed rats HED MTHz Mwy 2015 10
August 2015 135149 ]
Fixed rate v &TH2 Augur 201510
MHovemnber 2085 050070 31
Lo coiphen FLIE MTM Laiaey FO1S = i3
~Total 34389
Group and Bank
A 8t 31 Decernbar 2013
Maturity dates Coupan rates Outstanding
ranging from [k ] balance
Fied rate USD MTHS Decsmber 2018 LETS 3080
Fiped rate A pATHE une X014 1o
December 2018 2 a0-2 B0 2 364
L 5408
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Sigtemants

Motes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statem

For the year ended 31 December 2008
{amoumts in milions of Penminbs, unleds otheneise stated]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

34 DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED (Continued)

{2) Asat 31 Decemnber 2014, certificates of deposit were issued by the Overseas Operations of the
Group and were measured al amoriized cost

{3 Asal 31 December 2014, the commercsl papers were issued by the Overseas Operations of
the Group and were measured at amortized cost The terms of the commercial papers range
from seven days to one year, with the interest rates ranging from 0019% 100 93%

{4) The interbank ceruficates of deposit were issued by the Head Office of the Bank A= at 31
December 2014, the face value of cutslanding interbank certificates of deposil ssued with a
tenor of three months, nine months and one year were RME4 000 mdlion, RME3000 million
and RMEB 1,000 milhon, respectively. Az at 31 Decermber 2013, the face value of outstanding
mterbank certificates of deposit issued were RME 3,000 maillion with a tenor of three months

35 OTHER LIABILITIES

Group
As at 31 December

2014 2013
interest payable 152,876 163,328
Cleanng and settlement 46,433 51,365
Insurance kabilities 42,789 30,864
Income taxes payable 41,338 44,263
Staff costs payable {1 40,511 45,573
Provision 13,802 4,723
Business and other taxes payable 7,535 7,492
Amount payable o the MOF {2 3.275 1;535
Dormant accounts 1,616 1871
Others 45,712 44,365
“Total 435,987 395,383
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For the year ended 31 Decerniber 2014
amourts in milbons of Renminkd, urdess otheraise Rated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
35 OTHER LIABILITIES (Continued)
Bank
As at 31 December

2014 2013
Interest payable 192,638 163,221
Cleanng and settlement 46431 51,346
Income faxes payable 41187 44,132
Staff costs payable {1} 40,163 45220
Provision 13902 4,723
Busine<t and other taxes payable 7.553 7.452
Amount payabie 1o the MOF (2} 3,275 1,539
Dormmant accounts 1,616 1.8471
Oithers 42273 41,580
Total 389,088 361,104

{1) Staff costs payable

Group
As at 31 December
2014 2013
Shaort-term employee benefits {1y 30952 34,514
Defined contribution benefits (i) 621 703
Early retirement benefits {hii} #,938 10,356
Total 40,511 45,573
Bank
As at 31 December
2014 2013
Short-term employee benefits ) 0,504 34,161
Defined contribution benefits [ A2 7o
Early retirement benefits (i} 8,938 10,356
“Total 40,163 45,230
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
{amiounts in millions of Renminbe, undess otheraase stated]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
35 OTHER LIABILITIES {Continued)
{7) Staff costs payable (Continued)
() Shor-term employes banerfits

Group
2014
1 lanuary Accrued Paid 31 December
Saanes. bonuses, sllowance
and submdies (&) 24973 66,780 (67.525) 24,238
Heazsing Tunds (a) 245 H186 (8.248) 183
Saceal insurance a) 181 4454 {4 457) 178
Incluching. Medical insurance 1489 3848 {3,843} 154
Employment injury
insurance 16 278 2B 12
Maternity
nsurance 16 328 (332) 12
Labros wmeon fees and staft
education expenses 2,726 2877 (2,520) 3183
Oithiers 6389 12825 (16.034) 3180
Total 34,514 95,222 (98, 764) 30,952
Group
2013
1 Janwary Accrued Pald 31 December
Salanes, bonuses, allowance
and subsiches (a) 25,704 63,753 (Bl 459) 24973
Heapsaneg Tumeds {3) 30 7213 (7.269) 245
Soceal insurance (a) 180 3837 {3.846) 181
Including: Medical insurance 157 3302 (3,310) 149
Employment injury
Insurance is 249 {248} 16
Matermaty
Insurance 18 286 (ZE8] 16
Labor unapn fees and stall
echcalion ExpeEntes 2304 2,827 [2.408) 2,776
Others 5,745 12,138 (11,454} 6,380
“Total 34,244 89,773 (89,503} 34,514
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the yesr ended 31 December 2014
Camounts in milkons of Rerminkd, unless othersise Sated)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
35 OTHER LIABILITIES {Contnued)
(1) Staff costs payable (Continued)
i  Short-term employee benefits (Contnued)

Bank
2014
1 lanuary Accrued Paid 31 December
Salaries, bonuses, dllowance
and subsides (3) 24,627 65,927 1046, 666} 23,888
Housing funds (a) 244 8,148 {8,200 183
Sociall nsyurance (&) 181 4,425 (4,428 178
Inchoding. Medical insuranoe 145 3N (3.E16) 154
Employment
INjUry Insurance 16 7k {281} 12
Maternity
INUrance 16 327 {331} 12
Labor union fees and staff
education spentes 2026 2854 (2,499 318
Others 6,383 12,731 (15,9400 3174
Total 34,161 54,165 {97.742) 30,604
Bank
203
1 lanuary Accrued Paid 31 December
Satanes, bonuses, allowande
and subgdies (3) 25,553 62 969 {63, 895) 24 627
Heazsing funds {3} 299 7183 7238 244
Sacidl nsurance (a) 190 3514 {3.823) 131
fnchuding. Medical insurance 157 38 (3,289 143
Ernployment
INjUry. INSUrande 1% 248 (247) 16
Maternity
insiarance 18 Z8S {287 16
Labar umen fees and stalf
education expenses 2,298 2823 (2,395) 2,716
Others 5739 12,045 {11,401} 6,333
“Total 34,079 89,634 (88,752) 34,161

@l Salavnes boouses afpwance and subsdes housing funds and soos oaurance s irmely detnbuted and
paid i gocoerance with the relevant s ang reguisbions and the Group s polcy:
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For the peEar ended 31 December 2014
{macimts imomillions of RPenminbs, undess otheredse stated]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (C
35 OTHER LIABILITIES {Continued)
{1} Staff costs payable (Continued)
i Defined comribution benefits

Group
2014
1 lanuary Accrued Paid 31 December
Basic pensions 629 10,695 {10,783} 541
Unemployment insuranoe 65 04 (B03) o6
Annuity Scheme 9 Hrad (3132} 14
“Total 703 14,636 (14.718) FE
Group
2013
1 January Accrued Paid 31 December
Basic pensions B2d 9,491 {S.486) b9
Unemployment insurance 63 130 (F28) 85
Annuity Scheme Sg5g 2.851 {3,861} 9
Total 1,676 13,102 (14,075) 703
Bank
014
1 January Accrued Paid 31 December
Baszic pensions 528 10,632 (107200 541
Unemployment insurance 65 803 (802) E5
Annuity Scheme ) 3137 {3,132} 14
Total 703 14,572 (14,654} 621
Bank
2013
1 January Accrued Paid 31 December
Basic pensions 624 9444 {9.439) 629
Unemployment insurance &3 730 {728) &5
Annuity Scheme G 2881 {3.844) o
Total 1,659 13,055 (14,011} 703

The defined contribution benefits are brmely dstnbuted and paw in accordance with the
rebevant laws and regulations and the Graup's pohicy
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Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the yesr ended 31 December 2014
Camounts in milkons of Rerminkd, unless othersise Sated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
35 OTHER LIABILITIES {Continued)
(1) Staff costs payable (Continued)

(i Early retirerment benefits

Group and bank
2014
1 lanuary Accrued Paid 31 December
Early retirermnent benafits 10,356 1.611 {3,020} 2.938
Group and bank
2013
1 January Accrued Paid 31 December
Early retirement benefits 10,777 1.854 13.275) 10,356

The principal assumptions used for the purpose of the acluanal valuations were as
follows

Group and Bank

As at 31 December

2014 2013

Discount rate 3.41% 4 38%

Annual average medical expense growth rate 8005 8.00%

Annual subsides growth ate £.00%: .00
Marmal rétirement age

— hdale 50 &0

— Female 55 55

Assumptions regarding future mortality expenence are based on the China Life Insurance
hMeortality Table {year 2000-2003) (published histoncal statistics in-China)

Any difference arising from the actual resull ar changes in assumplions may affect the
amount of expense recognized in-the consclidated income statement

{2) Amount payable to the MOF

Purseant to the “Motice on Relevant lssues Concerming the Disposal of Mon-performing
#Assets of Agncultural Bank of China™ (Caijin [2008] No 138 ssued by the MOF, the. MOF
commissioned the Bank 190 manage and dispose of non-performing assets transferred. The
amount payable 1o the MOF represents proceeds collected by the Group from the deposal of
these non-pedfarming assets on behalf of the MOF

Annual Report 2014 271

368/496



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

Motes to the Consolidated Financial

For the year ended 31 December 2008
{amoumts in milions of Penminbs, unleds otheneise stated]

Statements

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
36 ORDINARY 5HARES

For the current and prior year, there was no change in the Bank's ardinary share capital

As at 31 December 2014
and 2013
Mumiber
of shares Mominal
{millions) value
Reqistered, 1ssped and fully paid
A shares of RME1 sach 284,055 294,055
H shares of RME 1 gach 30,739 30,739
Total 324,794 324,794

A share refers to the ordinary shares listed in the Mainland China. They are offered and traded in
RMB H share refeis 1o the ordinary shanes lsted in Hong Kong Thew par value o denarminated in
RME. They were initially offered and are currently traded in HKD

As at 31 December 2014, 9,892 million A shares and none of the H shares: of the Bank with par

value of RMEB] per share were subpct 1o lock-up restriction respectaely (31 December 2013 9892
mitlien A shares and noneof the H shares, respectively)

37 PREFEREMNCE SHARES

lssued lsued
um ber nominal
Financisl instruments lmndprice  of shares valug  Maturity
i s Diwidend rate (AME yuan]  (millions)  (millicns) date Comversions
Freference shares B% per anirum o the fest
Foe years after imsie, hor cormes i
and re-praced every five yeas R maturity durg
s stated below 100 400 40,000 date the yeae

The Bank was authonzed 1o @2ue 800 milllon preference shares of RME100 each pursuant to the
approval by its ordinary sharehalders and relevant regulatory authorities The first tranche of 400
million preferance shares were 1ssued at par in Movember 2014, The carrying amount, net.of direct
ssuance expenses, was RME35.944 millon as at 21 December 2014, There weare no changes in such
amounl Since Esuance

The first tranche preference shares bear a dividend rate of 6% per annum payable annually for the

first five years from ssuance. The dividend rate will be re-prced every five years thereafter with
reference to the fiveyear FRC treasury bonds yield plus a foced premium of 2.29%:
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

37 PREFERENCE SHARES (Contnued)

As authorized by the shareholdars' annual general meeting. the Board of Directors has the sole
discretion to deciare and distribute dwvidends on preference shares. The Bank shall not dstnbute any
dvidends to its ordmary sharehalders before it declares such dividends to-preference shareholders
far the relevant period The distibution of preference shares douidend & at the Bank's discretion
and & non-cumulatve Freference shareholders are not entitied (o participate in the distribution of
retarned profits except for the dndends stated above

The EBank has redemption option when specified conditions as stipulated in the offenng documents
are met and subject 1o regulatory approval, whereas preference shareholders have no right 1o
require the Bank to redeemn the preference shares.

Upan liquidabon, the chims of preference shareholders have prionty over ardinary shareholders on
the residual assets of the Bank. but are subordinated to those of depositors, general creditors; Teer-
Twe Capital Instruments holders o any othes subardinated debt holders wath eguvalent nghts

Upon occurrence of the inggenng events as stipulated in paragraph 2(3) of the Guidance of the
China Banking Regulatory Commssion on Commercial Banks® Innovation on Capital Instruments
{CBRC No. 56 [2012]) and subject to regulatory approval preference shares shall be mandatonky
converted inke ordinary A shares of the Bank at the conversion price of RMEZ 43 yuan per share,
partially or entirely. The conversion peice of the preference shares will be adjusied in the events
including bonus Isswes, rights issue, capitalization of reserves and new issuances of ardinary shares,
subject to terms and formulas provided for in the offering documents, to maintain the relatve
interests between preference shareholders and ordinary shareholders

The preference shares are classified as equity Instruments, and presented as equity in the
consclidated statement of financial position, The preference shares are qualified as Addtional Teer-
one Capital Instruments i accordance with the CBRC requiremenits:

38 CAPITAL RESERVE
The capital reserve represents the premium related 1o ordinary shares ssued by the Bank in 2010

Share premum was recorded in the capital reserve after deducbing direct ssue expenses, which
consisted primanly of underwnting fees and professional fees
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For thie pear ended 31 December 20014
Lamoumts i milions of Fenminb, unless othenadse stated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

39 INVESTMENT REVALUATION RESERVE

Group
2014
Gross amount Tax effect Net effect
1 January 2014 (30,313} 7.541 (22772}
Fair value changes on available-for-sale
financal assets 34,722 {8857} 26,065
Transferred to the consolidated incame
saternent upon disposal of available-for-zale
financial assets {233} 58 {175}
31 December 2014 4,176 (1.058) 3118
2013
Gross amount Tax effect Net effect
1 January 2013 {1.224) 323 {9011}

Fair value changes on available-for-sale

financral assets (29.440) 1.306 (22,134}
Transferred to the consolidated income

statement upon dispesal of avarlable-for-sale

financml assats 351 {88} 263
31 December 2013 (30,313} 7.541 (22,7172)
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For the year ended 31 Decerniber 2014
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

39 INVESTMENT REVALUATION RESERVE (Continued)

Bank
2014
Gross amount Tax effect Het effect
1 lanuary 2014 (30.282) 1532 (22,750}
Fair value changes on available-for-sale
financial assets 34,360 (8.573) 25,787
Transferred to the income statement upon
disposal of avadable-for-sale financial assets & 12} G
31 December 2014 4,086 (1,043) 3,043
2013
Gross amount Tax effect Met effect
| Fanuary 2003 (1241} 323 L&58)
Fair value changes on avalable-for-sale
financial assets 25,492) 1.317 (22,175}
Transferred to the income statement upon
disposal of avalable-for-sale financial assets 431 {108) 323
31 December 2013 (30.282) 7,532 {22,750)

Annual Reporl 2014 275

372/496



EDINETOOOO
O0O00000000000(Ee24593)
Oooooooa

Motes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statemeants
For the yesr ended 31 December 2014
Lamoumts i milions of Renminbs, undess otheredse stated]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

40 SURPLUS RESERVE

Under PRC Law. the Bank 15 required to transfer 10%%: of its net profit determined under the PRC
GAAP to a non-distributable statutary surplus reserve. Appropnation to the statutory surplus resemve
may cease when the balance of this reserve has reached 50% of share capital Pursuant to the
resalution of the Beard of Directors” Meeting held on 24 March 2015, an appropriation of 10% of
the profit for the current year, determined under. the generally accepted accounting principles of
the PRC, to the statutory surplus resenve, i the amount of RME 17,894 million (2013 RMEB16,578
million]) was approved

Subject to the approval of the equity holders, the statutory surplus reserves can be used for
replenishung accumulated [osses or increasng the Bank's erdinary share capital The statutory surplus
reserves amount used to increase the ordinary share capital s limited to a level where the balance
of the statutory surplus reserves after such capstabization 15 not less than 25% of the ordinary share
capital

41 GEMERAL RESERVE

Pursuantto Cagin [2012] Mo, 20 “Requirements on Impairment Allowance for Financal Insttutions™
{the "Requirement”) issued by the MOF, effectve 1 July 2012, in addition to impairment allowance,
the Bank establishes a general reserve within equity holders” equity through the appropriation of
profit to address unidentified potental impairment risks The general reserve should not be less than
1.5% of the aggregate amount of nsk assets as defined by the Requirement The general resesve
includes requlatory reserve approprated by the Bank's overseas branches ("Owerseas Institutrons”)
pursuant 1o local regulatony requirements

Pursuant to relevant PRC regulatery requirements, some domestc subssdisrses of the Bank are
required 1o appropriate certain amounts of their net profit as general reserves

Dunng the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group and the Bank transferred RMB17,503 millien
{2013 RMBG3.855 rmallion) and BME17,3%94 million (2013 RMBS2.570 million) to the General
Reserve pursuant to the regulatery requirements m the PRC and cverseas jurisdictions. Of this
amount, RMB17,330 mallion (2013 RMEBE3,$82 million) relsted to the appropration proposed for
the year ended 31 December 2013 which was approved in the annual general meeting held on 23
June 2014

42 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purpose of the consohdated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equialents include the
follewing bafances with an orginal maturity of three months or less

Group
As at 31 December
2014 FIER
Cash 111,262 29,759
Balance with central banks 76,535 101,657
Depesits with banks and ather financial insttutions G648, 355 76223
Placements with and loans to banks and
other financial institutions 157,151 146,383
Financial assets held under resale agreements 284,248 389,737
Total 738,201 B
276 @ hER R
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

43 OPERATING SEGMENTS

Operating segrents are identified on the basis of internal management reports with respact 1o
the components of the Group that are reguiarly reviewed by the Board and relevant managerment
committees, which constitute’ the chief operating decsion makers, for the purposes of allocating
fesaurces 1o segments and assessing thes perfomance The Group's chief operating dedision makers
review three different sets of financial information based on {1} geagraphical locations, (i} business
actwities and (w0} County Area and Urban Area banking business

The measurement of segment assets and labilites, as well as segment revenue, expense and nesults
5 based on the Group’s accounting poleies. There s oo difference between the accounting polies
used n the preparation of the consolidated financial: staternents and these used in preparing the
operating segment information

Transactions between segmenis are conducied undsr normal commercial terms #nd conditions
Internal eharges and transfer phong are determined with reference to market rates and have been
reflected in the performance of each segment

Segment revenue, resulls, assets and liabiites include items directly atinbutable to a segment as
weell as those that can be allacated on a reasonable base

Geographical operating segments
The details of the geographical opeialing segments are as Tollows:

Head Office

Yangtze River Delta Shanghai, liangsu, Zhejiang, Mingho

Pearl River Delta Guangdong, Shenzhen, Fujian, Xiamen

Bohai Rim Bedjing, Tianjin, Hebei, Shandong, Qingdac

Central China: Shanxi, Hubei, Henan, Hunan, Jangxi, Hainan, Anhui

Western Ching Chongging, Sichyan, Guizhau, Yunnan, Shaznx, Gansu, Qinghai,
Ningaia, Xinjtang {(including Xinpang Bagluan) Tibel Inner Mongola,
Guangxi

Mortheastern China Liaening, Heiforggiang, llin, Dakan

Owerseas and Others: Overseas beanches and subsidianes
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
{amiounts in millions of Renminbe, undess otheraase stated]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Confinued)
43 OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)
Geographical operating segments (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2014
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Camounts in milkons of Rerminkd, unless othersise Sated)

IV  NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
43 OPERATING SEGMENTS (Contnued)
Geographical operating segments (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2013
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
43 OPERATING SEGMENTS (Cantinued)

Business aoperating segments
Thie detalls of the business operating segments are as follows

Corporate banking

The corporate banking segment provides financial products and services to corporations,
government agencies and financial institutions. The range of products and services includes
corporate loans gnd advances, trade finance, deposit products, corporate wealth management
services and other types of corporate mtermediary services.

Personal bamking

The personal banking segment provides financal products and services to individual customers.
The. range of products and services inchudes personal loans, depesit products, card business,
personal wealth management services and other types of personal intermediary services

Treasury operations

The Group's teasury operations conduct maney market and repurchase wansactions, debt
mstruments investments, precious metal transactions and derwvative transactions for its own
accounts oron behalf of customers

Others

COthers comprse companents of the Group that are not attributable to any of the abowe
segments, along with certain assets, labilibes, incoeme or expenses of the Head Office that
could not be allocated on a reasonable basis
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
43 OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)

Business operating segments (Continued)
For the year ended 21 December 20714

Corperate Pessonal Treasury Consolidated
banking banking eperations Others tatal
External ntenest income 351,684 138,133 HETS ERCT) 649,289
Fxterral intenest expents B30 (152,025} (21, 90) {1.568) (269, 398)
Intes-zegement inberest {epensel/
nme (22.285) 166,724 (144,439 - -
Hat mbegest income 236 462 155832 B 22 479891
Fee ared commission moome 15921 A0.EST FE 1082 ELEES
Feee ard commision expenie {2A4TH) (5,240 {2} (A (7. 7600
Mt bee and conmession sngorme 43443 BT il 1,2 RS
Net trading gam - - 1818 90 1,902
hiet gamfioss) on firanoa
mnstrumments dessgrated af fai
walue theowgh proft or boss - - 1,524 iy 1.505
et (ossYgin on ivestment
secunibies - - (23 3 335
(rther cperating income 1,796 1427 2563 4078 10,254
Tperateg meamme 260,701 189,876 I3 7,653 34,126
Dperating expenses {1106, 065) {47.354) (20.086) {6333 (223598
Irrpuairerien t bosses on assels 6215 (3,431} {1,850 {4153 {67.971)
Prokit before tax 12440 #3091 B0 1,ES 3257
Incoene L epenie BT
Prohit for the year 179510
Depreciation and smortzaton
micuded I operating expenses {4,139 (11.223) [LE25) 1) (19,328
Capital espendifure 5585 15,065 5214 26 X860
At 31 Decamber 2004
Segment sk naTl 140 PR T 1355168 121 15805512
Uinallocated assets TEed0
Total aszets ThaM 152
Segment liabditees (55589200 [7.929.911) {1.315.637) fSeEN (14500152
Uinalkycatin ligbadties W38
Total babdities {14.541,533)
Credit commiments FEEL] EETE] = = TS5
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continues)
43 OPERATING SEGMENTS (Cantinued)
Business aoperating segments (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2013

Coporate Personal Treasury Consolidated
banking banking aparations Others total
Extermual interesl mdome 307360 H4 5K 158,071 3426 613384
Eutermal intenes] e se (85 TTE) {1 26,8%6) {22,076) {1,494 37188
Indes- segmrent interest (expenself
Incom r2n 156,155 [E38.935) — -
Mat nterest mome 208427 [LEE 6057 1832 36200
Fes and comempsacn Bicome 48934 19026 1 1,076 o]
Fite and comiriscn eeprnse (t.959) [4.55%) {1} B [5.526)
Met fee and commitson incoms 46975 B - 1,068 [ERH
et trading gan - - 2383 T 2360
et (easligan on Bnancial
instrurments desigrated st fair
wahue through profit o boss - - 754] i ]
et (oazhgan on mvestment
serunbes - - [ EdN] Bl 350}
Ottt opurabing incom: 1,690 1309 (1.3 1423 LXir)
[T X309 120,223 21916 4540 465711
Operatng apense (E2A4DN) (90876} 16,174) {&3.156) {198,607}
Impuirrent lossas on assets {23,305} {2%,713) [559) [0 (52950}
Praiht before tax 141,386 662 11,183 il FAL R
Indoime: taw expenge (47 963)
Praft for fhe year 166211
Drepreaaton and amortizabon
inchaded in operating sxpenses e ] (10,089} B37) {17 {17461}
Capitdl expenditure £.251 16087 5381 26 21745
Af 31 December 2013
Seqment ety 5061143 2404547 6,937,843 034 T4 488027
Indudeig Irvestments m
assoiiates and pont wentures. - - - 1 1
Unallocated assets 14075
Total ety 14, 562002
Segment fabikbes (5. 206.616) (7404 26T) (45, 5.06] (73.305) (12.673.204)
Linaliocated Babdities {44,271}
Total absities [F3.717 565)
Credif commitrenty 1,181,880 0 - - 1,481,945
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
43 OPERATING SEGMENTS (Contnued)

County Area and Urban Area segments

The Group's operating segments organized by County Area and Urban Area banking business are set
out as follows

Courty Area Banking business

The Group’s County Area banking business provides a broad range of financial products
and services 1o customars in desgnated County Area, through its operating branches in the
counties or county-level cibes throughout the PRC The products and sennces manly comprss
loans, deposits, bank cards, and other types of intermadiary services.

Lirban Area banking business

The Group’s Urban Area banking business comprises all banking activities outside of the
County Area banking business, overseas branches and subsdiarnes:
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Confinued)
43 OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)
County Area and Urban Area segments
For the year ended 31 December 2074

County Ares Urbsan Area
banking banking Consclidated
business business Eliminations total
External inberest income 166526 532,763 - 699,259
Extirmal mterest expencs (93,707} {175,691} - (269.398)
Irler-seigrment interest income!

[axpense) g 083 194,023} - -
Het nteres mcome 166,902 162,959 - 42989
Fea and commission income 3h 345 56,535 - BF g3
P and commistion expinse (i ] {4, 8y - {7760
Het fee and commesacn income 28,194 51.927 — 80,123
Met tradirsg gain 122 1,686 - 1,908
Het gan on Snan ol

irestrunvents desgnated at far

value through profit ar los kL 1,466 — 1,505
Net qan on irvestment

seEities — 335 — 335
Other opeistng fiodne 2,719 7.645 - 10364
Operating incomi 198,075 326,048 = 51126
Opeating expanses (93.018) {130,880 - {223,858
impairment foszes on assets (28,2400 3731) —_ {57.971)
Profit badore tas 76,220 155,437 - 232257
Ircome tax expense G740
Profit for the year 179,510
Duprocation snd smortization

indudad in operating

Y (,865) 10,463 - (19,358
Capital expenditure 210 17 650 — 25850
Al 31 Decenber 2014
Cogpment amats 5201 613 10,135,651 (2742 15395512
Unaliopcated assets T840
Total assets 15974152
Segrnenst lobbes B 505,147) 19,473,797) 71,792 114,900,152)
Unallocated labshities [41.381)
Total kabdites {14341, 533)
Cradit commitmments i 1255409 - 1582715
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
43 OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)

County Area and Urban Area segments (Contnued)

For the year ended 21 December 2013

County Area Urkan Area
banking banking Consolidated
business business Eliminations total

Extermal inderest inooms 144,389 AER, 995 — 613384
Extarmal interest eqpans (82,146} {155,036) - [237.182)
friter-segmen interest. income

lmprensa) 51253 192,253) - -
Mat mfarest incoméa 154,456 121,706 - rg 202
Fee and commession income 30833 57,564 — 9,657
Fae ard commusiion expensg (2618} {3505 - 06, 56y
Mt fee and commission income 29215 53,956 - 23an
Met tradng gan 357 2,003 - 2,380
Mt loss on finarmal inctraments

desgriated at fair value

throughs profit or loss {137) 502y — (639
Met o o ewesiment secunties - (2500 - (3500
Critar operating income 2054 25873 —_ 5027
Cyper ating incoms 136,085 ITRERS - |
Ciperating expenses (84,908} {113,663) - (148,607
Imgrairment kaxses on axats {23.895) 29,095) - {52,990
Profit befoce tx 17,246 126528 - 214174
Income tas epenie {d7,963)
Prafit for the year 166,211
Dreprection and amortization

indudid in operating

EAparises {7,933} [@.528) = 117.461)
Caprtal expancibure 9,660 18,085 - 13,745
Af 3T Decembar 2013
Segment sl 5477.335 9,076,153 65,500} 14,458,027
Inchsdng: bnvestments in

axodrates and joint ventures - 1 — 1
Unabocsted asets 74,075
Total a3ty 14,562,102
Segment liabddies {5,191,768) (8,546,997} 6550 (13,673 254)
Unabocated habilites LB B
Total ailities {13,717, 565)
Cradt commatments 186,409 1,155,536 — 1,481,245
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continues)
44 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
{1} The Group and the MOF
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Ag at 31 Decemnber 2014, the MOF directly owned 39 21% (31 December 2013, 392 1%) of

the ordinary shares of the Bank

The MOF is a Chinése government minstry, primarily responsiole for managing state fiscal
revenue and expenditures, and establishing and enforong taaton polices It reports 1o the

Chinese State Council

The Group had the following bafances and transactions with the MOF in its ordinary course of

business under normal commercial terms

As at 31 December

2014 2013
Treasury bonds and special government bond 734,514 720,850
Recaiabhe from the MOF (Mote IV 22) 278,314 362,054
Interest recevable
— {reasury bonds and special government bond O 3656 G017
— recenable from the MOF 26 33
Amount payable to the MOF (Mote IV 35) 3,275 1.535
Customer deposits 10,613 11,292
Interest payable 10 L]
Other liabibty
— redemption of treasury bonds on behalf of the MOF 105 112
Year ended 31 December
2014 2013
fnigrest income 38623 38,152
Interest expense {82} &5}
Fewe and commissian income 7.430 8297

Interest rate ranges for ransactions with the MOF during the year are as follows

Year ended 31 December

2014 2013

% %

Treasury bonds and recewable from the MOF 185500 1.7 =500
Custamer depasits 0.01=3 25 0.01=3.25

The Group's redemption commitment for treasury bonds underwniting s dsclosed in Mote IV

46 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments
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For the yesr ended 31 December 2014
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

{2) The Group and Huijin
Central Husjin Investment Ltd  ("Huipn™) & a whaolly-owned subssdary of China Investrment
Corparateon Limited, which & moorporated in Beijmg, PRC. Huipn was established to hold
ceriain equity mterests in state-owned financal institutions as authorzed by the Chinese State
Council and does not engage in other commercial activities. Huijin exercises s legal nghts and
assumes ohligations related to the Bank on behalf of the PRC Government

As at 31 December 2014, Huyin directly owned 40 28% (31 December 2013, 40 785%¢) of the
ordinary shares of the Bank

Tranzactions with Huijin

The Group had the following balances and transacticns with Huim in its crdinary course of
business under normal commercial terms

As at 31 December

2014 2013
Investment in debt securities 11,244 11.130
Interest receivable 134 34
Customer deposis 3,829 10,560
Interest payable - 158

Year ended 31 December

2014 2013
Interest income 425 429
Interest expense {177} {352)

Interest rate ranges for transactions with Huipn dunng the year are as follews

Year ended 31 December

2014 2013

b %

Debt securibes 3.14-4 20 3. 14-4. 20
Customer deposits 0.72=3 30 0.39-3 30
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Motes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statemeants
For the yesr ended 31 December 2014
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
{2) The Group and Huijin (Continued)
Transactions with comparies under Huifin
Hutjin has equily mterests in certan other banks and financial mstitutions under the direction
of the Chinese government The Group enters into tranzactions with these banks and financial

mstiutions in the ordinary course of business under normal commercial terms. Corresponding
balances with these banks and financial institutions were as follows:

Az at 31 December

2014 2013
Tnvestment securities 769,490 686,833
Deposits with banks and other financial institutons 440, 050 21,058
Placements with and loans to banks and ather
financial insttutions 52,797 31,926
Dernvative financial assets 451 623
Financial assets held under resale agreements 30,363 82,705
Loans and advances 1o customers 4,219 385
Deposits from banks and other inancial institutans 30,342 45,561
Placements from banks and other financial institutions 44,965 26,362
Demvative finamcial habidities 465 457
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreemants TAQ 300 11,8528
Customer depasits 1,000 200
Preference shares 200 —
Off-balance sheet items
Man-principal guaranteed wealth management
products ezued by the Bank 300 —_

{3) The Group and other government related entities

Other than disclosed above, a sgnificant porton of the Group’s banking transactions ane
entered mto with government authorites, agencies, affiliates and other State: controlled
entities, These transactions are entered into under normal commercal terms and conditions
and mainly include prevision of credd and guarantes, depasits, foregn exchange transactions,
derwative transactions. agency services, undenaniting and detnbution of bonds 1ssued by
government agencies, purchase, sakes and redemption of investment secunties egsued by
government agencies

bManagement considers that transactions with these entities are activities conducted in the
ordinary course of business, and that the dealings of the Group have not been significantly
of unduly affected by the fact that the Group and those entities are government related
The Group has also established pricing policies for products and ssrvices and such pricmg
policies do not depend on whether or not the customers are government authonlies, agencies,
affiiates and other State controlled entities
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

{(4) The Bank and its subsidiaries

The Bank entered into banking transactons with it subsidares at arm’s length in the ordinary
course of business

Management considers that transactions between the Bank and its subsidiaries are not
significant

(5) Key management personnel

Eey management personnel are those persons who have the autharity and responsibility 1o
plan, direct and contred the activities of the Group

The Group enters into banking transactions with key managemeni personnel in the normal
course of business Duning the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Group had no

matenal transactons with key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key management during the years was as

follows
Year ended 31 December
2014 2013
sakaries, bornuses and staff weltare LR B E] 1097

According ‘1o the regulations of the relevant authorities in the PRC, the key management
personnel's final emaluments for the years ended 31 Decernber 2014 and 2013 have not been
finalized. Management of the Group believes that difference between the final emoluments
and that diciosed abowe will not have significant impact on the conschidated financial
staternents of the Group. The final compensation will be disclosed in a separate announcement
when determined
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
{amoumts in milions of Penminbs, unleds otheneise stated]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

44 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

{6) The Group and the Annuity Scheme

The Group had the following balances.and transactions with the Annuity Schems set up by the
Bank apart from the obligation for defined contribution to the Annuity Scheme

As at 31 December

2014 2013
Deposits from Annuity Scheme 8050 2,050
Interest payable 15 15
Oif-balance sheet item
Mon-principal guaranteed wealth management
products issued by the Bank —_ 500

Year ended 31 December
2014 2013
Interest expense A5G0 200

Interest rate range for ransactions with the Annuity Scheme dunng the year i5-as follows

Year ended 31 December

2014 2013
% %
Depostts from Annuity Schame 5 7 5=5 20 575620
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Motes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the yesr ended 31 December 2014
SAmoit s in milkons of Rerminbi, unless othenmze Rated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
45 STRUCTURED ENTITIES

7] Unconsolidated structured entities managed by the Group

The unconsolidated structured entities managed by the Group consist primarly of collectve
investment vehicles ("WMP Vehicles”) farmed to issue and distrbute wealth management
preducts {“WMPs"), which are not subpct to any guarantee by the Group of the pnncipal
invested of interest to be paid. The WMP Vehicles invest in a range of primarily fised-rate
assels, most typically money market instruments, debt secunties and loan asseis: As the
manager of WhiPs, the Group invests, on behalfl of its customers, the funds raised in the assets
as described in the investmant plan related 1o each WMP and receves Fes and Cormmission
Income The variable réturn that the Group has in relation 1o the WPs is not sgnificant,
therefore, the WP Vehicles are not consolidated by the Group

Az at 31 December 2014, the outstanding WPs issued by WP vehiches (excluding those with
the principal guaranteed ssued by the Group) amounted to RMBGT 2,583 million (31 December
203 RMB412, 1580 millen), which represent the total size of the WP vehxles. In 2014, the
Group's interest in the WMP Vehickes included Net Fee And Commission Income of RMBS.070
milkon {31 December 2013; RMB4. 752 millicn) and Met interest mcome of RMBASS million
(31 December 2013 RME47S million). which related te placements and reverse repurchase
agreement transactions by the Group with WMP Vehicles

The Growp has entered into placements and reverse repurchase agreement transactions at
markel nterest rates woth the WP Vehicles The average balance dunng 2014 and the
outstanding balance as at 31 December 2014 of these transactione were RME 19,788 million
{weighted average outstanding perod of 3 72 days) and RRABE1.300 million, respectively
The average balance during 2013 and the outstanding balance as at 31 December 2013 of
these Uansactions were RMB30,453 million (weaighted average cutstanding period of 2.9 days)
and RAMBED, 282 millian, respectively. The Group was under no obligation to enter info these
tranzactions. As at 31 December 2014 and 31 Becember 2013, the outstanding balance of
these transactions was presented in Placements with and Loans to Banks and Other Financial
Insttutions and represented the Group's maximum exposure o the WP Vehicles.

There wers no contractual iqgudity arangements, guarantees o other commitments amang
or between the Group, WMF vehicles ar any third parties that could increase the level of
the Group's nsk from or reduce s inferest in WHMP vehicles disclosed abowe dunng the
years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013 The Group is not required to absorb any fosses
incurred by WHPs before other parties In 2014 and 2013, no losswas ncurred by the WP
Wehicles relating to the Group's interests in the WMP Vehicles, and the WMP Vehicles did not
experience difficulty in financing their activities
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
45 STRUCTURED ENTITIES (Continued)

{2) Unconsolidated structured entities held by the Group

The Group invests In a number of other unconsolidated structured enUites which are
sponsored and managed by other entities for investment return; and records trading gains or
losses and Interest Income therefrom These assets include wnderlying investments made by
WhiFs managed by the Group, and for which the Group has provided imvestars of the WhiFs
with a principal andfor return quarantee. The Group’s maximum exposure fo these other
unconsakdated structured entities is summarized in the table below

Group
As 2t 31 Decembaer 2014
" Hnancial
assets
desgnated
at fair value Debt
through  Available- Held-te-  instruments
prodits for-sale maturity  dassified as
of lesses Investments  investmant  receivables Tetal
Interest in toust products 24879 - - - 248,704
Cther debt mstruments ERETE — - — 59,876
Aszat management products
isgsed by other entties () 3k s — 0613 1613
Bsseb-backed secunties - E054 - - E.054
Fund irvestments - 3358 - — 3,358
Mortgage-backed secunties — 43 40 — 28
Total 08670 BAGD 40 10,613 327,783
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the yesr ended 31 December 2014
Camounts in milkons of Rerminkd, unless othersise Sated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
45 STRUCTURED ENTITIES (Continued)
{2) Unconsolidated structured entities held by the Group (Continued)

Group
As at 31 December 2013
Finan<ial
assels
designated
at fair value et
through  Awailable- Held-ta-  instruments
profits ar for-sale maturity  classified a2
losses  Inwestments  investment  receivables Total
Interest in trust prodits 171,230 —_ — — 170280
Other dhilit instrumments B0 - - - 38710
Aszet management produds
issued by gther entities §) = %0 — 5,908 6,452
Asset-backed securites - 1,918 - - 1918
Furd investmients - L] - - 928
Mortgage-backed secunties - 87 45 - 132
Total 208,530 3,553 a5 5908 215456

i The piist fodhdg amdnd orodfrdts igoed by othey andiles pramdml Conmdt of WP S8 mand e end plars and
el inatrant plans

The mformaton of total size of the Unconzohdated Structured Entities listed above & not
readily available from the public

{3) Consolidated structured entities

The Group's consolidated strectured entities consist principally of WHMF Vehicles that mssue
and distnbute WiiPs with respect to which the Group has guaranteed the investor's poncipal
mvestment andfor return upen matunity of the WMP, regardless of its actual performance,
and 2 special purpase trust founded by a third party trust company for issuing asset backed
securities by the Group Durng the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Group did
not enter inte financing transactons with any of these WMP Vehicles and the special purposs
rust
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
46 CONTINGEMT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

Legal proceedings

The Bank and its subsidiaries are involved as défendants in certain lawsuits arsing- from their rormal
business operations As at 31 December 2014, provisions of RME1,316 million were made by the
Group and the Bank (31 December 2013 RMEBESES million) based on court judgments or advice
of legal counsel, and mcluded in Mote [V 35 Other Liabilities Management of the Group believes
that the final result of these lawsuits will not have a matenal impact on the financial position or
operations of the Group

Capital commitments

Az at 31 December

aroup Bank
2014 2013 014 2013
Contracted but not
provided for 5302 5,404 4,772 5,404
Authorzed butl not
contracted for 3,656 1,261 3.656 1,261
Tatal 8,958 7,665 8,428 7,665

In additian, the Group's and the Bank's equity mvestment commitments Tor is investes companws
a3 al 31 Decemnber 2014 were RMB30G milkon, and RME1, 306 million, respectively (31 December
2013 Mene)

Credit commitments

Group Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
Loan commiiments
— With an ofiginal maturity
of less than 1 year 15,564 5858 15,664 35.858
— With an ofiginal maturity
of 1 year ar above 425,304 434,411 425,304 434,411
Zublotal F4 7,058 L LR 47,058 ERBEE]
Bank acceplance 415,937 404 25 418,937 404,857
Credit card commitments 254,227 219,682 254,222 219,682
Guarantes and kewers
of guarantes 24111 191,073 243,007 191,073
Letters of credit 227,337 166,069 227.537 196,068
Total 1,582,725 1,481,945 1,584,561 1A481,945

Credit cammitments represent credit cards and general credit facility limats granted to customers
under non-cancellable agreements. These general credil facilities may be draswn in the form of loans
af thiough the Bsuance of letters of credit, guarantes and letters of guarantee of bank acceplance
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
46 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS (Continued)

Credit risk weighted amount for credit commitments

Credit nsk weighted amaount for credit commitments represents the counlerparty credit sk
associated with credit commitments and 15 cakulated in accordance with the “Capital Rules for
Commercial Banks (Provisional)” ssued by the CBRC which was effective 1 lanuary 2013 and 15
dependent on. among other factors, creditworthiness of counterparties and maturity characteristics
of each type of contract As at 31 December 2014, credit risk weighted amount for credit
commitments was measyred under the Internal Ratings — Based approach as disclosed in Note IV 43
Capital Managemeant

As at 31 December 2014

Group Bank
Credit commitrments 200,283 786,732

Az at 31 December 2013, credit nsk weighted amount for credit commitments of the Group and the
Bank were RMB7 238,028 milbkan and RMBT2T 438 million, respectvely, which were measured under
the Weighted approach as declosed in Note IV 49 Capital Management

Operating lease commitments

At the end of each reparting period, the Group, s a lessee, had commitments for future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as fellows

Az at 31 December

Group Bank

014 2013 2014 2013

Within 1 year 4,205 3,575 5 2 3,536
it 2 years 3,153 3,039 3,099 3.016
2 to 3 years 2,525 2,550 2512 2,537
1 to 5 years 3193 2,527 3,193 2,527
Above S years 1,565 3,204 1,965 3.204
“Total 15,046 14,895 14,502 14,820

In’ the current year, operating lease expense recoghized as operating expense by the Group and
the Bank were RMEA, 743 million and RMB4,65T millon, respectvely, and & included in MNote IV &
Cperating Expenses (2013 RMBA, 160 million and RMBA, 106 million, respectively)
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
46 CONTINGEMT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS (Continued)

Finance lease commitments

At the end of each reporting: period, the Group. as a lessor, had the followang non-cancellable
finance lease commitments

As at 21 Decembeer

Group Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
Contractual amount —_— &1 — —

Az at 31 December 2014, the gross amount of finance lease receivables included in the Group's
lhams and advances were EMB35,502 million (31 December 2013 EMB33.154 million), with the
rermaining maturity 25 follows

Az at 31 December

Group Bank

2014 2013 2014 2013
Overdue 1,831 63 —_ —
Within 1 year 11.511 913 — —
1 1o 5years 17,829 22,572 - —_
Above 5 years 4171 1.388 == —=
Total 35,502 33154 — -

Collateral
Aszets pledged

At the end of each reporting penod, the carning amounts of assets pledged as collateral under
repurchase agreements are as follows

As at 31 December

Group Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
Debt securities 137,828 27011 127,757 25,245
Bilks —_ 34 —_— 38
Loans —_— Fley —_ -
“Total 131,828 27 649 127,757 25,286
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
46 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMEMNTS (Continued)
Collateral (Continued)

Assers pledged (Continued)

The careyeng value of financial assets sodd under repurchase agreements by the Group as at 31
December 2014 was RME131,021 millan and the Bank was RME 126,950 milhan (Group as at
31 December 2013 was RMBZ2E,787 mdlion and the Bank was RMB24.670 million) as set out
in Note W 32 Financial Asselz Sold under Repurchase Agreements. Repurchase agreements are
primarily dug within 12 months from the effective dates of these agreements

Financial assets sold under repurchase agresments included certain transactions under which,
tithe of the pledged securities has been transferred o counterparties. These transactions have
been disclosed i hote IV 47 Transferred Financial Assets

In addition, debt securities and deposits with banks and other financial institutions pledged
in-accordance with regulatery requirermnents or as collateral for dervative transactions by the
Group and the Bank as at 31 December 2014 amounted to RMB102,364 milhon in total {Group
and Bank as at 31 December 2013 RMBS,637 millicn)

Collateral accepted

The Group received debt securities, bills, loans and other assets as collateral in connection with
the purchase of assets under resale agreements a3 et out in Note IV 18 Finangial Assets Held
Under Resale Agreements, Certain of these collateral can be resold or re-pledged. The Group
and the Bank has accepted collateral that can be resold or re-pledged with-a carrying amount
of RMB3.055 milion as at 31 December 2014 (31 December 2013: RMEB1,744 million} The
Group and the Bank has not resold or re-pledged any collateral accepted as at 31 December
2014 {31 December 2013 None)

Redemption commitment for treasury bonds

The Group is entrusted by the MOF to enderwrite certain treasury bonds The investors of thess
treasury bonds have a nght to redeem the bonds at par at any time prior te maturity and the Group
15 committed to honar such redemplion requests. The redemption price 15 calculated as the par
value of the bond plus unpaid interest in accordance with the terms of the related early redemption
arrangement

A3 at 31 December 2014, the nominal value of treasury bonds the Group and the Bank was
obligated to redeem pnor to maturdy was BMB44,879 million (31 December 2013 RMEIT.S13
milfien} The original matunities of these bonds vary from 1 to 5 years Management of the Group
expects the amount of redemption before the maturity dates of these bonds will not be material

The MOF will not prowide funding for the early redemption of these bonds on a back-to-back basis,
but will settle the principal and interest upon maturity
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

47 TRAMNSFERRED FINAMNCIAL ASSETS

The Group enters inte ransactions in the normal course of business by which it transfers recognzed
financial assets to thed parties or to structured entities. In somie cases these transfers may gwe rise 1o
full or partial de-recognition of the financial assets concerned. In ather cases where the transferred
assets do not gualify for de-recognitron: as-the Group has retamned substantially. all the rsks and
rewards of these assets, the Group continued to recognize the transferred assets

Other than the secuntization transactions stated below, debt securities wath titke transferred io
counterparties recorded in financal assets sold under repurchase agreements that the Greup and the
Bank did not derecognize amounied 1o RMBS 157 milben as at 31 December 2014 (31 December
2013 RME3.548 million), a5 disclosed in Mote IV 46 Contingent Labdities and Commitments -
Collateral

Secuntization transactions

The Group enters into secuntization transactons an the normal course of busness by whach it
tranzfers credit assets 1o structured entities which isue asset-backed securites to investors

The Group may retain mierests in the form of subordinated: tranches which may gve rise to the
Group's continumg involvernent in the trancferred assets Those financal assets are recogneed on
the consohdated statemvent of financial pesition to the extent of the Group's continuing involement
The extent of the Group's continuing involvement is the extent to which the Group & expesed to
changes in the value of the transferred assets

Az at 31 December 2014, loans with an onginal carrying amount of RMB10,125 million (31
December. 2013, None) have been securitzed by the Group under arangerments m which the
Greup remins a continuing invelement | such assets in the ferm of subordinated tranches. As
at 31 December 2014, the carrying amount of asiets that the Group continues o recognize was
RMBIGT millwon (31 December 2013 None) and the assets were classified as Loans and Advances
to Customers Arising from this continuing involvement, the Group has recognized continuing
involvemnent assets and continuing invelement labilities of RMESST million, respectively
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
48 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Cverview

The Group's primiary rsk management objectve is 1o maintain sk within acceptable parameters
to meet the requirements of regulators, depasitors and other stakeholders, as well as 1o maximize
return for invesiors within an acceptable level of sk

The Group has designed rsk management policies, which address; among other things, the
establishment of resk limits and controls to denbfy, analyze, monitor and report reks: Relevant and
timely information used to conduct these risk management actvities is prowided through infarmation
systemns maintaned by the Group and intended to address the Group's information needs in this
area. The Group regularly reviews IS sk management pnlltm and systems to address changes in
markats, products and emerging best practces

The most significant types of nsk to which the Group & expesed are credit risk, market risk and
lipurdity resk. harket risk includes foregn exchange rate nisk. interest rate risk and other price-risk

Risk management framework

The Board of Directors i responsible for establishing the owerall rsk appetite of the Group and
reviewing and approving its risk management objectives and strategies

Within this frameworls, the Group’s senior management has overall respansbility for managing all
aspects of sk, including implementing risk management strategees; nitsatives and credit polcies
and approving ntermal rules, measures and procedures related 1o msk management The Risk
hanagement Department of the Group implements procedures for managing the significant risks 1o
which the Group:is exposed
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continues)
48 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Conunued)
48.1 Credit risk

Credit risk management

Credit risk represents the potential loss that may arise from a custorner or counterparty’s faikure
to meet its obligations when due Credit risk can also amse from operational failures that result
in-an unauthorzed or inappropriate advance, commitment or investment The Group's magor
credit risks anse from loans and recewables; treasury operations and off-balance sheet related
credit sk exposures.

The Group’s credit risk management system is composed of the Board of Directors and its
Risk Management Committes, Senior Management and its Risk Management Committee,
Credit Approval Committee and Asset Disposal Committes, as weill as the Risk Management
Department, Credit Management Department, Credit Approval Department and refated front-
office customer departments. The Group's credit rnisk management function operates under
centralized management and authorzation under a range of specified limits

The Group performs standardized credit management procedures,  mcluding credit due
diligence and propesal submission, credit underariting review, loan  dishursernent, post-
lending mantanng and nen-performmg bban managenent The Group enhances s credit
risk management by stricth complying with 115 credit management procedures, strenglhening
custormer myvestigation, credit rating. lending approval and post-lending moniloring measures;
enhancing nsk mitigation effect of loans through collateral, accelerating disposal process of
nan-performing loans and continuously upgrading the credit management system

For the curtent year, the Group mplemented more ngid management over the credit
ongination process Further, the Group enhanced s forecastng capability using forward-
locking information, as well as its proactive risk control and credit limit management processes.
The Group reinforced s rek dentification and monitoring, including the governance over
areas of special focus, industres, and products, a5 well as refined the risk mitigation activities:
It ako exited hegh nsk chents on a tinmely basis The Group also accelerated the disposal of
non-performing loans, emphasezed the accountabiity related to non-performing loans and
maintained the stability of credit asset quality

Apart from the credit sk exposures on creditrelated assets, deposits and Mlacements with and
Loans to Banks and Other Financial Institutions: the credit nsk: arsing from treasury business is
managed by selecting counterparties with acceptable credit quality, balancing credit sk and
return, referencing to both internal and external credit rating information where available and
by applying approprate imits subect to different level of management authorty, and by timely
reviewing and adjusting those hmit in credit system. In addition, the Group also provides loan
commitments and financial guarantee services to customers which may require the Group to
make payments on behalfl of custormers upon ther failure to perform undes the terms of the
related contract Risks arising from loan commitments and financial guarantees are similar to
these associted with loans and advances These transactions are, therefore, subject to the
same risk management palicies and procedures
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For the yesr ended 31 December 2014
SAmoit s in milkons of Rerminbi, unless othenmze Rated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
48 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
481 Cradit risk (Continued)

Impairment assessment

Kay factors related to the Group’s impairment assessment

In accordance with the “Gudebne for Loan Credit Rk Classification” ssued by the
CBRC, the Group has estabbshed a loan credit rsk classification system and performs
credit risk managemant based on loan classification in one of five categores. The Group
classifies loans o the following five categones. normal, special-mention, substandard,
doubtiul and loss Loans classified as substandard, doubtful and loss are regarded as non-
performing boans. The primary factoss consdered in boan impairment assessment mclude
probability of foan repayment and recoverability of principal and interest, which reflect
borrowers’ repayment ability, repayment recard and intention, projected profitability,
bank quarantees or collateral and legal responsibility of repayment The allewance for
imparrment losses is assessed coBectively or indiwidually, as appropriate

The five categornes of lban classshcation inlo which the Group classifies 1ts loans and
advances 1o customers are set out below

Manmal Boreowers can honar the terms of their loans There s no reason to
doubt ther ability 1o repay principal and interest in full on 3 timely
basis

Specal = mention  Borrowers are able 1o service their loans currently, although
repaymeni may be adversely affected by speniic factors

Substandard Borrowers' ability 1o senice ther keans 15in guestion and they
cannot rely entirely on normal operating revenues to repay principal
and interest Losses may ensue even when: collateral or guarantess
are invoked

Doubitful Borrowers cannet repay principal and interest in full and significant
lozses will need to be recognzed even when collateral or
guaraniees are invoked

Loss Only a small portion or none of the principal and interest can be
recovered after kg all possible measures-and exhausting all legal
rermedies

With respect 1o investrents in debt securities other than held for trading or designated
at fair value through profit or loss, the Group assesses for indicators of impairment at
the end of each reporting penod based on objective evidence and performs impairment
assessment indmidually or collectvely, as appropnate. Fer the impaired avarlabhe-for-sale
iwvestments, the amount of the impairment allowan<e for available-Tor-sale investments
is equal to the sasting unrealized loss, which 15 recorded as a charge in the conseldated
income statemant
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continues)
48 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
48.1 Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum exposure to credit risk before faking inte account any collateral held
or other credit enhancements

The maxmum exposure to credit nek represents the credit rsk exposure {0 the Group at the
end of each reporting period, without Rking into account any collateral hield or other ecredit
enhancements The exposure to credit nsk at the end of each reporting pencd primarily
arises from credit and treasury operations. as well as off-balance sheet items such a5 loan
commitments, cradit card commitments, bank acceptance, guarantse and letters of guarantes
and letters of credit, as credit risks ansing from these items are similar 10 those assodiated with
foans and receivables

A summary of the maximum exposure to credit risk & as follows

As at 31 December

Group Bank
014 2013 2014 2013

Balances with central banks 206311030 2504043 2,630,883 2,503,888
Deposits with banis and other

financial insttutons 572,805 397,678 562,792 380,938
Placements with and kbans

1o banks and cther financial

institutions 407,062 J08,655 412,825 210,957
Financial assets held for trading 58 404 53814 58404 53,495
Financial assets designated

at fair vakee through profit

of lese 354,763 267,997 355,763 267,994
Demvative financial assets 7.195 8186 6,950 2176
Financal assets held under

resale agreements 200,418 737.062 500412 736,742
Loans and advances 1o

customens 7.7359,59% 6,902 522 1700348 6,866,143
Ay ailable-for-sale financial

assels 22,017 78,544 16 810 76211

Hild-to-ma ity investments 1.7 10,950 1,523,815 1,703,508 1,517,998
Debt instruments classified

as receivables 522,117 562,050 511,174 585,455
Oither financial assets 128,188 103,024 113,335 91,817
Subtotal 15568,0087 14177820 15482204 14,108,858
Credit commitments 1,582,725  1.481545 1584581  1.481.945
“Total 17.146,783 15,659,765 17,066,765 15,500,813
302 @ hER R
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
48 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Caontinued)
481 Cradit risk (Continued)

Mavimum exposure to credit risk before taking into account any colfateral heid
or ather credit enhancements (Continued)

The Group has implermented specific policwes and credit enhancement practces fo mitigate
credit nsk exposure to an acceptable level The most typical practice is cblaming guaranies
deposits, collateral and guarantees The amount and type of acceptable collateral are
determimed by credit risk evaluations of borrewers. The Group implements guidelines on the
acceptability of specific classes of collateral and evaluation parameters

The main types of collateral obtained are as foliows

— Morigage loans to retail customers are generally collateralized by morigages over
residential propertees,

= Other personal lending and corporate loans and advances are primarily collateralzed by
charges over land and properties or other assets of the borrowers; and

—  Financial assets held under resale agreements fransactions are primarily collateralzed by
debt securites, bilis and loans.

The Grouwp monmtars the markel value of collateral penodically and requests far additional
collateral in accordance with the underlying agreement when necessarny
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
48 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
48.1 Credit risk (Continued)

Loans and advances fo custonrers

The following tables set cut the concentration of rek for loans and advances to customers by
geographal area and industry

{1} The compasition of loans-and advances o customers by geographical area 5 analyzed as
follows
Group

As at 31 December
2014 2013
Amount % of total  Amount % of total

Corporate bans and advances

Head Cffice 147,614 26 115027 22
Yangize River Delta 1,312,497 230 1.225.018 239
Pearl River Delta 665,532 118 622,736 121
Bohal Rim 1,036,523 182 958418 187
Central China 684,153 120 505,634 118
Western China 1,236,514 297 1,101,790 Z15
Noftheastern China 217.926 38 193,057 38
Owverseas and Others 352,324 69 FOT 401 6.0
Subtotal 5,697,083 1000 S2o081 100
Personal leans and advances
Head Office 107 _— 110 —_
Yangtze River Delta G06,026 252 555257 265
Pearl River Delta 440,572 183 300,255 126
Bahal Rim 345,542 14.4 292,778 14.0
Central China 335,059 14.0 ZE8221 13.8
Western China 573220 239 482,475 230
Mortheastern China 56,113 4.0 84,206 4.0
Oweraeas and Others 4,345 02 2.327 0.1
Sublotal 2400984 1000 2095632 1000
Gross loans and advances
to customers 8,098,067 7,224,713
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
48 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
481 Credit risk (Continued)

Loans and advances to customers (Continued)

(13 The compasitien of bans and advances o customens by geographical area & analyzed as
folkaws (Continued)
Bank

As at 31 Decembaer
2014 2013
Amount % of total Amount % of total

Corporate loans and advances

Head Office 147,614 26 115027 23
Yangtze Rver Delia 1,312,497 2320 1,225018 241
Fearl River Delta 660,532 11.8 622,736 122
Eohar Bim 1,036,523 18 3 958 418 1288
Central China 684,153 121 &005,634 119
Western China 1,236,514 218 1,401,790 216
Martheastern China 217,926 39 193,067 35
Cwerseas and Others 352,245 6.2 270,779 53
Subtotal 5657004 000 5.092,459 1000
Personal loans and advances
Head Office 107 — 110 —
Yangtze River Della B06,026 253 E&E,257 265
Pearl River Delta 440,572 18.3 300,258 186
Bohai Rum 345 542 14 4 292,778 140
Central China 335,059 14.0 288221 13.8
Western China 573.220 239 482,475 230
Martheastern C hina G5, 113 4.0 84,206 4.0
Owerseas and Others 3,336 01 1.643 01
Subtotal 2.3%5.975 000 2,094,948 100.0
Gross loans and advances
to customers 8,056,974 787 407
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
48 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Conunued)
48,1 Credit risk (Continued)
Loans and advarces to custonmers [Connued)

(2} The composition of loans and advances to. customers by industry s
analyzed as follows

Group

Az at 31 December
2014 2013
Amount 5% of total Amount % of total

Corperate boans and advances

Manufacturing 1,450 557 256 1,430.267 280
Transportation, legeles

and postal services TT0 230 13.7 G24,600 122
Retad and wholesale 629,600 111 593,434 116
Real estale 587,916 103 547,722 0y
Preduction and supply of

power, heat, gas and wates 551,520 4.7 493,262 856
Leasing and commercial services 399,970 0 338,820 &5
Mirning 261,532 46 222,436 43
Finance 218,286 3 & 134,585 26
Construction 212,961 37 201631 3O
Water, enviranment and public

utifities management 200,760 37 197,140 38
Others 385 634 5.2 F45075 &7
Subtotal 5697033 1000 5129081 1000

Personal ioans and advances
Residential mongage 1,550,702 646 1,292038 516
Persanal business 286,913 11.1 255,445 122
Personal consurmer 204,102 85 204,448 9.8
Credit cards 222,865 9.3 194,330 9.3
Others 156,402 65 148,571 71
Subtotal 2,400,984 1000 2095632 1000
Gross loans and advances

o customers 8,098,067 7,224,713
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IV  NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
48 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
48.1 Credit risk (Continued)
Loans and advances to customers (Cantinued)

(2} The composition of loans and advances to customers by industry s
analyred as follows (Continued)

Bank

As at 31 December
2014 013
Amount % of total  Amount % of tatal

Corporate loans and advances

Manufacturing 1,444,830 255 1,412,500 279
Transpartation, logstcs and

postal services THEe61 126 622,302 12:2
Retail and wheolesale 624,704 110 EG1,085 116
Feal estate S&7.246 10.4 547,002 107
Preduction and supply of

power, heat. gas and water 551,378 9.7 489,455 9.6
Leasing and commercial services. 399,233 71 338,064 B &
hning 260,736 4.6 220,388 43
Finance 218,285 29 134,595 26
Canstruction 211,754 3.7 198,509 39
Water, enviranment and publc

utilities management 208,044 37 195,255 39
Others 382,087 68 341,803 &7
Subtotal 5 657,004 1000 5052 459 1000

Persanal loans and advances
Residential mortgage 1,550,701 646 1292033 6156
Personal business 265,203 111 255,808 122
Persanal consumer 204,044 85 204,425 9.8
Credit cards 222 865 g3 194,330 5.3
Oihers 185002 55 148,352 7.1
Subtatal 2,390975 000 2,004,048 1000
Gross loans and advances

to customers 8,056,97% TA87 407
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
{amiounts in millions of Renminbe, undess otheraase stated]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
48 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Contnued)
48.1 Credit risk {Continued)
Loans and advances to customers {Contnued)

(2} The composition of loans and advances to customers by contractual
maturity and secunty type is analyzed ac follows

Group
31 December 2014
Less than 11t Over
1 year 5 years 5 yoars Total
Unsecured loans 794,488 295,993 JOS, 780 1,796,261
Guaranteed loans 785 5528 285,079 F17.3510 1LZ82288
Loans secured by collateral 1,164,553 £58. 884 2105571 3538049
Fledged loans 476,414 X629 445,426 974,469
“Total 3,221354 1,302,585 3,574,128 8,098,067
31 December 2013
Less than 11a Owver
1 year 5 vears 5 yoars Tatal
Unsecured loans 763,470 301,703 LeE910 1,622,082
Guaranteed loans Teh611 231,430 295,572 1,296613
Loans secured by collateral 1,131,696 B51,376  1.719.816  3.512.828
Pledged loans 366,943 41,668 384,509 793,120
Total 3.&31.?1_9 1,236,177 2,956,807 7,224,713
Bank
31 December 2014
Less than 1t Ower
1 year 5 years 5 years Total
Unsecured loans 793,465 297,450 BOE2T7T 17831592
Guaranteed loans 781,915 266,508 314,546 1,363,059
Loans secured by collateral 1,164,101 567 962  2,105512 3,937,582
Pledged leans 475,428 52,292 445,426 973,146
Total 3,214,909 1,278,309 3,563,761 8,056,979
31 December 2013
Less than 1to Ower
1 year 5 years 5 years Total
Unzecured loans 761,773 301,104 556,890 1.619,767
Guaranteed loans TH8.979 230,030 295550 1,294,550
Loans secured by collateral 1,131,364 220023 1,719,708 3,480,185
Pledged loans 366,742 41,646 384,508 792 BSE
“Total 3,028,858 1,201,803 2,956,746 7187407
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
48 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cantinued)
481 Credit risk (Continued)
Loans and advances to customers (Continued)

{4} Past duelocans

Group
31 December 2014
Up to 91-360 361 days Ower
90 days days to 3 years 32 years Total
Unsecured loans 9,447 4,744 616 ETH] 15,173
Guarantead loans 19,103 14,380 7.639 4,559 45,681
Loans secured by collateral 40,740 32,292 13,845 7585 Qd 462
Pledged loans 3,854 041 121 1,688 11,304
Total 73139 56457 22,821 14,203 166,620
31 December 2013
Up to 91-360 361 days Oer
90 days days to3 years 3 years Total
Unsecured loans 5211 4,379 1,282 442 11,314
Guaraniesd loans 8BTS 5,078 7,005 5,913 28,071
Loans secured by collateral 20,067 10,324 14,20 10,174 54,766
Pledged loans 1,540 1.129 1,326 2,278 6273
Total 34,893 21,910 23,814 19,807 100,424
Bank
31 December 2014
Upto  91-360 361 days Over
90 days days to3 years 3 years Total
Unsecused lkoans o.421 4,744 516 an 15,152
Guarantesd loans 17,195 13641 6,932 4,559 42 327
Loans secured by coliateral 40,737 32,284 13,845 7,285 94,451
Pledged loans 3632 4,485 721 1,658 10,527
Total T0,985 55,155 22,114 14,202 162,457
31 December 2013
Up to 91-360 361 days Over
90 days days to 3 years 3 years Total
Uresescured loans 5211 4,379 1,282 447 11,314
Guarantesd lcans 7442 5.005 7,005 6913 27,365
Loans secured by coklateral 200067 10,324 14,201 10,174 =
Pledged loans 1,540 1.129 1,326 2.2T& 6,273
“Total 34,260 21,837 23814 19807 99,718

When either boan principal ar inferest s past due by one day in any peniad, the whole foan
is classified as past due loan
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
{amiounts in millions of Renminbe, undess otheraase stated]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
48 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Contnued)
48.1 Credit risk {Continued)
Loans and advances to customers {Contnued)

{5} Credit guality of lsans and advances to customers

Group
As at 31 December
2014 FILER
Meither past due nor mpawed (i} 1523816 FREE PR
Past due but not impaired ) 49,281 24,815
Impaired ) 124,970 87,781
Subtotal 8088067 {224,713
Allewarnce for impairment losses of loans
and advances to customers {358.071) (322,191)
Loans and advances 1o customers 7,738,906 6,802,522
Bank
As at 31 December
2014 2013
Nether past due nor impaired 1] 7885 807 7075519
Past due but not impaired () 45 836 24,815
Imparred {ui) 124.252 87,073
Subtotal 500,979 7 B7,407
Allewance for impairment losses of loans
and advances to customers {356,631} (321,224)
Loans and advances to customers ¥, 700,348 6,866,183

{1} Loans and advances neither past due nor impained

Group
31 December 2014
Specdal-
HNormal  mention Total
Corporate loans and advances 5, 303,803 265,154 5580047
Personal loans and advances 2,352 B28 1.941, 2,354,769
Total 7.656,721 267,085 7,923,816
31 December 2013
Special-
MNormal mention Total
Corporate loans and advances 4,800,274 252,101 5,052,475
Personal loans and advances 2057 357 2,285 2059642
Total 6,857,731 254,386 7,112,117
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
48 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cantinued)
48.1 Credit risk (Contnued)
Loans and advances to customers (Continued)

{5} Credit guality of loans and advances to customers ([Contnued)

() Loans and advances neither past due nor impaired (C ontinued)

Bank
31 December 2014
Special-
Heormal  mention Tetal
Corporate loans and advances 268 580 264,528 5533118
Fersonal foans and advances 2.351.839 1,934 2,353,773
Total 7620429 266462 7,886,891
31 December 2013
Special-
HNormal  mention Total
Corporale loans and advances 4 766,252 250,325 5016577
Personal loans and advances 2056 659 2283 2058942
Total 6,822,911 252,608 7,075,519
(i} Loans.and advances past due but not impaired
Group
31 Decermber 2014
Up te 31-60 £1-90 91-360 Fair value
30 days days days days Total of collatural
Corpodate kans
and acdvances 15,180 34008 355 1,290 M1 23606
Personal loans
and acvances 15,662 L0 41053 3 e L 33285
Total 30,542 G418 6B 1203 49281 56891
Bank
31 Decerber 1014
Upte 31-60 6100 91-360 Fair value
30 days days days days Totad of collateral
Coepodate bang
and advances 14,063 3078 1648 - B8 22764
Prssornal loans
and acvances 15,658 5440 4062 — 5150 33285
Total FEEH] 4418 6,697 - 45,836 56,043
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{emoumts inomilions of Penminbs, unless otheredse stated])

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
48 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Contnued)
48.1 Credit risk {Continued)
Loans and advances to customers {Contnued)

{5} Credit guality of lsans and advances to customers (Continued)
(i}  Loans and advances past due but not impaired {Contmued)
Group and bank

31 Decerrber 2013
Up o 3-8 £1-90 Gi-380 Fanr v lue
30 days days days days Total of collateral

Corporatte Joans

nd advances 4,017 187 30 - 4,734 4308
Fersonal lpans

and sdvance 14,070 4033 2ATR - 20581 M4 386
Total 18,087 LR 2,508 — W95 19089

T Impaired loanz and advances

Group
31 December 2014
Allowance
for
impairment Net book
Book value losses value
Indnadually assesed 103,507 (73.,094) 30,8413
Collectvely asiessed 21,063 14,591 ST
“Tatal 124,970 [67,685) 37,285
31 December 2013
Allewance
e
impairment Net book
Book value losses value
Indrwdually assessed 72358 (50,127} L
Coflecinely assested 15425 (10.440) 4,936
Total 87,781 {60,567) 7.714
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For the year ended 31 Decerniber 2014
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
48 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cantinued)
481 Credit risk (Continued)
Loans and advances to customers (Continued)

{5} Credit guality of loans and advances to customers ([Contnued)

{ii)  Impaired loans and advances (Continyed)

Bank
31 December 2014
Allowance
for
irmnpairment Net book
Book value losses value
Individually assessed 103,200 {72,578 30622
Collectively assessed E'I.EIIEE 114,53_& 5455
Total 124,252 (87.165) 37,087
31 December 2013
Allowance
for
impairment Het book
Book value losses value
Individualiy assessed TH.648 {20,050} 21,598
Collectively assessed 15425 (10,4400 d 985
Total §7.073 (B0,430) 26,583
Ingluding
Group
As at 31 December
2014 2013
Indwvidually assessed and impaired 103,907 72,355
individually assessed and impaired as a
perceniage of gross loans and advances
af the Greup 1.28% 1.008%
Fair value of collateral 14,697 9237
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
48 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Contunued)
48.1 Credit risk {Continued)
Loans and advances to customers {Contnued)

{5} Credit guality of lsans and advances to customers (Continued)
{im} Impaired loans and advan<es (Continued)

Bank
As at 31 December
2014 2013
Indwidually assessed and mnpaired 103,200 71,648
Indwidually assessed and impaired as a
percentage of gross leans and advances
of the Group 1.28% 1 Ok
Fawr value of collateral 14,657 9,237

The compesitien of impaired loans and advances to customers by gecgraphical area
s analyzed as follows

Group

31 Decernber 2014 31 December 2013

Amount % of total Amount % of total
Head Office T — 3 —
Yangtze River Delta 26,242 210 19,373 221
Pearl Rver Delta 16,750 134 12,407 14.1
Eohar Rim 26,727 214 16603 19.0
Central China 18,656 149 14.075 160
Western China 30,332 24.3 19,523 222
Martheastem China 53563 43 4,927 56
Overseas and Others 43 07 70 10
Total 124,970 1000 87,781 100.0
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

48 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

481 Credit risk (Continued)

Loans and advances to customers (Continued)

(5} Credit gualty of loans and advances to customers (Conbnued)

(%)

7y

{ii)  Impaired loans and advances (Continued)
Bank

EDINETOOOO

O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

31 Decernber 2014 31 Decernber 2013

Amaount % of total Amount % of total
Head Office 7 - 3 —
Yangtze River Delwa 26,242 211 19,373 222
Pearl Rver Delia 16, TS0 135 12,407 14 2
Bohai Rim 28,727 215 16,603 191
Central China 18,685 150 14,075 162
Western China 30,232 245 19,523 224
Mortheastern China E.368 4.3 4,927 o
Crverseas and Others 130 o1 162 0.2
Total 124,252 100.0 87,073 100.0

Rescheduled loans and advances

Rescheduled loans and advances arise from renegotiatng terms of contract, and such
loans and advances require continuows montonng Rescheduled loans and advances of
the Group and the Bank as at 31 December 2014 amounted to RMB26.403 mullion (31

December 2013 RME13,376 million)

Aszets foreclosed under credit enhancament arrangament

Such assets are disclosed as foreclosed assets in Mote [V 26 Other assets

412/496
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
{amoumts inomillions of Renmin b, unless othanwse stated]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
48 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Contnued)
48.1 Credit risk {Continued)
[rabt instruments

Credit guality of debt instruments

The table below represents the carrying value and accumiglated. impairment charges of
hekd-to-ratunty mvestiments and debt instruments classified as recaivables

Group
As at 31 December
2014 2013

Meither past dug nar impaired {1} 2,233,960 2,116,807
Impaired 12) 1,151 45
Subtotal 2233151 4,116,846
Indivedually assessed 1478) {44}
Collectively assessed {1,606} {857)
Allowance for impairment fosses {2,084) {941}
Total held-to-maturity investments

and debt instruments classified

as receivables, net 2,233,067 2,115,905

Bank
As at 31 December
2014 2013

Meither past due nor mpamred (1) 2216133 2,104,353
Impaired {2} £91 45
Subtotal 2,216,824 2,104,398
Individually assessed [463) (44}
Caollectvely assessed {1.679) {857}
Allowance for impairment losses {-2, 142} {941}
Total held-to-maturity investments

and debt instruments classified

as receivables, net 2,214,682 2,103,457
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Motes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the yesr ended 31 December 2014
Camounts in milkons of Rerminkd, unless othersise Sated)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
48 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
48.1 Credit risk (Continued)
Debt instroments (Continued)

Credit guality of debt instruments {Continued)
{1} Debtinstruments neither past due nor impaired

Group
31 December 2014
" Financal
as5ets
ot fairvalue  Available- Dbt
through for-sale Held-to-  instruments
prafit financial maturity  classified as
or loss assets  investments  receivables Total
et sequrites
1sued bry
— Governments 14,780 147513 548,330 — 710623
= Public sector
and guaa-
QovErmEnts 48T 445183 936,274 E6.140 145031
— Financial
instabutions 4,011 137730 67, 273 45,334 254953
— Corporates 15,389 186574 155,343 34475 399,787
Special govemiment
bond - - - 43,300 93,300
Recenrable: from
1hie MOF - - - 278314 21E34
Certihicate freasury
bonds and savings
treasy bords - - - 3560 3.550
Iriterests im
trust products My T — - - Mg T
Oitheze bt
{rtrments 50876 - - 10,975 T0.851
Total 395573 921000 1,711,531 525,179 3550533
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1o the Consolidated Financia

13 temants

F L b

MNOERsS

For the year ended 31 December 2008
{amoumts in milions of Penminbs, unleds otheneise stated]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
48 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Conunued)
48,1 Credit risk (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued}

Credit guality of debt instruments (Continued)
{1} Debtinstruments nether past due nor impaired {Continued}
Group (Continued)

3 December 2013
Financisl
AssElE
at fair value  Available- Dabt

thraugh for-sale Held-ta-  instruments
prafit financial maturity  classified as

or loss assets  investmerts  redceivables Total
[rebt secumiies
15 by
— Govermnments 13,700 145,208 519,265 — 682,773
— Public sector
and quaa-
QO TITELS £0.0% 409322 202,238 66,485 1,334,701
— Finanad
restutions 11,435 48,702 25,0858 A 117,009
— Corporates 4,768 167.724 166,623 30973 300,082
Speadl government
bond — — — a3 93,300
Recenvable from
the MCF — — — 362 054 352,054
Certificate treasury
bonds and sawngs
treagury bonds - - = 6037 6,037
Iritede-sts in st
products 171,250 — — — 171,280
Other debd
rskruments B0 — — EANg 45,124
Total 0,009 775,556 1524414 593387 3,202,366
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Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the yesr ended 31 December 2014
Camounts in milkons of Rerminkd, unless othersise Sated)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
48 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
48.1 Credit risk (Continued)
Debt instroments (Continued)

Credit guality of debt instruments {Continued)
{1} Debt instruments neither past due nor impaired (Continued)

Bank
31 December 2014
" Financal
as5ets
ot fairvalue  Available- Dbt
through for-sale Held-to-  instruments
prafit financial maturity  classified as
or loss assets  investments  receivables Total
[eebt secunties
Issed by
— Gowernments 14,740 147342 542,330 - Ti0452
= Public sector
and guaa-
QovErmEnts 48,7103 448140 Q34,063 A 141 1,457,068
— Financial
instyhutions 4,011 137458 5,253 A5, 255 253612
— Conpaorates 19,389 182,357 156,143 3432 392601
Specl givemment
bond - —_ - 53,300 43,300
Reeceniable from
the MNOE - - - 2534 e
Certficate freasisy
bonds and avings
treasy bords - - - 3462 3462
Iriterests im thust
products My T — - - Mg T
(iheer debb
irstnments 0876 - - — 607G
Total 396573 915793 1,704,389 511,044 3,584%9
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b2 the Consolldated Financial

13 temants

o L

MNOERsS

For the year ended 31 December 2008
{amoumts in milions of Penminbs, unleds otheneise stated]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
48 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Conunued)
48,1 Credit risk (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued}

Credit guality of debt instruments (Continued)
{1} Debtinstruments nether past due nor impaired {Continued}

Bank (Continusd)
3 December 2013
Financisl
AssElE
at fair value  Available- Dabt
through for-sale Held-ta-  instruments
prafit financial maturity  classified as
or loss assets  investmerts  redceivables Total
[rebt secumiies
15 by
— Godernments 13,700 146,534 519,265 — 632,545
— Public sector
and quaa-
QO TITELS £0.0% 409322 202,238 66,485 1,334,701
— Finanad
reatitions 11,435 A7 423 a.me i 113,054
— Corporates 14,440 166,494 163,482 30973 395398
Speadl government
bond — — — a3 93,300
Recenvable from
the MCF — — — 362 054 352,054
Certificate treasury
bonds and sawngs
treagury bonds - - = 5820 5220
Iritede-sts in st
products 11,271 — — — 17,277
Otber debd
rskruments B0 — — — 38710
Total 309,687 712843 1518597 585,756 3,186,863
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ythe Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 Decamiber 2014

LAmounts in milkons of Renminkd, urdess otheraise Bated)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

48 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMEMNT (Continued)
481 Credit risk (Continued)

Debt instrumrrents (Continued)

Credit guality of debt instruments {Continued)

{2} Impaired debt instruments

Group
31 December 2014
Debt
Held-ta-  instruments
maturity  classified as
investments  receivables Total
Corporate bonds = 545 545
(Hhers - 646 646
AMiowance for impairment losses — (478} 1478)
Impaired held-to-maturity mwestments and
debt instruments classhed as receivables, net — 13 3
Bank
31 December 2014
Debt
Held-ta-  instruments
maturity  classified as
investments  receivables Totsl
Coupaorate bonds - a5 45
(Hhiers - 646 Gt
Allswance fof imparment loses - {463) (463)
Impared held-to-maturity myeciments and
debt instruments dassfied as recevables, net — 138 {28

Group and Bank

31 December 2013

Debt
Held-to-  instruments
maturity  classified as

investments  receivables Total
Corparate bonds - 45 45
Alowance for impairment losses - (44} (42

Impared held-to-maturity westments and
debt instruments classified as receivables, net
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Motes 1 the Consolidated Financial Statemeants

Fof this year ended 31 Decenber 7004
{amounts in millions of Penminbe, unleds otheradse stated]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
48 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Contunued)
48.1 Credit risk {Continued)
Dbt instruments (Continued}

Credit gquality of debt instruments (Continued)
{2} Impaired debt instruments (Continued)

The Group's available-for-sale debt instruments were Individually assessed for
impairment. As at 31 December 2014, the carrying amount of the mpared
available-forsale debt instruments of the Group and the Bank was RMEB1,017
million {31 December 2013: RAE3. 338 milion), amang which the tatal impairment
losses recoanized for these impaied available-for-sale debt instruments by the
Group and the Bank as at 31 Decemnber 2014 was RMBZ295 mullian (31 December
2013 RMEB331 millon)

{3} Debt instuments anabyzed by credit rating
The Group adopts & credit rating appreach 1o manage the credil nisk of the debt
secunties portfolio held The ratings are obtained from magar rating agencies whens

the suers of the securities are located The carrying amounts of debt securives
investmenis analyzed by rating as at the end of the reporting percd are as follows

Group
31 December 014

Unated §)  AAA AR A EowhA  Towal

Dehit secunhes imusd by
— Gewemments Tl B ) Bia 58T = T3

— Pubde sector and

quE-govetimint LIREe  |1aar 3044 T8 — 1480152
— Firariial mstibions 01 4253 15685 13636 B9SR 1S540
— Corpatates W 51096 S0 108TS . ALMEF 4T FOAS
Speqa goveenment bond 43,300 = = — — o
et able from the MOF 7R3 - - - = B3

Certlicate beazury boreki
and sxanes treanry bonds 3500 - - P = 1500
Inferests in st peodacts (E) R P04 - - — — MR
Other debt mstnments L [ - - = - AN
Total 1983180 458463 AW TR 11659 3550487
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Mates 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the yesr ended 31 Decernber 2014
Lot in milBons of Rerminkd, unless otheraize Hated)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
48 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
48.1 Credit risk (Continued)
Debt instroments (Continued)

Credit guality of debt instruments {Continued)
{3} Debtinstruments analyzed by credit rating {Continued}
Group (Continued)

31 December 2013
Uneated [ AR A A Bekwh  Towl
Db secunbes sgusd by
— Dowernments R0, 40 637 1.707 1] - BRI
— Putiti sector andl
RGN EE 115101 T 3057 443 — 1334568
— Firanad institutions 4,784 49 50% 3153 930 3 R PR K |
= Conporales [ 345 YRR 18313 11,935 L T
Speual governiment bond 43,300 - - - —
Rreteniabls from the MOF 307 (54 — — - = 3hlBA
Ceitificate treasury bords
and S easury bond: 5037 — — - — 5037
Interesls i et peesducts. @) 171,280 - - - - 1M
(her debt inchumentz 1] 45104 = = =% = 1M
Total RS9 W10 1HE0E s 10,361 3158
Bank
3 December 204
Uneated {§) AAA AA A Below & Total:
Dietd secunbes mousd by
== (y0hpETTIN £VES L7 . (e 38 5287 - o
— P gector and
Aaasi-governim enls 1370416 109608 3084 i L - 14B55M
— Finanad institutions A AL 75 S - v | 6895 KATT
— Corporates W S0t MRS M0RM 42033 400 @iEn
Specal government bord 43,300 = = i — 930
fiecenatrle from the MOF 134 - - - - i
Ceitificate treasury bonds
and o reasury bonds 1462 - - - - 1462
Intererts in ustpeoducs i) 4R - - - — My
(her debdt instiuments DR A - - - = &1
Total LI ASTEW BAMI M TM 115% 35H0
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Motes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statemenis
For the yesr ended 31 December 2014
Lamoumts i milions of Renminbs, undess otheredse stated]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
48 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Conunued)
48,1 Credit risk {Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued}

Credit guality of debt instruments (Continued)
{2 Debtinstruments analyzed by credit rating (Continued)
Bank (Continusd)

31 December 2013
Unssted ) ARA A A EskwA Total
[ebit secutibes iued by
(RerTHmERE (20,349 43 707 ) - EEIsM
Publisc gecioe and
Qus-giernimEnts LELHL TaEsy J057 443 — 133458
Finanoial institytions Ak 43,105 20,903 am I 11678
Corporates LT 1 I - SR | i R . CIET 3RS0
§ pe-oul government bond 93,300 — — - — 93,300
Rt able from the MOF 02058 - - - — 1R
Centsixcate Yeaamy borks
and savings treaury bonds SR = = = = L2
I rests: iy frust poodiacks (a) 1hin - - - - 1man
(vther delbt instruments a) ®M = = = — &
Total 164613 3061 151899 2LM6 W31 3,180,355

6 Unrated debd iovestmants frekd by the Grouws ane bonds ssued prmanly By policy banks, the Chinese
gowemement - and recenvable from the MOF.

1] The matimgs of super short-tenm fommerns papers of the Group and the Bsnk smourted (o
RAE2 1, 704 milbon (31 December 2013 RIMBEE 338 midbon) o included in covporate bonds above
arg based on izrper srting for thé creghe rsk anales

de]  The frus prodocts and olber gelit mstrumaents o carafed within Levs 5 of the oy salue

msaswremend fracknch apd the related credt nik o desenbed in Note I 50 Faie Value of Fnanos/
L AT
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Mates 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2014
Lot in milBons of Rerminkd, unless otheraize Rated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
48 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

48.2 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk s the rek that funds will not be available 1o meet liabibties as they fall due. This
may arise from cash flows or maturity mismatches of assets and liabilities

The Groyp's Assels and Liabiltres Management Department manages its liquidity nsk through;
—  Optmizing asset and hability structure:
— Maintaining stability of deposit base,

—  Making projections of Tuture cash flaws, and evaluatng the appropnate cufrent assel
pesition,

—  Maintmining-an efficent internal funds transfer mechansm within the Group; and

—  Performing stress testing on a regular, basis
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Motes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2008
{amiounts in millions of Renminbe, undess otheraase stated]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
48 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Contunued)
48.2 Liquidity risk (Continued)

Analysis of the remaining contractual maturity of financial assets and financial
liabrilitie=

The tables below summarze the maturty analyss of financeal assets and financial labilites by
remaining contractual maturities based on the carrying amount at the end of each reporting

penad
Group
T Decimber Bt
n s fem 13 2 -5 i
Fetde  dmand  Imonh  mots  monfo s Sy ledabad Notal

Cacly o] Rt )

ool Bl -  WLNS D - - - - LSEASH. 1B
Dposks wih ek dnf

ol b il m2betom - AR DN N0 MO b = - MK
Pscoments wilh e boies 19 busle

aoed s brancull s ¥etnes - —  1Hi8 W4T pERm4 man = - AT
Fiarvcind s et et gy - | 4R EAG AT la4E 4W - B
Francas acats desgyaled o Lar

ke BEgh prolit of e = — e | L g um LER
Dot e Bl azods = = g1/ ] 141 EE L) 1,34 30 - 1,85
B it Bl el e

s - —  WSH WEdT e = = — Sk
Lo ] e o ey Facl — AN SE DIR0R  LEINST 1w — 1136
onable b e el amets ~ — M ;s TR EIND  ET0L 1
Helll -ttt et - = 5N RDME WS OS2 RNea = L
[ s i

5 b 1 & - 3 EE R A5 - ST
bt il s LTRRE T E T T /. T 17" S 11 1 bil} s -
Tol il et S8 R LIOAR MM 1499 MG ITaW0  Leieh Leas
Botrowng iiom raid ik = 7] - R an = = -
Depes (i banis and

offter fadnrial Rt bt = HOD (RS SO (M9 Rs0) - -
Phbcoment. fons banks sl

offee fndncial et et = —  ELen  MiPe SIETE s - pMun
Financiad knbies bk 10t BT T T = = — @b
Pt labiites disgasted ot

ot e aoogh pnofil of o - — (e pSEn gamn ) 3 — Bk
Diriation el Il . —  Ma (me e no =) =
P s sl ol nder

Ak S - —  (asd Al L) - - - fuLan
D b o — (RT3 FEMSEN (L0SEE (LEIEY (14116 ey — S
Dt sicalies i — = @uED OIah @kmdl mWH @ = B
her el bl -  HRNR  pENd o BEM)  EEAE (RSN Im = {am
Toakal tonancial bl — (AVAnL (GE4ED (L00RE (LENNE) B0 (5E — (141
Wl matin W I2RNA 5 (RS JIDY UBGTH IR ANOE R
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Mates 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the yesr ended 31 Decernber 2014
LAmounts in milkons of Renminkd, urdess otherwise Sated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
48 FINAMCIAL RISK MANAGEMEMNT (Continued)
48.2 Liguidity risk (Continued)

Analysis of the remaining contractual maturity of financial assets and financial
Tabsilities {Continued)

Group (Continued)
31 Docembar 23
n s than 1% i) 15 (e
Petdos  demaed  imoth  mantls mowis yoan Spean  lleedeied Tt
Cagh and bk wilh
ceei B - mane Lh:] - - - — AN LEREN
Diepenits ace bunis and
oo el c¥ion - RS BID SR A W) - - WA
Fiadement wilh and foat b Dok
an ctbet Beanon 2o - -  WISD WO AR R = - FESS
Pl ezt e o Tichng) - 1T 4w IME M0 T i) 2 B
Frnncil et deigmatod of e
vl Mg b paol o bz - =  EEES  BM0 W@ el £ L MEME
Dusteations Francial ets - - ™0 T 1 1 £ - 5186
Fiminwcil szl ] o ressle
L ] - — dEREE 1Rl TT. 58 o = - T
oo ] s B i 17843 —  AEEE TSR LIETE LA 1nda — REIAR
Al ol Kol s - - 1551 ¥ naAE am e amis FE T B A R
Fiodd-acx mat ity st - - LAk 1A AR TR e — 15EME
Dbt inframen clr:sied
£ bl i WOWEs U ME ORI ~ s
(g il acets ME NSRRI BE 7 & —  MEM
Tokal B il ot TR61 AN LIRS I0BLET MRS LULED  IFIY 1aETM 4RL0N
Bomwases R eatnd bask - o - - iy ] - - - {0
Duepenits bias bisks aed
b Ieancidl 0N - (MIAN  OIOB (LN S (418 - - EHg
P rarat o ek il
cthet Snancid imltetoms - -  ES)  EMR GRAm T = - (V%R
P il ekt Bl Bt Sirting = L VR ] AT R = - - (s
Frsald i gt 40
far b g R oo - S 2T ] T
Dottt Esangl kbl e - - 17 LY T 23] - [
Pt il 4 5 el
et e s - - WS nne e il - - {&Mn
Do s comit — BOEEE GRS (LRGN (L EATR (LOBLPOR o - &
bt setwtrs emaed - - BEh  REWD I (NN (151G - (RN
e e = AN (AT pIO0E.  ETENR SRGED (%A S
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Motes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2008
Lamoumts i milions of Renminbs, undess otheredse stated]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
48 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Contnued)

48.2 Liquidity risk (Continued)
Analysis of the remaining contractual maturity of financial assets and financial
labifitie= {Contan ued)
Bank
31 Decamter HU
O Lealkin K FET, 15 Duar
Wi dmod  wath mondkn moathn i Span Uedibed Tatal
ik et s wilh
oot baviks - W@ nm - ~ - - A em
Dt i bt il
il Pl eyt - 3@ MM IEES 3N = - - mm
ooty i dd et B0 banies
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i w10 = = DM em  m gsR B - mE
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Mates 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the yesr ended 31 Decernber 2014
LAmounts in milkons of Renminkd, urdess otherwise Sated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
48 FINAMCIAL RISK MANAGEMEMNT (Continued)
48.2 Liguidity risk (Continued)

Analysis of the remaining contractual maturity of financial assets and financial

Tabsilities {Continued)
Bank {Continued)
11 Dot 111
On Lmalhim L1 kS 1 5 et
huitdmi  Gmid menth mond kn moalhi o Spaanr  Cudited Tatul
Cirsho i i ok
el bk = 20 45 (A1) - = = = EMENR-  IE0RAS
Doty it honks and
] B el DE - LELoL &3 11T WIE il - - AR
it with i kbt o B
e oed Bedead i tion - - L T BTSN L - - T ET.
Fvnm i vt Bk o iy = 2 LR IHS MGE 1130 1 = §348r
Pl ot ossgatod & Lt
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e st Emerial 2wty = - L] o 205 ey e - LK
Fioio il vt Mook oot
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Motes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statemeants
For the year ended 31 December 30148
{amoumts in milions of Penminbs, unleds otheneise stated]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
48 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Contunued)
48.2 Liquidity risk (Continued)

Anal=is of the undiscounted contractual cash flows

Agzets avalbable to meet obligations related to the Group’s kabelities and cutstanding credit
commitments prmanly nchude cash and balances with central banks, depaosits with banks and
other financizl institutions, placements with and loans 1o banks and other financial institutions,
financial assets at far value through profit or boss. and financaal assets held under resale
agreerments. In the normal course of business, the majonity of customer deposits repayable on
demand or on matunty are expected o be retained | In addiben, the Gioup = able 1o zell the
available-for-sale financial assets to repay matured labilites, i necessary
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Mates 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the yesr ended 31 December 2014
Camounts in milkons of Rerminkd, unless othersise Sated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
48 FINAMCIAL RISK MANAGEMEMNT (Continued)
48.2 Liguidity risk (Continued)

Analysis of the undiscounted contractual cash flows (Continued)

The tables below present the undscounted cash flows of non-dervative financial assets and
financial labilives by remaining contractual maturiies at the end of each reporting period:

Group
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Motes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statemeants
For the year ended 31 December 30148
{amoumts in milions of Penminbs, unleds otheneise stated]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
48 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Contunued)
48.2 Liquidity risk (Continued)

Analysis of the undiscounted contractual cash flovs (Continued)
Group (Continued)
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Mates 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the yesr ended 31 December 2014
Camounts in milkons of Rerminkd, unless othersise Sated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
48 FINAMCIAL RISK MANAGEMEMNT (Continued)
48.2 Liguidity risk (Continued)

Analysis of the undiscounted contractual cash flows (Continued)
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Mates 1o the Consalidated Financal Statements
For the yexr ended 31 Decembser 2014
LAmounts in mileons of Renminbd, unbess otharwise Hated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
48 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cantnued)

48,2 Liguidity rizk (Continusd)
Analysis of the undiscoumted contractual cash flows (Contnued)
Bank (Contnued)
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For the yesr ended 31 Decemnber 2014
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

48 FINAMCIAL RISK MANAGEMEMNT (Continued)

48.2 Liguidity risk (Continued)
Derivative cash flows

Denvatives settled on a nat basis

The fair values of the Group’s decivatives that will be setthed on a net basis are primarily interest
rates pioducts. The tables below present the undiscounted contractual cash flowms of the
Group's net dervative positions based on their remaining contraciual maturities

Group and Bank

31 December 2014
Less than 1-3 3-12 1-5 Over
1month  months months years 5 years Total

Iriterest rate
dervatves LE] 15 14 ] {102} {132}

31 December 2013

Less than 1-3 3-12 1-5 Over
1month months months years 5 years Total
Interest rate
dervatives 1 {13) (251} {118) 66 {315}

Derivatives settled on a gross basis

The fair values of the Group’s dervatives that will be settled on a gross basis are primardy
foreign exchange rates and precious metal products:. The tables below present the
undiscounted contractual cash flows of the Group's gross dervatve positions based on their
FEmaming contractual matuntes

Group

31 December 2014
Less than 1-2 3-12 1-5 Over
Imenth maonths months years 5 year:s Tetal

Dervatives settled
on a gross basis
— Cash inflaw 270824 174010 400,347 62,074 2080 940,206
— Cash outflow {271,642} (173.741) (399764) (62.579) (2,050} (909.876)
“Total {#18) 269 583 295 = 329
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For the year ended 21 December 2014
{emoumts inomilions of Penminbs, unless otheredse stated])

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
48 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Contnued)
48.2 Liquidity risk {Contnued)
Derivative cash flows (Cantinued)

Dernatives settled on a gross basis (Continued)

Group (Continued]

31 December 2013

Less than 1-3 3-12 1-5 Over
1 month  months  months years 5 years Total
Denvatives seftled
on 2 gross basis
— Cash infiow 194,523 138,784 262,107 55,253 1.998 B52.665
— Cash outflow {194,832y (139.651) (259.969) (552201 11,958) (651.670)
Total {309) {867) 2,138 33 = [T

Bank

31 Decomber 2014
Les: tham 1-3 3-12 1-5 Owisr
1 month  months  months years 5 years Total

Dermvatives settled
on 3 gross bases
— Cash mflow 2B8.628 172068 394118 54,860 2080 BO9E A2
— Cash outflow  (269,348) (171,819) (393.554) (58,570} (2;050)  (895.351)
“Total {820) 250 552 290 = 72

31 December 2013

Less than 1-3 3-12 1-5 Owver
1 month  months  months years 5 years Tatal
Demvatives settled
on a gross bass
— Cash milow 194,305 137,385 256212 54,638 1,998 544,538
— Cash outflow (194,609 (138,253) (253,998) (54.604) (1.958) (843.464)
Total (304) (868) 2,114 3z —_ 1,074

336 @#Itt!ﬁ‘

433/496



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

For the yesr ended 31 Decemnber 2014
Camounts in milkons of Rerminkd, unless othersise Sated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
48 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMEMNT (Continued)
48.2 Liguidity risk (Continued)

Credit Comimiitments
The tables below summanze the armounts of credit commitmeénts by remaining maturity

Group
31 December 2014
Less than 1=5 Owver
1 year years 5 years Total
Loan commitments 57,799 135.864 247,355 441,058
Bank acceptance 418937 —_ - 418,937
Credit card commitments 254222 — = 204,232
Guarantee and hibers
of guarantese 102, 668 104 440 34,063 241,101
Letters of credit 219,358 7.978 — 227,337
Total 1,052,985 248,282 281,458 1,582,725
Bank
31 December 2014
Less than 1-5 Ower
1 year years 5 years Total
Loan commitmenis o7, 799 135,864 247,395 441,058
Bank acceptance 415537 — - 418,937
Credit card commitments 254,222 — — 254273
Guarantes and letters
of guarantes 102 569 108275 34,063 243,007
Letters of credit 218,358 7.578 — 221,337
Total 1,052,986 250,117 281,458 1,584,561
Group and Bank
31 December 2013
Less than 1-5 Over
1 year years 5 yoars Total
Loan commitments 65,822 143778 260,669 470,269
Bank acceptance a0, 852 = — a0 852
Credit-card commitments 219,682 e = 219,682
Guarantes and laiters
of guarantes 77,638 72,772 40,663 191,073
Letters of credit 1925953 2,580 436 156,055
Total 960,947 219,230 301,768 1,481,945
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Nates b the Consolidated Financial Statemeants
For the year ended 31 December 2008
Lamoumts i milions of Renminbs, undess otheredse stated]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
48 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Contunued)

48.3 Market risk

Market nisk represents the potental loss ansing from changes i market rates of interest and
fareign exchange, as well as commaodity and equity prices; Market risk arises from both the
Group's propnetary posiions and cusiomer droeen transactions, in both cases related to on-
and off-balance sheet activities

The Group = primarily expesed to interest rate nsk threugh s lending. fixed-income and
funding actnities Interest rate nsk is mherent in many of the Group’s businesses and this
situation ks comman among large banks: It fundamentally anses through rmismatches between
the maturity and re-prcing dates of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities. As
diseussed Turther below, interest rate nsk & actvely managed

Fareign exchange rate risk is the potential boss relaied to changes in forelgn exchange rates
affecting the translation of foremgn currency denominated monetary assets and labilies. The
risk of loss results from mevements in forelgn currency exchange rates

The Group s alko exposed to commodity risk. pnmanly related to gold and other precicus
metals The risk of loss results from movements in commaodity price. The Graup manages the
risk related to goid price together woth foreign exchange rate risk

The Gioup has determaned that the levels of market gk felated o changes n equily piices
and commodity prices ather than gold, with respect to the related exposures in its trading and
investment portfelios, are immaterial

Segregation of Trading Book and Banking Book

To enhance the effectveness of market risk management. as well as the accuraty of
determining the levels of regulatory capital required related to market risk the Group
segregates all financal instruments and commodities. both on- and off-balance sheet,
inta either the trading bock or banking book The trading book & comprised of financial
instrurnents and commodity positions held for trading, including afl dervatves instrurments
Any other financial instruments are included in the banking book

Marker Risk Management for Trading Book

The Group manages market sk in the trading book through methodologies that include Value
at Risk (VaR) monitonng and management of established limits, sensitivity analysis, duration
analysis, exposure analysis and stress testing

a9 () REARML
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Mates 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the yesr ended 31 Decernber 2014
Lot in milBons of Rerminkd, unless otheraize Hated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
48 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
48.3 Market risk (Continued)

Marker Risk Management for Trading Book (Continued)

The Group has formulated polices. which are subject to review annually or as circumstances
otherwse dictate, to manage market rek Further, in this regard, the Group’s market risk
management 15 focused on movements in domestic and global financial markets, as well a5
the compositien of the trading Book and management's trading strategies, within approved
limits Moreover, the Group has implemented more speciic policies for finamcial instruments,
clozely monitonng the expeosure to specific wssuers and counterparbes, as well as the tenor
of mdnidual positions and trading strateges. The foundation of the Group's himit and risk
monitoring Bystem is based on VaR, which & used consistently to monitor all clazses of financial
mstrurments in the trading book

The Bank has adopted an histoncal simulaton method, with a confidence level of S9% based
on helding penod of 1 day and historical data for 250 days 1o <aboulate the Vak of the trading
boaks, which includes the Head Office, domestic branches and cwerseas branches Based
on the differences between domestic and overseaz markets, the Bank selected applicable
parametess for model-and rsk factors incorder to reflect the actual market sk levels. The Bank
verfied the accuracy and relability of market nsk measurements through data analyse, parallel
madelng and back-testing of the market sk measurements

Vak analysis for the Trading Book

Bank
2014
At the end
of the year Average Maximum Minimum
Interest rate risk e &Y S8 50
Exchange rate rek {1) 2 92 247 1
Commodity risk 36 21 =L 2
Owverall VaR BE 135 285 57
2013
At the end
of the year Average Maximum Minimum
InRenEst rate risk 81 46 a1 17
Exchange rate rek (1) 161 490 161 12
Commodity risk £ | 17 51 2
Cwverall Vak 211 113 211 36
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Motes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statemeants
For the yesr ended 31 December 2014
Lamoumts i milions of Renminbs, undess otheredse stated]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continues)
48 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Conunued)
48.3 Market risk (Continued)

VaR Analysis for the Trading Book (Contmued)

Tha Banic calculates VaR fov s taading book fexcirding BAME forergn curnendy seitfement contracts with customen wnder
relmardt regufations), The Bank conducls dress festing for 5 trading Bogk quartenly, The spedific amas subyject to the
Eesting incade the magor areass of edposwre. uch a5 bonds (nberes! mte dematives. foregn ecchange denvatives and
gold The stress teshing uses 2 range of soendnos, o assess the potendal impact an profit and loss

(1 Wl refared to gold i revogaized 32 & companent of fivega ecchange rate rak

NMarket Risk AManagement for Banking Book

The Group manages markel sk related to the banking book by consstently applying
techniques across the Group that mclude exposure limit management, stress festing, scenario
aralbysis ard gap analysis

Interest Rate Risk Managemeant

The interest rate rsk exsting mn the banking bock broadly relates to the mismaich ef the
maturity ar re-pricing dates of interest rate-sensitive financial assets and financial hiabilities, as
well as inconsistencies in the change of the benchmark interest rates on which most domestic
interest rate-sensitive firancial assets and financial liabalites are based.

The Group closely monitors changes in the madro-economic envirenment and the monetary
policies of the PBOC, epabling it to timely and flexibly adjusts its pricing strategy. The
Group establishes comprehensive interest rate nisk management pelicies and protocels and
has improved the consstency of interest rate rsk measurement, monitonng, analyss and
management of interest rate nsk across the Group

The Group reqularly measures and analyzes the Group's inferest rate risk by conducting gap
analysis: sensitivity analysis, scenano analysis and stress testing o manage interest rate risk
wathin established lirmats.

Foreign Exchange Rate Risk Management

Foreign exchange rate risk relates to the mismatch of fereign cumency denominated monetary
assets and habilities, and the potential koss related to changes in foreign exchange rates, which
largely arees through operational activites

The Group perferms monitonng and sensstivity analysis of foregn exchange rate risk exposure,

manages the mismatch of foreign currency denaminated assets and labilities to effectively
manage foreign exchange rate risk exposure within acceptable limits

s40 () HEAEML
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Mates 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2014
Lot in milBons of Rerminkd, unless otheraize Rated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
48 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
48.3 Market risk (Continued)

Marker Risk Exposure Limwt Managerment

Market risk exposure limits are classifed as esther directive limits or indicative limits, based
on the character of the underlying mstruments or transactions, including exposure limit
menitering, enforcement of stop-less limit, WaR limits, and stress testing limits

The Group s committed to continuous improvement of its market risk exposure limit
management The Group establshes exposure hmits reflecting its nsk appetite and continuoushy
refines the categorization of market rsk exposure imits Further, it regularly momitors, reports,
refines, and implements improvements to the market risk exposune limitl process

Fareign exchange rate risk
The Group primarily conducts e business actwities n RMB, with certain transactions

denominated in USD, HKD and, to @ lesser extent, other cumencies. Transactions in foreign
currencies mainly anse from the Group's forégn currency operations and treasury exposures
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2008
Lamoumts i milions of Renminbs, undess otheredse stated]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continues)
48 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Conunued)
48.3 Market risk (Continued)

Foreign exchange rate risk [Continued)

The composiion of all financal assets and liabilives at the end of each reporting pernicd
anabzed by currency 15 a5 fellows

Group
3 December 2014
UsD HED  currendes
(RME {RME {RME _
AME equivalent] eguivalent) equivabent) Tatal
[ anoes TRV, ncs Eri|r B ﬂ?ﬁ ] 7
Dreporats with banks and

other fingncal institutions L e ] 17A% o780 6,207 5805
Placements with ard loans to banks

and ather bnanaal nsiuhons 246,830 58,933 - m aneel
Finarsceal assets hedd for trading 5a.425 — - — 58425
Finarcial sssets demgrated st fsr

vak Bwrough profit o loss 343,566 2208 10,851 - 356,235
Dervatere fnanaal assets il 4302 fri | [} 7195
Finarcial assets held under resals ;

AresEnts 09,418 = — = 509418
Loans and sdvancis to U ommes 7,335,501 240455 40,545 14,103 7.7359%
Availabbe-for-sale financial asets B4R 43910 1,247 4318 S27.903
Held-ta-crgtamsty inwastments 1,704,059 A8 - 463 1,710950
Dot instuments dasafied

a5 recersabies 523,054 2 — 1 217
Cither financal amets 120, 380 5373 1464 an 125,188
Tota hranoal A58t EREERT] SHUATE B1ATT AR T R
Eorrowgs FTom CEnt M Dank To T21T = = = TE0A2T]
Deporsits from banks and

other finanaal instibations (654,023) 135,707 {103} (708% B31,141)
Macements from banks and

other finanaal it ticns (52.578k (118,923 {35431} eedy  @rAr3)
Finarecl labilises held for trading {25,211} - - - L5211}
Finarsceal labalibes deagnated at far

vakie through proht o loss {247,012} (179 - ey BT
Derivaters fnancal habilibies {2.924) @.278) (45} 1.993) 7240
Finardial assets sold under repundhase

AgrbEmends {122,632} 13,389 - - (131,021}
Cupe to oustomers (12,235,462} (194,857) {26,645} (15,403 (17.533.397)
Dieltrt secumitins issised {205, 845} {95, 23) {15.7.20) {6,658  BI51E7)
Othar finanaal bab iities (312,235 19,392} {2,660} {1914 36201}
Tota ol B es A O e . O = A L R AR

et an-balance sheet position 0, 500 [rig:lv)] T2, 7930 (5T BS1 e85
T rosona amournt of dermaives LA [ K] FEE 5029 o
Cradit commetimants 1412973 153012 7,566 9174 158278
342 @ hER R
At ke B LEaE
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= Consolidated Financial Statements

For the yesr ended 31 December 2014
LAmounts in milkons of Renminkd, urdess otherwise Sated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Group (T ontinued)
31 December 2013
Other
usD HKD  currencies
(RME (RME {RMB
RAMEB  equivalent) equivalent] equivalent) Total
T a5h one] alanices wiih cani s Bonks AR 10,741 TS [ I
Deposts with banks and
otheer Enanical mvsttutions 354005 193 5279 4,461 357678
Placerments with and loans to banks and
other Bnancial mettutions 86869 20,828 472 455 08655
Fmiaras assets hald for tradng 53,864 ~ - - 53554
Finanaal assels demgnated at far
vabun theough profit of loss 258,157 1474 5387 — wame
Drerivatiee finaroal asssis 16585 4,362 487 -] B.186
Financal asmts held under resale
SRR 737,052 .- — — 130052
Loars and advandes to qusiomens 6,520,161 332 a5 33708 15857 69025372
Avlable dor-sale fingncal assets TET.H%) 47,250 2605 3,726 TEan
Held-to-matunty reestmsnts 1521465 1,950 157 202 1523815
Drebt instruments dassified as recevabbes 592,089 — — 1 552 0590
Other finanoal assats 9.7 683 %6 659 103,024
Total inaroa assens To. o, 1o LTS LEREY : 281,
BRI SO CnTal Dank Ty - = = oy
Drepoats from bard:s and other inancial
rtitutions [l R [136,858) {1L0&T) {147 (739,354)
Placements from banks and
other fnanaal instiutns 69.272) (76,661) (89,225 [9.205) (174,363)
Financal habibtes held fer trading [20.805) - - - {0, 805)
Finarraal liabikte s designated ot far
vaiue through profit or lass GESATY {152 (24) (106 (285454
Denvatiee inanaal lixbdites {1814 (4, 168) {1,505) {150 (7,635
Fimandal assets sold under repunchase
agfesmants {23653) (3124} —_ — 126,787
Cu 10 customers (11,603,579} (158, 648) (34,279 (13,506 §11,811.411)
[ebt secunties sed Q02137 pLEEL ] 8,870 = [208,261)
Citier finzncaal liabalities ETTAET) {8,358) 11, 534) (11 (2&7 645
olal iraro ] A7E, 3 5 ; I
“Wet on-balance sheet position  BRa.817  H,005 &2, 5T} 1580 611,15
Tt notror et of Semeatives TI5ET T ) 16280 R e
Credit commetments 1,288,368 167,463 [F:T R 19,303 1481, %45
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hotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2008
{amiounts in millions of Renminbe, undess otheraase stated]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
48 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Contnued)

48.3 Market risk (Continued)
Foreign exchange rate risk [Continued)
Bank
1 December 2014
wspD HED  cumrendies
(RME (RMIE (RMB
AMEB equivalent] equivalent) equivalent) Total
Cath ard balances wilh central banks T T A SEAAG 323 [ E L
Drepecarts with barnikcs and .
other finanaal inststutions 523,904 26251 6430 6,207 562,792
Placements with and losns to banks _
and other francal inshtuhons 350,438 61864 - 523 412,825
Financel sty held for trading 805 - - - A%
Finanscaal assats desgnated at fair
varhie Bhrough profit or loss 3,133 4172 10,455 - 355762
Denivatve Branoal assets 2,706 4074 i | 144 6950
Firarceal amets held under resale
B eEATEniAS 509,412 - _— - S05412
Loans and aduande to oustoirers 7:304,743 341350 40,545 10800 7700348
Aualable-forsale financi] sssets BEELE51 43244 1,062 4,318 917381
Hebd-to-rnatunty swstmients 1.692.617 9428 - 463 1703502
Drelot instrumerts dasatied as
fecensables 511,173 = - 1 511174
Other finanaal asets 106,587 5318 374 s 113335
Tots franoal asets [ e 600 Ta0 155
Baorrowangs from central bark 150,050 —_ — —_ TR
Dwporsts From banks and
ether finanasl institutions (6a7.647)  (135.707) {710:) {708y B34.765)
Flacements from banks and
other financal institutions {37,235, (13765 {35581} 12y Pars0s)
Finarscsal lsabilities held for trading (25211} - - — 5211}
Finarsial lablites dengnated at fair
vakpe rough profit or loss {247,016} (173 — (51} 347.286)
Derivatve Bnancal liabilities {2,500 (2.276) (45} 11,351} @070
Frareceal agsets sold under repur chase
B eEEnts {118,561} 18,385 — - 1126.350)
Dhus 1o customers Hrrones3y Ges0a) (69380 (15258 (K2.530.189)
Doaltyt secunitoes izeed {205, 245} =512 15 T20) {6,658  (323.335)
Cither financal babiities {262.485) 15259 {1,148 {1.908) 79850
Tord Trwrcal bl A R I e R I e
et an-balance theet pention IR [FERT4)] 1406, 354] L L
T g [0 7 T 31 T S [ S 4
Cradrt commebmenis 1412873 154 248 7.566 9174 1584551

saa () REAEML
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Mates 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the yesr ended 31 Decernber 2014
LAmounts in milkons of Renminkd, urdess otherwise Sated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
48 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
48.3 Market risk (Continued)

Foreign exchange rate sk (Continued)

Bank {Conunued)
31 December 2013
Other
usD HED  currences
{RMB {RMEB {RMB
RMEB  equivalent) equivalent) equivalent) Total
Cash and balances wath
central banks 2591171 10,141 1,705 GO8  2.603.625
Deposits wath banks and
athier fengncial ingtitutions T2 29,824 B,501 4,39 IEG.938
Macements wath and loans to banks
and other finanoa initutions BT 174 22,382 472 1,038 310,967
Financial assats held for trading 53497 — — — 53497
Financal assats designated st
far value through profit o loss 255,562 T.045 5387 - 267,994
Deorrvative financal assets 2,685 4,352 437 642 8176
Financial assats held under resale
agreements 136,742 - - - 736,742

Loans and advances to customers AT B40 330,006 33,559 14,978 6,666,183
Avamiable-for-sale financial asets TI3.504 46,780 2,605 3,726 76715

Hetd-to-matunty investments 1,515 649 1,990 157 202 1,517,998
Dalot mstrumants classfied

& receivables EBE.458 - — 1 SBEA459
Other hnancil assets £2,258 5,655 214 659 91,817
Total financal assats 13,60, B L 461,070 ERET feycan 14,003,111
Borrowings from cantral bank )] — — — [E1v]
Deposits from banks

andd other financial institutions (593,559  {136.898) (1140 (197 (732,194)
Placements from banks

and other finanoal institutions 43,205) 75112 {15,064) B.539 (145524)
Financial liabilities held for frading (20,805} - = s (20,805
Financeal liabilities designated at

far value through profit or loss (85,172} (152 (24) (106) (2B5454)
Desrvative financal liabilites 1,814} 4. 164) (1,505 {1 50) (7633
Financial assats sold under

repurchase agreements 21,536} 334 — — 24,6700
D to customers (11,601,828 (158,622 {34,275 113.424) (11,808,163)
Dielt secunties issued (202,197} (4 A44d) {18,870) (7500  266,261)
Othar financal [isbilities (245,279} 78810 913) (135 (2542123

“Wet on-Ealance sheet position 652,777 668 (4981%] 2891 GEEIGE

Tat notonal ameunt of dariatives ZE.761] FEE] 26,266 3,205 [FER
Credit commitmenis 1,288,368 16T 463 6,811 19,303 1,481, %5
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Motes 1 the Consolidated Financial Statemeants

Fof this year ended 31 Decenber 7004
{amounts in millions of Penminbe, unleds otheradse stated]

IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
A48 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Contnued)
48.3 Market risk (Continued)

Foreign exchange rate risk (Continued)

The table below mdicates the potential effect on profit before wx and other comprehentive
mcame arsing from a 1% apprecaition of depreciation of RME spot-and forward foreign
exchange rates against a basket of all other currencies on the net positions of fareign currency
monetary assets and liabilies of Domestuc Operations in the consclidated statement of

financial position Forsign currency position of the Group’s Overseas Operations is not incheded
in this assessment

Group
31 December 2014 31 Dacember 2013
Other Other
Profit comprehensive Profit comprehensive
before tax incorme before tax incame
% sppreauon 123 6] 02 ]
1% degreaation (123} o (202) 1
Bank
31 Decemnber 2014 31 December 2013
Other Other
Profit comprehensive Prefit comprehensive
before tax income before tax income
1% appreciaion &5 [E 197 {1}
1% depreciation (89) 3 {197) 1

The effect on profit before tax and other comprehensive mcome 5 calculsted bazed on
the assumgption that the Group's foresgn currency sensitive exposures and faregn currency
dervative instruments net pesition at the end of each reporting pencd remain unchanged
The Group mitigates its foreign exchange rate nisk through active management of its foreign
currency exposures and the appropriate use of derivative instruments. based on managemeant
expectation of future foresgn currency exchange rate movements. Such analysis does not
take inlo account the correlation effect of changes in different foreign currencies, nor any
further actions that could be taken by management to mitigate the effect of foremgn exchange
differences; Therefore, the sensitivity analysis above may differ from actual results occurning
thraugh changes in foregn exchange rates

a46 (J) HEA R
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the yesr ended 31 December 2014
Camounts in milkons of Renminkd, unless othersise Sated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
48 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
48.3 Market risk (Continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate rsk anses from the mematches Detween contractual maturites or re-
pricing dates of interest-generating assets and interest-bearing Eabalities The Group’s interest-
generating assets and interest-bearing liabilites are primarily denominated in RME The FEOC
establehed RMB benchmark interest rates for loans waith a fioor and such policy was eliminated
with effect 20 July 2013 wherety financial institutions are in a position to price thesr |oans
based on commercial and market factors. The PEOC contmues to establish BME benchmark
interest rates for deposit with a cap.

The Group manages s interest rate risk by

— FRegularly monitoring the macro-economic factors that potentially impact the PEOLC
benchmark interest rates;

— Dptmmizing the management over the differences in tming between contractual

maturities of re-pricing dates of interest-generating assets and interest-bearing liabilnses
and

— Enhancing the interest rate margin on interest-generating assets and interest-bearing
labdities, with reference to the prevailing PEOC  benchmark interest rates where
appropnate
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Motes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statemenis
For the yesr ended 31 December 2014
{amoumts in milions of Penminbs, unleds otheneise stated]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continues)
48 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Conunued)
48.3 Market risk (Continued)

Irterest rate risk (Continued)

The tables below summarize the contractual matunty or re-pricing date, whichever is earlier, of
the Group’s financial assets and liabilites at the end of each reporting pencd

Group
31 Drecember 1014
[
Less than 13 3wl 1165 Ower  fierest
Tmosth  months  months yeas  Sysan  beaing Total

Cahand babares wih et benks.— TATS.BTE - = = = N3 LMiOn
Drepeciats with bessks zvee]

olhes firaredl mstdutions 106337 11537 T FELL] = 1B NS
Manemenis with and kv 10 bianlks _ _

and olher Bnancal iestil itons 14417 BAd 1360 s = — 4
fnancial sels held for adng 519 10549 1243 136 4934 Fi 58405
Firanc il swsets dessgreated A far

value through profid o1 b 44513 7w Tedes AL 1108 141l eEe
Dt el ods - - - = = 155 L%
Firescil zels held endar ke

gemeits ELLTE S [T 1] - - - 50adg
Losre 20 advances fo ouslomens P P R R e S — 1209
Avalable for e feancil et Ay B HEwWe A 17ETSE A w1am
el o-malunty ewesiments e H% AT RS BKAW = Lo
Db imruments chazded 2 eooncbins | Eg NG TR0 AT moosun
(nhes firanced asets - - - - = RIS s
Py Py = [ ] = = o maa),
Deposits from bents and :

ottt vl metdutons oA  F0MR (1BTSE) (HSATY = g (L
Fanements from basks and .

othes Fimser al metidu o [ e R 7 R 12 - = (45
Finacial fabiil 5 hedd for lissdng [6org  GRA (RE = = (omg @
Frircisl lshibles desagratied o 3

vahoe: rou gh proit o boes (S50 (85480 (BOGED)  (6031) 7] = [dLA
et e frcecia ihities = = = = S 1 T
Firasnc il e sold wnder pepunthons

apements Magm 4Ny (BE) = = — (13
Due b costovmmesy (TATTA%) (LGS (R362ETL)  (LA12631) (138 (174100 (12533300)
Debd secanties szed 568 BTN ORAT  (BR (1439 = (usAe)
Oither frcaned lesbiities - - - - —  (ma0f) (326000
Tota firance kbt B (4
Interest rate gap

as (PRusANn
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Mates ta the Consalidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2014
{(Arnants in milons of Rereninkd, unless othensze gated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continusd)
48 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Contnued)
483 Market risk (Continued)

Interest rate sk (Continued)

Group {Continued)
1 December 2013
Hea-
Less than 1103 Il e s Over  inderst
Tmonth  moaths  months yeas  Syan  bearng Total

Czh and balndes weth central banks FEIFL - - - — D0 1603BM
Dequoits with beanks aed

other francol mititations NGRS 509 104n wER - 1 3WEn
Flaterments anth and ans b basiks

and other frencdl msttitions 16LEET 1,260 5453 TeR: - —  EES
Fanancel et k] B (rlimg 6288 5.7 Ban 14370 im 50 53,864
Fnancial zmels designated df far

ke Hh profil o ket M3 TES WS B 1 s [T
Denelive: framial asts - = - - - E186 5188
Fnanc et held under e

Fgpemendy i R | e MO R - - — AR
Loarss and sheces o disdomess LIOLNS 135000 200008 10034 1391 —  BWISH
haiabve-for-e finned s vk S . S 1+ N | R 1 ' 1 S
et malunty vstents N5 M8 B e ML - 153ms
Dbt instruments clasied = woaabis 10635 1,178 M3n 080 00 14 59040
{abet Financid xets - - = = —  ImmE eam
Tolal hraned el TRAM LIS SEGAN  1SAL00 13560 SALEN AN
Borvm: oo cenird Gnk = = ] - - ]
Do, Fecem teankes

other fmanaal insitelioes (Ien) (1330 BHD (6D - M [Eesg
Pacements fiom bands aad

gther fnancal it ions (Ba4sd) (5740 (740 (1.738 - — 433
Firvanceal [eatoditoess hed for uadiog 4.8 255 14473 = - {5 (20805
Fnancial lbihes desgrted ot fai

i Eheousgh profit o kgs {06 (MERH  (SR3I0  (N53R (31} — [ 44
Deshatve financial habuites 2 = - - 7 I
Farencid azets sl unsdes pepuschoss

agrments < R I R P | (£ - - [&
[y Lo cushomers: (TAIST05) (1009.5m) LISDIH (.08 790 (Y rhaetag (1 2411
Db, oot e N4z (B0 (@J8) (@520 (54) = (266261
Othes Fircrced kabidties - - - - — (R (R4
Vo e e s (IR0 R (AT BIN] e Namesa)
Intesest e gap RIS W56 140,50 (14 1,004 E IR
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Motes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2008
Lamoumts i milions of Renminbs, undess otheredse stated]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
48 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Contnued)

48.3 Market risk (Continued)
Irterest rate risk (Continued)
Bank
31 December 2014
[T
Lss than 13 3wl 145 Ower  interest.
Tmosth  months  moniks years  Syean  beaing Total

Th ani bekrwes with cemieal berle. | LATSAG1 = p - = mia5 1AL
[repaocats wath hoeks aed

olhes fneol metdutions W56 e MEEE = = M sliw
Paerments verdh e loars 4o banls )

ard other Erancel nstdutions 1BME R/ISe  BIR BAR - — s
Frsamcial st held for wading 515 10549 mam 0 1 4934 a Saas
Francel scels desgrated at far

value: hrough prolt ot o 4513 W s SAL 17,78 - 35763
Drvallive fimancial asnts - - - - - (AL )
Fincecial szt hebd under e

I I IGET ATAR - = S
Lians 0 advances b customers TRMGRY 1 APM0 3T NS0E 179487 — 1o
Hvalsbieforabs francial 2mets 400 BB 0IM 059 17506 LT (AL
Hd {ermau iy iweddments 1w B 1Ra%R RARS  SsAS0 — 170350
Db irsteuments clasified i rosivablis 1 2R ME J5IR Im0E 88 S
Cther financel e - - - - - M3 1S
Told I s SATLATL 190,100 4400006 500 1J0ATW  SwE3  15Awg
oS 1H0iM Cerieal berk = [ p = - T
Deguoeas from benfts and ;

olher finamcial metitutions Guen  sosE  (IBRIGH ()51 = (45 (340
Pracesments from bosks asd

ofber fisgecnl mddutions (W5 (BR1)  (30908) (L] — = [roem)
Frarcial habibles bl for Leadng oy (GEd (i) - — e (s
Financia] lobedd s dasagecied 2t L

vakae thiuugh pri oo o S5eo0  (BSA60)  (B0AE)  (6331) {8 — (M
Lerrvat e Ferec il kababbies - - = - = {1 {1018
Francial asets a0l weder eporchase

el fiasm) (47 (Ren - - —  [16%0
D b homess (TAT3SY (A4S (R36297T) (1410250 (0 (74102 (2530069
Dbt s e et N I R L ) TR i 1 B 2 = [
Enrﬁrharrdﬂflﬁ - - - - — (B (7
Tol Tinancal lehdtes BN (AT A5t AT
Interest raie gap

350 @ hER R
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Mates 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the yesr ended 31 Decernber 2014
LAmounts in milkons of Renminkd, urdess otherwise Sated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
48 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
48.3 Market risk (Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Bank {Continued)
31 Decomber 1013
[T
Less than T3 ER-R Y Tas Over  iterest
Tmesth  months  meosths wan  Span  bewig Totad

Tach and i wil ceid Bnls. 200000 = s = —  DUgh Ihmhs
ety with banks and

other fnancd mstilitions TM488 SO 1E4M BSH = 1460 3R
Flaements wilh and ioans b banks

e okher firanodl ingttutions 166016 150 BE3M 37500 - — ooy
Fanancel asets held for texdng 6283 L3 B0 W30 38 2 Sra9
Financid acsels desspeatied ol faa

v Lhrough proft o oz naR  MEs w0 B 3 - 26099
[ - - - - - B Rl
Fenanccd azite held undor 1essle

agpeements 55170 R I = - — 1M
Loans nd advznces b0 utomess RIIM2 1GRTA 1E03TE TTEN 1IR3e —  EREE
Aoraikbie oo e frrancid el M M3 1358 BLME 80T 54 TETIS
Held-to-rsat iy et s 1150 @58 1MEH  eOES S - 1517
(bl instrements chemfied a0 recenabies 10135 1775 .okl 91 B0 L B
Other Tl et - - - - —  aml asr
Totd Trarcs) et T R R R E R B A
Bonwngs from ceitial bank - - - - = £ ] [£1]
Depossts fom basks and

oiher fmancal mstitulions (arsm (13109 33 (TRISD - n a1
Fiacerneeris feoss bonks and

other finandal eetififions By e a0k = = - (594
Forvancca il bedd et Iraviing (a0 (55 AR - - (5% (20805
Finzncid | chiblics degeated 3t fa

ol (Brough prot or s 0mn (WA (s (h53R [ - [B484
Desteatove: Prancil haibbes - = = = - 1533 (1633
firancel sets sold onder pepuhize

e [r T (T - = —  [MEM
[age Lo et (TS5 (100067 QIS (1080 @) (a0 (1808163
T (F488 (399 (BTG (8530 (1e5nat) = {66,261
(ther facnced hahilftes i = = = — ANy MNn
ot hmangial ket e (1.0, i A

Ieterest rate gap e
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Motes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2008
Lamoumts i milions of Renminbs, undess otheredse stated]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continues)
48 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Conunued)
48.3 Market risk (Continued)

Irterest rate risk (Continued)

The following table illustrates the potental pre-tax impact, of a parallel upward or downward
shift of 100 basés peints in relevant AME, USD and HED interest rate curves on the Group's
net Interest Income and other comprehensae income for the next twelve months from the
reporting date, based on the Group’s positions of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing
liabilities at the end of each reporting period. This analysis assumes that interest rates of all
maturities move by the same amount, and does not reflect the potentsal impact of unparalleled
yield curve movements

The sensitivity analyss on net interest income 5 based on reasonably possible changes in
interest rates with the assumption that the structure of financial assets and financial liabilites
held at the penod end remains unchanged, and does not take changes in customer behavior,
basis risk or any prepayment options on debt secunties into consideration

The sensitivity analysis on other comprehensve income reflects only the effect of changes In
fair value of those financial instruments classified as avaitable-for-sale financial assets held,
whose fair value changes are recorded as an element of other comprehenswe income

Group
31 December 2014 31 December 2013
Other Other
Net interest comprehensive Met interast comprehensive
incamae income income income
+100 bass peants {11,600} {23, 485) (11,922 {19,230
100 basls prents 11,600 23485 11,922 19330
Bank
31 December 2014 31 Dacember 2013
Other Other
Net interest comprehensive Mt interest comprehensive
income income: income income
+100 bass poinis {11.542] {23.165) 11,.883] 115,230
=100 bass paints 11,548 23,165 11,882 19,330

The assumptions do not reflect actions that might be taken under the Group's capital and
mteresi rate risk management policy to mitigate changes to the Group’s interest rate risk
Therefore the above analysis may differ from the actual situation
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
48 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
48.3 Market risk (Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

In-additon, the presentation of interest rate sensitvity above & for illustration purposes only,
showmg the potenual impact on met interest income and other comprehensive income of the
Group under different parallel yield cunve movements, relative to their pasition at peried-end

484 Insurance risk

The Group engages in its msurance busmess pnmanly in Mainland China Insurance risk refers
1o the financaal impact resulting Tram the unexpected oceurrence of incured events These risks
are actively managed by the Group through effective sales management, undanwriting conftrol
reinsurance. management and claim management Through effectve sales management, the
nsk of mis-selling could be reduced and the accuracy of information wsed for undenwriting
& improved. Through underariting control, rsk of adverse selection could be reduced and
moreover differential pricing policy based on the level of each kind of risk could be wtilized
Through remsurance, the Group’s msurance capacity could be enhanced and targeted nsks
could be mitigated, Effective claims management & designed o ensure that insurance
payments are controdled according to established criteria

Uneertamly in the estimation of future benefit payments and premiurm receipts for long-term
life insurance contracis arises from the unpredictability of long-term changes in overall levets of

meriality. The Group conducts expersence analysis of mortality rate and surrender rate, in order
1o irmprewve (s risk assessment and as a basis for reasonable estimates

49 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s capial management objectves are as follows
—  maintam an adequate capital base to suppart the development of its business,
— support the Group's financial stability and profitable growth,

—  aliocate capital through an efficient and nsk based approach to optimze risk-adjusted return to
shareholders. and

— safequard the long-term sustainabality of the Group's franchise so that it can continue 1o
provide sufficient shareholder returns and benefits for other stakeholders

In 2012, the CBRC &sued the “Capital Rules for Commercial Banks (Provisional)” which ook effect
from 1 January 2013 Upon the effectveness of this new regulation, the then existing “Measures

for the Management of Capital Adeguacy Rate of Commercial Banks”, ssued by the CBRC, was
superseded in full
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

48 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (Continued}

The “Capral Rules for Commercial Banks {Provesonal)” includes, among other things, requiremsnts
for minmum capital, capital conservation buffer, additional capital surcharge for systemecally
impartant banks. countercyclical buffer and Pillar 1 capital as {ollows

— minimum regulatory reguirements for Common Equity Tier-one Capital Adequacy Ratio, Tier-
cne Capital Adeguacy Ratio and Capital Adeguacy Ratie are 5%, 6% and 8%, respectively,

= ‘capital conservation buffer requires additional 2 5% of Common Equity Twer-one Capatal
Adequacy Ratio,

— additional capital surcharge for systemically important banks requires additional 1% of
Comman Equity Tier-one Capital Adequacy Ratio

— shoubd the regulatons require counteicycleal buffer under parbcular ercumstances ar regulatons
imposs additional Pillar Il capital requirerments for specific banks, these requirements shall be
met-within the specified time imits.

The Group has been using the Weighted approach and the Basic indicator approach to measure its
Credit Risk-weighted Assets and COperatonal Risk-weighted Assets, respectively, for the purpose of
caleulating its Capital Adeguacy Ratios In Apeil 2014, the CBRC has officially approved the Group
to adapt the Internal Ratings — Based approach 1o measure its Credit Risk-weighted Assets for both
retail and non-retail rek exposures and the Standardered approach to measure 1ts Operational Risks
weighted Assets, respectively. The CERC will determine the parallel run perod for the Group, which
should last for at least three years. Dunng the parallel run perod, the Group should caleulate its
Capital Adequacy Ratios under the above twio approaches, and should conforrm to the capital fioor
requirements as stiputated an the “Capital Rules for Commercial Banks (Provesional)™

As af 31 Decemnber 2014 and 31 December 2013, the Group adopted the Standardized appreach for
Iarket Relk-wisghted Assets measurement

Capital adequacy and the utilzation of requlatory capital are closely monitored by the Group's
management in accordance with the guidelmes developed by the Basel Committes and relevant
requlations promulgated by the CBRC . Required information related to capatal levels and utibzation &
filed quarterky with the CBRC
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

49 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The table balow summarizes the Capital Adeguacy Ratios and capital composition as at 31 Decemiber
2014 cabculated pursuant 1o the “Capital Rules for Commercial Banks (Provisional)” and under the
Interral Ratings — Based approach for Credit Risk-weighted Asset and the Standardeed approach
for Market Rek-wesghted Assets and Operabanal Relb-weighted Assets, respectvely, a5 approved by
the CBRC in Apnl 2014

31 December

2014

Common Equity Tier-one Capital Adequacy Rato (1) 909
Tier-one Capital Adequacy Ratio {1 946%%
Capital Adequacy fatic {1} 12829
Common Equity Tier-ane Capital {2} 9o, 429
Deductible tems from Common Equity Tier-one Capital {3) {5,223}
Met Comman Equity Tier-cne Captal G206
Additional Tier-one Capital {4} 30,0945
Met Tier-one Capital 1,026,152
Trer-two Capital {5} 362 407
Met Capital 1,291,550
Fisk-weeighted Assets {6} 10.852.519

As at 31 December 2013, the Group's Comman Equity Ter-one Capital Adeguacy Ratio, Tier-one
Capital Adequacy Ratic and Capnal Adequacy Ratio with Credit Risk-wesghted Assets, Market Risk-
weighted Assets and Operational Risk-weighted Assets measured under the Weighted approach,
the Standardzed approach, and the Basic Indicator approach were ©.35%, 9.25% and 11.856%
respecively
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

49 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Pursuant to the "Capital Rules for Commercial Banks (Provisional)y”

(1) The scope of consolidation related to the calculation of the Growp's Capital Adequacy Ratios
weludes Dameste Institutiens, Oversess Insbtutions and affilisted Hinancial subsidianes specified
in the Regulation

The Commen Equity Ter-one Capial Adequacy Ratro 5 calculated as Met Common Equity
Twr-one Capital dvided by Rek-weighted Assets. The Ter-one Capital Adequacy Rabio s
calcukated as Net Tier-one Capital divided by Risk-weighted: Assets The Capital Adequacy Ratio
15 calculated as Met Capital dwvided by Rsk-weighted Assets

(2} The Group's Common Equity Tier-one Capital includes. ordinary share capital, capital resemve
{subject to regulatory limitations), surplus reserve, general reserve, retained. earnings, non-
cantralling interests (1o the extent parmitled i the Common Equity Tier-one Capital under the
Reguiation), and the foreign currency ransiation resens

13} The Group's Deductible ltems from Common Equity Tier-one Capital include other intangible
assets (ewcluding land-use rights), and Commaon Equity Tier-cne Capital investments made
m financial insttutions over which the Group has contrel but are outnide the regulatory
conseldation scope for the Capital Adequacy Ratos calculation

{4) The Group’s Additonal Ter-one Capital mcludes preference shares isued and non-controllng
interests {to the extent permitted in the Additional Tier-one Capital definition under the
Regqulatcon)

{5) The Group's Trer-two Capital includes: Teer-two capital mstruments and related prermium (o
the extent allowed under the Regulation), excessve allowance for loan losses, and minority

interests {to the extent permitted in the Tier-two Capital definition under the Regulation)

{6} Risk-weighted Assets include Credit Risk-weighted Assets, Market Risk-weghted Assets and
Operational Rskaweighted Assets
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

50 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The majority of the Group’s assets and liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial postion
are financial assets and financial kabilities Fair value measurement of non-financial assets and non-
financial liabdites do not have a material impact on the Group's financial pesition and operations,
taken as a whole.

The Group does not have any financeal assets or financal habilitses subject to nan-recurning far value
measurements for the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013

50.1 Valuation technigue, input and process
The fair value of the Group's financial assets and financial lizbilities are determined as follows

= |f traded i actve markets, fair values of finarcal assets and financial labilites with
standard terms and conditions are determined with reference to quoted market bid prices
and ask prices, respectively,

— |f not traded an active markets, fair values of financal assets and financial liabibes are
determined in accordance with generally accepted precing models or discounted cash flow
analysis using prices from observable current market transactons for similar instruments
IT there were no available observable current market transactions prices for simiar
instruments, quoted prices from counterparty is used for the vaiuation, and management
pefforms analsis on thete preces Decounted cash Alow analysis using the applcable yietd
curve for the duration of the instruments i used for derivatives other than options, and
option pricing models ate ussd for option derivatives

The Group has establizhed an independent valuation process for financial assets and financial
fiabalities. The Finance Market Department is responsible for the valuation of financial assets
and financial liabdives, and the Risk Management Department performs an independent review
of the valuation methodologies, mputs, assumptions and valuation results The Cperations
Department records the accounting for these items and prepares the disclosure of the financial
assets and financial liabiltes, based on the independently reviewed valuation

The Group's valuation policies and procedures for different types of financial instruments are
approved by the Risk Management Committee Any change to the valuation polces, of the
related procedures, must be reported 1o the Rk Management Committee far appreval before
thiey are impobemen ted

For the year ended 31 December 2014, there was no sigrificant change in the valuation
techniques or inputs uzed to determine fair value measyrements
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
50 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contnued)

0.2 Fair value hierarchy

The Group classifies financial assets and finanzial habilites into the follwang three levels
based on the extent to which inputs to valuation technigues used to measure fam value of the
financial assets-and financal labilities are observable

Level 1, fair value measurements are those derved from quoted peices (unadpsted) in an adtve
market for identical assets or habilities;

Level 2° fai value measurements are those derwved. from puts other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or lability, either directly {that 15, as
pricesk of indirectly (that s, derved from prces) and

Level 3 far value measurements are not based on observable rarket data (that is,
ungbservable inpuis)

50.3 Financial assets and financial Wabilities not measured at fair value on
the consolidated statement of financial position

The tables below summarize the carying amounts and fair values of those financial assets and
financial lizbilities not measured in the consobdated statement of financial position at their
fair value. Financial assets and financial kabilities- for which the carnng amoun s approximate
fair value. such as Balances with Central Banks, Deposis with Banks and Other Financial
Institutiens, Placements with and Loans to Banks and Other Financial Institutions, Financial
Aszets Held under Resale Agresments, Loans and Advances to Custemers, Recewvable from
the MOF, Speasl Government Bond, Borrowsngs from Central Bank, Depesits and Placements
from Banks and Other Financial Institutons, Due to Customers, Financial Assets Sold under
Repurchase Agreements and Certficates of Deposit bBsued, Interbank Certificate of Deposits
ksued and Commerceal Papers Issued are not mcluded in the tables below
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

50 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

50.2 Financial assets and financial Habilities not measured at fair value on
the consolidated statement of financial position (Continued)

Group
31 December 2014 31 December 2013
Carrying Carrying
amount  Fair value amount  Fair value
Financial assets
Held-to-maturity
mvestments 1,710,250 1, 725227 1.523.815 1,444, 898
Debt msttuments
classified as recenvables (1) 150,503 150,650 136,736 131,214
Total 1861453 1,875,917 1,660,551 1,506,112
Financial liabilities
Bonds isswed {2} 191,954 193,493 186,300 145,741
Bank
31 December 2014 31 December 2013
Carrying Carrying
amount  Fair value amount  Fair value
Financial assets
Held-to-rmaturity
mnvestments 1,703,503 1,717,746 1,517,905 1,439,081
Debt mstruments
classified a5 recenvables (1) 139,560 138681 130105 124,583
Total 1,843,068 1,857.427 1.64%8,103 1,563,664
Financial liabilities
Bands issued {2} 190,163 191,672 156,300 145,741

Other than as stated below, financial assets and financial liabibties a5 set outl above were
classifted withan Level 2 of the fair value measurement hierarchy

{1} As at 31 December 2014, inciuded in the Group’s debt instruments classified as
receivables, RMET1,204 millon were classified within Level 3 of the far value
rreasurement hierarchy (31 December 2013 RMBS.414 million) The Bank has no debt
instruments classified as recetvables classified within Level 3 of the fair value measurement
hierarchy as at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013

{2}  Asat 31 December 2014, included m the Group's and the Bank's bonds issued RMEBE3 055
rndlion were classified within Level 1 of the fair value measurement hierarchy (31
Decamber 2013, RME3 048 rmullson)
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
50 FAIR VALUE OF FINANMCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cantinued)

50.4 Financial assets and financial Kabilities measured at fair value on the
consolidated statement of financial position

The tables below summarize the fair values of the financial assets and financial liabifities
measured 0 the consoldated statement of financal posttion at their Tar value

Group
31 December 2014
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets hield for trading

— Debi secunties - 40,870 -— 40,810

— Precious metal cantracts — 17,615 — 17,615
Subtotal — o5 425% = 8,425
Financial assets designated at

fair value through profit or loss

— Debi securities 122 45,971 = 46,003

= Interest m trust products — = 248,794 248,754

— Other debtinstruments _— - SeETE 20876

— Equity instruments 3 B33 836 1,472
Sublofal 125 45,5604 309,506 356,235
Denvative financil assets

— Exchange rate dervatives - 5654 164 E.E18

— Interest rate denvatives _ T57 38 165

— Precious metal contracts — 551 — E51

— Others — - 21 21
Subtotal — 6,972 223 7,105
Ay arlabke-for-zale financal assets

— Dbt securilies 19,058 G2 804 115 L )

— Equity instruments 414 — 1.325 2244

— Fund mvestments 3,358 — — 3,358
Subtotal 23,375 G2 204 1.440 §27.615
Total assets 23,500 1,014,805 311,169 1,349,474

Financial labiltiss held for trading
— Fmancial labihes related to
precicus metal — 25211} = 25.211)
Financal liabilities designated at
fair value through profit or loss
— Principal guarantesd wiealth

management products 243 =3 (347.282) (347,243}
Derwative financial iabilities
— Exchange rate derivatives — (6,020} {226} (6.245)
— Interest rate dervatives - {856} (70} (936)
— Precious metal contracts — {5&} — [S8)
Subtotal — (5,544 (295} {7.2400)
Total liabilities — {32,155)  (347.578) (379,733)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
50 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

50.4 Financial assets and financial Wabilities measured at fair value on the
consolidated statement of financial position ([Continued)

Group (Continued)

31 December 2013

Level 1 Level 2 Lovel 3 Total

Financial assets held for frading

— Debt sscunties —_ 42012 — 42,012

— Eguity mstruments 43 — - 43

— Pyecious metal contracts — 11.804 -- 11,804
Subtatal 48 53.816 — 53,5864
Financial assets dessgnated at

fair value through proft or koss

— Debl secunties — 58,007 — S8.007

= Interest in trust products = = 171,280 171,280

— Cther debt instruments — — 38,710 8,710

— Equity mstrumants — - 1021 1.021
Subtotal — 58007 211,011 289,018
Dervative financial assets

— Exchange rate dervatives - 5523 292 5,915

— Interest rate dernvatives — 1.582 55 1.637

— Precious metal contracts — 634 = 634
Subtotal — 7.539 347 8. 186
Available-for-sale financial assets

— Dbt secunties 6,802 171,946 155 778,944

— Equily mstruments 549 — 29 578

— Fund investments oEa — — Oas

— thers — 560 —_ 580
Subtotal B.330 772,506 225 781,070
Total assets 8,387 892,168 211,583 1,112,138

Financial lmblities held for trading
— Financaal habilites related to
preciaus metals — (20805) — {20,805}
Financial labilities designated at
fair value through profit or loss
— Principal guaranteed wealth

management products - = (Z85,454) (285,454)
Dervative financial liabilities
— Exchange rate derivatves — 15.123) {271) (5.604)
— Interest rate desivatives — {1,820} {120} (1,240)
— Others — — {1) {1}
Subtotal = 15,943) B9Z) [r.633)
Total liabilities — (27,748)  (286,146)  (313.894)
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
50 FAIR VALUE OF FINANMCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cantinued)

50.4 Financial assets and financial Kabilities measured at fair value on the
consolidated statement of financial position (Contnued)

Bank
31 December 2014
Lewel 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets held for trading
— Debt securnites — 40,810 — 40,810
— Precious melal contracts —_ 17615 — 17,615
Subtotal - 68 425 — 58,425
Financial assefs designated at
fair value through prefit or loss
— Debt secunties 122 45,971 — 46,003
— Interest oy trust products — — 243,704 243,794
— Other debtinstruments — — BLETE 60,876
Subhotal 122 45,571 I05.ETO 585,763
Demvative financial assets
— Exchange rate dervalives _ 5,430 164 5.504
— Interest rate denvatives —_ 157 38 755
— Precious metal contracts - 551 -— 561
Subtotal - 6,748 202 6,950
Available-for-zale financal assets
— Dbl securites 18,847 297,348 115 S16,810
— Equity instrumenis 287 — — 287
Subtotal 19,134 497,848 115 a17.097
“Total 19,256 1,008,992 309,987 1,338,235

Financal liabilities held for trading
— Fivanceal labilites related to
precious metals — (25,211} — 25.211)
Financal liabilities designated at
fair value through prodit or loss
— Procipal guarantesd wealth

management products — —_ (347,285) {347,286)
Derwvative financial labilities

— Exchange rate dervatives —_ {5,852} (226} [&078)

— |Fterest rate dernatvies - (B5E) {70} {936)

— Precious metal contracts —_ (o8} == [=8)

Subtotal = {6,776} (256) {7.072)

Total — (31,987)  (347,583) (379,569
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
50 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

50.4 Financial assets and financial Wabilities measured at fair value on the
consolidated statement of financial position ([Continued)

Bank (Continued)
31 December 2013
Level 1 Level 2 Lewel 3 Tatal

Financial assets held for trading

— Debt securities - 41,693 — 41,693

— Precrous metal contracts — 11,804 - 11,804
Subtotal — E3.497 — 53,497
Financial assels designated at

fair vabue through profit or loss

— Debt secunties — S8 O07 — S8.007

— Interest in trust products — - 171.277 171,277

— Other debt instruments — — 38,710 .70
Subtotal - 28007 209,987 267,994
Derwvatve financial assets

— Exchange rate derwatives — 5613 292 5805

— Intergst rate dervatives — 1,582 55 1,637

— Precigus metal contracis — 534 — 634
Subtotal — 71829 347 8.176
Ayailable-for-sale financial assets

— Pebt securnities 6420 760,595 196 76211

— Equity mstrumants 253 - = 263
Subtotal 6,653 765 505 195 776,474
Total 6,683 888,928 210,530 1,106,141

Financial labdities held for trading
— Financal liabilities related
to precious metalk — {20,805) - {20,805}
Financial labidities designated at
fair value through profit or boss
— Frincipal guaranteed wealth

management products — — (285,454} {285,454)
Dervative financial liatulities
— Exchange rate derivatves - (5.121) {571} {5,652}
— Interest rate derivatives — (1.820) {120} {1,940}
— CHhers — - (1) {1}
Subtotal = (6.241) EEE) {7.633)
Total — (27,746} {286,146) (313,892)
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued)
50 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contnued)

504 Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value in the
consolidated statement of financial position (Continued)

Substantially all financial instruments classified within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy are
debd invesiments, currency forwards, currency swaps, interest rale swaps, cuirency options and
precious metal contracts. Fair value of debt investrments denominated in RME & determined
based upon the valuation published by the China Central Depasitory & Cleanng Co., Ltd
Fair value of debl investments denominated in foreign cumrencies & determined based upen
the valuation results published by Bloomberg The fair value of currency forwards, currency
Swaps, interest tate swaps and currency options are calculated by appling discounted cash
flow analysis ar the Black Scholes Pricing Model, The fair value of precious metal contracts is
determined with reference o the closng spot price of gold of the Shangha Gokd Exchange All
significant inputs are observable in the maket

Substanbally all inancial asseis and financeal labilities classified within Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy are credit assets and other financial assets and financial Liaklities Designated at Fair
Value through Profit or Loss Generally, these assets are the investments into which wealth
management products have invested, and for which the Group has previded investors with a
principal, andfor return guarantee The related liability, the wealth management product idself,
5 ako desgrated at faw value through profil or loss. These designations offsel the accounting
mismatch.

The nature of the assets classified within Level 3 of the fair value measurement hierarchy iz
prirmarily investment products issued by domestic trust companies or other financial institutions,
underlying assets of which include credit assets, deposits with financal institutions and debt
secunties. The counterparties of the underlying depesits are primarly commercial banks in
Mainland China, The credit assets and debtl securities are loans and advances to corporate
customers and, plain vanills bonds or notes ssued by corporates or financial institutiens
in Mainland China As not all of the inputs needed to estimate the fair value of deposits,
credit aszets and debt securites in the nvestment products are observable, the Group
classified the investment product as @ whole within Level 3 of the fair value measurement
hierarchy . The significant unobservable mputs related to the ciedil assets are those argund
credit rsk and liquidity risk. This largely relates to the lack of historical default and lquidity
information through one or more economa cycles, which Mainland China has not expenenced.
Management has made assumptions, based on observed indicators of mparment or significant
changes in yield, but the actual value realzed from these underlying assels in 3 current arm’s
fength sale could differ from those disclosed.

There were no significant transfers between levels of the faw value hisrarchy during the years
ended 31 December 2014 and 2013
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Camounts in milkons of Rerminkd, unless othersise Sated)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
50 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

50.4 Financial assets and financial Habilities measured at fair value in the
consolidated statement of financial position (Continued)

The reconciliation of Level 3 classified financial assets and financial kabilities presented at fair
value on the consclidated statement of financial positon is as follows

Group
24
T Financal Financal
Assety limbilitins
designatad Avsifsble-  designated
af it walue  Deivative For-sale  atfarvalue  Desivative
through financial financial throwgh financial
prefit or loss assets aszets  peofit ce loss liabdlities
1 January 2014 211011 47 235 {285 454) f92)
Prurchasis 361 352 11 13425 - -
i - - -_ 13,084,325) —
Satthementuidisposals a2 i o 3007 LS
Total ganullosser) recognized n
— Profit or loss 16486 (123 1 {14,237 350
— Qfher compreh enive inCome - — 12 — —
31 December 2014 303,506 75 1800 @47.28) 129%)
Change in unrealized foosealigains
for thee year ncluded in
proht or loss bor ssetuhabilibes
Fedd at the end of the year {187} ] - 435 360

Annual Reporl 2014 365
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Fof the year ended 31 December 2003
{emoumts inomilions of Penminbs, unless otheredse stated])

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
50 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cantinued)

50.4 Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value in the
consolidated statement of financial position (Contnued)

Group (Continued)

03
Financial Financial
agaets liabélities
designated Available-  designated
at fair value  Derivative for-sale st fairvalue  Derivative
through finangal financial through financial
profit o loss ety assets  profit or boss liabilities
1 laruaary 2013 127,004 Tag 5141 (155.071) {1856
Punchases 433.o0m - - - -
tesures - — - (1.200,295) -
Sl lemantsidisposaly 357,601} 48] {5.535) 1050, 965 132
Takal gainafhooses) recognized in
— Proht or loas 4507 (401} F {10,053) %2
— Other comprehense income - - 2} - -
3 Docember 2012 L 7 115 (255,454} {692
Change in unresized gunufiose]
fee thee year mchaded n
proht oo bost Bor assetulisbilines
fild &% B aned OF thi year 7 {401} - 643) 93

366 (J) BRREMG
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For -.he.:.--ear e-rdr.-d.S'! I:.;-.\:em‘:-ee 2014
Camouts in milEons of Renminki, unless othenmze Rated)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
50 FAIR VALUE OF FINAMNCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

50.4 Financial assets and financial Habilities measured at fair value in the
consolidated statement of financial position (Continued)

Bank
Year ended 31 Decerrber 2014
Financial Financial
azsety lishilitins
designated Available-  designated
at Fair value Derivative fersale ot Fsir valos Desiv ative
through financial financial thraugh financial
profit or loss Bisety msets  profit or loss linkdlities
1 Fanuary 2014 209,947 7 195 (285 454} {9z
Purchases 367,803 - - - -
LT - - - 13,084, 379) —
Setdermentiidisposah {284 6530 nm [i:1u ] 203673 E{
Total gaensfosse) recognized n
— Prodit or loss 16470 {128y i {14,237} 360
— Ofer compreh éndive income - - LFs} - -
31 December 2014 305,670 02 115 (347,286} (296}
Change n unresized Josesbiguns
for ez year enclisded in
profit or loss for avsetuhabilibes
heid at the end of the year (&7} ] - 433 360
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
{amoumts in milions of Penminbs, unleds otheneise stated]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
50 FAIR VALUE OF FINANMCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cantinued)

50.4 Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value in the
consolidated statement of financial position (Contnued)

Bank (Continued)

Year ended 31 December 2013

Financial Financial
ety liabilities
designated Available-  designated
at fair valus Dieriv ative for-sale &t fair value Dresivative
through finanaal fin an-cial through financial
profit or loss mels asiety  profit o boss labilities
1 Faniary 2002 126310 196 5408 (155071} {155
Purchases 4313171 - .- - -
besues - - - (1.200.255) --
Set thomentyidiposels G137} 48] &5.291) 1,050,965 3
Total gainafiowses) recognzed in
— Profit of loas 8477 401} i1 (10,063 b I,
— Other comprehenive inoome - - 21} - -
31 December 2013 200,587 7 196 (285 454) {692)
Change in unresiged gunufose]
bor the year mdisded in
prght or boss for assetvluabilines
Fedd at Bhie end of e year A7 4] - a3y a8

In Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy, total gains or losses included in profit or loss for thie year
are presented m Met Trading Gainfloss) an Investrment Securities of the consabidated income
statement

368 @#Itt!ﬁ‘
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Mates 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2014
Lot in milBons of Rerminkd, unless otheraize Rated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
51 EVEMNTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

51.1 Profit appropriation

Pursuant to the meeting of the Board of Directors on 24 March 2015, the proposal for profit
appropriations of the Bank for the year ended 31 December 2014 15 set forth as follows

(i) An appropriaticn of RME17.894 milion o the statutorny surplus reserve;
{iy An appropriation of BMENS, 721 millon to the general reserve.

(i) A cash dwidend of RMBD. 132 per ondinary share in respect of the year ended 31
December 2014 based on the number of ardinary shares isswed as at 31 December 2014
totaling RMBSS, 113 mallion {Mate I 10 Dividends)

As at 31 Decernber 2014, the statutory surplus reserve had been recognzed as appropriation
The other two items will be recognized on the Bank's and the Group's financial statements
after approval by shareholders in the forthooming general meeting

51.2 Issuance of preference shares

The Bank completed the issuance of the second tranche of 400 million preference shares at par
on 18 March 2015 The second tranche preference shares bear a dividend rate of 5.5% per
annum far the first five years-from ssuance, and the dividend rate will be re-priced every five
years thereafier wath reference to the five-year PRC treasury bonds yeld plus a fixed premium
of 2. 24%. For details of terms and conditions of preference shares, please refer 1o Note I 37
Preference Shares

52 COMPARATIVES
Certan comparatve amoun s have been reclssified 1o confarm with the current year's presentation
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12 31
2014 2013
44..02% 43.57%
72.49% 114.95%
GAAP

545,824 61,698 27,918 635,440
(564,420)  (82,159)  (36,768)  (683,347)
432,294 34,327 41,240 507,861
(368,809) (8,499)  (25,214)  (402,522)
(1,330) 6 (398) 1,722)
43,559 5,373 6,778 55,710
3,403 5,302 723 9,428
467,323 54,544 27,100 548,967
(428,295)  (75,469)  (23,903)  (527,667)
300,777 45,524 51,068 397,369
(301,283)  (19,278)  (47,915)  (368,476)
702 (82) 620
39,224 5,321 6,268 50,813
3,081 4,082 675 7,838
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( )
2014 12 31
16,765 61,443 78,208
- 5,076 48,858 53,934
18,266 151 266 18,683
22,666 3,371 5,011 31,948
62 215 277
57,759 3,522 67,835 129,116
( )
2013 12 31
13,501 2,205 48,013 63,719
- 5,715 1,572 41,759 49,046
12,471 309 2,466 15,246
23,890 3,356 5,057 32,303
61 73 134
49,923 5,943 55,536 111,402
4.
1
( ) 12 31
2014 2013
3 73,139 34,893
3 6 27,840 6,832
6 12 28,617 15,078
12 37,024 43,621
166,620 100, 424
3 0.90% 0.48%
3 6 0.35% 0.09%
6 12 0.35% 0.22%
12 0.46% 0.60%
2.06% 1.39%
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26,403 10,376
23,234 7,960
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22
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IFRS IFRS 3

21

IFRS

(@)
IFRS IAS 32 IAS 39

2013 9 21
2015 4 1
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2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
13.90 13.05 13.77 17.31 19.78
12.05 11.94 12.07 13.89 16.39
12.94 12.34 12.65 15.79 17.18
12.31 12.33 13.69 17.31 19.47
100
2014 2015 2015 2015 2015 2015
12 1 2 3 4 5
19.78 19.55 19.52 19.64 19.58 20.17
19.06 18.95 19.03 19.35 19.35 19.46
19.44 19.24 19.22 19.50 19.44 19.67
100
20.17 2015 5 29
100

487/496



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

@

O

©
12 31

(D

©

488/496



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

@

O

@

489/496



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

oOoOooodn
2014 1 1 2037 12 31 15.315 15.315 5
2038 1 1 15 15 5
« )
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20.315 15.315 5 2038 1 1
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2009
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2009
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the shareholders of Agricultural Bank of ChinaLimited
(Incorporated in the People's Republic of Chinawith Limited Liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Agricultural Bank of China Limited
(“the Bank”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 178 to 369, which
comprise the consolidated and the Bank's statements of financial position as at 31 December
2014, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Directors Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financia statements based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of materia misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financia statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Bank and of the Group as at 31 December 2014, and of the Group's profit and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards

and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Other Matters
This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for you, as a body, and for no

other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 24 March 2015

495/496



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

496/496



	表紙
	本文
	第一部企業情報
	第１本国における法制等の概要
	１会社制度等の概要
	（１）提出会社の属する国・州等における会社制度
	（２）提出会社の定款等に規定する制度

	２外国為替管理制度
	３課税上の取扱い
	４法律意見

	第２企業の概況
	１主要な経営指標等の推移
	２沿革
	３事業の内容
	４関係会社の状況
	５従業員の状況

	第３事業の状況
	１業績等の概要
	２生産、受注及び販売の状況
	３対処すべき課題
	４事業等のリスク
	５経営上の重要な契約等
	６研究開発活動
	７財政状態、経営成績及びキャッシュ・フローの状況の分析

	第４設備の状況
	１設備投資等の概要
	２主要な設備の状況
	３設備の新設、除却等の計画

	第５提出会社の状況
	１株式等の状況
	（１）株式の総数等
	①株式の総数
	②発行済株式

	（２）行使価額修正条項付新株予約権付社債券等の行使状況等
	（３）発行済株式総数及び資本金の状況
	（４）所有者別状況
	（５）大株主の状況

	２配当政策
	３株価の推移
	（１）最近５年間の事業年度別最高・最低株価
	（２）当該事業年度中最近６月間の月別最高・最低株価

	４役員の状況
	５コーポレート・ガバナンスの状況等
	（１）コーポレート・ガバナンスの状況
	（２）監査報酬の内容等
	①外国監査公認会計士等に対する報酬の内容
	②その他重要な報酬の内容
	③外国監査公認会計士等の提出会社に対する非監査業務の内容
	④監査報酬の決定方針



	第６経理の状況
	１財務書類
	２主な資産・負債及び収支の内容
	３その他
	４国際財務報告基準と日本における会計原則及び会計慣行の主要な相違

	第７外国為替相場の推移
	１最近５年間の事業年度別為替相場の推移
	２最近６月間の月別最高・最低為替相場
	３最近日の為替相場

	第８本邦における提出会社の株式事務等の概要
	第９提出会社の参考情報
	１提出会社の親会社等の情報
	２その他の参考情報


	第二部提出会社の保証会社等の情報
	第１保証会社情報
	第２保証会社以外の会社の情報
	第３指数等の情報

	監査報告書

